Getting on with the job

Victorian Budget 17/18 Service Delivery

Budget Paper No. 3 Presented by Tim Pallas MP, Treasurer of the State of Victoria



The Secretary Department of Treasury and Finance 1 Treasury Place Melbourne, Victoria, 3002 Australia Tel: +61 3 9651 5111 Fax: +61 3 9651 2062 Website: budget.vic.gov.au

Authorised by the Victorian Government 1 Treasury Place, Melbourne, 3002

This publication makes reference to the 2017-18 Budget paper set which includes: Budget Paper No. 1 – Treasurer's Speech Budget Paper No. 2 – Strategy and Outlook Budget Paper No. 3 – Service Delivery Budget Paper No. 4 – State Capital Program Budget Paper No. 5 – Statement of Finances (incorporating Quarterly Financial Report No. 3) © State of Victoria 2017 (Department of Treasury and Finance)



You are free to re-use this work under a Creative Commons Attribution 4.0 licence, provided you credit the State of Victoria (Department of Treasury and Finance) as author, indicate if changes were made and comply with the other licence terms. The licence does not apply to any branding, including Government logos.

Copyright queries may be directed to IPpolicy@dtf.vic.gov.au.

ISSN 2204-9185 (print) ISSN 2204-9177 (online)

Published May 2017

Service Delivery

2017-18



Presented by

Tim Pallas MP

Treasurer of the State of Victoria for the information of Honourable Members

Budget Paper No. 3

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Chapter 1 – Output, asset investment, savings and revenue initiatives	1
Whole of government – Aboriginal affairs	3
Whole of government – Family Violence	5
Whole of government – Homes for Victorians	19
Whole of government – Ice Action Plan – Stage 3	24
Whole of government	26
Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources .	27
Department of Education and Training	53
Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning	65
Department of Health and Human Services	78
Department of Justice and Regulation	94
Department of Premier and Cabinet	
Department of Treasury and Finance	
Parliament	
Court Services Victoria	
Revenue initiatives	111
Savings	114
Chapter 2 – Department performance statements	115
Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources .	
Department of Education and Training	
Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning	
Department of Health and Human Services	226
Department of Justice and Regulation	267
Department of Premier and Cabinet	297
Department of Treasury and Finance	
Parliament (including Victorian Auditor-General's Office)	
Court Services Victoria	

Table of contents (continued)

Appendix A – Output performance measures for review by the Public Accoun
--

and Estimates Committee	357
Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources	357
Department of Education and Training	363
Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning	364
Department of Health and Human Services	366
Department of Justice and Regulation	371
Department of Premier and Cabinet	372
Department of Treasury and Finance	373
Parliament (including Victorian Auditor-General's Office)	374
Appendix B – Local government financial relations	375
Supporting sustainable and effective local government	375
Funding sources to local government in Victoria	376
Community Support Fund	378
Flood and natural disaster response	379
2017-18 Budget initiatives	379
Style conventions	381

CHAPTER 1 – OUTPUT, ASSET INVESTMENT, SAVINGS AND REVENUE INITIATIVES

Budget Paper No. 3 *Service Delivery* outlines the Government's priorities for the goods and services it provides to Victorians, and details the budget decisions the Government has made to implement its agenda.

The 2017-18 Budget funds \$9.6 billion in output initiatives and up to \$6.1 billion in new capital investment. This builds on the Government's \$6.8 billion investment in output initiatives and up to \$12.4 billion in capital projects in 2016-17. This will ensure the services Victorians need are delivered across the state, and our growing economy continues to prosper.

Budget Paper No. 3 *Service Delivery* provides information on how the Government is meeting its performance targets for delivering outputs to the community, and how these outputs contribute to key objectives.

able 1.1: Output summary (\$ million)						
	2016-17	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21	
Aboriginal Affairs		28.1	31.0	23.8	17.7	
Family Violence	1.9	444.6	399.5	371.2	428.0	
Homes for Victorians	8.9	35.2	24.6	27.5	26.9	
Ice Action Plan – Stage 3	0.2	16.1	14.0	14.0	14.4	
Whole of Government		12.5	2.5	2.5	2.5	
Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources	57.6	659.7	281.3	161.0	133.1	
Education and Training	7.3	120.6	297.4	104.5	120.0	
Environment, Land, Water and Planning	28.4	314.4	263.7	192.6	128.7	
Health and Human Services	41.2	857.9	559.9	516.8	520.3	
Justice and Regulation	11.8	326.6	480.2	604.0	725.8	
Premier and Cabinet	8.9	16.8	18.7	9.1	9.1	
Treasury and Finance		3.0	1.5	1.6	1.7	
Parliament	1.1	8.9	9.9	9.9	10.0	
Court Services Victoria		12.0	9.1	8.9	8.8	
Total output initiatives ^(a)	167.3	2 856.5	2 393.4	2 047.4	2 147.1	

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance

(a) Table may not add due to rounding.

Note:

Table 1.2: Asset summary

(\$	million)
-----	----------

	2016-17	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21	TEI
Aboriginal Affairs						
Family Violence		119.3	72.1	41.8	29.1	262.3
Homes for Victorians		10.0				10.0
Ice Action Plan – Stage 3		19.7				19.7
Whole of Government		17.5	22.5	27.5	32.5	100.0
Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources	67.1	597.2	912.8	881.6	427.4	3 180.7
Education and Training	20.0	254.2	318.1	88.1	4.6	685.0
Environment, Land, Water and Planning	1.2	41.9	38.7	25.1	11.7	118.7
Health and Human Services		237.2	216.5	188.6	94.8	760.9
Justice and Regulation	31.6	252.4	296.7	261.4	56.7	911.4
Premier and Cabinet		4.8	2.5	1.3		8.6
Treasury and Finance		10.0	10.0			20.0
Parliament						
Court Services Victoria		9.2	6.1	2.6	0.6	18.5
Total asset initiatives ^(a)	120.0	1 573.3	1 896.0	1 518.0	657.4	6 095.7

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance

Note: (a) Table may not add due to rounding.

WHOLE OF GOVERNMENT – ABORIGINAL AFFAIRS

Output initiatives

Table 1.3: Output initiatives – Aboriginal Affairs				(\$ million)		
		2016-17	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21
Aboriginal soci health	ial and emotional wellbeing and mental		2.7	2.7	3.0	
Aboriginal You	th Mentoring Program		0.9	0.9		
Alcohol and ot Victorians ^(a)	her drug treatment for Aboriginal		2.5	4.2	3.7	3.8
	upport Marrung: Aboriginal Education Plan ng the foundations for better outcomes		1.8	2.2	2.0	2.0
Self-determina	ation and community infrastructure		7.0	6.7	4.0	4.0
Self-determina	ation and strong culture		4.8	4.8	5.2	3.1
Self-determina	ation and treaty		8.4	9.4	5.8	4.8
Total output in	nitiatives ^(b)		28.1	31.0	23.8	17.7

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance

Notes:

(a) This initiative contributes to activity that attracts Commonwealth funding under the National Health Reform Agreement. Estimates of the Commonwealth's contribution are included.

(b) Table may not add due to rounding.

Aboriginal social and emotional wellbeing and mental health

Ten Aboriginal specific clinical and therapeutic positions will be established in Aboriginal Controlled Community Health Organisations (ACCHOs) to ensure that ACCHOs are appropriately resourced to respond to increased demand as a primary responder and address barriers to entry to the workforce.

An Aboriginal Mental Health Workforce Training Program will also be established to help build a workforce that responds to the needs of Aboriginal Victorians, with 15 trainee positions created.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services':

- Clinical Care output;
- Community Health Care output; and
- Acute Training and Development output.

Aboriginal Youth Mentoring Program

The Aboriginal Youth Mentoring Program, delivered by Aboriginal-controlled organisations, will be continued to ensure young Aboriginal people remain connected to culture, families and friends.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Youth Affairs output.

Alcohol and other drug treatment for Aboriginal Victorians

An additional 34 Aboriginal alcohol and other drug worker positions will provide specialist treatment for Aboriginal Victorians facing alcohol and drug addiction. Final design of the additional positions will be determined in collaboration with the Aboriginal community.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Drug Treatment and Rehabilitation output.

Initiatives to support Marrung: Aboriginal Education Plan – Establishing the foundations for better outcomes

The Government will provide funding to support the delivery of *Marrung: Aboriginal Education Plan 2016-2026*. Initiatives include funding to provide high quality parenting support for the delivery of Koori Supported Playgroups, maintaining the Early Years Koori Literacy and Numeracy Program and the development and pilot of an accredited Aboriginal languages program for Koori community members to support the delivery of language programs in schools and kindergartens.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Education and Training's:

- Early Childhood Development output;
- School Education Primary output; and
- School Education Secondary output.

Self-determination and community infrastructure

The Government will create an Aboriginal Community Infrastructure Fund to provide funding for significant Victorian Aboriginal community infrastructure projects. This will also include funding to accelerate the removal of the First Mortgages over Aboriginal organisation-owned properties, which will allow these properties to be more effectively used for the economic and social benefit of the community.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Premier and Cabinet's Aboriginal Policy, Strengthening Aboriginal Cultural Heritage and Communities output.

Self-determination and strong culture

The Government will continue funding for the Koori Youth Council and Local Aboriginal Networks. The Government will also continue to support Aboriginal Victorian-led protection of heritage and culture for Lake Tyers and Framlingham Aboriginal Trusts to progress to sustainable self-management.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Premier and Cabinet's Aboriginal Policy, Strengthening Aboriginal Cultural Heritage and Communities output.

Self-determination and treaty

Funding will be provided to develop treaty with Aboriginal Victorians. This includes funding for community consultations, self-determination and negotiations on treaty.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Premier and Cabinet's Aboriginal Policy, Strengthening Aboriginal Cultural Heritage and Communities output.

WHOLE OF GOVERNMENT – FAMILY VIOLENCE

Output initiatives

Table 1.4: Output initiatives – Family Violence	e			(\$	million)
	2016-17	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21
Building the capacity to deliver family violence		2.3	2.3	2.3	2.3
services for culturally diverse communities					
Courts case management system		6.7	5.4	8.1	2.2
Court Integrated Services Program (CISP) and CISP Remand Outreach Pilot		2.6	6.9	7.2	7.2
Delivering on the Royal Commission into Family Violence recommendations on funding reform		22.0	21.3	15.6	13.9
Enhanced role for universal service providers	1.9	10.2	13.9	7.8	4.6
Establishing a family violence coordination agency		15.0	15.0	15.0	15.0
Establishing Support and Safety Hubs		26.1	66.9	107.1	181.6
Family violence industry planning		29.2	22.8	22.6	20.9
Family violence monitoring and reporting		2.5	5.0	5.0	5.0
Housing support for family violence victims					
Headleasing		2.0			
Improved crisis accommodation responses		15.2	34.0	24.3	9.6
Information sharing					
Family violence information sharing – Implementing legislative reform and preparing the sector		4.7	2.4	2.7	1.8
Family violence information sharing system reform		26.0	24.3		
Legal responses to family violence and child protection		8.2	10.0	15.2	15.2
More support for Aboriginal Victorians at risk of family violence					
Culturally appropriate family violence legal services for Aboriginal communities		2.0	3.0	3.0	3.0
Improving prevention, early intervention and diversion in response to family violence in Aboriginal communities		0.9	3.1	3.6	3.8
Koori Women's Gathering Place		0.6	0.6		
Putting Aboriginal Victorians at the centre of family violence reform		2.5	2.5	2.5	2.5
Perpetrator accountability					
Changing perpetrator behaviour		19.7	25.7	1.8	2.3
Family violence perpetrator interventions in the justice system		3.4	4.5		
Intensive residential diversion program for Aboriginal male perpetrators of family violence		0.8	0.8	0.8	0.8
Responding to family violence in the Corrections system		1.7	1.7	1.8	1.9
Restorative justice in the Magistrates' Court			2.0	3.0	4.4
Planning for a future integrated case management system in Corrections Victoria		2.1			

	2016-17	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21
Prevention					
Establishing a family violence prevention agency		3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0
Prevention of family violence strategy		15.5	9.1	9.1	5.1
Responding to lesbian, gay, bisexual, trans and gender diverse and intersex people experiencing family violence		1.1	1.4	1.4	1.4
Risk Assessment and Risk Management		15.0	15.0		
Risk Assessment Report Portal (L17 Portal)		2.7	1.7	1.4	1.2
Specialist family violence integrated court response		13.7	13.8	25.5	37.7
Specialist support for family violence victims					
Accessible and flexible support for victims of family violence		14.7	50.0	50.0	50.0
Counselling and therapeutic supports for victims of family violence		10.1	30.0	30.0	30.0
Financial counselling		1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5
Support for vulnerable children					
Better assisting children in the statutory child protection system		72.2			
Better assisting children in the statutory out-of-home care system		59.6			
Intervening earlier – Strengthening responses to families		29.2			
Total output initiatives ^(a)	1.9	444.6	399.5	371.2	428.0

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance

(a) Table may not add due to rounding.

Building the capacity to deliver family violence services for culturally diverse communities

Assisting culturally diverse communities to respond to family violence through continuing funding for community grants that enable partnerships between multicultural communities, organisations and specialist services. This includes funding for inTouch, the Multicultural Centre Against Family Violence, to strengthen the responsiveness of the broader family violence service system and to provide training for community and faith leaders.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Premier and Cabinet's Multicultural Affairs Policy and Programs output.

Courts case management system

A new case management system will be established to operate across the Magistrates' Court and the Children's Court. The system will enable better information sharing between courts and other agencies, and provide better access to case information, including details relevant to family violence intervention order applications. This will enable more efficient management of courts and inform judicial decisions that help keep victims safe.

Note:

Court Integrated Services Program (CISP) and CISP Remand Outreach Pilot

The capacity of the Court Integrated Services Program will be increased to meet growing demand in the Magistrates' Court. This program strengthens the bail system, through increased monitoring, treatment and supervision of offenders on bail to address the underlying causes of offending and has proven effective in reducing recidivism. The CISP Remand Outreach Pilot will be continued and expanded to an additional prison to target recidivist offenders on remand.

This initiative contributes to Court Services Victoria's Courts output.

Delivering on the Royal Commission into Family Violence recommendations on funding reform

The Government will fund a number of changes to the family violence service system to ensure that reforms are sustained. This includes developing and maintaining cost, price and demand forecasting models and implementing the new Family Violence Outcomes Framework. A centralised approach will be established to undertake system wide and program level evaluations. Research capacity will be expanded, including by developing tools to better capture data to inform practice, policy and investment decisions. New funding approaches will be designed and piloted.

This initiative contributes to the:

- Department of Health and Human Services' Family Violence Service Delivery output;
- Department of Justice and Regulation's Criminal Law Support and Reform output; and
- Department of Justice and Regulation's Victims and Community Support Services output.

Enhanced role for universal service providers

Public hospitals will be provided with additional funding to build the capability of their workforce to more effectively identify and respond to people who have experienced family violence. This will be achieved through delivering training, strengthening referral pathways and increasing access to the advice of family violence experts for the generalist health workforce and developing appropriate family violence response procedures in health services. This program will prepare all public hospitals to respond to people who have experienced family violence.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Admitted Services output.

Establishing a family violence coordination agency

A new family violence coordination agency will be established from 1 July 2017 to ensure a continued and dedicated focus on the delivery of the Government's family violence reform commitments. Its priority will be to establish and manage the Support and Safety Hubs, and coordinate access to family violence and other services through the Hubs. The agency will also be responsible for delivering other key family violence service delivery reforms.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Family Violence Service Delivery output.

Establishing Support and Safety Hubs

Support and Safety Hubs (Hubs) will be established in 17 areas, commencing with launch sites in the Barwon, Bayside Peninsula, Inner Gippsland, Mallee and North East Melbourne regions from late 2017.

Hubs will be a central point for information, triage and access to services for women and children experiencing family violence and families needing support with the wellbeing and development of their children. The Hubs will be well-known access points for victim survivors, concerned friends and family and the community as well as a central point for access to other services (such as doctors, teachers and police).

Hubs will provide expert advice, assess risk and need, and support planning and access to the range of necessary services.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Family Violence Service Delivery output.

Family violence industry planning

A whole of government approach to workforce and industry planning will strengthen the capacity of the family violence and other social service sectors to prevent and respond to family violence. This will be achieved through the provision of training and workforce development opportunities.

A new Centre for Workforce Excellence will be established to boost the capabilities of key workforces and contribute to formal workforce training.

A range of measures will support Aboriginal workforces to respond to family violence experienced by Aboriginal people, including the creation of workforce development roles.

Additional training on preventing and responding to family violence will be delivered to mental health, alcohol and drug, and child protection workers. Family violence advisory roles will be established in major mental health and alcohol and other drugs services across metropolitan and regional Victoria.

A principal family violence practitioner will be established in the Departments of Health and Human Services, Justice and Regulation, and Education and Training to guide policy and practice in responses to family violence. Workers will be provided with health and wellbeing support through group and peer training. Diversity training will be delivered to specialist and universal services workforces to build capability to better understand, recognise and respond to victim survivors.

A recruitment campaign targeting high need areas will be rolled out to support delivery of initiatives funded across family violence and associated social service sectors with support for additional practical placements in specialist family violence services.

This initiative contributes to the:

- Department of Education and Training's Support Services Delivery output;
- Department of Health and Human Services' Family Violence Service Delivery output; and
- Department of Justice and Regulation's Victims and Community Support Services output.

Family violence monitoring and reporting

Funding will be provided to support central agency oversight and monitoring of the Government's family violence reform initiatives, and to monitor and report on the progress of implementing the Royal Commission's recommendations.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Premier and Cabinet's Government-wide Leadership, Reform and Implementation output.

Housing support for family violence victims

Headleasing

The private rental 'headleasing' program will be expanded. This will enable more victim survivors and their children to access safe, stable and affordable private rental accommodation, helping them to move out of crisis accommodation and to recover.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Housing Assistance output.

Improved crisis accommodation responses

Thirteen family violence refuges will be redeveloped to move to the 'core and cluster' model by 2020. This model moves away from the communal living model and provides individual unit accommodation in a secure setting to victim survivors of family violence. Women's refuges will be assisted to provide support for women with no income. Two new Aboriginal family violence refuges will be constructed and funding will be provided to commence operation of two youth refuges.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Housing Assistance output.

Information sharing

Family violence information sharing – Implementing legislative reform and preparing the sector

New family violence information sharing arrangements will be progressively rolled out in line with new legislation. This will assist service providers to assess and manage victim survivors' risk of family violence. Training will be provided to various workforces to ensure they are informed of the new arrangements and to help ensure that work practices align with the new information sharing provisions.

This initiative will complement the development of the Central Information Point.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Family Violence Service Delivery output.

Family violence information sharing system reform

A secure statewide Central Information Point (CIP) will be established to provide Support and Safety Hubs and critical family violence organisations with access to relevant and up-to-date information on perpetrators of family violence over two years. This information will assist in risk assessment and management of victim survivors and their safety.

Funding is also provided to develop a business case that considers opportunities to automate the CIP.

Legal responses to family violence and child protection

Family violence legal assistance services delivered by Community Legal Centres and Victoria Legal Aid will be continued and expanded to respond to demand for family violence intervention orders and child protection matters. Additional duty lawyers will support implementation of the Specialist Family Violence Court model being rolled out to five Magistrates' Courts.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Justice and Regulation's:

- Criminal Law Support and Reform output; and
- Public Prosecutions and Legal Assistance output.

More support for Aboriginal Victorians at risk of family violence

Culturally appropriate family violence legal services for Aboriginal communities

Legal services provided by the Aboriginal Family Violence Prevention and Legal Service Victoria and Victorian Aboriginal Legal Service will be expanded, with funding for additional lawyers and case support workers to respond to demand.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Justice and Regulation's Victims and Community Support Services output.

Improving prevention, early intervention and diversion in response to family violence in Aboriginal communities

A range of Aboriginal-specific prevention, early intervention and diversion responses will be continued and expanded to better respond to family violence. Services include three Aboriginal women's diversion programs at Odyssey House, Loddon Mallee and Gippsland, community prevention and intervention programs such as Sisters Day Out, Dilly Bag and Young Luv, and Koori specific lateral violence and mediation programs to be run by the Dispute Settlement Centre of Victoria.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Justice and Regulation's:

- Victims and Community Support Services output; and
- Dispute Resolution and Civil Justice Support Services output.

Koori Women's Gathering Place

A Koori Women's Gathering Place will be trialled to provide culturally safe family violence services to Aboriginal women. The Koori Women's Gathering Place will help break down any barriers faced by Aboriginal women in reporting family violence and ensure victim survivors get the support they need.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Justice and Regulation's Victims and Community Support Services output.

Putting Aboriginal Victorians at the centre of family violence reform

Aboriginal organisations and communities will receive additional assistance to prevent and respond to family violence experienced by Aboriginal people, including through family centred holistic healing models delivered by Aboriginal Community Controlled Organisations. Support will continue to implement the current Indigenous Family Violence 10 Year Plan, including the development of a new plan.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Family Violence Service Delivery output.

Perpetrator accountability

A range of measures will be introduced to deliver on the Government's commitment to hold perpetrators of family violence to account. Understanding perpetrators' violence and the risk posed will help victim survivors be safe.

The Government has established an Expert Advisory Committee on Perpetrator Interventions. The committee will consider the models of interventions being used in Victoria and abroad to assess their effectiveness. It will be a key source of advice to Government about future action on perpetrator interventions and accountability.

Changing perpetrator behaviour

Approximately 4 000 men who perpetrate violence against women will have access to voluntary places in men's behaviour change programs, including through continuing significant boosts provided to men's family violence services in 2016-17. Funding will strengthen case management and expand intake services and trial innovative perpetrator interventions. New standards will be implemented to ensure a consistent and high quality approach across the range of perpetrator interventions. The capacity of the Men's Referral Service will be expanded.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Child Protection and Family Services output.

Family violence perpetrator interventions in the justice system

A range of measures targeted at improving how specific cohorts of perpetrators are managed will be trialled across the justice system. These include introducing applicant and respondent workers for lesbian, gay, bisexual, trans and gender diverse and intersex people at the Magistrates' Court and for adolescents who use violence against family members and appear in the Children's Court.

Family violence specific assessment and referrals services will be introduced in the criminal and civil jurisdiction of the Magistrates' Court. Arrangements will be introduced to ensure that Magistrates are informed of perpetrators' attendance and outcomes of their participation at Men's Behaviour Change Programs. Court mandated counselling orders will be expanded to include gambling support services.

Perpetrator programs will be adapted for perpetrators from a culturally and linguistically diverse (CALD) background in the Corrections system.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Justice and Regulation's:

- Community Based Offender Supervision output;
- Prisoner Supervision and Support output; and
- Victims and Community Support Services output.

Intensive residential diversion program for Aboriginal male perpetrators of family violence

A new residential diversion program will be established to provide Aboriginal male perpetrators of family violence with intensive services in behaviour change. This program will work with Aboriginal elders and communities to support permanent behaviour change.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Justice and Regulation's Victims and Community Support Services output.

Responding to family violence in the Corrections system

Men's Behaviour Change Programs will be continued for offenders in the Corrections system who have been perpetrators of family violence. Programs will target perpetrators on Community Correction Orders, and offenders from CALD backgrounds.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Justice and Regulation's Community Based Offender Supervision output.

Restorative justice in the Magistrates' Court

The restorative justice program, which offers victim survivors an opportunity to participate in facilitated conferences and play a more active role in decision making, will be continued and extended to an additional six Magistrates' Courts. This program will enable victim survivors to access the restorative justice program from a number of contact points in the justice system including Magistrates' Court, specialist family violence services associated with the courts, and through Police. The number of contact points will be extended so the program is accessible to a wide range of victim survivors.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Justice and Regulation's Victims and Community Support Services output.

Planning for a future integrated case management system in Corrections Victoria

Funding will be provided to plan for future requirements including an approach to more effectively manage information related to offenders, including perpetrators of family violence.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Justice and Regulation's Prisoner Supervision and Support output.

Prevention

Establishing a family violence prevention agency

A dedicated prevention agency will be established to support implementation and coordination of the primary prevention strategy and to ensure future investments are evidence-based and target programs that are proven to be effective. The prevention agency will also support gender equality in line with the Government's *Safe and Strong: A Victorian Gender Equality Plan.* The prevention agency will coordinate and support local prevention partnerships and alliances, advise on behavioural change campaigns, and work with other organisations operating in the field of family violence prevention.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Gender Equality and the Prevention of Family Violence Policy and Programs output.

Prevention of family violence strategy

Funding will be provided to implement *Free from violence: Victoria's strategy to prevent family violence and forms of violence against women*, that includes continuing whole of population approaches to encourage universal attitude and behaviour change.

Strategies to engage Victorian workplaces will be implemented and programs for vulnerable cohorts will be trialled. Evaluation outcomes and research will continue to build the evidence base to inform future investments. The Government will continue to contribute to the research undertaken by Australia's National Research Organisation for Women's Safety, and Our Watch.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Gender Equality and the Prevention of Family Violence Policy and Programs output.

Responding to lesbian, gay, bisexual, trans and gender diverse and intersex people experiencing family violence

A range of measures will be continued and new measures introduced to improve the service system's response to people from LGBTI communities experiencing family violence. Funding will also support continuation of specialist family violence services for people from LGBTI communities.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Family Violence Service Delivery output.

Risk Assessment and Risk Management

The Family Violence Risk Assessment and Risk Management Framework (the Framework) will be revised over the next two years to ensure it provides a consistent approach across service sectors to assess and manage risk. It will identify the roles and responsibilities of specialist family violence, justice, social services and universal service systems including education.

Training will be provided to prescribed organisations and agencies and those funded by the Government who are required by legislation to align their practices to the revised framework. A range of online training tools and resources will also be developed to help embed the framework into organisational procedures and practice.

The framework will be evaluated in the next two years to inform training activities beyond 2018-19.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Family Violence Service Delivery output.

Risk Assessment Report Portal (L17 Portal)

The Risk Assessment Report Portal will be funded for a further four years. The portal replaces faxed referrals from Victoria Police, and captures more accurate information about individual cases to help Victorians experiencing family violence connect to support services faster. The system also enables specialist family violence services, Child Protection and other entities such as the Support and Safety Hubs to have timely access to the information they need to make appropriate risk assessments of family violence incidents.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Child Protection and Family Services output.

Specialist family violence integrated court response

Specialist Family Violence Courts will be fully implemented at Ballarat, Frankston, Shepparton, Moorabbin and Heidelberg Magistrates' Courts, improving access to legal protection and responses necessary for the safety and recovery of victim survivors. These Courts will be redesigned and upgraded, enhancing safety and accessibility for victim survivors. The funding will also ensure that the facilities in these courts are equipped with a range of interventions to challenge perpetrator behaviour and hold them to account.

There will be a number of improvements to ensure that family violence court processes are accessible for all Victorians seeking support. Additional support workers will be located at the Melbourne Children's Court, and the Koori Family Violence and Victims Support Program will be reinstated to ensure culturally appropriate services are available for Aboriginal victim survivors.

The capacity of the Coroners Court to investigate family violence related deaths will be expanded.

This initiative contributes to Court Services Victoria's Courts output.

Specialist support for family violence victims

Accessible and flexible support for victims of family violence

Over 68 000 additional cases of assistance will be provided to victim survivors of family violence needing access to crisis and case management supports, including by continuing significant boosts provided to specialist family violence support in 2016-17.

The initiative includes over 1 000 flexible support packages that can be targeted to support immediate safety (such as relocation and private rental costs) and support longer-term recovery (such as access to education).

Face to face after hours crisis support will be expanded across the state, and funding will continue to support the 24/7 telephone based crisis service so that victim survivors are able to access a comprehensive and coordinated response across the justice and service system responding to their level of family violence risk.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Housing Assistance output.

Counselling and therapeutic supports for victims of family violence

Approximately 11 000 additional cases of assistance will be provided. Family violence victim survivors, including children, will have access to a range of counselling and therapeutic responses to support their recovery, including by continuing boosts provided in 2016-17. This includes providing over 3 500 children who are victims of family violence with access to counselling and therapeutic services, and culturally appropriate support for people from Aboriginal and Torres Strait Island communities and other diverse communities.

Funding will be provided to Domestic Violence Victoria to continue providing specialist statewide practice leadership and policy advocacy in their peak body role.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Child Protection and Family Services output.

Financial counselling

Family violence victim survivors will be assisted to achieve financial recovery by continuing funding for 10 specialist financial counsellors across Victoria. A family violence training module will be delivered to financial counsellors across Victoria, and an online resource for sharing practice and knowledge will be available to all financial counsellors.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Justice and Regulation's Regulation of the Victorian Consumer Marketplace output.

Support for vulnerable children

Better assisting children in the statutory child protection system

Support for children at risk will be enhanced by expanding child protection services in 2017-18, with an expansion of the workforce by an additional 450 workers. The funding will also provide additional capacity in after hours emergency child protection services and ensure continuation of the Specialist Intervention Unit, which provides practice guidance to child protection service teams. The Section 18 trial, in which legal guardianship for Aboriginal children is transferred to Aboriginal Community Controlled Organisations, will be further extended.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Child Protection and Family Services output.

Better assisting children in the statutory out-of-home care system

Funding will be provided to expand the number of home-based care placements for children who are unable to live safely with their families in response to growing demand. Funding will also expand Targeted Care Packages (TCP) by an additional 100 packages in order to continue to reduce placements in residential care and provide supports tailored to a child's or young person's circumstances and needs.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Child Protection and Family Services output.

Intervening earlier - Strengthening responses to families

The family services program capacity will be expanded to provide support to over 1 200 additional families experiencing challenges while also expanding the range of supports available to offer more families more intensive assistance (up to 200 hours).

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Child Protection and Family Services output.

Asset initiatives

Table 1.5: Asset initiatives – Family Violence

(\$ million)

	2016-17	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21	TEI
Courts case management system		11.1	27.0	18.9	9.8	66.8
Court Integrated Services Program (CISP) and CISP Remand Outreach Pilot		1.3				1.3
Establishing Support and Safety Hubs		19.6	11.1	16.2	19.4	66.3
Housing support for family violence victims						
Long-term housing		48.0				48.0
Information sharing						
Family violence information sharing system reform		22.6	16.6			39.2
Legal responses to family violence and child protection		1.2				1.2
Specialist family violence integrated court response		15.5	17.4	6.7		39.6
Total asset initiatives ^(a)		119.3	72.1	41.8	29.1	262.3

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance Note:

Note:

(a) Table may not add due to rounding.

Courts case management system

Refer to the output initiative for a description of this initiative.

Court Integrated Services Program (CISP) and CISP Remand Outreach Pilot

Refer to the output initiative for a description of this initiative.

Establishing Support and Safety Hubs

Refer to the output initiative for a description of this initiative.

Housing support for family violence victims

Long-term housing

An additional 110 public housing properties will be delivered. This will improve the ability of victim survivors and their children to access safe, stable and affordable accommodation, helping them to move out of crisis accommodation and to recover.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Housing Assistance output.

Information sharing

Family violence information sharing system reform

Refer to the output initiative for a description of this initiative.

Legal responses to family violence and child protection

Refer to the output initiative for a description of this initiative.

Specialist family violence integrated court response

Refer to the output initiative for a description of this initiative.

WHOLE OF GOVERNMENT – HOMES FOR VICTORIANS

Output initiatives

Table 1.6: Output initiatives – Homes for Vie	(\$	(\$ million)			
	2016-17	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21
Increasing and renewing social housing stock					
Financial backing for the community housing sector	2.0				
Increasing the capacity of the community housing sector	3.0				
Social Housing Growth Fund ^(a)					
Increasing the supply of housing					
Inclusionary housing on surplus government land pilot	0.5	0.4	0.4		
Inclusionary housing in major developments	0.3	3.5	2.3	0.5	0.5
Smarter planning for permits	1.5	0.8	0.8		
Speeding up local government planning decisions	1.0	5.2	5.2	5.2	
Promoting stability for renters					
Making long-term leasing a real option for Victorians		0.9	0.1	0.1	0.1
Supporting home ownership					
Double the First Home Owner Grant to \$20 000 for new homes in regional areas		3.0	10.0	16.0	21.0
Implementation costs for the Vacant Residential Property Tax	0.1	2.6	2.3	2.3	2.3
Shared equity scheme – Buy Assist		5.0			
Shared equity scheme – HomesVic	0.5	1.0	0.6	0.5	
Victorians in need					
Rooming house upgrades		10.0			
Victorian Property Fund		3.0	3.0	3.0	3.0
Total output initiatives ^(b)	8.9	35.2	24.6	27.5	26.9

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance

Notes:

(a) The investment returns generated from the Social Housing Growth Fund will underpin an ongoing supply of social housing.

(b) Table may not add due to rounding.

Increasing and renewing social housing stock

Financial backing for the community housing sector

The Government is committed to supporting the growth of the community housing sector and increasing social housing stock to support vulnerable Victorians. The establishment of a \$100 million revolving loan facility providing low-cost and long-term subordinate loans to housing associations and making up to \$1 billion available as loan guarantees will increase the capacity of the community housing sector. The Government is also committed to exploring new funding mechanisms, in particular a financial intermediary to aggregate loans to achieve more favourable financial terms. The funding provided is to meet implementation costs.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Treasury and Finance's Commercial and Infrastructure Advice output.

Increasing the capacity of the community housing sector

The Director of Housing will transfer management responsibility for 4 000 public housing dwellings to community housing agencies on a long-term basis. Management transfers can increase the scale of the community housing sector and lead to more social housing. To ensure a smooth transition, funding is provided to assist housing agencies to establish services and business support systems.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Housing Assistance output.

Social Housing Growth Fund

A \$1 billion Social Housing Growth Fund will be established to deliver an ongoing stream of revenue to support social housing. Over the next five years, the Fund will support up to 2 200 new social housing places including the construction of new social housing dwellings and the provision of rental support. The final level of new social housing and the balance between additional construction and rental support will be determined following engagement with the community housing sector and the private market.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Housing Assistance output.

Increasing the supply of housing

Inclusionary housing on surplus government land pilot

A pilot program will deliver up to 100 new social housing dwellings on government land in return for developers receiving an appropriate discount on the purchase price of the land. The program will help ensure a mix of social housing in new developments. The funding provided is to address the operating costs of the pilot program.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Planning, Building and Heritage output.

Inclusionary housing in major developments

The supply of affordable housing will be increased through reforming the planning scheme and legislation, including through:

- a legal definition of social and affordable housing;
- amendments to the Victorian Planning Provision and State Planning Provision Framework; and
- development of new voluntary tools to enable affordable housing agreements.

This will provide a clear framework to give developers, the community and local councils certainty around how a voluntary scheme can be applied.

Funding is also provided to streamline the planning approvals for the renewal of public housing estates and other government land, and identify suitable under-utilised and surplus government land to be rezoned through the Fast Track Government Land Service.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Planning, Building and Heritage output.

Smarter planning for permits

The existing VicSmart initiative will be extended to streamline the process for planning permit applications and amendments to introduce categories of minor approvals. This will reduce council red tape and free up resources to manage significant applications.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Planning, Building and Heritage output.

Speeding up local government planning decisions

The Government will extend previous funding to provide further assistance to councils to accelerate planning and approval processes to increase the supply of new housing in Victoria. This will reduce delays in subdivisions, speed up planning approvals, and provide assistance in rezoning of brownfield sites in metropolitan Melbourne.

This output contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Planning, Building and Heritage output.

Promoting stability for renters

Making long-term leasing a real option for Victorians

To give renters greater long-term security, the Government is funding a range of initiatives. These include:

- establishing a new optional standard long-term lease agreement available for landlords and tenants wishing to enter into arrangements of more than five years;
- a dedicated website to connect landlords and tenants interested in a long-term lease; and
- considering the feasibility of a long-term lease intermediary service.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Justice and Regulation's Regulation of the Victorian Consumer Marketplace output.

Supporting home ownership

Double the First Home Owner Grant to \$20 000 for new homes in regional areas

For contracts entered into from 1 July 2017, the First Home Owner Grant available for purchases of new homes in regional areas will increase from \$10 000 to \$20 000, helping up to 6 000 first home buyers. This will make it easier for young people in regional Victoria to buy and live in their community by helping them save more for their deposit. Providing an incentive for first home buyers to build in the regions will also create jobs in regional Victoria.

The increased grant will be available for three years ceasing in June 2020. At this time, the Government will review the benefits for first home buyers in regional Victoria.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Treasury and Finance's Revenue Management and Administrative Services to Government output.

Implementation costs for the Vacant Residential Property Tax

The Vacant Residential Property Tax will provide an incentive to reduce the high number of house and apartments being left vacant in the inner and middle ring of Melbourne, and decrease pressure on house and rental prices. To enable the successful implementation of the Vacant Residential Property Tax, the State Revenue Office will be provided with funding to undertake additional compliance and monitoring activity.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Treasury and Finance's Revenue Management and Administrative Services to Government output.

Shared equity scheme – Buy Assist

The Government will contribute \$5 million to bring Buy Assist, a national community sector shared equity scheme, to Victoria. Run by the National Affordable Housing Consortium, the scheme will assist up to 100 low to medium income waged employee households get a foothold in the property market.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Treasury and Finance's Commercial and Infrastructure Advice output.

Shared equity scheme – HomesVic

A new scheme called HomesVic will co-purchase properties with up to 400 first home buyers who meet the criteria for a bank loan, but lack a big enough deposit. The pilot scheme will be introduced from 1 January 2018 and will apply to both existing and new homes. The funding provided is for setting up and operating the \$50 million HomesVic scheme. When the properties are sold, HomesVic will recover its share of the equity and reinvest it in other homes.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Treasury and Finance's Commercial and Infrastructure Advice output.

Victorians in need

Rooming house upgrades

Existing Director of Housing and community housing rooming houses will be renovated to ensure tenants have modern, safe and secure accommodation that meets acceptable standards.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Housing Assistance output.

Victorian Property Fund

The Victorian Property Fund will provide additional grants each year to support programs assisting vulnerable Victorians. This will include providing additional housing assistance.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Justice and Regulation's Regulation of the Victorian Consumer Marketplace output.

Asset initiatives

Table 1.7: Asset initiatives – Homes for Victorians						(\$ million)	
		2016-17	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21	TEI
Victorians in I	need						
Rooming hous	se upgrades		10.0				10.0
Total asset in	itiatives		10.0				10.0

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance

Victorians in need

Rooming house upgrades

Refer to the output initiative for a description of this initiative.

WHOLE OF GOVERNMENT - ICE ACTION PLAN - STAGE 3

Output initiatives

Table 1.8:	Gable 1.8: Output initiatives – Ice Action Plan – Stage 3					(\$ million)		
		2016-17	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21		
Earlier access	to alcohol and other drug services		1.4	1.5	1.5	1.6		
Expanded tre overdose ^(a)	atment support for people at risk of		3.0	3.1	3.1	3.2		
Family Drug T	reatment Court		1.4					
Responding to other drug	o unavoidable demand for alcohol and services ^(a)		7.5	8.9	9.1	9.3		
Strengthening systems	g alcohol and other drug treatment data	0.2	2.8	0.6	0.2	0.2		
Total output	initiatives ^(b)	0.2	16.1	14.0	14.0	14.4		
Source: Departme	ant of Treasury and Einance							

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance

Notes:

(a) This initiative contributes to activity that attracts Commonwealth funding under the National Health Reform Agreement. Estimates of Commonwealth's contribution are included.

(b) Table may not add due to rounding.

Earlier access to alcohol and other drug services

Increased phone and web-based support will be provided to meet demand for services for people who are unwilling or unable to access face-to-face services due to their family circumstances or fear of discrimination.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Drug Prevention and Control output.

Expanded treatment support for people at risk of overdose

An additional 17 care and recovery positions and eight peer support roles (nine of which are in regional Victoria) will be established to expand support services for people during the transition in and out of treatment. These additional services will help maintain engagement with people waiting to access drug treatment and support clients to sustain positive, ongoing behaviour change and improve their quality of life.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Drug Treatment and Rehabilitation output.

Family Drug Treatment Court

The Family Drug Treatment Court works with parents whose children are in care due to parental drug or alcohol issues. The Court works to reunite families on a permanent, sustainable basis by addressing the parents' substance misuse.

The trial of the Family Drug Treatment Court operating at Broadmeadows Children's Court will be extended for 12 months, as an evaluation of the program continues (funding was to lapse in 2016-17).

This initiative contributes to Court Services Victoria's Courts output.

Responding to unavoidable demand for alcohol and other drug services

Thirty new residential rehabilitation beds will be established within existing services, increasing the capacity of residential rehabilitation services by an additional 85 patients per year once fully operational. Additional counselling and treatment services will be provided for up to 3 800 parents a year to help them meet the requirements of new family reunification legislation. A further 960 places in treatment will be provided for people with mandatory treatment conditions in their Community Corrections Orders.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Drug Treatment and Rehabilitation output.

Strengthening alcohol and other drug treatment data systems

The alcohol and other drug treatment data collection system will be upgraded and treatment providers will be supported to transition to the new system. Providers will update or procure information systems to better capture and report data to enable statewide information sharing across alcohol and other drug treatment services.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Drug Treatment and Rehabilitation output.

Asset initiatives

Table 1.9:	Asset initiatives – Ice Act	(\$ million)					
		2016-17	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21	TEI
Mental health facilities rei	and alcohol and other drug newal		10.0				10.0
Regional drug service – St	residential rehabilitation age 2		9.7				9.7
Total asset in	itiatives ^(a)		19.7				19.7

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance

Note:

(a) Table may not add due to rounding.

Mental health and alcohol and other drugs facilities renewal

Infrastructure and capital works in state-owned facilities that assist people with mental health, alcohol and other drug issues will be funded. These facilities provide bed based acute and sub-acute services, community based services and services for emergency departments. The works enable health service innovations to enhance access and improve models of care via targeted improvements to ageing and poor quality facilities.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Mental Health Community Support Services output.

Regional drug residential rehabilitation services – Stage 2

Commencement of capital planning and the purchase of three new regional sites will be funded to enable development of key regional residential drug rehabilitation treatment facilities in the Gippsland, Hume and Barwon regions.

This initiative will contribute to the Department of Health and Human Services' Drug Treatment and Rehabilitation output.

WHOLE OF GOVERNMENT

Output initiatives

Table 1.10: Output initiatives – Whole of Government						(\$ million)		
		2016-17	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21		
Improved secu	urity measures in the Melbourne CBD		10.0					
Timber plantation establishment			2.5	2.5	2.5	2.5		
Total output initiatives ^(a)			12.5	2.5	2.5	2.5		
Source: Departme	nt of Treasury and Finance							

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance Note:

(a) Table may not add due to rounding.

Improved security measures in the Melbourne CBD

The Government will improve the protective system for pedestrians in the Melbourne Central Business District, including through installation of physical impediments on footpaths and retractable bollards, focused on high pedestrian traffic areas.

Timber plantation establishment

Refer to the asset initiative for a description of this initiative.

Asset initiatives

Table 1.11:	Asset initiatives – Whole of Government						million)
		2016-17	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21	TEI
Timber planta	tion establishment		17.5	22.5	27.5	32.5	100.0
Total asset ini	tiatives		17.5	22.5	27.5	32.5	100.0

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance

Timber plantation establishment

Funding will be provided to establish a timber plantation in the Latrobe Valley, to support the long-term sustainability of Victoria's timber harvesting industry.

This initiative will be funded from the Sustainability Fund.

DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, JOBS, TRANSPORT AND RESOURCES

Output initiatives

Table 1.12: Output initiatives – Department of Economic Development, Jobs,

Transport and Resources		line beven	opinent, s		million)
	2016-17	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21
Agriculture					
Implementing sheep and goat identification	8.1	10.0	3.4		
National Agreement for Red Imported Fire Ant Eradication		4.8	4.8	4.8	4.8
Re-establishing the Rural Women's Network		0.5	0.4	0.4	0.4
The future of Victoria's biosecurity services		21.8	22.6		
Creative Industries					
Australian Rock and Roll Hall of Fame	1.7	3.4	0.9	0.8	
Creative Industries portfolio operational maintenance		3.3	3.3		
Podcasting Centre at the Wheeler Centre for Books, Writing and Ideas		0.3			
Music Cities Convention		0.3			
Sustaining the successful NGV Exhibition Model		12.8	15.9		
Victorian screen culture		1.7	2.9	3.0	3.1
Industrial Relations					
Fair and equitable Victorian workplaces		0.4	0.4		
Industry and Employment					
Creating a sustainable construction industry workforce		0.5			
Investing for more Victorian jobs		65.0	25.0		
Jobs Victoria – Supporting social enterprises		1.5	1.5	1.5	1.5
Jobs Victoria – Supporting workers in transition		1.3	1.3	1.0	1.0
Strengthening our future industries		1.5			
Structural adjustment – Supporting industries in transition through the FIMP and LIFT programs		15.0			
International Education					
Public transport discount scheme for international students		2.7	1.0		
Major Projects					
Ballarat GovHub		4.0		10.0	14.4
Regional Development					
Bendigo CBD – Jobs and infrastructure		1.0			
Connecting Regional Communities		14.3	14.3	8.3	8.3
Glenelg Future Strategy		0.5			
Regional Partnerships and Economic Projects		9.5	7.5	7.5	3.0
Resources					
Victorian Gas Program	3.1	16.3	16.7	6.3	

	2016-17	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21
Small Business Innovation and Trade					
Building international networks		1.0	1.0		
Small business success in the digital economy		2.3	1.3		
Tourism and Major Events					
Putting Victoria on the Map		17.5	7.2		
Transport Network Safety, Operation and Developme	nt				
Enhancing safety on the train network		1.0	2.4	2.0	1.0
Implementation of the Australian Disability Parking Scheme			0.2	0.3	0.3
Improving public transport accessibility					0.1
Network development – Planning our future	1.5	9.2	9.5		
Network transition program	7.9	48.7	28.2		
Keeping Melbourne Moving	0.7	7.4	3.6	2.5	0.8
Optimising transport network performance and productivity		4.9	2.1	0.5	0.5
Strong bridges, stronger economy ^(a)		1.7	0.8	1.0	
Metropolitan Roads					
M80 Ring Road upgrade ^(b)		1.3	9.2	9.8	5.8
Metropolitan road restoration and road surface replacement		52.9			
Monash corridor upgrade – Stage 2 ^(c)	1.0	4.0			
Monash Freeway Truck Speed Trial	0.9	0.6			
School Crossings Program		4.9			
Urban congestion package ^(d)		0.9			
West Gate Bridge maintenance		7.7	16.5	17.2	
Regional Roads					
Improving the South Gippsland Highway ^(e)		0.2	0.7	0.8	0.2
Phillip Island –		0.0	0.1	0.1	0.0
Improving the main infrastructure corridor ^(f)					
Regional and rural roads package ^(g)		5.7			
Regional road restoration and road surface replacement		215.3			
Regional road upgrades	0.5	1.1	1.2	2.8	3.0
Shepparton Bypass		0.5	1.6	0.5	
South Western Victoria road improvement package	12.8				
Metropolitan Public Transport					
Hurstbridge line Upgrade Stage 2 – Planning and development		5.0			
Fishermans Bend public transport connections		0.4	0.5	0.6	0.6
Improving Melbourne's busiest train stations		7.6	1.1		
More E-Class trams and infrastructure			0.5	1.1	1.1
More train, tram and bus services		13.9	17.3	17.3	17.7
Ongoing delivery of Night Network	19.2	42.0	41.8	42.9	44.0

	2016-17	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21
Regional Public Transport					
Major periodic maintenance on the regional rail network		6.9	7.0	7.2	7.4
More regional trains		1.5	4.0	8.0	9.7
Shepparton Line Upgrade and additional services		1.6	1.6	2.8	4.5
Total output initiatives ^(h)	57.6	659.7	281.3	161.0	133.1

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance

Notes:

(a) Commonwealth funding will be sought to deliver this initiative.

(b) The project includes funding beyond 2020-21 of \$769 000. The project includes Commonwealth funding of \$13.5 million.

(c) The package includes Commonwealth funding of \$2.5 million.

(d) The project includes Commonwealth funding of \$0.9 million.

(e) The project includes Commonwealth funding of \$1.0 million.

(f) Funding represented as 0.0 due to rounding.

(g) The package includes Commonwealth funding of \$2.8 million.

(h) Table may not add due to rounding.

Agriculture

Implementing sheep and goat identification

Sheep and goat farmers and those throughout the supply chain will be supported to transition to electronic identification technology. This will ensure sheep and goat producers can reduce risks to market access, trade and human health from a disease or food safety emergency. Assistance will be provided to producers to transition to the new system, including subsidised tags, infrastructure grants, co-funded equipment and education programs.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Agriculture output.

National Agreement for Red Imported Fire Ant Eradication

The Government will contribute to a national program to eradicate the red imported fire ant, before it becomes a threat to all of Australia. The 10-year eradication plan is funded by the Commonwealth and the States and Territories.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Agriculture output.

Re-establishing the Rural Women's Network

The Rural Women's Network will be re-established. Targeted at women in rural Victoria, this initiative will support workforce participation, leadership development, and mentoring and networking opportunities with a focus on skills development and economic participation.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Agriculture output.

The future of Victoria's biosecurity services

Jobs in Victoria's food and fibre sector will be protected through biosecurity services that aim to maintain market access and productivity, including management of risks to trade, market access, the environment and the community from animal and plant pests and diseases. This initiative will support the continued implementation of measures to better prepare Victoria for an incursion of a serious plant or livestock disease and so minimise any impact on the agricultural sector and the community.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Agriculture output.

Creative Industries

Australian Rock and Roll Hall of Fame

A new permanent Australian Music Hall of Fame exhibition space, known as the Australian Music Vault, will be established at the Arts Centre Melbourne. Presenting exhibitions, education programs, and a fully integrated digital program, it will celebrate and explore the history and future of Australian music through the iconic people, events and places that define Australian music.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Creative Industries Portfolio Agencies output.

Creative Industries portfolio operational maintenance

Maintenance funding will be provided for Victoria's state-owned arts and cultural institutions which together attract more than 10 million visits a year. This will ensure the ongoing safety and smooth operations of these heavily utilised, iconic facilities.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Creative Industries Portfolio Agencies output.

Podcasting Centre at the Wheeler Centre for Books, Writing and Ideas

Establishment funding will be provided for a Podcasting Centre at the Wheeler Centre. The first facility of its kind in Australia, it will enable The Wheeler Centre to facilitate the creation, publication and distribution of original audio content, stories and quality broadcasts. The Podcasting Centre will diversify the Wheeler Centre's offering, extend its reach and respond to the growing audience preference for on-demand digital narratives.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Creative Industries Access, Development and Innovation output.

Music Cities Convention

Funding will be provided for a Music City Convention to be held in Melbourne in April 2018. A prestigious international music industry event, the Convention will attract delegates from around the world and recognises Melbourne's standing as one of the world's leading cities for music.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Creative Industries Access, Development and Innovation output.

Sustaining the successful NGV Exhibition Model

Funding will be provided to continue the National Gallery of Victoria (NGV) Summer Program, deliver the NGV Triennial of Contemporary Art and Design, and support permanent exhibitions, maintenance, collections management and operating expenses at the NGV.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Creative Industries Portfolio Agencies output.

Victorian screen culture

Victoria's vibrant and diverse screen culture will be strengthened with continued funding for Australia's largest film event, the Melbourne International Film Festival (MIFF). Support will also be provided for the Indian Film Festival of Melbourne (IFFM), and other film festivals.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Creative Industries Portfolio Agencies output.

Industrial Relations

Fair and equitable Victorian workplaces

Grants to community legal organisations will be provided to support advice on employment and workplace law cases for temporary visa workers. The Government will also develop a digital communications strategy to provide employment rights information to temporary visa workers through social media and other digital information channels.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Industrial Relations output.

Industry and Employment

Creating a sustainable construction industry workforce

Funding will be provided to encourage young people to gain skills and employment in the construction industry to support the workforce requirements of this sector now and in the future.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Jobs and Investment output.

Investing for more Victorian jobs

The dedicated investment attraction and assistance fund will continue to facilitate a pipeline of private sector investment and job creation in Victoria. The initiative will focus on investments in key strategic and priority sectors, such as manufacturing, aviation, medical technologies, food and fibre, and on supporting jobs in locations with high levels of disadvantage. This initiative also includes funding to partner with strategically significant manufacturers to manage their exposure to volatility in energy markets.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources':

- Industry and Enterprise Innovation output;
- Jobs and Investment output;
- Regional Development output;
- Tourism output; and
- Trade output.

Jobs Victoria – Supporting social enterprises

New, emerging and existing social enterprises will be supported to improve their capabilities, including readiness to participate in tenders, enter into contracts and invest. Programs will focus on the growth of social enterprises and generate better job outcomes for Victorians from disadvantaged backgrounds.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Jobs and Investment output.

Jobs Victoria – Supporting workers in transition

The Supporting Workers in Transition program will continue to provide advice and assistance to retrenched workers across Victoria. New tailored information sessions and workshops will cover topics such as available support services, career planning and development, and digital literacy.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Jobs and Investment output.

Strengthening our future industries

This initiative will support jobs in the construction sector by accelerating delivery of the Future Industries Construction Technologies Sector Strategy. It capitalises on industry leadership, attracting companies to establish new prefabricated construction manufacturing facilities and supporting the adoption of Building Information Modelling and other digital technologies.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Jobs and Investment output.

Structural adjustment – Supporting industries in transition through the FIMP and LIFT programs

The Future Industries Manufacturing Program (FIMP) and Local Industry Fund for Transition (LIFT) grant programs will be extended. The FIMP supports businesses investing in new manufacturing processes and technologies in Victoria. The LIFT supports businesses in the Geelong, North, West and South-East Melbourne regions affected by the closure of automotive manufacturers.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Jobs and Investment output.

International Education

Public transport discount scheme for international students

The Government will continue the iUSEpass program to provide discounted annual public transport tickets to eligible international students in partnership with participating higher education providers. This will support Victoria's international education sector.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Tourism, Major Events and International Education output.

Major Projects

Ballarat GovHub

A new commercial Government hub development, delivered by Development Victoria, will be constructed in the Ballarat CBD to consolidate and house Victorian Public Service functions and agencies, including the relocation of some functions and agencies from Melbourne.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources':

- Major Projects output; and
- Regional Development output.

Regional Development

Bendigo CBD – Jobs and infrastructure

Business case development will be undertaken for a proposal to consolidate Victorian public service and council functions and agencies into a new customer service centre and public administration office complex in the Bendigo CBD. This will deliver long-term economic diversification and growth in the region whilst revitalising the CBD.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Regional Development output.

Connecting Regional Communities

The Government is investing \$45 million to give regional Victorian homes and businesses access to mobile and broadband technologies enabling them to participate in the digital economy. This will include:

- \$11 million for the Mobile Black Spots program with a focus on increasing mobile telephone coverage in flood and fire prone areas with poor coverage;
- \$12 million for projects to support the adaption of internet enabled on-farm technologies in Victoria's North-West, the Macalister Irrigation District, the Murray-Darling Basin and the Serpentine region;
- \$7 million for regional enhanced broadband projects in Morwell, North Geelong and Horsham;
- \$7 million for Digital Economy Plan initiatives to drive innovation and increase the competitiveness of regional industries;
- \$7 million for free public Wi-Fi in Shepparton and Geelong; and
- \$1 million to improve regional services through access to government communications infrastructure.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources':

- Industry and Enterprise Innovation output; and
- Regional Development output.

Glenelg Future Strategy

Funding will be provided to commence planning for the future of sustainable employment and industry in the Glenelg region.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Regional Development output.

Regional Partnerships and Economic Projects

Funding will be provided to support the identification, development and delivery of Regional Partnerships priorities, including economic projects, master plans and programs, including:

- agricultural productivity;
- Swan Hill riverfront development;
- Robinvale community hub;
- north-east cycling;
- Networked Centre for Grains Innovation;
- tourism planning and projects;
- Great Ocean Road Governance;
- Shipwreck Coast early works and projects; and
- Food and Fibre Action Plan.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Regional Development output.

Resources

Victorian Gas Program

The Government will undertake extensive scientific, technical and environmental studies on the risks, benefits and impacts of onshore conventional gas. This work will be overseen by the Victorian Government's Lead Scientist in consultation with a stakeholder advisory panel made up of farmers, industry, local government, community members and independent peer reviewers. The Government will also undertake investigations and related activities focussing on the potential for new discoveries of offshore gas and underground gas storage.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Resources output.

Small Business Innovation and Trade

Building international networks

Funding for the Hamer Scholarships program will continue to support Victorian professionals to undertake intensive language study and cultural immersion in Asia. The Victorian Government's international network will grow its staff presence in China to capitalise on trade and investment opportunities identified in Victoria's China Strategy – Partnerships for Prosperity, particularly in the health, aged care and medical technologies sectors.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources':

- Jobs and Investment output; and
- Trade output.

Small business success in the digital economy

The Government will support small business through the implementation of the first round of recommendations identified in the Small Business Regulation Review. This includes four areas of focus: access to regulatory information; reform of planning approval processes; reform of food safety regulation; and further improvements to the retail leasing regulatory framework. Greater use will also be made of digital delivery channels to improve accessibility and enable greater participation of small businesses in events and programs, such as the Small Business Festival Victoria. A business case will be developed for an online platform to place Small Business Victoria's support services online.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Industry and Enterprise Innovation output.

Tourism and Major Events

Putting Victoria on the Map

The Government increase funding for Visit Victoria to undertake marketing initiatives to attract visitors to Victoria from around the world. Campaigns will focus on attracting visitors from intrastate, interstate and international markets to drive jobs growth in Victoria's visitor economy. Additional funding is also provided to attract more business events to Victoria.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Tourism, Major Events and International Education output.

Transport Network Safety, Operation and Development

Enhancing safety on the train network

Refer to the asset initiative for a description of this initiative.

Implementation of the Australian Disability Parking Scheme

Refer to the asset initiative for a description of this initiative.

Improving public transport accessibility

Refer to the asset initiative for a description of this initiative.

Network development – Planning our future

A pipeline of road projects will be developed to respond to key network priorities across metropolitan Melbourne and regional areas of Victoria. The projects range from small scale road improvements such as intersection upgrades to significant road upgrades such as arterial road duplications. This will form part of the Government's response to Infrastructure Victoria's 30-year infrastructure strategy.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Road Operations and Network Improvements output.

Network transition program

Business cases will be developed for track, power and signalling upgrades, platform extensions and additional stabling and maintenance facilities to realise the full potential of the Metro Tunnel, and the rollout of High Capacity Metro Trains. Planning will also commence for other major infrastructure projects recommended by Infrastructure Victoria that will be possible due to the capacity created by the Metro Tunnel Project in 2026.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resource's Train Services output.

Keeping Melbourne Moving

Transport for Victoria has been established to integrate transport policy planning, investment and delivery, providing a central point of coordination and direction across Victoria's transport agencies. Funding will be provided to develop a network impact management plan to better understand and manage impacts on people, places and freight of the delivery of significant transport upgrades and enable provision of targeted, tailored and timely information.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs Transport and Resources':

- Bus Services output;
- Integrated Transport output;
- Train Services output;
- Tram services output; and
- Transport Safety, Security and Emergency Management output.

Optimising transport network performance and productivity

Refer to the asset initiative for a description of this initiative.

Strong bridges, stronger economy

Refer to the asset initiative for a description of this initiative.

Metropolitan Roads

M80 Ring Road upgrade

Refer to the asset initiative for a description of this initiative.

Metropolitan road restoration and road surface replacement

Additional road surface replacement works will repair roads in inner metropolitan Melbourne and Melbourne's outer suburbs. This will reduce the deterioration of road surfaces and support economic and community activities in these areas.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs Transport and Resources' Road Asset Management output.

Monash corridor upgrade – Stage 2

A business case will be developed for further upgrades to the Monash Freeway and surrounding road network to improve the capacity and performance of the Monash Freeway corridor.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Road Operations and Network Improvements output.

Monash Freeway Truck Speed Trial

An 18-month trial will be undertaken to assess the impact of a reduction in truck speeds to 90km/h along a 10km section of the Monash Freeway between Huntingdale Road and Jacksons Road. The trial aims to determine whether a lower speed limit for trucks will improve road safety and reduce the number of accidents.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Road Operations and Network Improvements output.

School Crossings Program

Funding will be provided to continue the School Crossings Program from 1 July 2017 through a joint agreement between the State and local councils, enabling the continued provision of school crossing supervisors to ensure the safety of children on their way to and from school.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Transport Safety, Security and Emergency Management output.

Urban congestion package

Planning will commence on a package of urban road upgrades to reduce congestion and improve travel times and safety. Sites that have been identified for upgrade include:

- Bedford Road and Canterbury Road;
- Bergins Road intersection;
- Canterbury Road Allens Road intersection;
- Canterbury Road;
- Corrhanwarrbul Creek Bridge;
- Maroondah Highway Bellara Drive intersection;
- Maroondah Highway Dunlavin Road intersection;
- Mount Dandenong Tourist Road; and
- Nepean Highway Forest Drive intersection.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Road Operations and Network Improvements output.

West Gate Bridge maintenance

The West Gate Bridge will undergo enhanced maintenance works, including the replacement of its anti-corrosion cover to enhance its longevity. These proactive maintenance works on the bridge will reduce the need for more expensive reactive maintenance in the future.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Road Asset Management output.

Regional Roads

Improving the South Gippsland Highway

Refer to the asset initiative for a description of this initiative.

Phillip Island – Improving the main infrastructure corridor

Refer to the asset initiative for a description of this initiative.

Regional and rural roads package

Development funding will be provided for a package of regional road upgrades to improve travel times and safety. This program will be funded by the Victorian and Commonwealth Governments.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Road Operations and Network Improvements output.

Regional road restoration and road surface replacement

Additional road surface replacement works will repair roads in regional Victoria. This will reduce the deterioration of road surfaces and support economic and community activities in regional Victoria.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs Transport and Resources' Road Asset Management output.

Regional road upgrades

Refer to the asset initiative for a description of this initiative.

Shepparton Bypass

Refer to the asset initiative for a description of this initiative.

South Western Victoria road improvement package

Refer to the asset initiative for a description of this initiative.

Metropolitan Public Transport

Hurstbridge Line Upgrade Stage 2 – Planning and development

Project development activities including technical and design investigations, consultations and commencing planning approvals will be undertaken to support stage two of the Hurstbridge Line Upgrade.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Train Services output.

Fishermans Bend public transport connections

Additional morning and evening peak time services will be provided for bus routes 235 and 237 to address high demand in the Fishermans Bend precinct.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources':

- Bus Services output; and
- Integrated Transport output.

Improving Melbourne's busiest train stations

Options will be identified to better manage passenger movement and improve amenity at Richmond, Flinders Street and Southern Cross Stations.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs Transport and Resources' Train Services output.

More E-Class trams and infrastructure

Refer to the asset initiative for a description of this initiative.

More train, tram and bus services

Additional metropolitan public transport services will provide more transport options for passengers. These include:

- eight additional train services on the Werribee line in the shoulder peak;
- a St Kilda Road shuttle during the weekday peak period, more than 50 additional tram services on the North West corridors (routes 57, 58, and 59) and additional Parkville bus services (route 401), to assist with transport disruptions from the construction of the Metro Tunnel;
- upgrades on selected metropolitan bus routes; and
- a series of route extensions, upgrades and new services to improve bus network coverage.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources':

- Bus Services output;
- Train Services output; and
- Tram Services output.

Ongoing delivery of Night Network

Night Network will be extended providing for 24-hour public transport on weekends. This will provide travel options to give more choices for work and social interaction, improved safety, and will contribute to the night-time economy. This includes the continuation of train, tram and bus services in the metropolitan area and night coaches to select regional locations. This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs Transport and Resources':

- Bus Services output;
- Train Services output; and
- Tram Services output.

Regional Public Transport

Major periodic maintenance on the regional rail network

Refer to the asset initiative for a description of this initiative.

More regional trains

Refer to the asset initiative for a description of this initiative.

Shepparton Line Upgrade and additional services

Refer to the asset initiative for a description of this initiative.

Asset initiatives

Table 1.13: Asset initiatives – Department of Economic Development, Jobs,

Transport and Resources					(\$ n	nillion)
	2016-17	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21	TEI
Creative Industries						
Arts Centre Melbourne critical works		8.0	12.0	18.0	2.0	40.0
Australian Centre for the Moving Image redevelopment		2.5	2.5			5.0
Australian Rock and Roll Hall of Fame	3.2					3.2
State Library Victoria redevelopment ^(a)	0.4	1.5	2.6	0.5	0.0	5.0
Major Projects						
Ballarat GovHub			14.2	5.1		19.3
Transport Network Safety, Operation and Devel	lopment					
Enhancing safety on the train network		13.7	22.3	14.8	9.8	60.6
Implementation of the Australian Disability Parking Scheme		4.9	1.1			6.0
Improving public transport accessibility		1.0	6.2	4.2		11.3
Mernda stabling and Broadmeadows land purchase	6.4	4.7				11.1
Optimising transport network performance and productivity		12.4	15.4			27.8
Strong bridges, stronger economy ^(b)		20.2	15.7	1.3		37.3
Metropolitan Roads						
M80 Ring Road upgrade ^{(c) (d)}		33.7	230.8	245.2	144.2	673.1
Metropolitan road restoration and road surface replacement		30.0				30.0
Mordialloc Bypass ^(e)		3.3	27.3	87.0	65.8	300.0
North East Link ^(f)	20.0	80.0				100.0

....

	2016-17	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21	TEI
Replacement and repair of damaged noise walls		7.7				7.7
West Gate Bridge maintenance		3.2	6.9	7.2		17.2
Yan Yean Road upgrade – Stage 2 ^(g)		5.0	tbc	tbc	tbc	96.6
Regional Roads						
Henty Highway – Green Triangle ^(h)	10.0					10.0
Improving the South Gippsland Highway ⁽ⁱ⁾		4.6	18.5	20.8	4.2	48.1
Narrow seal roads program – South western Victoria		12.4	12.4	12.4		37.2
Phillip Island – Improving the main infrastructure corridor ^(j)		1.0	2.8	2.3	0.7	6.7
Regional road restoration and road surface replacement		45.0				45.0
Regional road upgrades ^(k)	13.7	7.7	5.9	11.6	1.7	40.5
Shepparton Bypass			3.4	4.2		7.6
South Western Victoria road improvement package	5.0	12.0	12.0	12.0	12.0	53.0
Metropolitan Public Transport						
Additional station car parks and upgrades		8.7				8.7
Frankston Line stabling		70.8	71.7	44.9		187.4
More E-Class trams and infrastructure ^(I)		28.2	123.8	43.4	14.7	215.5
More train, tram and bus services		0.7				0.7
Ongoing delivery of Night Network		3.2				3.2
Regional Public Transport						
Major periodic maintenance on the regional rail network		103.4	81.5	63.0	40.0	287.9
More regional trains	3.6	37.1	123.6	112.4	11.1	287.9
Shepparton Line Upgrade and additional services	i		19.0	14.0		33.0
Sustaining the V/Line train fleet		12.5				12.5
Regional Rail Revival – Gippsland Rail Upgrade ^(m)		13.5	81.3	157.4	121.0	435.0
Warrnambool Line Level Crossings Upgrade	4.9	4.8				9.7
Total asset initiatives ⁽ⁿ⁾	67.1	597.2	912.8	881.6	427.4	3 180.7

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance

Notes:

(a) Funding represented as 0.0 due to rounding.

(b) Commonwealth funding will be sought to deliver this initiative.

(c) The TEI includes funding beyond 2020-21 of \$19.2 million.

(d) The project includes Commonwealth funding of \$336.5 million. (e) The TEI includes funding beyond 2020-21 of \$116.6 million.

(f) The TEI includes \$35 million funding announced in December 2016.

(g) Funding beyond 2017-18 will be confirmed following planning and development.

(h) The project includes Commonwealth funding of \$5.0 million.

(i) The project includes Commonwealth funding of \$24.0 million.

(j) The project includes Commonwealth funding of \$275 000.

(k) The TEI includes Commonwealth funding of \$12.4 million and other revenue from the Heavy Vehicle Safety and Productivity program.

(I) The TEI includes funding beyond 2020-21 of \$5.4 million.

(m) The TEI includes funding beyond 2020-21 of \$61.8 million.

(n) Table may not add due to rounding.

Creative Industries

Arts Centre Melbourne critical works

Critical maintenance works will be undertaken to upgrade the State Theatre's decades old stage flying system, as well as the Arts Centre Melbourne's security systems and other core infrastructure.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Cultural Infrastructure and Facilities output.

Australian Centre for the Moving Image redevelopment

Funding will be provided for upgrades to the Australian Centre for the Moving Image (ACMI). In addition to developing designs for a redevelopment of the Federation Square attraction, transforming the visitor experience, funding will improve and green the Flinders Street entrance.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Cultural Infrastructure and Facilities output.

Australian Rock and Roll Hall of Fame

Refer to the output initiative for a description of this initiative.

State Library Victoria redevelopment

As part of State Library Victoria's major redevelopment, funding will be provided for enhancement works to library entrances and the surrounding streetscape to increase access to Australia's busiest public library. This will include a new universally accessible entrance on La Trobe Street.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Cultural Infrastructure and Facilities output.

Major Projects

Ballarat GovHub

Refer to the output initiative for a description of this initiative.

Transport Network Safety, Operation and Development

Enhancing safety on the train network

Passenger safety and train reliability will be improved across the train network by expanding the Train Protection Warning System to ensure compatibility between V/Line and metropolitan trains, and by a program of works to reduce platform gaps at priority train stations. The train network Book of Rules and Operating Procedures will be refreshed to ensure consistent practices across all transport agencies managing the train network.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Train Services output.

Implementation of the Australian Disability Parking Scheme

The Australian Disability Parking Scheme will be implemented in Victoria by creating a centralised database of permits, electronic assessment tools, automatic application processes and a single look permit to improve eligibility compliance. VicRoads will conduct a review of eligibility criteria to ensure the scheme is sustainable and fair, and introduce a state-wide permit printing contract to deliver operational savings to councils.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Transport Safety, Security and Emergency Management output.

Improving public transport accessibility

The Oakleigh train station will be upgraded to install a lift and re-grade existing ramps. The Middle Park tram stop will be upgraded to an easy access stop. These initiatives will continue progressive works across Victoria to improve public transport accessibility for persons with a disability.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs Transport and Resources' Train Services output.

Mernda stabling and Broadmeadows land purchase

Additional stabling will be built at Mernda to ensure new rail services delivered by the Mernda Rail Project operate efficiently. Funding is also provided to secure a strategic land purchase in Broadmeadows for power infrastructure to support rail operations.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resource's Train Services output.

Optimising transport network performance and productivity

A package of Intelligent Transport Systems and intersection upgrades will target congestion on key transport corridors in Melbourne such as freeways and tram and bus routes. Projects will include:

- upgrading data collection and communications devices in use along the Monash, West Gate and M80 Ring Road managed motorways;
- improving intersection capacity at critical locations on the arterial road network such as Springvale Road/Governor Road, Keysborough and Eastern Freeway/Bulleen Road/Thompsons Road, Bulleen; and
- installing tram and bus priority infrastructure along high patronage routes such as High Street, Kew; Smith Street, Fitzroy; and Pascoe Vale Road, Broadmeadows.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Road Operations and Network Improvements output.

Strong bridges, stronger economy

Key road bridges and culverts will be strengthened or replaced to improve productivity and safety across the Victorian road freight network. The upgrades will enable High Productivity Freight Vehicles to operate on major routes including Princes Freeway (West and East) and will ensure freight operations can continue on other arterial routes, including the Great Ocean Road, South Gippsland Highway, Murray Valley Highway and Bayside Road in Geelong.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resource's Road Operations and Network Improvements output.

Metropolitan Roads

M80 Ring Road upgrade

The M80 Ring Road will be widened and traffic management infrastructure will be installed between: Princes Freeway to Western Highway; Sydney Road to Edgars Road; and Plenty Road to Greensborough Highway. This will complete the 38 km M80 Ring Road upgrade and improve transport network efficiency and road safety.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Road Operations and Network Improvements output.

Metropolitan road restoration and road surface replacement

Refer to the output initiative for a description of this initiative.

Mordialloc Bypass

The nine kilometre Mordialloc Bypass will connect the Mornington Peninsula Freeway at Springvale Road to the Dingley Bypass. The new link will increase the connectivity of the arterial road network and draw through traffic away from residential areas in Aspendale Gardens and Mordialloc. This will improve the local amenity in those areas as well as broader transport network efficiency in South-East Melbourne.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Road Operations and Network Improvements output.

North East Link

The North East Link has been identified by Infrastructure Victoria as the number one road transport priority for our state. Funding will be provided to complete planning and commence pre-construction activities for the North East Link to close the freeway network gap between the M80 Ring Road in Greensborough and the Eastern Freeway or EastLink. Closing the gap will provide new travel choices for people and for the transport of goods around metropolitan Melbourne.

The North East Link Authority has responsibility for developing the business case and has commenced detailed investigations and consultation to inform development of the project scope and alignment. As part of this work the Authority will undertake further planning, in conjunction with VicRoads, for arterial road upgrades in northern Melbourne.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Road Operations and Network Improvements output.

Replacement and repair of damaged noise walls

Severely impaired noise walls alongside major freeways, including the Monash, Eastern, Frankston, and South Gippsland freeways will be repaired or replaced, reducing vehicle noise levels for adjacent households.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs Transport and Resources' Transport Safety, Security and Emergency Management output.

West Gate Bridge maintenance

Refer to the output initiative for a description of this initiative.

Yan Yean Road upgrade – Stage 2

Works will be progressed on the next stage of the Yan Yean Road upgrade, north of Kurrak Road. The final scope of works will be determined following further planning and development. It is anticipated that the future Stage 2 works will build on the capacity, safety and amenity improvements to be generated from the Yan Yean Road – Stage 1 works from Diamond Creek Road to Kurrak Road, Plenty.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Road Operations and Network Improvements output.

Regional Roads

Henty Highway – Green Triangle

Key roads servicing the Port of Portland including the Henty Highway, Portland Ring Road, and the Portland-Nelson Road will be strengthened and resurfaced to support freight operations and improve safety in the Green Triangle region. Planning will also commence for road pavement reconstruction work on other corridors connecting to the port.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resource's Road Operations and Network Improvements output.

Improving the South Gippsland Highway

The South Gippsland Highway will be realigned east of Koonwarra through the Black Spur with additional corridor improvements such as shoulder sealing and targeted safety barriers between Meeniyan and Yarram. The works will improve road safety and reduce travel times for freight and local road users.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Road Operations and Network Improvements output.

Narrow seal roads program – South-western Victoria

Approximately 40 km of narrow seal arterial roads in south-western Victoria will be upgraded. The upgrades will include road reconstruction and resurfacing, widening and sealing of shoulders to improve road safety and durability.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Road Asset Management output.

Phillip Island – Improving the main infrastructure corridor

A new dual lane roundabout will be constructed at the intersection of Philip Island Road and Woolamai Beach Road, Cape Woolamai, to improve traffic flow, access and safety on Phillip Island.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resource's Road Operations and Network Improvements output.

Regional road restoration and road surface replacement

Refer to the output initiative for a description of this initiative.

Regional road upgrades

A package of works will enhance some of Victoria's key road freight routes through a series of small scale-projects. Each project aims to enhance safety and caters for future growth. This initiative also provides funding for further investigation and development of future road upgrades to improve the way Victorians, visitors and freight moves around the State. The upgrades are:

- Bass Highway/Korumburra Wonthaggi Road, Wonthaggi, intersection signals;
- Shelley Walwa Road, Guys Forest, Stage 1 pavement sealing;
- Shelley Walwa Road, Guys Forest, Stage 2 pavement sealing;
- Western Freeway/Ballarat-Maryborough Road, Ballarat, intersection improvement;
- Hume Freeway Benton's Hill Rest Area, Springhurst, rest area upgrade;
- Hume Freeway Reef Hills Rest Area, Reef's Hill, rest area upgrade;
- Hume Freeway Balmattum Rest Area, Balmattum, rest area upgrade;
- Princes Highway East, Lloyd Street Off Ramp, Moe, rest area;
- Princes Highway East, Between Longwarry and NSW Border, truck informal rest area signage;
- Princes Highway East, Rosedale, roundabout improvement;
- Calder Highway, Between Ouyen and Mildura, wide centreline trial;
- Gisborne Road/Western Freeway, Bacchus Marsh, intersection upgrade;
- Princes Highway East, Bank Street, Traralgon, traffic signals;
- Barwon Heads Road/Black Rock Road/Stacey's Road, Connewarre, new roundabout;
- Fyansford Gheringhap Road, Midland Highway to Hamilton Highway, shoulder and barrier installation;

- Lower Duneed Road, Surf Coast Highway to Barwon Heads Road, shoulder, drainage and barrier construction;
- Cape Otway Road, Princes Highway to Hendy Main Road, shoulder and barrier construction;
- Gisborne-Kilmore Road/Pierce Road, Gisborne, intersection improvements;
- Wimmera Highway/Bridgewater-Maldon Road, Newbridge, intersection improvements;
- Heathcote-Kyneton Road/Ennis Road, Edgecombe, intersection improvements; and
- Sunraysia Highway/Birchip-Rainbow Road/McLaughlans Road, Ballapur, intersection improvements.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Road Operations and Network Improvements output.

Shepparton Bypass

A business case will be developed and preconstruction activities will commence for Stage 1 of the Shepparton Bypass. The Bypass will link the Midland and Goulburn Valley Highways and include a second heavy vehicle crossing of the Goulburn River. The 10 km Bypass will reduce heavy vehicle traffic in the Shepparton CBD.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Road Operations and Network Improvements output.

South-Western Victoria road improvement package

The south-western Victoria road improvement package will address the impact on roads from rain and flooding in 2016 in the south-western region, including the Great Ocean Road. Geotechnical remediation and additional maintenance works will be undertaken to stabilise the land and improve the resilience of key transport corridors.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Road Asset Management output.

Metropolitan Public Transport

Additional station car parks and upgrades

Additional station car parking and station upgrades will be provided to improve station access and facilities at a number of locations throughout the metropolitan rail network.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Train Services output.

Frankston Line stabling

The construction of new train stabling facilities at Kananook to replace existing stabling in Carrum will be undertaken to maintain network performance on the Frankston Line, while also catering for longer-term stabling needs along the corridor.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Train Services output.

More E-Class trams and infrastructure

The Government will purchase an additional 10 new E-Class trams and invest in supporting infrastructure, including power supply, bridge strengthening and enabling works.

This initiative will increase accessibility to public transport in metropolitan Melbourne, reducing overcrowding and congestion, and improving customer experience through better reliability and punctuality.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Tram Services output.

More train, tram and bus services

Refer to the output initiative for a description of this initiative.

Ongoing delivery of Night Network

Refer to the output initiative for a description of this initiative.

Regional Public Transport

Major periodic maintenance on the regional rail network

To support regional train punctuality and reliability, high priority major periodic maintenance works will be undertaken on the regional rail network to replace network critical assets that affect passenger and freight services.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs Transport and Resources' Train Services output.

More regional trains

The Government will purchase 39 new VLocity carriages to meet demand on the regional network. Funding is also provided for a package of design works to investigate options to enhance the existing VLocity design to improve accessibility and amenity and increase carrying capacity.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Train Services output.

Shepparton Line Upgrade and additional services

New train stabling and a crossing loop will be constructed to allow for additional train services to be provided from January 2020. In the meantime, an additional weekday and two daily coach services will be provided between Shepparton and Seymour. These measures improve public transport connections for Shepparton.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources':

- Bus Services output; and
- Train Services output.

Sustaining the V/Line train fleet

Additional maintenance will be provided to V/Line Classic fleet trains and carriages to replace end of life expired systems, and to undertake safety, amenity and structural upgrades. Replacing life expired systems will increase the reliability and availability of these trains and carriages for service on the regional network.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Train Services output.

Regional Rail Revival – Gippsland Rail Upgrade

The Government will upgrade the Gippsland train line with a series of infrastructure upgrades to increase frequency, reliability, punctuality, and safety. Stage 1 includes track duplications, crossing loops, station enhancements and Level Crossing Upgrades.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Train Services Output.

Regional Rail Revival

The Andrews Labor Government is undertaking the biggest revival of all time of the rail network in regional Victoria.

In the last Budget, \$1.3 billion was invested in better regional rail, including better maintenance, more frequent services, major upgrades to lines and stations across Victoria, and 27 more regional train carriages built in Victoria to add to the 21 previously ordered. In total, the Government has invested more than \$2.8 billion to deliver better regional rail.

The 2017-18 Budget continues this investment. This investment forms part of a \$1.5 billion Regional Rail Revival Plan which outlines major upgrades on lines across Victoria.

Initiatives under the Plan will better connect communities, mean more frequent and reliable train travel for regional Victorians, and help create thousands of new jobs across regional Victoria.

Funding of further initiatives under the Plan requires full receipt of Victoria's entitlement under the National Partnership Agreement on Asset Recycling from the Commonwealth.

Under this agreement, Victoria is entitled to \$1.5 billion from the lease of the Port of Melbourne to invest in priority infrastructure.

The Victorian Government intends to use that funding to deliver better public transport for regional Victoria, as well as \$10 million for planning an Airport Rail Link in consultation with the private sector.

Proposed Regional Rail Revival Plan	(\$ million)
	TEI
Projects funded in 2016-17 Budget	
Ballarat Line Upgrade ^(a)	518.0
Murray Basin Rail (part) ^(a)	20.0
Projects funded in the 2017-18 Budget	
Regional Rail Revival – Gippsland Rail Upgrade ^(b)	435.0
Projects dependent on receipt of full funding under Commonwealth NPA on Asset Recycling	
Surf Coast Rail Stage 1 ^(c)	110.0
Warrnambool Line Upgrade ^(c)	100.0
Bendigo/Echuca Line Upgrade ^(c)	91.0
Ballarat Line Stage 2 (Ararat and Maryborough) ^(c)	39.0
North East Line ^(c)	40.0
Gippsland Line Upgrade Stage 2 (Avon River Bridge) ^(c)	95.0
Airport Rail Link	10.0
Total proposed cost	1 458.0

Notes:

(a) Funding was provided towards the Ballarat Line Upgrade, and Murray Basin Rail (part) projects in the 2016-17 Budget, from originally estimated NPA on Asset Recycling proceeds.

(b) Funding has been provided for the Gippsland Rail Upgrade in the 2017-18 Budget from originally estimated NPA on Asset Recycling proceeds.

(c) Funding for the Surf Coast Rail Stage 1, Warrnambool Line Upgrade, Bendigo/Echuca Line Upgrade, Ballarat Stage 2 (Ararat and Maryborough), North East Line, and Gippsland Line Upgrade Stage 2 (Avon River Bridge), is dependent on the receipt of Victoria's full \$1.46 billion entitlement under the NPA on Asset Recycling.

Warrnambool Line Level Crossings Upgrade

A further 13 road level crossings on the Warrnambool railway line will be upgraded to enable the removal of current temporary speed restrictions.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Train Services output.

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION AND TRAINING

Output initiatives

Table 1.14: Output initiatives – Department of	1.14: Output initiatives – Department of Education and Training				million)
	2016-17	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21
Early Childhood Development					
Early Childhood Intervention Services		4.8	2.4		
Early Start Kindergarten for vulnerable children		3.1	3.1		
Education State reform – High quality learning and development for three and four-year olds		4.3	14.1	25.8	42.9
Ensuring children with significant disabilities can participate in kindergarten		2.5	2.5		
Parenting and Maternal and Child Health		11.9	18.3	24.4	26.6
School Education					
Additional school enrolment based funding	5.7	9.8	10.1	10.3	10.6
Addressing underperformance in schools		12.0	12.6	12.9	13.2
Building the Education State		1.1	4.4	6.9	7.4
Digital education – Critical IT supporting every student	0.4	3.0	50.4	8.1	6.1
Digital education – Improving regional connectivity		4.1	4.1	4.1	4.1
Education State in 2018			90.0		
English as an Additional Language		10.5	9.0		
Excellence in teacher education	1.2	3.6	1.6	1.7	1.7
Extension of the Navigator pilot program		4.5	3.4		
Extension of the Student Mentoring program		0.8	0.8		
Funding late enrolment		0.8	1.6	1.6	1.7
Greater Shepparton Lighthouse Project		1.0	1.0	1.0	
Lifting the quality of teaching and school leadership		5.4	6.2	6.2	5.9
Swimming in the Victorian Curriculum		4.5	3.1	1.6	
Support for Students with Disabilities					
Program for Students with Disabilities – Demand		18.4	40.0		
Student transport		9.0	12.1		
Training, Higher Education and Workforce Development					
Apprenticeship Support Officers		4.1	4.1		
Targeted transition worker support and subsidised training		1.5	2.5		
Total output initiatives ^(a)	7.3	120.6	297.4	104.5	120.0

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance

Note:

(a) Table may not add due to rounding.

Early Childhood Development

Early Childhood Intervention Services

Funding for Early Childhood Intervention Services (ECIS) will be extended to over 500 children over two years until they transition to the National Disability Insurance Scheme (NDIS). Access to high quality ECIS will improve long-term outcomes for children with disabilities and their families.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Education and Training's Early Childhood Development output.

Early Start Kindergarten for vulnerable children

The Government will invest additional funds to meet growing demand for the Early Start Kindergarten program. This program provides free or low cost kindergarten for three year old children who have had contact with child protection or are Aboriginal and/or Torres Strait Islander.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Education and Training's Early Childhood Development output.

Education State reform – High quality learning and development for three and four-year olds

School readiness funding for three and four-year olds in funded kindergarten programs will be provided to better support educationally disadvantaged children. New quality improvement grants will support kindergartens most in need of assistance. These grants will provide intensive coaching, observation and feedback to improve outcomes.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Education and Training's Early Childhood Development output.

Ensuring children with significant disabilities can participate in kindergarten

The Government will invest additional funds to meet growing demand for the Kindergarten Inclusion Support program. This provides specialist consultancy, training and additional staff in the kindergarten setting to support children with a disability.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Education and Training's Early Childhood Development output.

Parenting and Maternal and Child Health

Maternal and Child Health (MCH) and parenting supports will be expanded for families across Victoria. More support will be delivered to new parents, including those with babies born prematurely, unsupported young parents, or families facing particular disadvantage, through expanding the Enhanced MCH service, additional supported playgroups, and an additional MCH visit to identify and support women and children at risk of family violence. MCH nurses will also receive additional professional development to better support them to work with vulnerable families and there will be increased staffing for the MCH Line to better meet community demand.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Education and Training's Early Childhood Development output.

School Education

Additional school enrolment-based funding

Additional and ongoing funding will be provided to government and non-government schools in response to higher than forecast enrolments in the 2017 school year.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Education and Training's:

- School Education Primary output; and
- School Education Secondary output.

Addressing underperformance in schools

Funding will be provided over four years to grow principal and teacher capability in almost 350 of the lowest performing Victorian government schools to improve performance. The support will be tailored to the needs of individual schools and will include mobile turnaround teams, deployment of an executive principal, school improvement partnerships, and specialist teaching teams.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Education and Training's:

- School Education Primary output; and
- School Education Secondary output.

Building the Education State

Funding will be provided for operating costs associated with school asset initiatives, including:

- new schools construction;
- relocatable classrooms; and
- Early Childhood Development facilities on school sites.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Education and Training's:

- School Education Primary output; and
- School Education Secondary output.

Digital education – Critical IT supporting every student

Information technology will be upgraded across Victorian government schools to provide reliable access to digital services in the classroom that are essential to teaching and learning. The investment will renew school Wi-Fi and statewide virtual conferencing infrastructure to support more than half a million student computers.

- School Education Primary output; and
- School Education Secondary output.

Digital education – Improving regional connectivity

Funding will be provided to increase bandwidth and digital connectivity for rural schools. This initiative will focus on bringing small regional and rural government primary and secondary schools to the same standard of provision as metropolitan schools.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Education and Training's:

- School Education Primary output; and
- School Education Secondary output.

Education State in 2018

As part of making Victoria the Education State, the Government will allocate additional funding for the 2018 school year. This funding will be held centrally and Government will make further announcements to confirm how it will be allocated.

English as an Additional Language

The number of students supported by the English as an Additional Language program will be increased in line with growth in enrolments. Eligible newly arrived students in Victorian government schools will be provided with intensive or targeted support in the initial stages of learning English. The specialised teaching will develop students' English proficiency for participation in social, economic and cultural life in Victoria.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Education and Training's:

- School Education Primary output; and
- School Education Secondary output.

Excellence in teacher education

Additional support will be provided for initial teacher education and to new graduate teachers to develop quality teachers in Victorian schools including by:

- the development of an alternative pathway to undergraduate teacher education for school leavers not meeting minimum initial teacher education entry requirements and improvements to all pathways other than Australian Tertiary Admission Rank through a quality assurance framework;
- an additional 250 teaching students to be equipped to work in schools in disadvantaged areas, through participation in the Teach for Australia and National Exceptional Teachers for Disadvantaged Schools programs; and
- strengthening induction support for graduate teachers in government schools and mentoring programs to build graduate teacher practice will be strengthened.

- School Education Primary output; and
- School Education Secondary output.

Extension of the Navigator pilot program

The Navigator program will be continued and expanded in its existing eight locations until the end of 2018. The program provides intensive outreach supports to young people aged 12-17 who are at risk of disengaging, or already disengaged from their education. It aims to increase the number of young people connected to school and engaged in learning.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Education and Training's:

- School Education Primary output; and
- School Education Secondary output.

Extension of the Student Mentoring program

The Student Mentoring program will be extended. The program provides mentoring to government school students from disadvantaged backgrounds. Mentors support students to increase engagement in learning, build self-confidence, set goals and improve understanding of post-school options.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Education and Training's School Education – Secondary output.

Funding late enrolment

Schools will be funded for students that enrol after the census date during the school year to ensure that students are given every opportunity to stay connected to school and achieve their educational potential.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Education and Training's:

- School Education Primary output; and
- School Education Secondary output.

Greater Shepparton Lighthouse Project

Additional funding is provided for the Greater Shepparton Lighthouse Project, improving the social and educational outcomes for children in the Greater Shepparton region by ensuring they are ready for school, successfully transition to secondary school, and complete year 12 and transition to work.

Funding will support increased collaboration and partnerships in both existing and new initiatives.

- School Education Secondary output.
- Training, Higher Education and Workforce Development output.

Lifting the quality of teaching and school leadership

Teaching practice in the classroom and school leadership will be improved by:

- expanding the Professional Learning Communities initiative to an additional 200 government schools;
- supporting more participants to take part in the aspiring principal assessment process; and
- providing grants to principal network chairs for professional learning.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Education and Training's:

- School Education Primary output; and
- School Education Secondary output.

Swimming in the Victorian Curriculum

Primary schools will receive a contribution towards the cost of swimming lessons based on the number of Year 6 students at the school. This initiative will support these schools to fulfil the swimming and water safety requirements of the Victorian Curriculum, help students improve their swimming ability and water safety knowledge and support Government's efforts towards the Education State target for physical activity.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Education and Training's School Education – Primary output.

Support for Students with Disabilities

Program for Students with Disabilities – Demand

An additional 2 600 students will be supported by the Program for Students with Disabilities in the 2018 school year, in response to growth in school enrolments. The program provides educational support to students with moderate to severe disabilities attending mainstream government and specialist schools.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Education and Training's Support for Students with Disabilities output.

Student transport

Eligible Victorian school students will be assisted to travel to and from school in the 2018 school year. Approximately 200 students in government specialist schools will be supported by the Students with Disabilities Transport Program, in response to growth in school enrolments. An additional 1 650 government and non-government students will be eligible for a conveyance allowance, by expanding the metropolitan boundary for the Conveyance Allowance Program to include an additional eight postcodes.

- Support for Students with Disabilities output; and
- Support Services Delivery output.

Training, Higher Education and Workforce Development

Apprenticeship Support Officers

To improve retention and completion, Apprenticeship Support Officers offer advice and assistance to first-year apprentices under 25 years of age on personal and workplace issues and work with Registered Training Organisations.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Education and Training's Training, Higher Education and Workforce Developments output.

Targeted transition worker support and subsidised training

A support package will be provided over two years for workers facing transition in employment or training in the Latrobe Valley. Support will include career planning and development, job search assistance and digital literacy.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Education and Training's Training, Higher Education and Workforce Development output.

Asset initiatives

Table 1.15: Asset initiatives – Department of Education and Training						nillion)
	2016-17	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21	TEI
Early Childhood Development						
Early Childhood Development facilities		1.6	6.3	1.8	0.3	10.0
School Education						
Asbestos removal program		42.5	42.5			85.0
Land acquisition		70.5				70.5
Metro school upgrades		14.1	85.3	28.5	3.2	131.1
New schools construction		50.1	116.6	25.2	0.2	192.2
Planning for schools		2.9	4.1			7.0
Relocatable classrooms	20.0	55.0				75.0
Rural and regional school upgrades		4.1	40.8	18.9	0.4	64.1
School Pride and Sports Fund		0.5	3.9	1.2	0.3	5.8
Special school upgrades		13.0	18.7	12.5	0.3	44.4
Total asset initiatives ^(a)	20.0	254.2	318.1	88.1	4.6	685.0

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance

Note:

(a) Table may not add due to rounding.

Early Childhood Development

Early Childhood Development facilities

Funding will be provided for the planning and construction of Early Childhood Development facilities co-located at new primary schools. The funding will enable a stable transition for children from early learning services into primary school and contribute to improved educational and health outcomes for students.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Education and Training's Early Childhood Development output.

School Education

Asbestos removal program

The Government will continue to remove asbestos in schools, as part of the largest asbestos removal program. Further funding is provided to target and remove asbestos in schools that may pose a risk in the future. This includes the removal of asbestos through the replacement of buildings with new modular facilities, and the removal of asbestos while delivering refurbishments and capital works. This work will improve the safety of the school environment for both students and staff.

This initiative delivers on the Government's election commitment as published in Labor's Financial Statement 2014.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Education and Training's:

- School Education Primary output; and
- School Education Secondary output.

Land acquisition

Land will be acquired for eleven schools in the cities of Ballarat, Cardinia, Casey, Hume, Melton, Mitchell, Whittlesea, Wyndham, and Yarra.

- School Education Primary output; and
- School Education Secondary output.

Metro school upgrades

Forty-nine schools in the metropolitan area will receive additional funding for upgrades. This will improve educational outcomes through the provision of high-quality classrooms and multi-function areas.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Education and Training's:

- School Education Primary output; and
- School Education Secondary output.

Metro school upgrades	
 Albert Park College 	 Keilor Heights Primary School
 Aldercourt Primary School 	 Kurunjang Primary School
 Ascot Vale Primary School 	Lilydale Primary School
 Banyan Fields Primary School 	 Lilydale West Primary School
 Banyule Primary School 	 Lynall Hall Community School and
 Berwick Fields Primary School 	Richmond High School Precinct
Boronia Heights Primary School	Lyndale Secondary College
Brunswick North Primary School	Melton Secondary College
Bundoora Primary School	Merri Creek Primary School
Campbellfield Heights Primary School	Monbulk College
Carnegie Primary School	 Montmorency South Primary School
Carrum Downs Secondary College	 Moonee Ponds West Primary School
Coburg High School	 Mount Erin Secondary College
Coburg North Primary School	Narre Warren South P-12 College
Collingwood College	Newlands Primary School
Diggers Rest Primary School	Perseverance Primary School
Donburn Primary School	Port Melbourne Primary School
Eltham High School	 Seaford North Primary School
Essendon Primary School	Spotswood Primary School
Fawkner Primary School	Sunbury Downs Secondary College
Fountain Gate Secondary College	Upwey High School
Frankston High School	Valkstone Primary School
Gleneagles Secondary College	Waverley Meadows Primary School
Highvale Primary School	Wellington Secondary College
Hughesdale Primary School	Wheelers Hill Secondary College

New schools construction

To meet the challenges of population growth, additional stages will be constructed at the following schools:

- Beaumaris High School (Final Stage);
- Footscray Learning Precinct (Stage 1 Construction);
- Prahran High School (Final Stage); and
- South Melbourne Park Primary School (Final Stage).

To meet the challenges of population growth, the following nine new schools will also be built:

- Aitken Hill P-6;
- Alphington P-2;
- Burnside P-6;
- Pakenham (NE) P-6;
- Preston High School;
- Sanctuary Lakes South P-9;
- Taylors Hill Secondary College;
- Truganina East P-9; and
- Yarrambat Park P-6.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Education and Training's:

- School Education Primary output; and
- School Education Secondary output.

Planning for schools

Master planning, detailed design and provision work will be undertaken at 12 current and future school sites. The following will receive funding for planning:

- Croydon Community School;
- Docklands P-6;
- East Bentleigh (future school provision);
- Lilydale and Upper Yarra Secondary schools plan;
- Frankston North Education Precinct;
- Noble Park Secondary College;
- Point Cook Senior Secondary College;
- Seaford Primary School;
- Shepparton Education Plan;
- Stawell Secondary College;
- The Grange P-12 College; and
- Victoria University Secondary College.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Education and Training's:

- School Education Primary output; and
- School Education Secondary output.

Relocatable classrooms

Relocatable buildings will be provided to relieve pressure at schools which are reaching their capacity and to provide additional functional spaces.

- School Education Primary output; and
- School Education Secondary output.

Rural and regional school upgrades

Fifty-nine schools in rural and regional areas will receive funding for upgrades. This will improve educational outcomes through the provision of high-quality classrooms and multi-function areas.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Education and Training's:

- School Education Primary output; and
- School Education Secondary output.

Rural and regional school upgrades

- Ardmona Primary School
- Ashby Primary School
- Ballarat Secondary College Mount Rowan Campus
- Ballarat Secondary College Woodmans Hill Campus
- Baringhup Primary School
- Bealiba Primary School
- Bellbrae Primary School
- Big Hill Primary School
- Bolinda Primary School
- Bourchier Street Primary School Shepparton
- Branxholme-Wallacedale Community School
- Carisbrook Primary School
- Castlemaine North Primary School
- Castlemaine Primary School
- Ceres Primary School
- Chilwell Primary School
- Cobains Primary School
- Corryong College
- Darraweit Guim Primary School
- Deans Marsh Primary School
- Dimboola Primary School
- Elphinstone Primary School
- Geelong East Primary School
- Gisborne Primary School
- Hamlyn Banks Primary School
- Harrietville Primary School
- Jamieson Primary School
- Kialla West Primary School
- Kurnai College
- Laharum Primary School

- Lara Lake Primary School
- Leopold Primary School
- Lindenow Primary School
- Lockwood Primary School
- Mansfield Primary School
- Moonambel Primary School
- Mooroopna Park Primary School
- Mount Duneed Regional Primary School
- Mount Macedon Primary School
- Nanneella Estate Primary School
- Newcomb Park Primary School
- Newstead Primary School
- Newtown Primary School
- Oberon Primary School
- Orrvale Primary School
- Penshurst Primary School
- Portland South Primary School
- Queenscliff Primary School
- Seaspray Primary School
- Spring Gully Primary School
- Swan Hill Primary School
- Taradale Primary School
- Tungamah Primary School
- Underbool Primary School
- Wandong Primary School
- Warrnambool East Primary School
- Winchelsea Primary School
- Wunghnu Primary School
- Yaapeet Primary School

School Pride and Sports Fund

The School Pride and Sports Fund will deliver minor refurbishments and upgrades to improve the facilities at a number of government schools.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Education and Training's:

- School Education Primary output; and
- School Education Secondary output.

Special school upgrades

Six schools that support students with special needs will receive funding for upgrades to provide facilities that will improve educational outcomes. The following schools will receive funding for upgrades:

- Bayside Special Developmental School;
- Diamond Valley Special Developmental School;
- Kalianna Special School;
- Sale Specialist School;
- Yarra Ranges Special Developmental School; and
- Yarrabah School.

- School Education Primary output; and
- School Education Secondary output.

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT, LAND, WATER AND PLANNING

Output initiatives

Table 1.16: Output initiatives – Department of Environment, Land, Water

and Planning	and Planning				(\$ million)		
	2016-17	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21		
Environment and Biodiversity							
Investing in waste and resource recovery for a growing Victoria		8.0	6.0	6.0	10.4		
Protecting Victoria's environment – <i>Biodiversity 2037</i>		18.8	22.1	22.5	22.9		
Remediation of gun club sites		3.0					
ResourceSmart Schools		2.0	2.4				
Towards a healthy and resilient marine and coastal future	<u>.</u>	3.6	3.6				
Climate Change							
Taking decisive action on climate change		3.1	3.1	3.2	3.1		
Understanding and adapting to climate change	3.8	3.8	2.6	2.6			
Fire and Emergency Management							
Reducing bushfire risk		59.5	64.5	52.6	52.7		
Land Use Victoria							
Land Use Victoria		2.5	3.0	3.0	3.1		
Local Government							
Growing Suburbs Fund		25.0	25.0				
Munarra Centre for Regional Excellence – Goulburn		0.2					
Regional sustainability reform program		1.0					
Roadside weeds and pests		2.7	2.7				
Suburban Development							
Suburban Development		1.0					
Management of Public Land and Forests							
Strengthening the protection of our forests and wildlife through more effective regulation, compliance and enforcement		7.6	7.6	7.6	7.5		
Zoos Victoria – Kids free policy		2.9	2.9				
Parks Victoria							
Enhancing Victoria's liveability through improvements to the parks and reserves estate		0.9	0.4				
Unlocking the benefits of parks for all Victorians		10.4	10.4	1.5	1.5		
Planning, Building and Heritage							
Activating Victoria's heritage – Building on the Living Heritage program		5.0					
Fishermans Bend – Planning for a city's future		10.1					
Major hazard facilities		1.0					
Plan Melbourne implementation		3.1	3.1	3.1	3.1		
Protecting the Yarra River and other environmental assets in Melbourne		3.6	2.3	0.4	0.4		
Revitalising Central Geelong		10.0	1.7				
Simplifying the Great Ocean Road management arrangements	0.1	0.5	0.2	0.2	0.2		

2	016-17	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21
Statutory Activities and Environment Protection					
Bringing our Environment Protection Authority into the modern era	13.9	50.3	26.8	27.1	23.8
Effective Water Management and Supply					
The Victorian Government's contribution to the Murray-Darling Basin Authority		5.2			
Water for Victoria – Climate change		1.8	1.9	2.1	
Water for Victoria – Develop a rural drainage strategy		0.3	0.5	0.3	
Water for Victoria – Entitlements and planning		16.8	17.7	17.9	
Water for Victoria – Promote innovation through the Cooperative Research Centre for Water Sensitive Cities		0.5	0.5	0.5	
Water for Victoria – Protect the beneficial uses of water		0.8	0.8	0.3	
Water for Victoria – Protecting Ramsar wetlands		1.0	0.5	0.5	
Water for Victoria – Recognising recreational values		1.5	1.1	0.9	
Water for Victoria – Resilient and liveable cities and towns		4.0	4.6	3.8	
Water for Victoria – Water grid and markets		4.7	4.5	4.7	
Energy					
Energy Affordability – Putting consumers first		6.1	4.6		
National Energy Markets – Reform and advocacy		5.9	7.0		
Securing our modern energy future	10.5	26.2	25.0	27.1	
Securing our energy future – Solar trams	0.1	0.1	4.7	4.7	
Total output initiatives ^(a)	28.4	314.4	263.7	192.6	128.7

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance

Note:

(a) Table may not add due to rounding.

Environment and Biodiversity

Investing in waste and resource recovery for a growing Victoria

Greater investment will be made in the waste and resource recovery sector. Action will be taken to keep e-waste out of landfill and enhance Victoria's capacity to manage waste, litter and resource recovery.

This initiative will be funded from the Sustainability Fund.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Environment and Biodiversity output.

Protecting Victoria's environment – *Biodiversity 2037*

Biodiversity 2037 will protect our vulnerable environment through targeted on-ground actions such as predator, herbivore and weed control, revegetation and the re-establishment of shellfish habitat in Port Phillip Bay. It will also support community access to information that monitors and measures progress in protecting Victoria's biodiversity.

This initiative will be funded from the Sustainability Fund.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Environment and Biodiversity output.

Remediation of gun club sites

Work will begin on environmental assessments and remediating land contamination at a small number of government-owned gun club properties.

This initiative will be funded from the Sustainability Fund.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Environment and Biodiversity output.

ResourceSmart Schools

The existing ResourceSmart Schools program will be continued and expanded. The program assists schools to embed sustainability in everything they do. Schools minimise waste, save energy and water, promote biodiversity and take action on climate change to benefit their school and community. This is achieved through providing practical support to reduce resource use and make cost savings, integrate sustainability into the curriculum and share learnings beyond the school gate.

This initiative will be funded from the Sustainability Fund.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Environment and Biodiversity output.

Towards a healthy and resilient marine and coastal future

Our Environment, Our Future will deliver key marine and coastal projects, including better involving traditional land owners in the planning and management of Victoria's coastlines, grants to address risks on coastal land, continuing the Coastcare program (including *Summer by the Sea*) and maintaining assets such as beaches, groynes and seawalls.

This initiative will be funded from the Sustainability Fund.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Environment and Biodiversity output.

Climate Change

Taking decisive action on climate change

Elements of *Victoria's Climate Change Adaptation Plan 2017-2020* will be implemented, including conducting a coastal hazard assessment for Port Phillip Bay, producing detailed climate change impact projections for the Victorian coastline, and supporting our regions to adapt to climate change through a better understanding of specific impacts and priorities for action. Up-to-date climate science and impacts will be communicated to the public.

This initiative will be funded from the Sustainability Fund.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Climate Change output.

Understanding and adapting to climate change

The Government will invest in the development of better climate change information and data to inform actions to adapt to climate change. The Government will also invest in establishing and monitoring state-wide emission reduction targets, reducing government operational emissions and engaging with local government.

This initiative will be funded from the Sustainability Fund.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Climate Change output.

Fire and Emergency Management

Reducing bushfire risk

Safer Together will reduce the impact of bushfires on Victorian communities, the economy and the environment. It includes a range of actions, including the delivery of fuel management operations such as planned burning and slashing, increasing forest firefighting capacity, and engaging the community in bushfire management planning. Partnerships between property holders and land and fire agencies will be strengthened to better reduce bushfire risk across public land, private land and roadsides. This will help make communities safer and more resilient before, during and after bushfires.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Fire and Emergency Management output.

Land Use Victoria

Land Use Victoria

Land Use Victoria was established in August 2016 to create a single agency providing strategic advice to Government on land holdings and a centre of expertise in government land information to help ensure that government land is used to best effect for the Victorian community. Ongoing funding is provided to support these new functions, including strategic land use assessments of potential future uses of government land and maintaining the Government Land Information Service as a central source of information for landholdings.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Land Use Victoria output.

Local Government

Growing Suburbs Fund

The Growing Suburbs Fund will continue with a longer-term focus to support councils and communities in outer suburban areas to improve local facilities. This will assist these communities to meet the challenges of significant population growth. Infrastructure such as parks, community centres, children's centres, town centres, swimming pools, and cultural facilities will be built or upgraded.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Local Government output.

Munarra Centre for Regional Excellence – Goulburn

A business case will be developed in 2017-18 for the Munarra Centre for Regional Excellence, a purpose built educational, sporting, cultural and community centre for excellence proposed for the Aboriginal community in the Goulburn region.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Local Government output.

Regional sustainability reform program

This program will cooperatively develop a program with rural and regional councils to respond to external funding constraints and structural challenges to ensure long-term sustainability and improved service delivery to regional communities.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Local Government output.

Roadside weeds and pests

The Roadside Weeds and Pests Management Program will provide grants to assist rural and regional councils with their obligations under the *Catchment and Land Protection Act* 1994. The program will manage the spread of weeds and pests along roadsides to protect Victoria's agricultural production and environmental assets.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Local Government output.

Suburban Development

Suburban Development

Funding will be provided to support the implementation of key deliverables of the Suburban Development portfolio, including the establishment and operation of Metropolitan Partnerships, and the development and delivery of five-year plans for jobs and services.

This output contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Suburban Development output.

Management of Public Land and Forests

Strengthening the protection of our forests and wildlife through more effective regulation, compliance and enforcement

The protection of Victoria's forests and wildlife will be strengthened through improved regulatory compliance and enforcement. This will ensure better compliance with wildlife control permit conditions, address increased illegal marketing in endangered Victorian animals, respond to illegal rubbish dumping, including asbestos, in state forests, investigate breaches of timber harvesting regulations and illegal firewood collecting and increase checking rates of wildlife licences.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Management of Public Land and Forests output.

Zoos Victoria – Kids free policy

Children under 16 years of age will continue to enjoy free access to Melbourne Zoo, Healesville Sanctuary and Werribee Open Range Zoo on weekends, public holidays and during school holidays for a further two years.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Management of Public Land and Forests output.

Parks Victoria

Enhancing Victoria's liveability through improvements to the parks and reserves estate

Refer to the asset initiative for a description of this initiative.

Unlocking the benefits of parks for all Victorians

Parks Victoria will be provided with additional resources to ensure safe and equitable access to parks and the benefits they provide. The Parks Victoria website will be redeveloped to improve usability and provide additional information for park users around the State. A new asset management system will also be implemented to assist in the maintenance and replacement of the large asset base of Parks Victoria.

This initiative will be funded from the Municipal and Industrial Landfill Levy.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Parks Victoria output.

Planning, Building and Heritage

Activating Victoria's heritage – Building on the Living Heritage program

The Living Heritage program will be expanded in 2017-18, with additional repair and restoration works for 'at risk' State significant heritage places. These works will ensure that important places are conserved for future generations to visit and enjoy.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Planning, Building and Heritage output.

Fishermans Bend – Planning for a city's future

Improvement works and remediation of the Ferrars Education and Community Precinct at Montague Park, and streetscape and intersection works associated with the South Melbourne Primary School development will be undertaken. The school is due to open at the start of the 2018 school year.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Planning, Building and Heritage output.

Major hazard facilities

Government will work to improve land use planning decisions for areas around Victoria's major hazard facilities in response to the Major Hazard Facility Advisory Committee's report. Planning tools, policies and governance arrangements will be reviewed to better manage risk and amenity around these facilities.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Planning, Building and Heritage output.

Plan Melbourne implementation

Additional funding will be provided to ensure the implementation of Plan Melbourne 2017-2050 actions. The refreshed Plan Melbourne provides a long-term strategic plan to manage the city's growth and actions to ensure a greater focus on improving housing affordability and diversity, mitigating and adapting to climate change, supporting energy efficiency, and planning for the Government's transport priorities.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Planning, Building and Heritage output.

Protecting the Yarra River and other environmental assets in Melbourne

Management, promotion and protection of the Yarra River will be supported by implementing the Government's Yarra River Action Plan over four years. The initiative will support the development of the Yarra Strategic Plan and new governance arrangements, including the Birrarung River Council and Traditional Owner inclusion and mapping. This will promote a cohesive approach to protect the Yarra River and will help recognise the Traditional Owner cultural values along the Yarra River.

Part of this initiative will be funded from the Environmental Contribution Levy.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Planning, Building and Heritage output.

Revitalising Central Geelong

The Geelong Authority and Revitalising Central Geelong Partnership will continue to be supported for a further two years to deliver projects in the Revitalising Central Geelong Action Plan to unlock investment and drive economic activity in central Geelong. Projects over the next year include new stormwater infrastructure at Johnstone Park, construction of new laneway connections to Malop Street and planning to expand the Green Spine and new bus infrastructure.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Planning, Building and Heritage output.

Simplifying the Great Ocean Road management arrangements

A taskforce and project management team will be established to assess and provide recommendations to simplify the complex management arrangements for the Great Ocean Road.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Planning, Building and Heritage output.

Statutory Activities and Environment Protection

Bringing our Environment Protection Authority into the modern era

The Environment Protection Authority (EPA) will be modernised to ensure it can meet current and future obligations. This will include a comprehensive overhaul of the *Environment Protection Act 1970*, reforms to EPA's governance, development of a digital strategy and development of a prosecution strategy that increases the EPA's enforcement capability with greater investigatory, legal resources and an enhanced environmental health capability.

This initiative will be funded from the Municipal and Industrial Landfill Levy and the Sustainability Fund.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Statutory Activities and Environment Protection output.

Effective Water Management and Supply

The Victorian Government's contribution to the Murray-Darling Basin Authority

As a signatory to the Murray-Darling Basin Agreement, Victoria makes an annual contribution to the Murray-Darling Basin Authority (MDBA). The MDBA promotes and coordinates planning and management for the sustainable use of the land, water and environmental resources of the Murray-Darling Basin on behalf of Victoria, New South Wales, South Australia, Queensland and the Australian Capital Territory.

This initiative will be funded from the Environmental Contribution Levy.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Effective Water Management and Supply output.

Water for Victoria – Climate change

The water sector will be supported to respond to the challenges of climate change through emissions reduction initiatives, investment in climate change science and the development of models to improve the assessment of climate related water management risks. This will assist the sector in reaching net-zero emissions by 2050 and leading climate change adaptation policies.

This initiative will be funded from the Environmental Contribution Levy.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Effective Water Management and Supply output.

Water for Victoria – Develop a rural drainage strategy

Rural communities will be supported through the development of the Victorian Rural Drainage Strategy (VRDS), which is currently being finalised. The VRDS aims to reduce waterlogging on agricultural land and improve agricultural productivity. Initial funding will be provided to investigate and make safe or decommission drainage infrastructure.

This initiative will be funded from the Environmental Contribution Levy.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Effective Water Management and Supply output.

Water for Victoria – Entitlements and planning

Victoria's water entitlement and planning processes will continue to be strengthened through simplifying regulation, improving the compliance and enforcement regime, and commencing the long-term water resource assessment process and sustainable water strategy reviews. The quality, accuracy and availability of water monitoring data will also be improved through investment in infrastructure upgrades and new technology. This will enhance the effective management of Victoria's water resources.

This initiative will be funded from the Environmental Contribution Levy.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Effective Water Management and Supply output.

Water for Victoria – Promote innovation through the Cooperative Research Centre for Water Sensitive Cities

Victoria will continue to provide annual contributions to the Cooperative Research Centre for Water Sensitive Cities, which undertakes research and programs to address challenges for water management arising from a growing population.

This initiative will be funded from the Environmental Contribution Levy.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Effective Water Management and Supply output.

Water for Victoria – Protect the beneficial uses of water

The State Environment Protection Policy will be revised to provide updated water quality indicators and objectives and guidance on protecting and rehabilitating water environments. This will help improve the health of priority waterways and their catchments.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Effective Water Management and Supply output.

Water for Victoria – Protecting Ramsar wetlands

Internationally recognised Ramsar wetlands will be better protected through additional monitoring of the wetlands' ecological character, dedicated coordination of each site and strengthening of site management plans. The initiative will assist in protecting the natural values of Victoria's Ramsar sites in the future.

This initiative will be funded from the Environmental Contribution Levy.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Safe and Sustainable Water Resources output.

Water for Victoria – Recognising recreational values

Information about environmental conditions of waterways, including seasonal water levels, will be more easily accessible for recreational users of water. This will allow recreational users to better plan for activities such as water skiing, rowing and fishing, which may be impacted by these conditions. Information will be delivered through multiple channels, including social media.

In addition, the potential environmental and recreational impacts of lower summer flows into the Anglesea River will be addressed through pumping water into the river from an existing storage pond and using seawater in the short term. A longer-term solution will be developed by 2019-20.

This initiative will be funded from the Environmental Contribution Levy.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Effective Water Management and Supply output.

Water for Victoria - Resilient and liveable cities and towns

Victoria's urban water sector will be better placed to manage the challenges of population growth and climate change by continuing to improve water management and planning.

This initiative will be funded from the Environmental Contribution Levy.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Effective Water Management and Supply output.

Water for Victoria – Water grid and markets

Victoria's water grid and market will be supported by building on current work to improve Victoria's water entitlement framework and operation of the water market, including the establishment of a grid oversight function and the trial of the South Central water market. The improvements to water grid and markets will result in more productive regional industries, healthier rivers and waterways, and increase the capacity of regional communities to thrive in the face of variable water supplies.

This initiative will be funded from the Environmental Contribution Levy.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Effective Water Management and Supply output.

Energy

Energy Affordability – Putting consumers first

The Victorian Energy Compare website will be widely promoted, and upgraded in conjunction with the improved access to energy data to assist consumers to use their smart meter data to manage their energy usage and reduce their bills by allowing the comparison of offers from different energy retailers.

This initiative will be funded from the Sustainability Fund.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Energy output.

National Energy Markets – Reform and advocacy

Victorian energy consumers' interests will be represented nationally by supporting and influencing the reform and advocacy program of the Council of Australian Governments' Energy Council.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Energy output.

Securing our modern energy future

A range of measures will contribute to modernising Victoria's energy system to ensure a renewable, affordable and reliable energy future. This includes supporting large-scale storage initiatives and encouraging the development of the renewable energy sector in Victoria through actions such as trialling micro grids and smart grids.

Costs to Victorian energy consumers will be minimised through providing information to businesses and households on how to improve their energy efficiency. Low income households and some businesses may be eligible for financial assistance towards the cost of energy efficiency upgrades. Widening access to the Victorian Energy Efficiency Target will encourage more uptake of energy efficient products.

This initiative will be funded from the Sustainability Fund.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Energy output.

Securing our energy future – Solar trams

The Securing our energy future – Solar trams program will promote investment in renewable energy over the next three years.

This initiative will be funded from the Sustainability Fund.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Energy output.

Asset initiatives

Table 1.17: Asset initiatives – Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning

and Planning					(\$ n	nillion)
	2016-17	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21	TEI
Fire and Emergency Management						
Reducing bushfire risk		11.0	11.0	11.0	11.0	44.0
Management of Public Land and Forests						
Strengthening the protection of our forests and wildlife through more effective regulation, compliance and enforcement		3.0	3.0			6.0
Parks Victoria						
Enhancing Victoria's liveability through improvements to the parks and reserves estate	 2	9.2	12.3			21.5
Unlocking the benefits of parks for all Victorians		8.1				8.1
Planning, Building and Heritage						
Revitalising Central Geelong		3.3				3.3
Statutory Activities and Environment Protection						
Bringing our Environment Protection Authority into the modern era	1.2	4.5	6.1	8.2	0.7	20.7
Effective Water Management and Supply						
Non-potable irrigation water for Melbourne Gardens		0.5	0.8	2.3		3.7
Recycled irrigation water for Cranbourne Gardens	5	1.1	1.5	0.7		3.3
Water for Victoria – Entitlements and planning		1.2	4.0	3.0		8.2
Total asset initiatives ^(a)	1.2	41.9	38.7	25.1	11.7	118.7

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance

Note:

(a) Table may not add due to rounding.

Fire and Emergency Management

Reducing bushfire risk

Refer to the output initiative for a description of this initiative.

Management of Public Land and Forests

Strengthening the protection of our forests and wildlife through more effective regulation, compliance and enforcement

Refer to the output initiative for a description of this initiative.

Parks Victoria

Enhancing Victoria's liveability through improvements to the parks and reserves estate

The Government will start the process of acquiring land to establish three new metropolitan parks in Melbourne's growth areas, and Anglesea Heath will be incorporated into the Great Otway National Park. This will provide more recreation and leisure opportunities for Victorians.

This initiative will be funded from the Municipal and Industrial Landfill Levy.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Parks Victoria output.

Unlocking the benefits of parks for all Victorians

Refer to the output initiative for a description of this initiative.

Planning, Building and Heritage

Revitalising Central Geelong

Refer to the output initiative for a description of this initiative.

Statutory Activities and Environment Protection

Bringing our Environment Protection Authority into the modern era

Refer to the output initiative for a description of this initiative.

Effective Water Management and Supply

Non-potable irrigation water for Melbourne Gardens

The Government will invest in infrastructure to extract water from the Yarra River, via an existing water right, to irrigate the Melbourne Gardens. This will provide Melbourne Gardens with a drought-proof, secure and sustainable water supply, and will save 100 megalitres of mains water a year.

This initiative will be funded from the Environmental Contribution Levy.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Effective Water Management and Supply output.

Recycled irrigation water for Cranbourne Gardens

The Government will invest in infrastructure to supply water from the Eastern Treatment Plant to Cranbourne Gardens. This will provide the Cranbourne Gardens with a drought-proof, secure and sustainable water supply, and will save 35 megalitres of mains water a year.

This initiative will be funded from the Environmental Contribution Levy.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's Effective Water Management and Supply output.

Water for Victoria – Entitlements and planning

Refer to the output initiative for a description of this initiative.

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Output initiatives

Table 1.18: Output initiatives – Department of H	lealth an	d Human	Services	(\$	million)
	2016-17	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21
Acute Health Services					
Addressing occupational violence against health workers and workplace bullying		1.5	1.5		
Better Care Victoria Innovation Fund		10.0			
Delivering better, earlier and more integrated care	0.1	5.1	3.2	3.2	
Genomic testing for rare undiagnosed conditions		2.0	2.1	2.1	2.2
Implementation of quality and safety reforms – Better, Safer Care	23.5	44.5	46.8	50.3	50.0
Improving access to elective surgery ^(a)		174.3	47.3	48.5	49.7
Improving access to the Victorian Patient Transport Assistance Scheme		2.0			
Independent oversight and service delivery		8.5	8.3		
Meeting hospital services demand ^(a)		392.2	298.4	305.9	313.5
Statewide health infrastructure planning		2.5			
Ageing, Aged and Home Care					
Future public sector residential aged care provision		25.6			
Home and Community Care Program for Younger People		2.9			
Ambulance Services					
Meeting demand for ambulance services		13.1	13.4		
Child Protection and Family Services					
Civil claims costs	2.0	2.0			
Concessions to Pensioners and Beneficiaries					
Concessions to pensioners and beneficiaries	9.0	18.0	18.0	18.0	18.0
Disability Services					
More support for young people with a disability		9.7	10.2		
Strengthening oversight to reduce abuse in disability services		3.0	2.9	2.8	
Supporting the transition to the National Disability Insurance Scheme		20.9	14.2	1.1	
Empowering Individuals and Communities					
Change our Game – Increasing female participation in sport		1.5	1.5	1.6	1.6
Melbourne Park Redevelopment – stage 3		0.1	0.1	0.1	0.1
Open Place and Care Leavers Network of Australia – Additional support		1.0	1.0		
Pathways to Exit – Expansion		1.0	1.0	1.0	1.0
Public swimming pool safety		0.7	0.4	0.4	0.4
Shooting Sports Facilities Program		1.0			
Significant Sporting Events Program supplementation		1.0			
Sports Infrastructure Fund		18.1	2.0		
State Disability Plan 2017-2020		4.9			
State Sport Centres Trust	4.8	4.8			

	2016-17	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21
Supporting young people		1.5	1.5	0.5	0.5
Victorian Home of Golf and National High Performance Centre		8.0	2.0		
Gender Equality and the Prevention of Family Violence Po	licy and Pr	ograms			
Delivering Safe and Strong – A Victorian gender equality strategy		1.2	2.3	2.3	0.1
Mental Health					
Forensic mental health implementation plan – Priority service reforms		4.1	13.1	12.1	12.1
Grampians Prevention and Recovery Care (PARC) Service					2.3
Meeting clinical services demand ^(a)		46.9	49.6	50.8	52.1
Perinatal depression funding		1.6			
Strengthening clinical inpatient mental health services		2.2	2.3	2.3	2.4
Sustainable statutory entities – Mental Health Tribunal		1.9	1.6		
Public Health					
Delivering on Victoria's cancer plan	1.2	3.7	3.0	3.1	3.1
Health and medical research		9.0	8.2	8.4	8.6
Thunderstorm asthma and other extreme weather events – Enhancing preparedness, response and community education	0.7	5.9	4.1	2.4	2.5
Total output initiatives ^(b)	41.2	857.9	559.9	516.8	520.3

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance

Notes:

(a) These initiatives contribute to activity that attract Commonwealth funding under the National Health Reform Agreement. Estimates of the Commonwealth's contribution are included.

(b) Table may not add due to rounding.

Acute Health Services

Addressing occupational violence against health workers and workplace bullying

Safety and workplace culture will be improved through programs that address occupational violence against health workers and workplace bullying and harassment, including by: building the capability of the health sector to act and respond appropriately; increasing awareness of acceptable behaviour in healthcare settings for the community and health sector workers; and a trial of independent workplace facilitators to support staff to raise concerns about workplace culture.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services':

- Admitted Services output; and
- Acute Training and Development output.

Better Care Victoria Innovation Fund

The Better Care Victoria Innovation Fund will continue to invest in public hospital-led improvement and innovation projects to enhance access to services and improve health service quality and performance. The Fund will help scale up successful pilot projects, coordinate collaborative projects across health services and advise health services on performance issues.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services':

- Admitted Services output; and
- Non-Admitted Services output.

Delivering better, earlier and more integrated care

Through an agreement with the Commonwealth, people with multiple chronic and complex conditions will be provided with access to more coordinated care.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services':

- Non-Admitted Services output; and
- Acute Training and Development output.

Genomic testing for rare undiagnosed conditions

More genomic testing will be provided to improve the early diagnosis and treatment of rare genetic diseases in adults and children. Testing will be delivered through existing specialist clinics and health services.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Non-Admitted Services output.

Implementation of quality and safety reforms – Better, Safer Care

To best support the implementation of recommendations of the *Review of Hospital Safety* and Quality Assurance in Victoria, Better, Safer Care will enhance system leadership through Safer Care Victoria, strengthen clinical engagement through the Victorian Clinical Council, utilise better information and data through the Victorian Agency for Health Information, and establish the Boards Ministerial Advisory Committee. Departmental oversight of health services will also be strengthened, resulting in higher quality care for patients.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Admitted Services output.

Improving access to elective surgery

Additional elective surgery funding will support access by more Victorians to elective surgery procedures, respond to demand and reduce waiting times.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Admitted Services output.

Improving access to the Victorian Patient Transport Assistance Scheme

The Victorian Patient Transport Assistance Scheme (VPTAS) will support more rural and regional Victorians required to travel for specialised care with subsidised travel and accommodation.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Admitted Services output.

Independent oversight and service delivery

Funding will support and expand the function of three key independent bodies to respond to increasing demand, growing community expectations and new legislative obligations:

- Victorian Assisted Reproductive Treatment Authority;
- Commission for Children and Young People; and
- Health Complaints Commissioner.

This will better equip these bodies to oversee the safety and quality of care, and safeguard the rights and dignity of service users, including some of the most vulnerable members of the Victorian community.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services':

- Child Protection and Family Services output;
- Clinical Care output; and
- Admitted Services output.

Meeting hospital services demand

Funding will be provided to respond to growing patient demand across Victoria. Additional funding is provided for emergency department presentations, intensive care admissions, maternity admissions, specialist clinics, palliative care services, chemotherapy treatments, radiotherapy treatments and sub-acute care services.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services':

- Admitted Services output;
- Emergency Services output;
- Non-Admitted Services output;
- Acute Training and Development output; and
- Small Rural Services Acute Health output.

Statewide health infrastructure planning

Funding will be provided in 2017-18 to support planning for future statewide health infrastructure investments. Priority asset projects will be developed to support improvements to service capacity and configuration.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Admitted Services output.

Ageing, Aged and Home Care

Future public sector residential aged care provision

Public sector residential aged care services will be funded for an additional year to continue to provide high quality care to vulnerable aged persons, including those with mental health issues.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services':

- Residential Aged Care output; and
- Clinical Care output.

Home and Community Care Program for Younger People

The Home and Community Care Program for Younger People (HACC-PYP) provides individuals with a disability with basic community care services such as domestic assistance, personal care, home nursing, allied health services and social support. HACC-PYP also plays a core role in supporting people in their own homes and communities. Additional funding will be allocated to increase the number of places supported under the program in line with demand.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Home and Community Care Program for Younger People output.

Ambulance Services

Meeting demand for ambulance services

Ambulance Victoria will be supported to meet demand from a growing population, improving community access to ambulance services through additional paramedics and equipment.

Funding will also support the Government's share of increased costs for emergency helicopter services.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services':

- Ambulance Emergency Services output; and
- Ambulance Non-Emergency Services output.

Child Protection and Family Services

Civil claims costs

Supplementary funding will be provided to continue the management and settlement of civil claims for historical institutional child abuse as an interim measure until the design of a Victorian or national redress scheme is agreed.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Child Protection and Family Services output.

Concessions to Pensioners and Beneficiaries

Concessions to pensioners and beneficiaries

Recent changes to pension eligibility criteria by the Commonwealth Government mean some low income households who lose their pension card are now eligible for a low income health care card. The Government will provide funding to ensure eligible people affected will continue to be able to access concessions for utility costs, including electricity, gas and water rates.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Concessions to Pensioners and Beneficiaries output.

Disability Services

More support for young people with a disability

Futures for Young Adults (FFYA) packages provide essential supports for young people needing disability assistance during the day and skills development to participate in the community after they leave school.

An additional 256 packages will be provided to support young people with a disability, until their transition into the National Disability Insurance Scheme. Additional funding is for two years.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Disability Services output.

Strengthening oversight to reduce abuse in disability services

The Government will strengthen safeguards to prevent and respond to abuse of vulnerable people with a disability prior to implementation of the National Disability Insurance Scheme and its Quality and Safeguarding Framework. This includes additional resourcing to support the Disability Services Commissioner's (DSC) enhanced role to conduct an annual review of deaths in disability services, conduct own motion investigations, establish a mandatory reporting scheme for registered disability service providers to report abuse, and develop training resources to support professional development of the sector.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Disability Services output.

Supporting the transition to the National Disability Insurance Scheme

The National Disability Insurance Scheme (NDIS) is the biggest social reform since Medicare. The Government is committed to the successful rollout of the scheme for people with a disability and their families. This funding will prepare for and facilitate the implementation of the scheme and support the disability sector to prepare for the scale and pace of the transition to the NDIS. This includes a further \$10 million investment in the NDIS Transition Support Package to ready participants, service providers, staff and systems for transition to the NDIS.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Disability Services output.

Empowering Individuals and Communities

Change our Game – Increasing female participation in sport

The *Inquiry into Women and Girls in Sport and Active Recreation* undertaken by the Government's Women and Girls in Sport and Active Recreation advisory panel identified opportunities to improve female participation in sport. The Change our Game champions program will aim to attract CEOs to drive change in sporting organisations. Annual events and leadership forums will identify and support emerging female sporting leaders and coaches. Female participation rates will be targeted by increasing female representation on sporting boards and expanding the number of organisations funded for female sporting projects.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Sport and Recreation output.

Melbourne Park Redevelopment – stage 3

Refer to the asset initiative for a description of this initiative.

Open Place and Care Leavers Network of Australia – Additional support

Open Place is a support and advocacy service that coordinates and provides direct assistance to people who grew up in Victorian institutional care. Increased funding to Open Place will increase access to universal health and welfare services for care leavers, and provide targeted brokerage funding for care leavers experiencing extreme hardship.

Care Leavers Network of Australia is a support, advocacy, research and training network for people who grew up in Australian orphanages, children's homes, foster care and other institutions. Increased funding over two years to Care Leavers Network of Australia will provide increased advocacy and support for Victorian institutional care leavers.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Human Services' Community Participation output.

Pathways to Exit – Expansion

The Pathways to Exit program, which provides support to workers wishing to leave the sex industry, will be expanded to include a focus on migrant sex workers. Funding will support assertive outreach, tailored case management and pathways to education, training, job placement opportunities and the development of translated promotional materials.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Community Participation output.

Public swimming pool safety

A Victorian Code of Practice will be developed for all public swimming pools. Sport and Recreation Victoria will coordinate and promote public swimming pool safety with organisations such as WorkSafe Victoria and Life Saving Victoria.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Sport and Recreation output.

Shooting Sports Facilities Program

The existing Shooting Sports Facilities Program provides grant funding for projects that improve the quality of shooting facilities and activities across Victoria. It will be continued in 2017-18 to provide funding for a shotgun education program, Willowmavin Shooting Complex Study, and Warragul Drouin Pistol Club.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Sport and Recreation output.

Significant Sporting Events Program supplementation

The existing Significant Sporting Events Program will be supplemented in 2017-18 to meet current demand.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Sport and Recreation output.

Sports Infrastructure Fund

Local sporting clubs will be able to access grants to upgrade existing or develop new facilities to improve community sport participation in 2017-18. The existing Female Friendly Facilities Program will be expanded to build or upgrade additional women's change rooms and facilities in 2017-18 and 2018-19. Infrastructure upgrades supported from this fund include the Monterey Reserve, Morris Reserve, Reid Oval and Port Fairy Bowls Club.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Sport and Recreation output.

State Disability Plan 2017-2020

The State Disability Plan 2017-2020 has been developed to support greater inclusion of people with a disability in the workforce and community. The plan will support the rights of Victorians with a disability to live and participate more actively in Victorian society.

The Government will improve attraction and retention rates and support career development of people with a disability, both within the Victorian Public Sector and across the Victorian economy. It will strengthen rights and protections for people with a disability, reduce barriers to social and community participation and improve accessibility to facilities in their local community.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Office for Disability output.

State Sport Centres Trust

The State Sport Centres Trust manages the Melbourne Sports and Aquatic Centre at Albert Park, the State Netball and Hockey Centre at Parkville, and the Lakeside Stadium at Albert Park. Funding will be provided to contribute to the ongoing operation of these facilities.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Sport and Recreation output.

Supporting young people

The Regional Presence Project, delivered by the Centre for Multicultural Youth in Ballarat and Morwell, and YACVic in Warrnambool and Swan Hill, will be continued for a further two years to support young people to engage with work, school, family and community life. The Scouts and Guides program will be continued for a further four years to build on strategies to increase community participation by young people from culturally diverse and socially and economically disadvantaged communities.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Youth Affairs output.

Victorian Home of Golf and National High Performance Centre

The Victorian Home of Golf and National High Performance Centre will provide a dedicated state-of-the-art high performance training, treatment and rehabilitation facility for elite athletes, including golfers preparing for the Olympic games. State and national golfing bodies will be co-located and the advanced golf training facilities will be available to members of the public. The innovative centre will service the needs of the sport at a state and national level, from grass roots through to elite.

This initiative delivers on the Government's election commitment as published in Labor's Financial Statement 2014.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Sport and Recreation output.

Gender Equality and the Prevention of Family Violence Policy and Programs

Delivering Safe and Strong – A Victorian gender equality strategy

Funding will be provided to deliver *Safe and Strong*, the Government's strategy for promoting gender equality in Victoria. A social entrepreneurs' program will invest in women to deliver gender equality in their communities. Investment will also focus on enhancing women's economic security and financial capability. Existing Victorian Government leadership programs for women will be expanded.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Gender Equality and the Prevention of Family Violence Policy and Programs output.

Mental Health

Forensic mental health implementation plan – Priority service reforms

Forensic mental health services will be expanded to increase public safety through new and expanding services including:

Additional CMIA Reviews

The frequency of reviews for people subject to supervision orders under the *Crimes (Mental Impairment and Unfitness to be tried)* Act 1997 will be increased in line with reforms enshrined in the *Crimes (Mental Impairment and Unfitness to be tried)* Bill 2016.

Court Support Services for Forensic Mental Health Clients

The Mental Health Advice and Response Service will provide an additional 6 750 Mental Health Court Liaison Services per year, an additional Mental Health Court Liaison Officer will be introduced at the Children's Court and mental health supports will be provided for after-hours bail hearings. The Northwest Mental Health Triage will respond to clinical mental health information requests from police for high risk individuals coming before Magistrates after hours for bail hearings.

The Assessment and Referral Court List will be expanded to provide intensive pre-sentence support and judicial supervision to accused persons with mental illness and/or cognitive impairment.

Youth Forensic Mental Health Services

Forensic mental health services and support will be expanded for youth justice clients through the establishment of a 2-bed secure forensic mental health unit within the Ursula Frayne Centre in Footscray and a specialist clinical mental health in-reach model for young people who are detained in youth justice facilities and are experiencing mental health problems. A forensic youth mental health service will be also be established to provide early intervention for young people displaying problem behaviours who are at high risk of offending.

Community Forensic Mental Health Services

Six community forensic mental health programs (CFMHP) will treat approximately 4 500 offenders on a Community Corrections Order (CCO) with a Mental Health Treatment Rehabilitation (MHTR) condition per year.

Additional Training for Victoria Police

Specialist mental health education will be rolled out across Victoria Police to improve police capability to manage incidents involving people with a mental illness.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services':

- Clinical Care output; and
- Mental Health Community Support Service (MHCSS) output.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Justice and Regulation's:

- Community Based Offender Supervision output; and
- Policing Services and Crime Prevention output.

This initiative contributes to Court Services Victoria's Courts output.

Grampians Prevention and Recovery Care (PARC) Service

Refer to the asset initiative for a description of this initiative.

Meeting clinical services demand

Urgent demand for mental health services will be addressed through the provision of 579 additional inpatient services and around 75 000 hours of community care.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Clinical Care output.

Perinatal depression funding

Continued prevention and early detection of perinatal depression will support new mothers experiencing depression.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Clinical Care output.

Strengthening clinical inpatient mental health services

More medical and allied staff in acute admitted settings will be available on weekends to improve continuity of care and provide additional therapeutic treatment for mental health clients.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Clinical Care output.

Sustainable statutory entities – Mental Health Tribunal

Funding will be provided to ensure the Mental Health Tribunal is equipped to meet its statutory responsibilities and carry out new functions associated with the transfer of the Forensic Leave Panel and recommendations from the *Review of Hospital Safety and Quality Assurance in Victoria*.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services':

- Clinical Care output; and
- Mental Health Community Support Service (MHCSS) output.

Public Health

Delivering on Victoria's cancer plan

A range of cancer screening measures will improve the health of Victorians by increasing the detection of preventable cancers and reducing the number of late stage cancers diagnosed in Victoria. The measures include:

- the delivery of 10 000 additional breast screens;
- increasing the number of Victorians participating in the National Bowel Cancer Screening program;
- a training program for oral health professionals to identify oral cancers during routine check-ups;
- reducing the gap in screening rates and cancer outcomes for Aboriginal Victorians and other people at high risk;
- assisting local councils to enforce legislative smoking reforms;
- providing a targeted Human Papilloma Virus vaccination program; and
- expanding the free hepatitis B vaccinations program to include people who are born in countries with high prevalence of hepatitis B, delivering approximately 10 000 more vaccinations.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services':

- Health Protection output; and
- Health Advancement output.

Health and medical research

The Operational Infrastructure Support program will provide further financial support to medical research institutes to cover the operational costs of research. This will provide greater certainty to the medical research sector, leverage grant opportunities, and ensure the future growth of health and medical research in Victoria.

The Walter and Eliza Hall Institute will be funded for one year to explore expansion opportunities in Victoria and nationally for a National Drug Discovery Centre, which will accelerate the translation of research into new drugs.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Public Health Development, Research and Support output.

Thunderstorm asthma and other extreme weather events – Enhancing preparedness, response and community education

Prediction of epidemic thunderstorm asthma will be improved through measures such as increased monitoring and interpretation of pollen data, and research to inform forecasting, modelling and response protocols.

The broader health system's capacity to respond to extreme events will be enhanced through improving system-wide real-time monitoring of relevant data sources such as emergency department demand, and emergency management training for health sector staff, including hospitals.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Health Protection output.

Asset initiatives

Table 1.19: Asset initiatives – Department of Health and Human Services					(\$ million)	
	2016-17	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21	TEI
Acute Health Services						
Austin Hospital critical infrastructure works ^(a)		14.3	11.2	4.4		29.8
Clinical technology refresh – Cyber security and network connectivity		11.9				11.9
Delivering better, earlier and more integrated care		1.2				1.2
Engineering infrastructure replacement program		25.0				25.0
Increasing critical care capacity		2.2				2.2
Medical equipment replacement program		35.0				35.0
Monash Medical Centre – Expansion and upgrades ^(b)		0.4	2.1	21.3	25.5	63.2
Northern Hospital Inpatient Expansion – Stage 2		6.7	110.0	36.0	10.0	162.7
Royal Melbourne Hospital – Critical infrastructure works		18.0	22.0			40.0
South West Health Care (Warrnambool Hospital) – Stage 2 masterplan and infrastructure works ^(c)		2.0	4.0	1.5		7.5
The new Footscray Hospital		46.0	4.0			50.0
Empowering Individuals and Communities						
Kardinia Park and State Netball Hockey Centre – Project development funding		4.9				4.9
Melbourne Park Redevelopment – stage 3 ^(d)		18.1	62.7	122.3	58.5	271.6
Sports and recreation opportunities in Parks Victoria		6.0				6.0
Mental Health						
Forensic mental health bed based services expansion		40.0				40.0
Forensic mental health implementation plan – Priority service reforms		3.9				3.9
Grampians Prevention and Recovery Care (PARC) Service		1.6	0.5	3.1	0.8	6.0
Total asset initiatives ^(e)		237.2	216.5	188.6	94.8	760.9

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance

Notes:

(a) The TEI for this initiative includes \$18.000 million external funding received after contract negotiation.

(b) The TEI includes funding beyond 2020-21.

(c) To be funded from the Regional Health Infrastructure Fund that was announced in the 2016-17 Budget.
 (d) The TEI includes funding beyond 2020-21. The TEI includes a contribution of \$40 million from the Melbourne and Olympic Parks Trust.
 (e) Table may not add due to rounding.

Acute Health Services

Austin Hospital critical infrastructure works

Hot and cold water system infrastructure across the Austin Hospital campus in Heidelberg will be upgraded to improve service reliability and minimise risks to patients and staff.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Admitted Services output.

Clinical technology refresh – Cyber security and network connectivity

Preventative cybersecurity controls and tools to detect suspicious cybersecurity events will be implemented across 29 identified Victorian Health Service networks. This will improve continuity of patient care and safety.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Admitted Services output.

Delivering better, earlier and more integrated care

Refer to the output initiative for a description of this initiative.

Engineering infrastructure replacement program

Highest priority engineering infrastructure assets will be replaced in selected metropolitan and regional hospitals. This includes lifts, boilers, insulation, communication systems and electrical upgrades and will enable continuity of health service delivery and compliance with regulatory requirements.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Admitted Services output.

Increasing critical care capacity

Specialised critical care equipment will be purchased to operate 11 intensive care or neonatal intensive care beds in public hospitals to provide acute health services across the State.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Admitted Services output.

Medical equipment replacement program

High-risk medical equipment in metropolitan and rural health services will continue to be replaced. The equipment supports operating suites, emergency departments, surgical wards, intensive care units, neonatal and maternity services, and specialist areas. This will improve service availability through the introduction and upgrade of medical equipment.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Admitted Services output.

Monash Medical Centre – Expansion and upgrades

The Monash Medical Centre emergency department will be refurbished and expanded, to include exclusive areas for children, adults and patients. The expansion will mean more adult and paediatric beds and will give doctors and nurses the modern facilities they need to deliver the highest quality emergency care, more quickly. The redevelopment will also improve access for ambulances arriving at emergency, meaning patients will get the vital care they need faster, and address traffic and congestion concerns making it safer and more efficient.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Admitted Services output.

Northern Hospital Inpatient Expansion – Stage 2

The current inpatient tower block at the Northern Hospital will be expanded to seven storeys to provide 96 new inpatient beds, three additional operating theatres, supporting infrastructure and shell space for future expansion. This will increase acute health services and cater for the rapidly growing population of Melbourne's north.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Admitted Services output.

Royal Melbourne Hospital – Critical infrastructure works

Infrastructure will be upgraded across two sites at the Royal Melbourne Hospital to ensure facilities and associated services remain fit for purpose for patients, staff and visitors.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Admitted Services output.

South West Health Care (Warrnambool Hospital) – Stage 2 masterplan and infrastructure works

Planning and design will begin on the future redevelopment and expansion of Warrnambool Hospital to cater for the growing demand for health services in South-West Victoria. This initiative will be funded from the existing Regional Health Infrastructure Fund.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Admitted Services output.

The new Footscray Hospital

Planning will commence for a new Footscray Hospital to cater for the growing population of Melbourne's inner west. Funding will enable preparation of a business case for construction of the new Footscray Hospital, options for land acquisition of a suitable site if required, and urgent infrastructure works at the existing Footscray Hospital.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Admitted Services output.

Empowering Individuals and Communities

Kardinia Park and State Netball Hockey Centre – Project development funding

Business case planning and design will be undertaken to progress Stage 5 of Kardinia Park and the State Netball Hockey Centre redevelopment.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Sport and Recreation output.

Melbourne Park Redevelopment – stage 3

Funding will be provided to extend the Melbourne Park precinct's operational life, ensuring the precinct can continue to stage major sporting, cultural and entertainment events and allowing the Melbourne and Olympic Parks Trust to continue to support community sport. This investment secures the Australian Open until 2036.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Sport and Recreation output.

Sports and recreation opportunities in Parks Victoria

Eight new netball courts will be constructed in Yarra Bend Park and community infrastructure will be developed in Olinda Park.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Sport and Recreation output.

Mental Health

Forensic mental health bed-based services expansion

Planning will commence on the future expansion of forensic mental health beds for people requiring intensive mental health treatment in a specialised environment. Funding will also enable infrastructure works at Thomas Embling Hospital which builds on other recent investment to expand adult forensic mental health capacity.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Clinical Care output.

Forensic mental health implementation plan – Priority service reforms

Refer to the output initiative for a description of this initiative.

Grampians Prevention and Recovery Care (PARC) Service

A new mental health facility for adults will be built to increase the range and number of services available to people with an acute mental illness. This will ensure that people with an acute mental illness in the Grampians region have access to a flexible, safe and appropriate facility for short stay periods. The initiative will complete a statewide network of short-term subacute services that commenced in 2007-08.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Health and Human Services' Clinical Care output.

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE AND REGULATION

Output initiatives

Table 1.20: Output initiatives – Department of	Justice a	nd Regula	(\$ million)		
	2016-17	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21
Criminal Justice Services					
Legal Assistance – Victoria Legal Aid		7.2	7.8		
Supporting community legal centres		5.2	5.3	2.0	2.0
Responding to increasing demand in the criminal justice system		10.0	14.7	1.9	1.9
Emergency Management					
ESTA baseline funding		28.3			
Future emergency alert		0.9	3.8	3.9	4.0
Life Saving Victoria clubhouse redevelopments		6.0			
Remediation of connectivity in emergency services operational communications		0.2	1.9	2.0	2.0
Support for Victoria State Emergency Services units		1.8	1.8	1.9	1.9
Enforcing and Managing Correctional Orders					
Essential services to manage growth in prisons		14.4	17.3	18.6	20.6
Forensic mental health implementation plan – Priority service reforms		2.5	4.6	4.3	3.7
Management of serious offenders		44.7	66.4	72.2	70.3
Programs and services to reduce reoffending		5.4	10.1	12.1	13.5
Industry Regulation and Support					
Improved regulation of Victoria's gambling and liquor industries		2.7	3.5	2.1	1.4
Policing and Crime Prevention					
Community Safety Statement	3.6	190.8	342.2	483.1	604.5
Youth Justice					
Fast Track Remand Court		0.8	0.8		
Strengthening of youth justice precincts	8.2	5.8			
Total output initiatives ^(a)	11.8	326.6	480.2	604.0	725.8

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance

Note:

(a) Table may not add due to rounding.

Criminal Justice Services

Legal Assistance – Victoria Legal Aid

Victoria Legal Aid will receive additional funding for extra legal services for children and young people. The additional funding will maintain access to justice and meet demand arising from the Youth Diversion Program, Youth Control Orders and the Intensive Monitoring and Control Bail Supervision Scheme.

In April 2016, the Government announced the statewide roll-out of the Youth Diversion Program, which will divert children and young people from the criminal justice system to programs addressing the underlying causes of offending.

In December 2016, the Government announced significant reforms to the youth justice system, including Youth Control Orders, a new youth justice sentencing order, and the Intensive Monitoring and Control Bail Supervision Scheme. These reforms increase supervision options for young people engaged with the criminal justice system.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Justice and Regulation's Public Prosecutions and Legal Assistance output.

Supporting community legal centres

Community legal centres will receive additional funding to ensure that they can continue to provide legal services and improve access to justice for disadvantaged Victorians. This includes additional funding for the Community Legal Centre Assistance Fund, which funds programs and services developed by individual legal centres to meet the legal needs of their communities. This also includes additional funding for Job Watch, which will continue to provide free advice to Victorian workers.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Justice and Regulation's Public Prosecutions and Legal Assistance output.

Responding to increasing demand in the criminal justice system

Funding will be provided to respond to demand pressures facing the criminal justice system. This will support the criminal justice system's response to the harmful impacts to society of family violence and serious and organised crime.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Justice and Regulation's:

- Public Prosecutions and Legal Assistance output; and
- Victims and Community Support Services output.

Emergency Management

ESTA baseline funding

Funding will be provided to the Emergency Services Telecommunications Authority (ESTA) to respond to growth in emergency call-taking and dispatch services, for improved connectivity with Emergency Service Organisations and to relocate one of ESTA's communication centres to a new facility.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Justice and Regulation's Emergency Management Capability output.

Future emergency alert

Refer to the asset initiative for a description of this initiative.

Life Saving Victoria clubhouse redevelopments

The Government will contribute to the development of Life Saving Victoria clubhouses used by volunteers and communities at Brighton, Jan Juc and Point Lonsdale. Urgent repairs and maintenance works at other lifesaving facilities will also be funded. This will support lifesaving clubs to replace ageing lifesaving facilities and undertake critical repairs to improve health and safety outcomes for volunteers and the public.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Justice and Regulation's Emergency Management Capability output.

Remediation of connectivity in emergency services operational communications

Refer to the asset initiative for a description of this initiative.

Support for Victoria State Emergency Services units

The Government will provide additional funding to support the critical operations of Victorian State Emergency Services (VICSES) units. This funding will also assist to secure VICSES units' tenancy on Council owned properties and aligns with the Government's investment in headquarters and critical assets.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Justice and Regulation's Emergency Management Capability output.

Enforcing and Managing Correctional Orders

Essential services to manage growth in prisons

Refer to the asset initiative for a description of this initiative.

Forensic mental health implementation plan – Priority service reforms

Refer to the initiative description under Department of Health and Human Services.

Management of serious offenders

The management of serious offenders, and the safety of the Victorian community, will be strengthened through the implementation of the recommendations of the Review of Complex Adult Victim Sex Offender Management (Harper Review), supported by legislative changes. Funding will be provided to expand the post-sentence supervision and detention scheme to serious violent offenders. This expanded scheme will ensure that serious offenders are under the most rigorous monitoring after the completion of their prison sentence, while also receiving more targeted intervention and treatment to reduce recidivism and keep Victorians safe.

Governance will be strengthened through a new statutory authority to replace the Detention and Supervision Order Division of the Adult Parole Board. The authority will provide rigorous oversight of the scheme and offenders subject to post-sentence orders. Multi-agency panels will also be established, bringing together senior operational staff from the Department of Justice and Regulation, the Department of Health and Human Services and Victoria Police to share information and coordinate services to offenders subject to post-sentence orders, to keep Victorians safe.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Justice and Regulation's Community Based Offender Supervision output.

Programs and services to reduce reoffending

Prisoner rehabilitation will be improved by expanding alcohol and drug treatment programs and post-release support services, and continuing an anti-radicalisation program. This increased delivery of rehabilitation and reintegration programs and services will help reduce recidivism and improve community safety.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Justice and Regulation's Prisoner Supervision and Support output.

Industry Regulation and Support

Improved regulation of Victoria's gambling and liquor industries

Funding will be provided to the Victorian Commission for Gambling and Liquor Regulation over four years for enhanced compliance and licensing activities. These investments will help to implement the recommendations of the Victorian Auditor-General's report *Regulating Gambling and Liquor*.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Justice and Regulation's Industry Regulation and Support: Gambling, Liquor and Racing output.

Policing and Crime Prevention

Community Safety Statement

The Government is undertaking a major investment in Victoria Police to fight crime and ensure that it has the powers and resources it needs to reduce harm in the community and keep Victorians safe.

The comprehensive investment package includes:

- 2 729 new sworn police officers, including 415 specialist family violence officers to transform the way Victoria Police responds to family violence;
- 100 new Protective Services Officers to boost mobile patrols and improve safety at train stations and transport hubs;
- a new 24-hour Police Assistance Line and an online reporting portal to ensure Victorians can access Victoria Police when and how they need to;
- four new Aboriginal Community Liaison Officers to expand positive engagement with Aboriginal Victorians;
- replacement of 10 police stations across the State;
- 42 new youth specialist officers to support a renewed youth engagement framework;
- 12 community safety networks to engage actively with the police to create safer, stronger communities;
- new powers and laws to target recidivist offenders and those crimes that do the most harm;
- roll-out of Automatic Number Plate Recognition technology across the highway patrol fleet;
- streamlined DNA testing by Victoria Police, with new powers and additional resources;
- a ban on cash for scrap metal to end the trade in stolen cars;
- improved mental health literacy within Victoria Police;
- a new dedicated training facility for specialist and critical incident police; and
- a new Air Wing, including three new helicopters and a fixed wing plane.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Justice and Regulation's Policing Services and Crime and Prevention output.

Youth Justice

Fast Track Remand Court

Refer to the initiative description under Courts Services Victoria.

Strengthening of youth justice precincts

Refer to the asset initiative for a description of this initiative.

Asset initiatives

Table 1.21: Asset initiatives – Department of Justice and Regulation					(\$ m	nillion)
	2016-17	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21	TEI
Emergency Management						
ESTA baseline funding		3.6	6.9	3.9		14.5
Future emergency alert		4.0	0.4			4.5
Victoria State Emergency Services headquarters and critical assets		26.9				26.9
Remediation of connectivity in emergency services operational communications		3.1	3.1			6.3
Enforcing and Managing Correctional Orders						
Essential services to manage growth in prisons		18.0	43.6	12.7		74.3
Forensic mental health implementation plan – Priority service reforms		0.2	0.2	0.1	0.1	0.7
Management of serious offenders	1.5	39.7	10.6			51.7
Industry Regulation and Support						
Improved regulation of Victoria's gambling and liquor industries		0.6	0.6	0.4		1.6
Policing and Crime Prevention						
Community Safety Statement ^(a)		100.4	111.5	119.6	40.3	384.3
Youth Justice						
New youth justice facility	1.0	27.0	119.8	124.6	16.3	288.7
Strengthening of youth justice precincts	29.1	28.9				58.0
Total asset initiatives ^(b)	31.6	252.4	296.7	261.4	56.7	911.4

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance

Notes:

(a) The TEI includes funding beyond 2020-21 of \$12.5 million.

(b) Table may not add due to rounding.

Emergency Management

ESTA baseline funding

Refer to the output initiative for a description of this initiative.

Future emergency alert

Funding will be provided to continue delivery of a modern national telephone warning system. This will allow emergency services to send messages to landlines and mobile phones within a defined area about likely or actual emergencies. This will continue to minimise risks to public safety by using a proven and modern emergency alert system.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Justice and Regulation's Emergency Management Capability output.

Victoria State Emergency Services headquarters and critical assets

Funding will be provided for the new Victoria State Emergency Services (VICSES) headquarters in Caroline Springs/Plumpton, Clyde, Craigieburn North, Cranbourne, Officer and Point Cook where there is growing demand for VICSES services. VICSES headquarters, including Broadmeadows, Chelsea, Corio, Emerald, Frankston, and Wangaratta will be relocated or redeveloped so they can continue to serve local communities into the future.

The Government will also provide VICSES with funding for vehicles, equipment and facilities so it can continue to meet service needs.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Justice and Regulation's Emergency Management Capability output.

Remediation of connectivity in emergency services operational communications

Radio coverage for emergency services communications will be improved at key locations. This will strengthen the reliability of operational communications support available to emergency services organisations when responding to emergencies.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Justice and Regulation's Emergency Management Capability output.

Enforcing and Managing Correctional Orders

Essential services to manage growth in prisons

The Government will fund essential infrastructure and services to meet the needs of the expanded prison system. This will upgrade security and health services, and expand program capacity in Victoria's prisons. The investment will assist in ensuring prisoner, staff and community safety, reduce reoffending and alleviate pressure points across the system.

The Government's comprehensive community safety initiatives will impact the cohorts our corrections system manages. As a result, the Government will also provide funding to enable Corrections Victoria to identify intermediate and longer-term issues facing the corrections system, and put in place comprehensive strategies. This funding will identify further trends facing our corrections system, our facilities and our workforce and prepare responses to deal with change in demand.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Justice and Regulation's Prisoner Supervision and Support output.

Forensic mental health implementation plan – Priority service reforms

Refer to the initiative description under Department of Health and Human Services.

Management of serious offenders

Refer to the output initiative for a description of this initiative.

Industry Regulation and Support

Improved regulation of Victoria's gambling and liquor industries

Refer to the output initiative for a description of this initiative.

Policing and Crime Prevention

Community Safety Statement

Refer to the output initiative for a description of this initiative.

Youth Justice

New youth justice facility

The Government will build a new high security youth justice precinct that will replace the existing Parkville Youth Justice Precinct. It will include 224 beds for remand and sentenced clients, a 12-bed mental health unit and an intensive supervision unit of at least eight beds.

This initiative will address capacity issues in our youth justice system into the future and ensure effective management and treatment of youth offenders to promote rehabilitation and community safety.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Justice and Regulation's Youth Justice Custodial Services output.

Strengthening of youth justice precincts

The Government will repair and strengthen the Parkville and Malmsbury Youth Justice Precincts, continue to operate the Grevillea Youth Justice Centre as an interim measure while the strengthening works are being completed, and fund Corrections Victoria staff at youth justice centres. This initiative will improve the safety of staff and young people, provide more effective management and treatment of youth offenders, and improve community safety.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Justice and Regulation's Youth Justice Custodial Services output.

DEPARTMENT OF PREMIER AND CABINET

Output initiatives

Table 1.22: Output initiatives – Department of	(\$ million)				
	2016-17	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21
Engaged Citizens					
A LGBTI inclusive Victoria that celebrates diversity		1.0	1.0		
Ensuring the sustainability and quality of Victoria's language services industry		2.0	5.8	6.8	7.2
Migrant Workers' Program		1.0	1.0		
Multicultural Policy Statement	6.6	6.6	5.8		
Shrine of Remembrance		0.7	0.7	0.7	0.7
Supporting Victoria's veterans		0.3	0.2	0.2	0.2
War heritage, education and commemoration		1.5	2.6		
Professional Public Administration					
Resourcing the Freedom of Information Commissioner		0.4	0.4	0.4	0.4
Securing Victorians' data	0.5	0.6	0.6	0.6	0.6
Strong Policy Outcomes					
City Deals seed funding		1.0			
NDIS workforce reform package	1.8				
Security upgrade – Government buildings		1.8	0.6	0.5	
Total output initiatives ^(a)	8.9	16.8	18.7	9.1	9.1

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance Note: (a) Table may not add due to rounding.

Engaged Citizens

A LGBTI inclusive Victoria that celebrates diversity

Funding will be provided to deliver a suite of initiatives that will support the Government's commitment to an equal Victoria and will improve the health and wellbeing of lesbian, gay, bi-sexual, trans and/or intersex (LGBTI) Victorians.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Premier and Cabinet's LGBTI Equality Policy and Programs output.

Ensuring the sustainability and quality of Victoria's language services industry

Funding will improve multicultural communities' access to government services and support a fair and sustainable language services industry in Victoria. Reforms to the market for language services will increase remuneration and improve conditions of interpreters and translators to safeguard the breadth, sustainability and quality of language services available to people. This includes services delivered in rural and regional areas.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Premier and Cabinet's Multicultural Affairs Policy and Programs output.

Migrant Workers' Program

Victoria's first government funded migrant workers' centre will be established in Melbourne to advocate for workers who are exploited in the workplace.

The centre will better engage workers across communities in Victoria to generate awareness about their rights, wages and conditions, tackle disadvantage in the workplace and reduce worker exploitation.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Premier and Cabinet's Multicultural Affairs Policy and Programs output.

Multicultural Policy Statement

Funding will be provided for implementation of 'Victorian. And Proud of it.', Victoria's new Multicultural Policy Statement including the Victorian Values Statement. The funding provides for a targeted training and engagement program to support a cohesive and productive Victorian society. The funding will also enable activities that support front-line workers, families and friends of those at risk of all forms of extremism, and targeted online messaging to build a cohesive and harmonious society.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Premier and Cabinet's Multicultural Affairs Policy and Programs output.

Shrine of Remembrance

Funding will be provided to enable the Shrine of Remembrance to maintain the Galleries of Remembrance, continue delivering commemorative and ceremonial activities, and provide educational programs.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Premier and Cabinet's Support to Veterans in Victoria output.

Supporting Victoria's veterans

As part of the Government's response to the Victorian Veterans Sector Study Report 2015:

- options will be explored for a Victorian specific online platform to assist veterans to access the services they need; and
- a Public Sector Veterans Employment Strategy will be developed to assist veterans in transitioning to the civilian workforce. This will include a Transitioning to Victoria information package and providing assistance for up to 250 veterans to find jobs in the Victorian public sector.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Premier and Cabinet's Support to Veterans in Victoria output.

War heritage, education and commemoration

Additional funding will be provided to ensure the Anzac Centenary legacy and commemoration programs continue for the duration of the centenary of the World War I period, including the Armistice. Funding will also be provided to implement the Heritage and History Strategy to protect Victoria's war heritage, including Avenues of Honour. The funding is for two years.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Premier and Cabinet's Support to Veterans in Victoria output.

Professional Public Administration

Resourcing the Freedom of Information Commissioner

Additional resources will be provided to the Freedom of Information Commissioner (FOIC) to meet increased service demand. Additional staff will improve the FOIC's capacity to meet statutory timeframes and further enhance the openness and transparency of government in Victoria.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Premier and Cabinet's Public Sector Integrity output.

Securing Victorians' data

Funding will be provided to enable Government to monitor data security across Victorian public sector agencies. The software will enable the Office of the Commissioner for Privacy and Data Protection to analyse and monitor data to mitigate security risks, including potential threats to citizens' personal information.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Premier and Cabinet's Public Sector Integrity output.

Strong Policy Outcomes

City Deals seed funding

Business case funding will be provided in 2017-18 to develop City Deals proposals with the Commonwealth for metropolitan Melbourne and Victoria's regional cities. City Deals proposals will aim to improve economic activity and liveability through partnerships between the Commonwealth, State and local governments.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Premier and Cabinet's Strategic Advice and Government Support output.

NDIS workforce reform package

Funding will be provided for one year to expand support for delivery of *Keeping our sector strong*: *Victoria's workforce plan for the NDIS*. It will support and prepare the disability workforce to transition to the National Disability Insurance Scheme (NDIS) through research, workforce development, education and training. This will include developing options for a registration and accreditation scheme.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Premier and Cabinet's Government-wide Leadership, Reform and Implementation output.

Security upgrade – Government buildings

Refer to the asset initiative for a description of this initiative.

Asset initiatives

Table 1.23: Asset initiatives – Departme	3: Asset initiatives – Department of Premier and Cabinet					
	2016-17	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21	TEI
Security upgrade – Government buildings		4.8	2.5	1.3		8.6
Total asset initiatives ^(a)		4.8	2.5	1.3		8.6

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance Note:

(a) Table may not add due to rounding.

Security upgrade – Government buildings

Funding will be provided for security and building infrastructure upgrades and maintenance works at key government buildings. The proposed works include security, technology and plant upgrades to improve the safety of staff and visitors.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Premier and Cabinet's:

- Advice and Support to the Governor output; and
- Strategic Advice and Government Support output.

DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY AND FINANCE

Output initiatives

Table 1.24: Output initiatives – Department	(\$ million)				
	2016-17	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21
Commercial and Infrastructure Advice					
Asset reform		1.5			
Revenue Management and Administrative Services to Government					
Enhanced payroll tax compliance		1.4	1.4	1.4	1.4
Exempt defence force personnel from the First Home Owner Grant residency requirement		0.1	0.1	0.2	0.3
Total output initiatives ^(a)		3.0	1.5	1.6	1.7

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance Note: (a) Table may not add due to rounding.

Commercial and Infrastructure Advice

Asset reform

The Government will examine options to commercialise Victoria's land titles registry function. Divesting or long-term outsourcing of the registry function is likely to provide scope for a greater investment in technology systems and improved customer interface. A detailed scoping study will identify appropriate options whilst ensuring data integrity and access rights are protected.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Treasury and Finance's Commercial and Infrastructure Advice output.

Revenue Management and Administrative Services to Government

Enhanced payroll tax compliance

The State Revenue Office will receive additional funding for payroll tax compliance activities in the areas of unregistered employers, undeclared contractor payments, employer grouping, the use of share schemes as remuneration, fringe benefits payments not included in declared wages, and non-lodgement of returns. Anomalies identified will be further investigated by the State Revenue Office, and taxpayers will be assisted to improve compliance.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Treasury and Finance's Revenue Management and Administrative Services to Government output.

Exempt defence force personnel from the First Home Owner Grant residency requirement

From 1 July 2017, Australian Defence Force personnel will be exempt from the First Home Owner Grant residency requirement. Personnel that purchase a newly constructed home on or after 1 July 2017 will no longer be required to reside in their home for 12 months to receive the First Home Owner Grant.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Treasury and Finance's Revenue Management and Administrative Services to Government output.

Asset initiatives

Table 1.25:	25: Asset initiatives – Department of Treasury and Finance						(\$ million)	
		2016-17	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21	TEI	
Services to Go	overnment							
Greener Gove	rnment Buildings		10.0	10.0			20.0	
Total asset ini	tiatives ^(a)		10.0	10.0			20.0	
Source: Departme	at of Troacury and Financo							

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance Note: (a) Table may not add due to rounding.

Services to Government

Greener Government Buildings

The Greener Government Buildings program will improve the energy efficiency of government buildings. Government buildings will be retrofitted with more efficient lighting, heating and cooling systems, building automation and solar power. This program will save future costs in energy bills and cut greenhouse gas emissions.

This initiative will be funded from the Sustainability Fund.

This initiative contributes to the Department of Treasury and Finance's Services to Government output.

PARLIAMENT

Output initiatives

Table 1.26:	Output initiatives – Parliament				(\$	million)
		2016-17	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21
Parliamentary	y Services					
	ice security upgrade and additional officers to boost workplace safety	1.1	8.6	9.6	9.6	9.7
Increase in Me	embers of Parliament funding		0.3	0.3	0.3	0.3
Total output i	nitiatives ^(a)	1.1	8.9	9.9	9.9	10.0
Courses Douroutino	at of Taxana and Figure a					

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance Note: (a) Table may not add due to rounding.

Parliamentary Services

Electorate office security upgrade and additional electorate officers to boost workplace safety

Security upgrades will be undertaken at 128 electorate offices across Victoria. An additional electorate officer will be provided to each Member of Parliament to reduce workplace safety risks and to assist with the increasing workload at electorate offices.

This initiative contributes to Parliament's Provision of Information and Resources to Parliament output.

Increase in Members of Parliament funding

Parliament will receive additional funding to increase the electorate office and communications budget for Members of Parliament as a result of an increase in the state registered voter count.

This initiative contributes to Parliament's Provision of Information and Resources to Parliament output.

COURT SERVICES VICTORIA

Output initiatives

Table 1.27: Output initiatives – Court Services Victoria					(\$ million)	
	2016-17	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21	
Courts						
Bendigo and Werribee law courts – Planning		7.6				
Fast Track Remand Court		0.9	0.9			
Forensic mental health implementation plan – Priority services reform		2.1	6.1	6.2	5.9	
Management of serious offenders			0.6	1.0	1.2	
Safe and sustainable Victorian courts		1.3	1.3	1.3	1.3	
Supreme Court of Victoria – IT upgrade		0.1	0.2	0.5	0.5	
Total output initiatives ^(a)		12.0	9.1	8.9	8.8	

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance Note:

(a) Table may not add due to rounding.

Courts

Bendigo and Werribee law courts - Planning

Court Services Victoria will develop plans for modernisation and expansion of the Bendigo Law Court and for the Werribee Law Court as part of the Wyndham Justice Precinct development. Developing these two courts will relieve current and future demand pressures and improve court services.

This initiative contributes to Court Services Victoria's Courts output.

Fast Track Remand Court

Following a successful trial in 2016, the Fast Track Remand Court will continue to operate in the Children's Court. This will support faster resolution of criminal proceedings involving young people on remand.

This initiative contributes to Court Services Victoria's Courts output.

Forensic mental health implementation plan – Priority service reforms

Refer to the initiative description under Department of Health and Human Services.

Management of serious offenders

Refer to the initiative description under Department of Justice and Regulation.

Safe and sustainable Victorian courts

Refer to the asset initiative for a description of this initiative.

Supreme Court of Victoria – IT upgrade

Refer to the asset initiative for a description of this initiative.

Asset initiatives

Table 1.28: Asset initiatives – Court Services Victoria						llion)
	2016-17	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21	TEI
Courts						
Forensic mental health implementation plan – Priority services reform		1.5	0.1	0.1	0.1	1.7
Safe and sustainable Victorian courts		1.4	2.8	2.5	0.6	7.2
Supreme Court of Victoria – IT upgrade		6.3	3.3			9.6
Total asset initiatives ^(a)		9.2	6.1	2.6	0.6	18.5

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance Note: (a) Table may not add due to rounding.

Courts

Forensic mental health implementation plan – Priority service reforms

Refer to the initiative description under Department of Health and Human Services.

Safe and sustainable Victorian courts

The Government will upgrade critical infrastructure and bolster maintenance funding for Victorian courts. This will help to ensure our courts remain safe and sustainable in the future.

This initiative contributes to Court Services Victoria's Courts output.

Supreme Court of Victoria – IT upgrade

Funding will be provided for the delivery of contemporary in-court technology for the Supreme Court of Victoria to enable remote testimony from vulnerable and interstate/overseas witnesses. This will also reduce movement and transportation costs associated with prisoners who need to give evidence in court, and enable digital display of evidence in the courtroom.

This initiative contributes to Court Services Victoria's Courts output.

REVENUE INITIATIVES

				(Y	
	2016-17	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21
Abolish insurance duty on agricultural products		(4.0)	(4.0)	(4.0)	(4.0)
Aligning motor vehicle duty rates		93.8	96.5	99.2	101.9
Billboard advertising revenue along freeway corridors		2.0	2.0	2.0	2.0
Bring forward increases in the payroll tax-free threshold		(24.0)	(24.0)		
Payroll tax – increase the threshold for annual payments					
Reduce the payroll tax rate applicable to regional businesses		(41.0)	(42.0)	(44.0)	(46.0)
Removing the exemption for certain transfers of property between spouses		20.0	20.0	20.0	20.0
Homes for Victorians					
Abolish stamp duty for first home purchases valued up to \$600 000, with a concession applying for purchases valued between \$600 000 and \$750 000		(150.9)	(212.1)	(233.4)	(254.6)
Introduce a Vacant Residential Property Tax		10.0	20.0	25.0	25.0
Retarget the off-the-plan stamp duty concession		51.0	156.7	260.7	372.8
Total revenue initiatives ^(a)		(43.1)	13.1	125.5	217.1

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance Note:

(a) Table may not add due to rounding.

Abolish insurance duty on agricultural products

From 1 July 2017, insurance duty applicable to policies insuring agricultural products against damage from flood, fire and other accidental provisions will be abolished. This builds on the current insurance duty exemption for hail damage to cereal and fruit crops, and will further assist farmers and primary producers.

Aligning motor vehicle duty rates

The rate of motor vehicle duty on purchases of new passenger vehicles will be aligned with the rate for used car purchases. From 1 July 2017, the rate will increase to \$8.40 per \$200 for those vehicles below the luxury car tax threshold. This will make Victoria consistent with other states in not differentiating between the motor vehicle duty rate that is applied to new and used vehicles.

Billboard advertising revenue along freeway corridors

VicRoads will identify new opportunities for outdoor billboard advertising along freeway corridor road reserves. Road safety and urban planning requirements will be considered in implementing the freeway advertising.

(\$ million)

Bring forward increases in the payroll tax-free threshold

Previously announced increases in the payroll tax-free threshold will be brought forward by one year, commencing from 1 July 2017. The increases will now be phased in as follows:

- 2017-18 increase to \$625 000; and
- 2018-19 increase to \$650 000.

This will benefit approximately 37 800 businesses with a payroll tax liability. Approximately 800 grouped businesses will no longer be liable for payroll tax in each of those years who would have been under the current policy settings.

Payroll tax – increase the threshold for annual payments

From 1 July 2017, the threshold under which businesses can opt to make annual payroll tax payments, rather than monthly payments, will increase from annual payroll tax liabilities of \$10 000 to \$40 000. This will allow 9 700 small businesses to choose between monthly or annual payroll tax payments, removing the administrative burden of performing monthly payroll calculations and allowing for greater flexibility in cash flows.

Reduce the payroll tax rate applicable to regional businesses

From 1 July 2017, the tax rate will be reduced by 25 per cent to 3.65 per cent for businesses with payrolls that comprise at least 85 per cent wages associated with regional employees. This will support around 4 000 regional employers to grow their businesses, and encourage further employment of workers in regional areas.

Removing the exemption for certain transfers of property between spouses

The stamp duty exemption currently available on transfers of property between spouses will be removed from 1 July 2017. The existing stamp duty exemption applying to transfers of principal places of residence between spouses, and transfers of property following a relationship breakdown, will remain. Removing this exemption makes Victoria consistent with all other Australian jurisdictions.

Homes for Victorians

Abolish stamp duty for first home purchases valued up to \$600 000, with a concession applying for purchases valued between \$600 000 and \$750 000

For contracts entered into from 1 July 2017, first home buyers will pay no stamp duty on purchases valued up to \$600 000. A concession will apply on a sliding scale for purchases valued between \$600 000 and \$750 000. Around 25 000 first home buyers will benefit each year. This initiative represents significant financial relief for first home buyers, providing stamp duty savings of up to \$31 000 on individual purchases.

Introduce a Vacant Residential Property Tax

Vacant residential properties will be subject to a tax of 1 per cent of the property's capital improved value. Tax liabilities for vacancies in the 2017 calendar year will be triggered on 1 January 2018. There will be transition measures in place for vacant properties in the 2017 calendar year.

The Vacant Residential Property Tax will provide an incentive to reduce the high number of houses and apartments being left vacant in the inner and middle ring of Melbourne. This will increase rental supply and improve affordability. Properties will be deemed vacant if they are unoccupied for six months or more in a calendar year. Various exemptions apply, including for deceased estates, properties under renovation or that have been transferred during the year, and holiday homes.

Retarget the off-the-plan stamp duty concession

Victoria is currently the only state that offers a broad off-the-plan stamp duty concession that is available to residential and non-residential transfers. To make sure that genuine home buyers are getting the subsidy from 1 July 2017, this concession will only be available to home buyers who qualify for the principal place of residence stamp duty concession or who qualify for the first home buyer stamp duty exemption or concession. This helps align Victoria's stamp duty regime with the Government's objective of helping first home buyers to enter the market and will be used to fund changes to stamp duty for first home buyers.

SAVINGS

Table 1.30: Savings				(\$	million)
	2016-17	2017-18	2018-19	2019-20	2020-21
Centralised banking and cash management reform			50.0	50.0	50.0
Whole of Government efficiencies		196.6	296.3	302.9	404.2
Total savings ^(a)		196.6	346.3	352.9	454.2
Source: Department of Treasury and Einance					

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance Note: (a) Table may not add due to rounding.

Centralised banking and cash management reform

A centralised banking system for all general government sector agencies will be implemented from 2018-19. This initiative will drive efficiencies and improve the general government sector's cash management by providing greater oversight of the use of cash and improved budget monitoring.

Savings will be achieved through limiting the accumulation of cash held by government agencies outside the central banking system which will offset interest costs associated with general government sector borrowing.

Whole of Government efficiencies

To enable the Government to invest in priority areas including Family Violence, public sector departments will deliver efficiencies and savings in the areas of administration, procurement, communications, consultancies and staffing. This initiative will not impact on service delivery.

CHAPTER 2 – DEPARTMENT PERFORMANCE STATEMENTS

This chapter presents departmental performance statements that describe the objectives and associated performance indicators departments seek to achieve over the medium term. This chapter also describes the outputs (goods and services) that departments are funded to deliver to achieve these objectives.

Chapter 1 of Budget Paper No. 3 *Service Delivery* describes the initiatives that will be funded in 2017-18 and makes links with the base funding departments receive for ongoing programs. The departmental performance statements published in this chapter describe the services funded by the Government and, where relevant, have been updated to reflect the initiatives in Chapter 1.

Performance measures for each output are divided into Quality, Quantity, Timeliness and Cost categories. The performance measures collectively describe the services being delivered and how they are measured. The 2017-18 target articulates what the Government seeks or expects to achieve in the coming year. Each measure also provides the 2015-16 actual outcome, the 2016-17 target and the 2016-17 expected outcome. This allows assessment of a department's performance over the previous periods.

The Government is continuing to improve its performance reporting framework to provide meaningful specification of the outputs delivered by departments, measures of successful delivery of these outputs, and a clear alignment with departmental objectives.

Output movements in 2017-18

The Department of Health and Human Services two new outputs. The Family Violence Service Delivery output reflects government priorities, and the Gender equality and the prevention of family violence policy and programs output reflects the transfer of functions from the Department of Premier and Cabinet.

The Department of Justice and Regulation has two new outputs, Youth Justice Community Based Services and Youth Justice Custodial Services to reflect the transfer of these functions from the Department of Health and Human Services.

To increase clarity and accountability, outputs have been disaggregated in the Department of Premier and Cabinet and Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning.

Outputs have been renamed in the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources, Department of Health and Human Services and Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning to either improve clarity, reflect changes to priorities or support machinery of government changes.

Footnotes have been included throughout the chapter for the output and performance measures that have moved since the 2016-17 Budget.

Table 2.1: Changes to outputs by department

Table 2.1 reflects the recent changes to outputs across departments, and shows that outputs have increased by 5 from 114 in 2016-17 to 119 in 2017-18.

				(+
	Outputs	Outputs	Net	-
Department	2016-17	2017-18	movement	Reason for change
Existing				
Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources	22	22		No change
Department of Education and Training	7	7		No change
Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning	8	12	4	Restructure, Increased transparency
Department of Health and Human Services	35	35		No change
Department of Justice and Regulation	12	14	2	Restructure
Department of Premier and Cabinet	15	15		No change
Department of Treasury and Finance	7	6	(1)	Materiality
Parliament/VAGO	7	7		No change
Court Services Victoria	1	1		No change
Total	114	119	5	

Source: Whole of government

Other matters to note

Performance measures that are proposed to be substantially changed or discontinued in 2017-18 are identified in 'Appendix A: Output performance measures for review by the Public Accounts and Estimates Committee'.

Situations where it is appropriate to substantially change or discontinue a performance measure include where:

- a current measure can be replaced by a more appropriate measure and the new measure will provide more meaningful information to the Parliament and the public;
- it is no longer relevant due to a change in Government policy or priorities and/or departmental objectives;
- milestones, projects or programs have been completed, substantially changed, or discontinued; and
- funding is not provided in the current budget for the continuation of the initiative.

In the main, substantially changed or discontinued measures have been amended or replaced by new measures that provide a stronger basis for evaluation of performance in the delivery of services to the community.

When reading the performance statements, 'nm' refers to a new performance measure and 'na' refers to data either not being available or not applicable in the specified year. Where a department has included a new measure in 2017-18, historical performance data has been provided, where available, to assist with analysis of the department's performance over time.

(\$ million)

DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, JOBS, TRANSPORT AND RESOURCES

Ministerial portfolios

The Department supports the ministerial portfolios of Agriculture; Creative Industries; Industrial Relations; Industry and Employment; Major Projects; Ports; Public Transport; Regional Development; Resources; Roads and Road Safety; Small Business, Innovation and Trade; and Tourism and Major Events.

Departmental mission statement¹

The mission of the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources (DEDJTR) is: to get our economy and society working together for the benefit of *all* Victorians – by creating more jobs for more people, connecting people and businesses, and maintaining Victoria's envied reputation for liveability now and for the future.

- More jobs for more people we are creating and maintaining jobs so more people have meaningful work that is safe and secure. We do this by supporting businesses and workers, developing and growing our future industries, attracting investment to our regions and supporting industries in transition. We also create jobs by leveraging our natural assets, including fostering our visitor economy, creativity and innovation.
- Making connections we are connecting Victorians to work, family and recreation. We are connecting businesses to each other and their customers. We do this by growing our transport services, making them more reliable and accessible and building new infrastructure, across Melbourne and our regions, and across all transport modes. We also connect Victoria to the world by attracting investment and talent, and helping Victorian businesses trade into global markets.
- Maintaining Victoria's liveability we are helping to create places, towns and cities that are accessible, well connected, culturally rich, diverse, resilient and safe. We do this for all Victorians.

¹ The mission statement, objectives and objective indicators for the Department have been reviewed and updated, to reflect a change to the Department's priorities.

Departmental objectives²

More productive, competitive, sustainable and jobs-rich food, fibre and resources industries³

The objective creates the conditions for and supports increased employment, investment and trade in the food, fibre and resources sectors by delivering policy, regulatory, research and development programs.

The Agriculture output contributes to increasing the productivity, competitiveness and sustainability of food and fibre industries by protecting and enhancing market access and management of biosecurity risks, increasing the use of new technologies, improving farm practices and supply chain efficiency, and building the resilience of the sector to manage risks and emergencies.

The Resources output contributes to this objective by aiming to achieve a growing and sustainable earth resources sector through effective policy, programs and regulation.

The Sustainably Manage Fish, Game and Forest Resources output creates the conditions to grow the natural resources economy by ensuring forestry, fish and game resources are sustainably allocated and used for both recreational and commercial purposes.

Increase the economic, social and cultural value of tourism, major events and creative industries $^{\!\!\!\!\!^4}$

This objective seeks to increase the economic, social and cultural value of the creative industries to Victoria, grow the number and yield of visitors and international students, and position Victoria as a major events destination.

The Creative Industries Access, Development and Innovation output contributes to this objective through developing more opportunities for the creation and presentation of new work, building industry capability and growth, stimulating innovation and wider impacts, engaging more Victorians and building international engagement.

The Creative Industries Portfolio Agencies output contributes to this objective through supporting creative industries agencies to promote access and participation, to increase visitor numbers and to manage the State's cultural collections.

² The mission statement, objectives and objective indicators for the Department have been reviewed and updated, to reflect a change to the Department's priorities.

³ This updated objective replaces the 2016-17 objective 'More productive, competitive and sustainable food, fibre, energy and resources industries'. This objective reports on similar activity as the previous objective, however has been amended to reflect the machinery of government change as the energy portfolio has transferred to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning.

⁴ This updated objective replaces the 2016-17 objective Increase the economic, social and cultural value and impact of the creative industries'. The revised objective reflects the alignment of creative and visitor economies that have been brought together to provide a collective focus on visitor attraction, experience and satisfaction.

The Cultural Infrastructure and Facilities output contributes to this objective through undertaking maintenance activities and developing infrastructure projects to ensure state-owned cultural venues are available to the public.

The Tourism, Major Events and International Education output contributes to this objective through increasing the number of visitors and international students to Victoria, boosting expenditure from these visitors, and continuing to strengthen Victoria's major events program.

Grow Victoria's economy and Victorian jobs by working with the private and public sectors to foster investment, trade and innovation 5

This objective seeks to increase job opportunities for all Victorians and grow investment and trade through working with priority industry sectors, supporting innovation opportunities for businesses, delivering economic projects, investing in regional Victoria, connecting Victorian businesses to international opportunities, and promoting fair and productive workplaces.

The Industrial Relations output contributes to this objective by working across the State and Commonwealth governments and private sector to promote and support measures that contribute to fair and productive workplaces and a positive and stable industrial relations environment.

The Industry and Enterprise Innovation output contributes to this objective by fostering job growth, building the capability of businesses and industry to develop and effectively use new practices and technologies, growing key industry sectors, and supporting small businesses.

The Jobs and Investment output contributes to this objective by attracting new investment and encouraging additional investment by companies already operating in Victoria, supporting existing workers and businesses, fostering job growth, connecting Victorians to job opportunities, maximising opportunities for local businesses to supply into government projects, and mitigating the impacts of industry transition.

The Major Projects output contributes to this objective through the development, delivery and management of significant projects that generate jobs and opportunities for new economic activity.

The Regional Development output contributes to this objective by supporting job growth and new investment in regional Victoria, building enabling infrastructure, and engaging with industry and communities to deliver regional priorities.

The Trade output contributes to this objective by developing the skills and knowledge of current and potential exporters, connecting organisations to global business opportunities, and establishing and deepening strategic commercial international partnerships.

⁵ This updated objective replaces the 2016-17 objective 'Increase sustainable employment opportunities for Victorians and build investment, trade and tourism prospects for the State through working with priority industry sectors, delivering major projects, investing in regional Victoria, providing innovation opportunities for businesses, and building resilience in the State's workforce'. This objective reports on similar activity as the previous objective, however has been amended for clarity and alignment to the Department's mission statement.

More productive and liveable places, towns and cities through integrated and user-focused transport services and better infrastructure 6

This objective enhances social and economic prosperity and liveability through improved transport services and better infrastructure to provide Victoria with an integrated and user-focused transport system that connects people and places.

The Public Transport outputs (Bus Services, Tram Services, Train Services) contribute to the objective by providing a variety of safe, reliable and cost-effective public transport services.

The Road outputs (Road Asset Management, Road Operations and Network Improvements) contribute to the objective by delivering programs and initiatives to enhance, develop and maintain Victoria's freeways and arterial roads to improve safety and reliability on the road network.

The Integrated Transport output contributes to this objective by delivering strategic transport infrastructure activities that are value for money and focused on user outcomes to improve the transport system.

The Port and Freight Network Access output contributes to this objective by delivering a range of capital initiatives and programs to increase the safety, efficiency, effectiveness and capacity of the port and freight network.

The Taxi and Hire Vehicle Services output contributes to this objective by delivering safe and accessible taxi and hire vehicle services through the regulation of drivers and operators and promoting choices available to customers.

The Transport Safety, Security and Emergency Management output contributes to this objective by delivering initiatives and regulatory activities that will improve safety and security and strengthen resilience.

Changes to the output structure

2016-17 outputs	Reason	2017-18 outputs
Access, Industry Development and Innovation	This output has been renamed to clarify that it relates to the Creative Industries portfolio.	Creative Industries Access, Development and Innovation
Employment and Investment	This output has been renamed to better reflect the priority of fostering job growth.	Jobs and Investment
Energy and Resources	The energy component of this output has been transferred to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning as a result of a machinery of government change.	Resources

The Department has made changes to its output structure for 2017-18 as shown in the table below:

Source: Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources

⁶ This updated objective replaces the 2016-17 objective 'More productive and liveable cities and regions through improved transport services and better infrastructure'. This objective reports on similar activity as the previous objective, however has been amended to reflect a change to the Department's priorities.

Output summary by departmental objectives

The Department's outputs and funding are provided in the table below. Detailed descriptions of objectives, outputs, together with their key performance indicators are presented in subsequent tables.

				(\$ 11111011)
	2016-17 budget	2016-17 revised	2017-18 budget	Variation ^(a) %
More productive, competitive, sustainable and jobs-rich for	od, fibre and	resources ir	dustries	
Agriculture ^(b)	351.9	433.1	401.3	14.0
Resources ^(c)	106.3	56.4	126.5	19.0
Sustainably Manage Fish, Game and Forest Resources	87.7	87.5	89.9	2.5
Increase the economic, social and cultural value of tourism,	major even	ts and creati	ve industrie	5
Creative Industries Access, Development and Innovation	78.3	78.9	75.1	(4.1)
Creative Industries Portfolio Agencies ^(d)	328.8	365.5	365.8	11.2
Cultural Infrastructure and Facilities	102.5	104.6	102.5	
Tourism, Major Events and International Education ^(e)	109.0	204.3	142.9	31.1
Grow Victoria's economy and Victorian jobs by working wit investment, trade and innovation	h the private	e and public	sectors to fo	ster
Industrial Relations ^(f)	5.4	6.7	4.8	(12.0)
Industry and Enterprise Innovation ^(g)	153.0	141.6	217.0	41.8
Jobs and Investment ^(h)	205.5	214.4	222.7	8.4
Major Projects ⁽ⁱ⁾	19.5	20.7	8.6	(56.0)
Regional Development ⁽ⁱ⁾	180.3	189.9	230.7	28.0
Trade ^(k)	21.8	21.8	26.6	21.9
More productive and liveable places, towns and cities throus services and better infrastructure	igh integrate	ed and user-	focused tran	sport
Bus Services	1 119.3	1 119.0	1 169.2	4.5
Integrated transport	65.5	68.9	64.4	(1.7)
Port and Freight Network Access ^(I)	116.6	114.9	104.0	(10.8)
Road Asset Management ^(m)	440.3	460.5	604.3	37.3
Road Operations and Network Improvements ⁽ⁿ⁾	982.9	1 023.6	1 037.6	5.6
Taxi and Hire Vehicle Services ^(o)	89.2	321.7	269.4	202.0
Train Services ^(p)	2 952.6	3 028.3	3 143.9	6.5
Tram Services ^(q)	652.2	664.9	685.9	5.2
Transport Safety, Security and Emergency Management	354.1	331.3	363.9	2.8
Total	8 522.7	9 058.5	9 457.0	11.0

Source: Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources

Notes:

(a) Variation between the 2016-17 budget and the 2017-18 budget.

(b) Variation between the 2016-17 budget and the 2017-18 budget reflects the funding profile of the Agriculture, Infrastructure and Jobs Fund and new funding included in the 2017-18 Budget.

(c) The 2016-17 budget has been restated to reflect the machinery of government transfer of Energy to Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning. Variation between the 2016-17 budget and the 2017-18 budget mainly reflects additional funding in 2017-18 Budget for the Victorian Gas program and a rephase of expenditure for a number of initiatives.

(d) Variation between the 2016-17 budget and the 2017-18 budget reflects new funding included in the 2017-18 Budget and an increase in depreciation.

(e) Variation between the 2016-17 budget and the 2017-18 budget reflects additional funding in the 2017-18 Budget for a number of initiatives. Consistent with past years, this output will be supplemented by major events funding held centrally until contractual arrangements are finalised.

(f) Variation between the 2016-17 budget and the 2017-18 budget primarily reflects the funding profile for the Central Bargaining Unit.

(\$ million)

Notes (continued):

- (g) Variation between the 2016-17 budget and the 2017-18 budget is mainly due to the funding profile of the Future Industries Fund and additional funding for a number of initiatives in the 2017-18 Budget.
- (h) Variation between the 2016-17 budget and the 2017-18 budget reflects additional funding included in the 2017-18 Budget for a number of initiatives offset by a rephase of expenditure of the Premier's Jobs and Investment Fund.
- (i) Variation between the 2016-17 budget and the 2017-18 budget is mainly due to the transfer of Major Projects Victoria to Development Victoria.
- Variation between the 2016-17 budget and the 2017-18 budget reflects additional funding in the 2017-18 Budget for a number of initiatives.
- (k) Variation between the 2016-17 budget and the 2017-18 budget is due to additional funding in the 2017-18 Budget for a number of initiatives.
- (I) Variation between the 2016-17 budget and the 2017-18 budget mainly reflects the funding profile for the Boating and Safety Facilities program, Gippsland Lakes Ocean Access project and the Port Phillip Bay Fund.
- (m) Variation between the 2016-17 budget and the 2017-18 budget reflects additional funding in the 2017-18 Budget for a number of initiatives for road maintenance activities, offset in part by the completion of a number of programs in 2016-17.
- (n) Variation between the 2016-17 budget and the 2017-18 budget reflects additional funding in the 2017-18 Budget for a number of initiatives.
- (o) Variation between the 2016-17 budget and the 2017-18 budget mainly reflects the funding profile for the Commercial Passenger Vehicle Reform.
- (p) Variation between the 2016-17 budget and the 2017-18 budget primarily reflects additional funding in the 2017-18 Budget for a number of initiatives and an increase in the capital asset charge as a result of investment in infrastructure projects.
- (q) Variation between the 2016-17 budget and the 2017-18 budget is mainly due to an increase in the capital asset charge as a result of investment in infrastructure projects.

Amounts available

The following tables detail the amounts available to the Department from Parliamentary authority and income generated through transactions.

Table 2.2 outlines the Department's income from transactions and Table 2.3 summarises the sources of Parliamentary authority available to the Department to fund the provision of outputs, additions to the net asset base and payments made on behalf of the State.

Table 2.2: Income from transactions

(\$ million)

	2015-16 actual	2016-17 budget	2016-17 revised	2017-18 budget ^(a)
Output appropriations	6 753.4	7 758.5	7 797.6	7 999.4
Special appropriations	0.8	5.8	18.2	181.2
Interest	20.4	17.4	17.5	17.8
Sales of goods and services	533.5	481.5	528.2	540.9
Grants	358.9	1 186.6	494.8	522.4
Fair value of assets and services received free of charge or for nominal consideration	96.1	54.6	60.2	54.6
Other income	204.9	159.2	166.5	167.5
Total income from transactions	7 968.0	9 663.6	9 082.9	9 483.7

Source: Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources

Note:

(a) Includes an estimated \$1.2 billion of non-public account contributions in 2017-18.

Table 2.3: Parliamentary authority for resources

(\$ million)

	2016-17	2016-17	2017-18
	budget	revised	budget
Annual appropriations	9 267.8	9 179.1	10 094.6
Provision of outputs ^(a)	7 213.4	7 196.8	7 580.5
Additions to the net asset base	1 983.4	1 912.1	2 443.6
Payments made on behalf of the State	71.1	70.2	70.6
Receipts credited to appropriations	585.1	555.3	445.7
Unapplied previous years appropriation		154.9	35.0
Provision of outputs		107.5	
Additions to the net asset base		46.4	35.0
Payments made on behalf of the State		0.9	
Accumulated surplus – previously applied appropriation			
Gross annual appropriation	9 852.9	9 889.3	10 575.3
Special appropriations	5.8	18.2	181.2
Trust funds	789.4	213.5	111.7
Commonwealth Treasury Trust Fund ^(b)	13.0	17.9	24.7
Recreational Fishing Licence Trust ^(c)	7.2	10.3	11.0
State Development Special Projects Trust ^(d)	17.9	132.0	25.2
Treasury Trust Fund ^(e)	1.5	31.4	36.7
Victorian Transport Fund ^(f)	731.4		
Other	18.4	21.9	14.1
Total parliamentary authority	10 648.1	10 120.9	10 868.3

Source: Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources

Notes:

(a) Includes appropriation relating to the Regional Jobs and Infrastructure Fund pursuant to Section 16(a) of the Regional Development Victoria Act 2002.

(b) The purpose of this trust primarily relates to recognising Commonwealth funding programs not funded under the State Grants Act.

(c) The purpose of this trust primarily relates to recreational fishing projects funded from income received from the sale of recreational fishing licences.

(d) The purpose of this trust primarily relates to funding for Victorian major events.

(e) The purpose of this trust primarily relates to facilitating the exchange of unclaimed monies and other funds held in trust.

(f) The purpose of this trust primarily relates to the use of the funds received from the lease of Port of Melbourne towards Victorian major infrastructure initiatives.

Departmental performance statement

Objective 1: More productive, competitive, sustainable and jobs-rich food, fibre and resources industries.^(a)

The objective creates the conditions for and supports increased employment, investment and trade in the food, fibre and resources sectors by delivering policy, regulation, and research and development programs.

The Department provides effective regulatory systems and processes and manages natural disasters and biosecurity emergencies to minimise their impact on the community. It also leads strategy development in the agriculture, fisheries, game, forest resources, and earth resources sectors and works with partners, local communities and industry to deliver outcomes that provide benefits to all Victorians.

The departmental objective indicators^(b) are:

- value of Victorian agriculture production;
- value of Victorian food and fibre exports;
- percentage of assessed fish stocks that are fished sustainably^(c);
- minerals exploration, metres drilled in Victoria^(d); and
- annual level of production of minerals and extractives^(e).

Notes:

- (a) This updated objective replaces the 2016-17 objective More productive, competitive and sustainable food, fibre, energy and resources industries'. This objective reports on similar activity as the previous objective, however has been amended to reflect the machinery of government change as the energy portfolio has transferred to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning.
- (b) The 2016-17 objective indicator Relative share of Victorian energy sourced from renewables' has been removed to reflect the machinery of government change as the energy portfolio has transferred to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning, The 2016-17 objective indicator Value of Victorian earth resources production' has been removed to better reflect the Department's priorities.

(c) This is a new objective indicator for 2017-18 that reflects the Victorian Fisheries Authority's focus on sustainable fish stocks.

- (d) This is a new objective indicator for 2017-18 that reflects the Department's focus on attracting exploration investment to Victoria.
- (e) This is a new objective indicator for 2017-18 that reflects the Department's focus on minerals and extractives development in Victoria.

Outputs

Agriculture

(2017-18: \$401.3 million)

This output delivers effective and efficient regulation, compliance, biosecurity research and development, and diagnostic services to protect and enhance market access by addressing trade barriers and managing risks of pests, diseases and chemical use.

The Department undertakes research and development to develop new technologies and practices and provides services to enhance their adoption to increase farm productivity and supply chain efficiencies. The Department also provides policy advice and support to help industries and businesses manage economic and climatic volatility, natural disasters and biosecurity emergencies, and meet consumer and community expectations in animal welfare, food safety and environmental standards.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

			2016-17		
Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Quantity					
Animal pest, disease and residue control programs maintained to ensure Victorian agricultural produce complies with food safety and biosecurity standards required to access markets	number	5	5	5	5
Applications for intellectual property protection	number	16	16	16	16
Client interactions with land health services	number	1 700	3 400	3 500	3 858
The lower 2017-18 target reflects seasonal cond	itions improvin	g and a return to	baseline service l	evels.	
Clients engaged with agriculture productivity services	number	3 910	3 910	3 910	5 078
Commercial technology licence agreements finalised	number	16	16	16	16
Farms and related small businesses facing significant adjustment pressures supported to make better informed decisions by the Rural Financial Counselling Service	number	1 700	1 700	1 700	1 700
Genetic improvement of dairy cows achieved through breeding contributing to increased milk production and dairy productivity	per cent	1	1	1	1
Improved agricultural productivity services, programs and products developed	number	10	10	10	10
Inspections or audits of scientific establishments undertaken to provide assurance of compliance with relevant industry standards for animal welfare	number	25	23	25	17
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the being implemented, which delayed the delivery i program to recover slippage against this target i	n the first six n				
Key bioscience platform technologies established	number	1	1	1	2
Known state prohibited weed sites monitored and treated in line with the relevant weed action plan	per cent	90	90	90	99
New or amended Interstate Certificate Assurance (ICA) or other market access accreditations developed to restore or enable trade	number	2	2	2	4
Plant pest, disease and residue control programs maintained to ensure Victorian agricultural produce complies with food safety and biosecurity standards required to access markets	number	6	6	6	6

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Projects delivered to support community	number	25	nm	nm	nm
led management of invasive plant and animal priority species					
This performance measure is proposed to replac and animal priority species'. The new measure n approach where the Department supports comm animals on their land.	nore accurately	reflects the Depa	artment's contem	porary co-regula	atory
Postgraduate-level/PhD students in training	number	65	65	65	77
Strategies developed to overcome identified trade barriers	number	7	7	7	7
Value of co-investment from external (non-state) funding sources attracted to the Department's research projects that support productive agriculture	\$ million	36	36	36	38
Quality					
Client satisfaction rating of agricultural productivity services	number	8	8	>8	8
The 2017-18 target has been amended in accord Committee that measures with unbounded rang necessary and appropriate.			-		
National biosecurity, agriculture/	per cent	95	95	>95	95
veterinary chemical use and animal welfare programs implemented in accordance with agreed plans The 2017-18 target has been amended in accord Committee that measures with unbounded rang necessary and appropriate.			-		
Satisfaction rating of industry investors in	number	6	6	>6	7
agriculture productivity research and development					
The 2017-18 target has been amended in accord Committee that measures with unbounded rang necessary and appropriate.			-		
Scientific and technical publications in international and/or peer review journals that promote productive agriculture	number	260	260	260	328
This performance measure is proposed to be rec accuracy as it demonstrates that research and d through independent peer review in the scientifi	evelopment is	being conducted t		-	
Timeliness					
Animal health certificates issued within specified timeframes to support international market access	per cent	90	100	>90	100
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than th	ne 2016-17 tara	et due to all certi	ficates issued witl	hin required tim	eframes.
The 2017-18 target has been amended in accord Committee that measures with unbounded rang necessary and appropriate	lance with the	recommendation	from the Public A	ccounts and Est	imates
Initial action taken to respond to reported emergency animal and plant pest, disease and natural disaster incidents complies with national agreements and obligations	per cent	100	100	100	100

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Plant health certificates issued within specified timeframes at the Melbourne Wholesale Fruit and Vegetable Market to support domestic market access	per cent	95	nm	nm	nm
This performance measure is proposed to replac Melbourne Markets to support domestic market responsiveness of the Department's regulatory f where targets were demand driven and outside	access'. It has unction that so	been replaced to feguards market	more accurately	demonstrate th	e
Provision of technical advice, diagnostic identification tests on pests and diseases including suspected exotics within agreed timeframes	per cent	80	80	80	91
Research project milestones and reports completed on time	per cent	85	85	85	96
Cost					
Total output cost The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than th the Agriculture, Infrastructure and Jobs Fund an The higher 2017-18 target reflects the change in	d prior year cai	ryover.		, ,	

Agriculture, Infrastructure and Jobs Fund and new funding included in the 2017-18 Budget.

(2017-18: \$126.5 million)

Resources

This output develops and delivers policy, programs and regulation to enable investment and generate jobs through the sustainable development of the State's earth resources, including extractives, minerals and petroleum.

The Department acquires and provides access to high quality geoscience data and knowledge to inform government decision making and attract new investment and jobs to the State. It develops and implements legislative and regulatory reforms in the earth resources sector to improve outcomes for all stakeholders.

Supporting investment in resources and low emission technologies, the Department fosters innovation, productivity, jobs and trade in the State's earth resources sector. Through strategic resource and related land use planning, new opportunities are able to be identified for Victoria's earth resources along with supporting major infrastructure development in the State.

The Department also regulates the earth resources sector through transparent, consistent and timely regulatory processes that provide industry with confidence to invest and have regard to the needs of communities and minimise impacts to the environment.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

	11-:+ - f	2017 10	2016-17	2016 17	2015 10		
Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual		
Quantity							
Community and stakeholder engagement information forums	number	40	40	30	34		
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 2016-17 target due to the impact of new earth resources regulation forums associated with improving engagement and regulatory performance along with an increased number of extractives sector forums linked to improving strategic resource planning. The higher 2017-18 target reflects additional funding for the delivery of the Victorian Gas Program.							
Quality							
Exploration and mining licences which are active	per cent	82.5	82.5	>82.5	83.0		
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 active'. The new measure reports on the same a clarity.		'	5				
The 2017-18 target has been amended in accord Committee that measures with unbounded rang necessary and appropriate.			,				
Timeliness							
Delivery of key milestones consistent with agreed timelines for the Victorian Gas Program	per cent	100	nm	nm	nm		
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflec conventional gas and offshore gas resources.	t Government	priorities to imp	rove the understan	ding of Victoria	's onshore		

			2016-17		
Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Exploration licence applications, mining	per cent	95	95	>95	71
industry work plans and mining licence	per cent	55	55	200	,1
applications processed within regulatory					
timeframes					
This performance measure renames the 2016-1 mining industry work plans and mining licence o reports on the same activity as the previous me	applications pro	cessed within regu	latory timefram	es'. The new me	
The 2017-18 target has been amended in accor	dance with the r	recommendation f	from the Public A	ccounts and Es	timates
Committee that measures with unbounded ran necessary and appropriate.	ges as targets sh	nould be modified	to a single numb	er except wher	e a range is
Facilitate the delivery of resources	per cent	100	nm	nm	nm
projects in line with grant agreements					
and project milestones					
This performance measure is proposed to repla in line with funding agreements and agreed pro consolidating resources projects including the C	ject deliverables	s'. It has been repl	aced to deliver m	,	-
Industry geoscience data packages	number	10	6	6	7
released for minerals and petroleum					
sectors consistent with agreed timelines					
The higher 2017-18 target reflects additional fu	inding included i	n the 2017-18 Bud	dget <i>for the Victo</i>	rian Gas Progra	am.
Regulatory audits completed within	per cent	98	95	>95	98
agreed timelines					
The higher 2017-18 target reflects improved reg regulator.	gulatory practice	es as part of the re	forms implemen	ted by the eartl	n resources
The 2017-18 target has been amended in accor Committee that measures with unbounded ran necessary and appropriate.					
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	126.5	56.4	106.3	39.3
The 2015-16 actual and 2016-17 target have be Department of Environment, Land, Water and I The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than th CarbonNet. The higher 2017-18 target mainly reflects the ti included in the 2017-18 Budget for Victorian Ga	Planning. ne 2016-17 targe iming of paymen	et primarily due to	scheduling chan	ges for projects	including
Source: Department of Economic Development, Jobs. Tra	5	Irces			

Sustainably Manage Fish, Game and Forest Resources (2017-18: \$89.9 million)

This output creates the conditions to grow the natural resources economy by ensuring forestry, fish and game resources are sustainably allocated and used for both recreational and commercial purposes.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Quantity					
Better Fishing Facilities projects underway	number	10	10	10	36
Community and stakeholder engagement information forums – fisheries	number	10	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect fishing service delivery program.	t an important	component of th	he Victorian Fisher	ies Authority's	recreational
Complete stock assessment for key quota managed fish species	number	3	3	3	3
Complete total allowable commercial catch setting processes for key quota managed fish species	number	3	3	3	3
Develop, implement and review overarching fisheries compliance strategy	number	1	1	1	1
Enhance levels of community participation in achieving fisheries compliance through calls to the 13FISH reporting line	number	1 500	1 500	1 500	1 781
Key fisheries managed in accordance with best practice management plans	number	5	5	5	3
Minimum number of uniformed fisheries officers maintaining operational coverage for priority fishing activity periods, as defined by the Compliance Strategic Assessment	number	17	13	16	12
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the Fisheries Officer workforce. This is a consequenc training commitments through the year, includi capacity. The higher 2017-18 target reflects the expected	e of unplanned ng for newly ap	promotions, long pointed Fisheries	g-term leave and officers, have als	secondments. S	ignificant
Native and salmonid fish stocked	number (000)	5 000	3 500	3 500	nm
The higher 2017-18 target reflects the Governm	ent delivering t	he fish stocking e	election commitme	ent by 2018.	
Recreational fishing licences sold online as a proportion of total sales	per cent	65	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect	ct a more efficie	ent and lower cos	st mechanism of o	nline sales.	
Undertake activities to detect, disrupt and dismantle serious or organised fisheries criminal entities (individuals or groups)	number	20	20	20	32

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Quality	measure	target	outcome	turget	uctuur
Co-investment in Better Fishing Facilities projects	per cent	30	30	>30	62
The 2017-18 target has been amended in accord Committee that measures with unbounded rang necessary and appropriate.					
Key statutory obligations relevant to the Game Management Authority complied with (tabling annual report, audits, business plan and board appointments) This performance measure is proposed to replace	per cent	100	nm	nm	nm
VicForests and the Game Management Authori appointments)'. It has been replaced for disaggi	, ty complied wit	h (tabling annual	,	, .	
Key statutory obligations relevant to the Victorian Fisheries Authority complied with (tabling annual report, audits, business plan and board appointments)	per cent	100	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017-18 to refle commencing operations as a new statutory aut			ng the Victorian F	isheries Authori	ty
Key statutory obligations relevant to VicForests complied with (tabling annual report, audits, corporate plan and board appointments)	per cent	100	nm	nm	nm
This performance measure is proposed to replac VicForests and the Game Management Authori appointments)'. It has been replaced for disaggi	ty complied wit	h (tabling annual			
Timeliness					
Proportion of fisheries cost recovery levies reviewed and set prior to the commencement of the licensing year (1 April)	per cent	100	100	100	100
Research project milestones and reports completed on time (Fisheries)	per cent	90	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Fisheries Authority's science service delivery pro		priorities regardi	ng an important c	omponent of th	e Victorian
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	89.9	87.5	87.7	107.3
The higher 2017-18 target reflects the conversion	on of capital fun	ding to output fo	or the Sustainable	Hunting Action	Plan.

Objective 2: Increase the economic, social and cultural value of tourism, major events and creative industries^(a)

The objective seeks to increase the economic, social and cultural value of the creative industries to Victoria, grow the number and yield of visitors and international students, and position Victoria as a major events destination.

The departmental objective indicators are:

- attendances at Creative Industries agencies and funded Major Performing Arts organisations^(b);
- employment in the Creative Industries sector^(c); and
- tourists and students attracted to Victoria^(d).

Notes:

- (a) This updated objective replaces the 2016-17 objective Increase the economic, social and cultural value and impact of the creative industries'. The revised objective reflects the alignment of creative and visitor economies that have been brought together to provide a collective focus on visitor attraction, experience and satisfaction.
- (b) This updated objective indicator replaces the 2016-17 objective indicator 'Attendance at creative and cultural events and experiences'. This indicator provides a consolidated view of attendances across activities in the Creative Industries.
- (c) This is a new objective indicator for 2017-18 that reflects the department's focus on increasing employment.
- (d) This updated objective indicator replaces the 2016-17 objective indicator 'Tourists, investors and students attracted' previously reported under the objective Increase sustainable employment opportunities for Victorians and build investment, trade and tourism prospects for the State through working with priority industry sectors, delivering major projects, investing in regional Victoria, providing innovation opportunities for businesses, and building resilience in the State's workforce'. The revised objective indicator better reflects the updated objective.

Outputs

Creative Industries Access, Development and Innovation (2017-18: \$75.1 million)

This output supports the creative industries to deliver economic, social and cultural benefit through: talent and leadership; the creative and business ecology; innovation and social impact; participation and place making; and international engagement.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual		
Quantity							
Artist residencies in schools	number	16	24	16	19		
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than Virtual Creative Professionals in Schools projec		et due to the inc	rease in the extern	nal funding for t	the new		
Attendances at major performing arts organisations	number (000)	900	797	985	954		
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 2016-17 target due to Opera Australia reducing the number of productions and performances being delivered in Melbourne. The lower 2017-18 target reflects the trend of recent year outcomes.							
Number of design organisations supported	number	20	20	20	nm		
Number of international market development and exchange initiatives	number	12	12	12	nm		

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Organisations recurrently funded	number	142	142	135	141
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the Creative State funding.	he 2016-17 targ		•	ganisations as p	
The higher 2017-18 target reflects support for a				, ,	455
Project companies and artists funded	number	475	475	475	455
Project companies and artists funded which are regionally based	per cent	23	23	23	23
Regional Touring Victoria destinations	number	46	46	42	65
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the towns and non-traditional presenters. The higher 2017-18 target reflects recent year of the higher 2017-18 target reflects re	-	get due to a higher	r number of tours	specifically tar	geting small
Regionally based organisations recurrently funded	number	54	54	47	53
The higher 2017-18 target and 2016-17 expected State funding.	ed outcome refle	ect support for add	ditional organisa	tions as part of	the Creative
Quality					
Grant recipients who met or exceeded agreed outcomes	per cent	85	85	85	95
Public information rated 'informative' or 'very informative' by grant applicants	per cent	90	85	90	90
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than th several new portfolio grant applicants unfamilic				rograms that e	ngaged
Timeliness					
VicArts Grant applications processed within 45 days for Ministerial consideration	per cent	100	nm	nm	nm
This performance measure is proposed to replac applications for each round for Ministerial cons measures the time it takes for applications to be	ideration'. This i	has been replaced	to provide great		
Performance and grant agreements acquitted within timeframes specified in the funding agreement	per cent	83	83	83	97
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	75.1	78.9	78.3	61.1
The lower 2017-18 target primarily reflects a ch	ange in the fun	ding profile for the	e Creative State i	nitiative.	

Creative Industries Portfolio Agencies

(2017-18: \$365.8 million)

This output promotes, presents and preserves our heritage and the creative industries through Victoria's creative industries agencies: Arts Centre Melbourne, Australian Centre for the Moving Image (ACMI), Docklands Studios Melbourne, Film Victoria, Geelong Performing Arts Centre, Melbourne Recital Centre, Museums Victoria, National Gallery of Victoria (NGV), and the State Library Victoria.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Quantity					
Additional employment from production supported by Film Victoria	number	8 000	7 500	7 500	8 068
The higher 2017-18 target is due to additional p	production activ	ity supported by t	he Victorian Cont	ent Initiative w	ith the ABC.
Agency website visitation	number (000)	21 000	18 348	14 500	20 614
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than t access. The higher 2017-18 target reflects funding prov Model' initiative.	-		-	-	-
Members and friends of agencies	number	48 000	45 646	45 000	49 530
The higher 2017-18 target reflects the historical programming with a concentrated effort by age provided in the 2017-18 Budget for the 'Sustain Students participating in agency	encies to retain	current members	and attract new l	members and f	
education programs	number	550 000	510 945	500 000	570 475
The higher 2017-18 target reflects the trend of in the 2017-18 Budget for the 'Sustaining the su				grams and fund	ling provided
Users/attendances at all agencies	number (000)	10 700	10 454	9 000	11 403
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the institutions including Degas at the National Gal the refurbishment of the Pauline Gandel Childree The higher 2017-18 target reflects an anticipate audience base due to the provision of even mor 2017-18 Budget for the 'Sustaining the successf Library Victoria' initiative.	lery of Victoria, en's Gallery at N ed strong attend e diverse progra ful NGV Exhibitio	Kylie on Stage at Iuseums Victoria. Iance at agencies amming and servi	Arts Centre Melbo ' major exhibition ces by agencies a re and 'Increasing	ourne, Jurassic Is and an increa Ind funding prov access and act	World and se in the vided in the ivating State
Value of film, television and digital media production supported by Film Victoria	\$ million	180	215	173	173
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than t supported through Film Victoria's incentive pro Production Investment Attraction Fund Post Dig The higher 2017-18 target reflects additional pr	grams, specifica ital & Visual Eff	illy the Productior fects (PIAF PDV).	Investment Attro	action Fund (PIA	NF) and
Volunteer hours	number	98 900	95 238	90 500	91 291
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the exhibitions and programming. The higher 2017-18 target reflects increased en 2017-18 Budget for the 'Sustaining the successf	gagement of vo	olunteers resulting	from additional j		

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Quality					
Agency collections storage meeting industry standard	per cent	86	86	86	84
Visitors satisfied with visit: Arts Centre Melbourne	per cent	95	95	95	97
Visitors satisfied with visit: Australian Centre for the Moving Image	per cent	94	94	92	96
The higher 2017-18 target reflects the expected Screenworlds.	l increase in visite	or satisfaction du	e to the populari	ty of exhibitions	s such as
Visitors satisfied with visit: Geelong Performing Arts Centre	per cent	98	98	98	96
Visitors satisfied with visit: Melbourne Recital Centre	per cent	92	95	92	98
Visitors satisfied with visit: Museums Victoria	per cent	95	90	90	99
The higher 2017-18 target reflects the expected particularly the Pauline Gandel Children's Galle This performance measure renames the 2016-1 new measure reports on the same activity as th of Museum Victoria to Museums Victoria.	ry. 17 performance n	neasure 'Visitors	satisfied with visi	it: Museum Vict	oria'. The
Visitors satisfied with visit: National Gallery of Victoria	per cent	95	95	95	98
Visitors satisfied with visit: State Library Victoria	per cent	90	90	90	87
This performance measure renames the 2016-1 The new measure reports on the same activity renaming of the State Library of Victoria to Stat	as the previous n	neasure however		,	
Timeliness					
Arts portfolio public body annual reports tabled in Parliament by the required statutory dates	per cent	100	100	100	100
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	365.8	365.5	328.8	344.9
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than t following revaluation of assets within Creative The higher 2017-18 target reflects new funding	Industries agenci	es and additiona	funding for maje	or events.	liture

Cultural Infrastructure and Facilities

(2017-18: \$102.5 million)

This output supports Victorian cultural venues and state-owned facilities through strategic assessment and provision of advice on portfolio infrastructure proposals and projects. The output includes consolidation of portfolio asset management plans and management of funding programs for maintenance and minor capital works.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

	2016-17					
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16	
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual	
Quantity						
All facility safety audits conducted	number	16	16	16	nm	
Infrastructure development projects underway	number	5	5	5	4	
Quality						
State-owned tenanted cultural facilities maintained to agreed service standards	per cent	90	90	>90	nm	
The 2017-18 target has been amended in accor Committee that measures with unbounded ran necessary and appropriate.						
Success measures of projects achieved	per cent	90	90	90	93	
This performance measure was proposed to be the Public Accounts and Estimates Committee's				been reinstated	l following	
Timeliness						
Cultural Facilities Maintenance Fund projects delivered within agreed	per cent	90	90	>90	nm	
timeframes						
The 2017-18 target has been amended in accor Committee that measures with unbounded ran necessary and appropriate.			•			
Cost						
	\$ million		104.6	102.5		

Tourism, Major Events and International Education (2017-18: \$142.9 million)

This output maximises employment and the long-term economic benefits of tourism, international education and major events to Victoria by developing and marketing the State as a competitive destination.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

	Unit of	2017-18	2016-17 expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Quantity					
Major sporting and cultural events facilitated	number	18	24	>12	18
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than events facilitated, which includes a number of The higher 2017-18 target reflects continued f	one-off events.	5	·		and cultural
Number of domestic overnight visitors	number (million)	22.6	22.0	21.8	21.8
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than The higher 2017-18 target reflects expected co				growth from ke	y markets.
Number of visitors (international)	number (million)	2.9	2.8	2.5	2.5
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than such as China. The higher 2017-18 target reflects expected cc	-			growth from ke	y markets
Proportion of all international students studying in Victoria	per cent	30	30	30	30
Visitor expenditure: domestic	\$ billion	17.7	17.0	17.0	16.4
The higher 2017-18 target reflects expected co	ntinued growth	from key markets.			
Visitor expenditure: international	\$ billion	7.8	7.1	6.5	6.7
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than such as China. The higher 2017-18 target reflects predicted g				growth from ke	y markets
Visitor expenditure: regional Victoria (domestic)	\$ billion	8.3	8.1	8.1	7.9
The higher 2017-18 target reflects expected co	ntinued growth	from key markets.			
Visitor expenditure: regional Victoria (international)	\$ million	500	485	450	402
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than such as China. The higher 2017-18 target reflects predicted g	-	-		growth from ke	y markets
Visitors to Visit Victoria consumer websites	number (million)	9.4	9.0	9.4	8.5
This performance measure renames the 2016- new measure reports on the same activity as t replacing Tourism Victoria as the marketing ar	he previous mea	sure however has			
Quality					
Value of media coverage generated: domestic	\$ million	20	20	20	20
Value of media coverage generated: international	\$ million	40	40	40	64
The higher outcome for the 2015-16 financial hosted in Victoria including the Cricket World (, .	number of interi	national hallma	rk events

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Timeliness Completion of post-event reports and economic impact assessments of each event (where required) within agreed timeframes	per cent	100	100	100	100
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	142.9	204.3	109.0	159.4
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than sporting events.	5	,	5	,	,,,,,

The higher 2017-18 target reflects additional funding in the 2017-18 Budget for a number of initiatives. Consistent with past years, this output will be supplemented by major events funding held centrally until contractual arrangements are finalised.

Objective 3: Grow Victoria's economy and Victorian jobs by working with the private and public sectors to foster investment, trade and innovation^(a)

This objective seeks to increase job opportunities for all Victorians and grow investment and trade through working with priority industry sectors, supporting innovation opportunities for businesses, delivering economic projects, investing in regional Victoria, connecting Victorian businesses to international opportunities, and promoting fair and productive workplaces.

The departmental objective indicators are:

- gross state product^(b);
- number of Victorians in jobs^(c);
- jobs and investment resulting from government facilitation services and assistance^(d);
- export sales generated from government programs;
- economic projects developed and delivered^(e); and
- engagement with growth orientated businesses^(f).

Notes:

- (a) This updated objective replaces the 2016-17 objective Increase sustainable employment opportunities for Victorians and build investment, trade and tourism prospects for the State through working with priority industry sectors, delivering major projects, investing in regional Victoria, providing innovation opportunities for businesses, and building resilience in the State's workforce'. This objective reports on similar activity as the previous objective, however has been amended for clarity and alignment to the Department's mission statement.
- (b) This is a new objective indicator for 2017-18 to reflect the objective to grow Victoria's economy.
- (c) This is a new objective indicator for 2017-18 to reflect the objective to grow Victorian jobs.
- (d) This updated objective indicator combines the 2016-17 objective indicators Employment resulting from government investment facilitation services and assistance' and New investment resulting from government facilitation services and assistance'. This indicator reports on similar activities to the previous indicators.
- (e) This updated objective indicator replaces the 2016-17 objective indicator 'Major Projects delivered'. This indicator reports on similar activities to the previous indicator, however, has been amended to reflect a change in terminology from major projects to economic projects.
- (f) This updated objective indicator replaces the 2016-17 objective indicator Number of business engagements'. This indicator reports on similar activities to the previous indicator, however, has been amended to provide a greater clarity on the nature of engagement.

Outputs

Industrial Relations

(2017-18: \$4.8 million)

This output contributes to a positive industrial relations environment through provision of industrial relations policy and advice to Government. This includes oversight of enterprise bargaining across the Victorian public sector and support for Victoria's participation in the national workplace relations system.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Quality					
Public sector agreements renewed and approved within current enterprise bargaining framework	per cent	100	100	100	nm
Victoria represented in major industrial relations cases and inquiries	per cent	100	100	100	100
Timeliness					
Review and assessment of submitted public sector enterprise bargaining costings and proposed agreements completed and submitted for approval within four weeks	per cent	80	85	80	83
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the agreement approval framework that provides a					lined
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	4.8	6.7	5.4	4.8
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than t recommendations from the Inquiries into Porta The lower 2017-18 target primarily reflects the	ble Long Service	Leave and Labo	our hire and Insecu		mentation of

Industry and Enterprise Innovation

(2017-18: \$217.0 million)

This output provides access to information and connections, and builds the capacity of businesses and industry to develop and effectively use new practices and technologies to increase productivity and competitiveness in Victoria. It also helps businesses overcome barriers to competitiveness, with a focus on priority sectors.

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Quantity					
Businesses whose growth and	number	1 200	1 200	1 200	1 219
productivity issues are resolved by the					
Department					
Companies and Industry Associations	number	100	100	100	50
supported by Future Industries Fund					
This performance measure renames the 2016-1					
The new measure reports on the same activity					,
Engagements with businesses	number	14 000	14 000	14 000	14 782
Industry roundtables and engagement forums	number	100	95	45	105
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than t Taskforce and local Taskforces. The higher 2017-18 target reflects a strong con 2017-18 Budget initiatives.	-		-		
New mobile base stations facilitated	number	30	20	20	nm
The higher 2017-18 target reflects additional a	ctivity under the	'Reducing the Dig	gital Divide' initia	tive.	
Number of companies or new entrants supported through the LaunchVic initiative	number	120	120	120	0
Number of major research and evaluation projects completed	number	6	6	6	6
Participants engaged during the Small Business Festival	number	29 000	28 603	29 000	28 416
Subscriptions to Small Business Victoria E-Newsletter	number	38 000	38 000	38 000	42,978
Quality					
Client satisfaction of small business information, referral, mentoring service and business programs	per cent	90	90	90	90
Client satisfaction with Victorian Small Business Commission mediation service	per cent	85	85	85	95
Client satisfaction with the Victorian Government Business Offices	per cent	80	80	80	81
Proportion of business disputes presented to the Small Business Commission successfully mediated	per cent	75	75	75	82

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	217.0	141.6	153.0	86.4
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than primarily for the Future Industries Fund.	the 2016-17 targe	et due to rephasin	g expenditure fro	om 2016-17 to f	uture years,

The higher 2017-18 target reflects the funding profile of the Future Industries Fund and additional funding in the 2017-18 Budget for a number of other initiatives.

(2017-18: \$222.7 million)

Jobs and Investment

This output includes initiatives to support job growth and connect people to job opportunities. It also provides investment attraction and facilitation services to attract new investment and encourage additional investment by companies already operating in Victoria.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
erformance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actua
uantity					
Disadvantaged jobseekers who achieve	number	1 500	350	350	nn
sustainable employment (minimum					
number of 26 weeks)					
The higher 2017-18 target reflects the effect of t funding agreements with service providers.	the establishme	ent of the Jobs Vict	toria Employmen	t Network and ı	nilestones ir
Government Youth Employment Scheme	number	280	280	280	272
traineeships commenced					
Jobs resulting from government	number	5 000	4 800	4 800	5 523
investment facilitation services and					
assistance					
This performance measure renames the 2016-1	7 performance	measure 'Employı	ment resulting fro	om government	investment
facilitation services and assistance'. The revised	measure report	ts on the same ac	tivity, however ho	is been amende	ed to reflect
the new Output title.	ived in the 2017	10 Dudget for in	anten ont attendati	an activitian	
The higher 2017-18 target reflects funding recei					
New Australian/International regional	number	7	11	5	nn
headquarters of firms and/or research					
development centres attracted to Victoria					
The 2016 17 expected outcome is higher than the	ha 2016 17 tara	at due to the succ	ass of an increas	ad facus on haa	dauartarc
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than th attraction. The higher 2017-18 target reflects a continued f			-	ed focus on hea	dquarters
attraction. The higher 2017-18 target reflects a continued f			-	ed focus on hea	
attraction. The higher 2017-18 target reflects a continued f New investment resulting from	focus on headqu	uarters attraction.	-	-	
attraction. The higher 2017-18 target reflects a continued f New investment resulting from government facilitation services and	focus on headqu	uarters attraction.	-	-	
attraction. The higher 2017-18 target reflects a continued f New investment resulting from government facilitation services and	focus on headqu \$ million	arters attraction. 2 300	2 200	2 200	
attraction. The higher 2017-18 target reflects a continued f New investment resulting from government facilitation services and assistance The higher 2017-18 target reflects funding recei	focus on headqu \$ million	arters attraction. 2 300	2 200	2 200	2 466
attraction. The higher 2017-18 target reflects a continued f New investment resulting from government facilitation services and assistance The higher 2017-18 target reflects funding received Retrenched workers supported with	focus on headqu \$ million ived in the 2017	uarters attraction. 2 300 -18 Budget for inv	2 200 vestment attracti	2 200	2 466
attraction. The higher 2017-18 target reflects a continued f New investment resulting from government facilitation services and assistance The higher 2017-18 target reflects funding received Retrenched workers supported with	focus on headqu \$ million ived in the 2017 number	10 arters attraction. 2 300 -18 Budget for inv 2 000	2 200 vestment attracti 1 500	2 200 on activities. 2 000	2 466 963
attraction. The higher 2017-18 target reflects a continued f New investment resulting from government facilitation services and assistance The higher 2017-18 target reflects funding recei Retrenched workers supported with employment assistance	focus on headqu \$ million ived in the 2017 number	10 arters attraction. 2 300 -18 Budget for inv 2 000	2 200 vestment attracti 1 500	2 200 on activities. 2 000	2 466 963
attraction. The higher 2017-18 target reflects a continued f New investment resulting from government facilitation services and assistance The higher 2017-18 target reflects funding recei Retrenched workers supported with employment assistance The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than th assistance). This performance measure renames the 2016-1	focus on headqu \$ million fived in the 2017 number e 2016-17 targe 7 performance	-18 Budget for inv 2 000 -18 due to reduced measure 'People's	2 200 vestment attracti 1 500 demand (less bus supported with er	2 200 on activities. 2 000 sinesses requirir	2 466 963
attraction. The higher 2017-18 target reflects a continued f New investment resulting from government facilitation services and assistance The higher 2017-18 target reflects funding recei Retrenched workers supported with employment assistance The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than th assistance).	focus on headqu \$ million fived in the 2017 number e 2016-17 targe 7 performance	10 arters attraction. 2 300 -18 Budget for inv 2 000 et due to reduced measure 'People s n amended for inc	2 200 vestment attracti 1 500 demand (less bus supported with er	2 200 on activities. 2 000 sinesses requirir	2 466 963
attraction. The higher 2017-18 target reflects a continued f New investment resulting from government facilitation services and assistance The higher 2017-18 target reflects funding recei Retrenched workers supported with employment assistance The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than th assistance). This performance measure renames the 2016-1 revised measure reports on the same activity, he	focus on headqu \$ million fived in the 2017 number e 2016-17 targe 7 performance	-18 Budget for inv 2 000 -18 due to reduced measure 'People's	2 200 vestment attracti 1 500 demand (less bus supported with er	2 200 on activities. 2 000 sinesses requirir	2 466 963 ng stance'. The
attraction. The higher 2017-18 target reflects a continued f New investment resulting from government facilitation services and assistance The higher 2017-18 target reflects funding recei Retrenched workers supported with employment assistance The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than th assistance). This performance measure renames the 2016-1 revised measure reports on the same activity, he	focus on headqu \$ million ived in the 2017 number e 2016-17 targe 7 performance owever has bee number	-18 Budget for inv -18 Budget for inv 2 000 et due to reduced measure 'People's n amended for inv 40	2 200 restment attracti 1 500 demand (less bus supported with er creased clarity. nm	2 200 on activities. 2 000 inesses requirir mployment assi	2 466 963 ng stance'. The nm
attraction. The higher 2017-18 target reflects a continued f New investment resulting from government facilitation services and assistance The higher 2017-18 target reflects funding recei Retrenched workers supported with employment assistance The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than th assistance). This performance measure renames the 2016-1 revised measure reports on the same activity, he Social enterprises assisted New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflece	focus on headqu \$ million ived in the 2017 number e 2016-17 targe 7 performance owever has bee number	-18 Budget for inv -18 Budget for inv 2 000 et due to reduced measure 'People's n amended for inv 40	2 200 restment attracti 1 500 demand (less bus supported with er creased clarity. nm	2 200 on activities. 2 000 inesses requirir mployment assi	2 466 963 ng stance'. The nm
attraction. The higher 2017-18 target reflects a continued f New investment resulting from government facilitation services and assistance The higher 2017-18 target reflects funding recei Retrenched workers supported with employment assistance The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than th assistance). This performance measure renames the 2016-1 revised measure reports on the same activity, ho Social enterprises assisted	focus on headqu \$ million ived in the 2017 number e 2016-17 targe 7 performance a owever has bee number ct activity under	-18 Budget for inv -18 Budget for inv 2 000 et due to reduced measure 'People s n amended for inv 40 the 'Jobs Victoria	2 200 vestment attraction 1 500 demand (less busi- supported with en- creased clarity. nm - Supporting sources	2 200 on activities. 2 000 inesses requirir nployment assi nm cial enterprises	2 466 963 stance'. The nn 'initiative.
attraction. The higher 2017-18 target reflects a continued f New investment resulting from government facilitation services and assistance The higher 2017-18 target reflects funding recei Retrenched workers supported with employment assistance The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than th assistance). This performance measure renames the 2016-1 revised measure reports on the same activity, he Social enterprises assisted New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Victoria's market share of nominated	focus on headqu \$ million ived in the 2017 number e 2016-17 targe 7 performance 1 owever has bee number ct activity under per cent	-18 Budget for inv 2 300 -18 Budget for inv 2 000 et due to reduced measure 'People s n amended for inv 40 r the 'Jobs Victoria 50	2 200 vestment attraction 1 500 demand (less busis supported with en- creased clarity. nm n-Supporting soon 55	2 200 on activities. 2 000 sinesses requirir nployment assi nm cial enterprises' >40	2 460 963 stance'. The initiative. 65
attraction. The higher 2017-18 target reflects a continued f New investment resulting from government facilitation services and assistance The higher 2017-18 target reflects funding recei Retrenched workers supported with employment assistance The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than th assistance). This performance measure renames the 2016-1 revised measure reports on the same activity, he Social enterprises assisted New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Victoria's market share of nominated investor and business migrants The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than th presence in China and client centric service offer	focus on headqu \$ million ived in the 2017 number e 2016-17 targe 7 performance to owever has bee number ct activity under per cent he 2016-17 targ rings.	-18 Budget for inv 2 300 -18 Budget for inv 2 000 et due to reduced measure 'People s n amended for inv 40 the 'Jobs Victoria 50 ret primarily due t	2 200 vestment attraction 1 500 demand (less busis supported with en- creased clarity. nm 1 – Supporting sou 55 o Victoria's long-	2 200 on activities. 2 000 inesses requirir nployment assi nm cial enterprises' >40 standing migrat	2 46 96 stance'. The initiative. 6. tion
attraction. The higher 2017-18 target reflects a continued f New investment resulting from government facilitation services and assistance The higher 2017-18 target reflects funding recei Retrenched workers supported with employment assistance The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than th assistance). This performance measure renames the 2016-11 revised measure reports on the same activity, he Social enterprises assisted New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Victoria's market share of nominated investor and business migrants The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than th presence in China and client centric service offer This performance measure renames the 2016-1	focus on headqu \$ million ived in the 2017 number e 2016-17 targe 7 performance number ct activity under per cent he 2016-17 targ rings. 7 performance	-18 Budget for inv -18 Budget for inv 2 000 et due to reduced measure 'People's n amended for inv 40 the 'Jobs Victoria 50 ret primarily due to measure 'Victoria	2 200 vestment attraction 1 500 demand (less busis supported with en- creased clarity. nm 1 – Supporting sources 55 o Victoria's long- 's market share o	2 200 on activities. 2 000 inesses requirir mployment assi nm cial enterprises' >40 standing migrat	2 46 96 stance'. The nn initiative. 6 tion pusiness
attraction. The higher 2017-18 target reflects a continued f New investment resulting from government facilitation services and assistance The higher 2017-18 target reflects funding recei Retrenched workers supported with employment assistance The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than th assistance). This performance measure renames the 2016-1 revised measure reports on the same activity, he Social enterprises assisted New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Victoria's market share of nominated investor and business migrants The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than th presence in China and client centric service offer	focus on headqu \$ million ived in the 2017 number e 2016-17 targe 7 performance number ct activity under per cent he 2016-17 targ rings. 7 performance of all Australian	-18 Budget for inv -18 Budget for inv 2 000 et due to reduced measure 'People's n amended for inv 40 r the 'Jobs Victoria 50 ret primarily due to measure 'Victoria n nominations rec	2 200 vestment attracti 1 500 demand (less bus supported with er creased clarity. nm - Supporting sou 55 o Victoria's long- 's market share o eived'. The revise	2 200 on activities. 2 000 inesses requirir mployment assi nm cial enterprises' >40 standing migrat f investor and b d measure has	2 46 96 stance'. The initiative. 6 tion business been

The higher 2017-18 target reflects Victoria's leading position in business and investor migration.

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Visits to the Invest Victoria website	number	70 000	70 000	66 000	nm
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than t Invest Victoria website. The higher 2017-18 target reflects funding rece Investment and Trade' initiative.	-		·		
Quality					
Client satisfaction with services delivered to support industry transition	per cent	85	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017-18 to refle undergoing transition. This includes new fundir performance measure is proposed to replace th	ng received in th	<i>e</i> 2017-18 Budget	for 'Supporting I	ndustries in Tra	nsition'. This
Client satisfaction with investor, business and skilled migration services provided	per cent	85	85	85	84
This performance measure renames the 2016-: services provided'. The new measure reports or increased clarity.					
Timeliness					
Average processing time for investor, business and skilled migration visa nomination applications	days	20	20	20	15
This performance measure renames the 2016-: for state sponsorship applications'. The new m amended for increased clarity.					
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	222.7	214.4	205.5	166.9
The higher 2017-18 target reflects additional fu rephase of expenditure of the Premier's Jobs an	5		dget <i>for a numbe</i>	er of initiatives o	offset by a

Major Projects

(2017-18: \$8.6 million)

This output facilitates growth and investment in the Victorian economy through the development, delivery and management of significant economic projects.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

	Unit of	2017-18	2016-17 expected	2016-17	2015-16		
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual		
Quantity							
Number of economic projects in delivery	number	15	nm	nm	nm		
This performance measure is proposed to replace the 2016- 17 performance measure 'Major projects in delivery or development at 1 July by Major Projects Victoria and the Major Projects Division'. It has been replaced to reflect changes to project delivery as a result of the establishment of Development Victoria.							
Quality							
Economic projects being delivered in accordance with contracted cost (within	number	10	nm	nm	nm		
5 per cent variation)							
This performance measure is proposed to replac contracts in place as of 1 July, that have had less to reflect changes to project delivery as a result o	than 5 per cen	t variation in con	tracted cost from				
Economic projects being delivered in	number	10	nm	nm	nm		
accordance with contracted scope							
This performance measure is proposed to replac contracts in place as of 1 July, that have had no reflect changes to project delivery as a result of t	material variat	ion in contracted	scope from 1 July				
Timeliness							
Economic projects being delivered in		10	nm	nm	nm		
accordance with contracted timelines							
(within 5 per cent variation)							
This performance measure is proposed to replac contracts in place as of 1 July, that have had less replaced to reflect changes to project delivery as	than 5 per cen	t variation in con	tracted time from	1 July'. It has b			
Cost							
Total output cost	\$ million	8.6	20.7	19.5	19.4		
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than th The lower 2017-18 target is due to the transfer o					15-16.		

Regional Development

(2017-18: \$230.7 million)

This output guides engagement with industry and communities to identify and deliver priorities for managing growth and change in regional and rural Victoria. It provides support and services to create jobs and improve career opportunities for regional Victorians.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Quantity					
Actual export sales generated for	\$ million	50	50	50	69
regional businesses as a result of					
participation in government programs					
Economic development and service	number	120	160	120	128
delivery projects supported					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than funding streams such as Food Source Victoria, Fund).					
Jobs in regional Victoria resulting from	number	1 200	1 200	1 200	1 211
government investment facilitation					
services and assistance					
This performance measure renames the 2016- government investment facilitation services an been amended to be consistent with the meas assistance'.	nd assistance'. Th	e revised measur	e reports on the s	ame activity ho	wever has
New investment in regional Victoria	\$ million	700	700	700	800
resulting from government facilitation					
services and assistance					
Quality					
Participant satisfaction with	per cent	90	90	90	90
implementation of Regional					
Development Victoria programs					
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	230.7	189.9	180.3	168.5
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than	the 2016-17 targ	get primarily due t	to the funding pro	ofile of expendit	ure for the
Regional Jobs and Infrastructure Fund.					
The higher 2017-18 target reflects additional f	runaing in the 201	17-18 Budget for a	a number of initia	itives.	

(2017-18: \$26.6 million)

Trade

This output promotes business growth opportunities by connecting organisations to global business opportunities in priority markets and supporting the establishment and deepening of strategic commercial partnerships.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

	Unit of	2017-18	2016-17 expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Quantity					
Actual export sales generated as a result of participation in government programs	\$ million	450	450	450	459
Clients engaged in export and trade programs	number	2 500	2 500	2 500	2 434
International delegates participated in the inbound trade mission program	number	550	550	550	615
Significant interactions with Victorian agri-food companies and exporters, international customers and trading partners that facilitate export and investment outcomes for Victoria	number	250	250	250	260
Quality					
Client satisfaction with export assistance offered	per cent	90	90	90	92
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	26.6	21.8	21.8	17.1
The higher 2017-18 target due to additional fun	ding in the 201	7-18 Budget <i>for '</i>	Investing for more	e Victorian jobs'	

Objective 4: More productive and liveable places, towns and cities through integrated and user-focused transport services and better infrastructure.^(a)

The objective enhances social and economic prosperity and liveability through improved transport services and better infrastructure to provide Victoria with an integrated and user-focused transport system that connects people and places.

The departmental objective indicators are:

- improved transport infrastructure^(b);
- safety of the transport system^(c);
- user satisfaction of the transport system^(d); and
- reliable travel^(e).

Notes:

- (a) This updated objective replaces the 2016-17 objective 'More productive and liveable cities and regions through improved transport services and better infrastructure'. This objective reports on similar activities, however has been amended to reflect the priorities of Transport for Victoria.
- (b) This updated objective indicator replaces the 2016-17 objective indicators 'Distressed freeway and arterial road surfaces' and 'Transport projects delivery complies with agreed scope, timeframes and budget'. This indicator reports on similar activities to the previous indicators, bowever provides greater detail on the condition of roads.
- (c) This updated objective indicator replaces the 2016-17 objective indicator Fatalities and serious injuries on the transport network reduced'. This indicator reports on the same activity as the previous indicator but has been renamed to better align with the focus on safety on the transport network.
- (d) This updated objective indicator replaces the 2016-17 objective indicator Public transport customer satisfaction'. This indicator reports on similar activity as the previous indicator however has been renamed to reflect the outcome to be achieved.
- (e) This updated objective indicator replaces the 2016-17 objective indicators Public transport services delivered on time', Punctuality of the metropolitan road network' and 'Scheduled public transport services delivered'. This indicator reports on similar activities to the previous indicators, however has been renamed to reflect the outcome to be achieved. Reliable travel is measured through the reliability and punctuality of the transport network.

Outputs

Bus Services

(2017-18: \$1 169.2 million)

This output delivers reliable and cost effective statewide bus services and infrastructure investments, including services delivered through contractual arrangements with private operators.

126.4	124.5	124.5	122.5
	124.5	124.5	122.5
th reformed bus	networks such as	Wyndham and	Brimbank
15.1	15.1	15.1	14.7
680	663	661	630
	15.1 680	15.1 15.1 680 663	15.1 15.1 15.1

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Payments made for: regional bus services	\$ million	118	112	120	107
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than th The lower 2017-18 target reflects a reduction in				entation of ser	vices.
Public transport network improvement:	number	3	6	2	2
minor projects completed – bus					
This performance measure records the number The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than t The higher 2017-18 target reflects the committe	he 2016-17 targ	et due to four pro	jects starting ahe	ead of schedule.	
Scheduled services delivered:	per cent	99.9	99.9	99.9	99.9
metropolitan bus					
Scheduled services delivered: regional bus	per cent	99	99	99	100
Scheduled services delivered: school bus	per cent	99	99	99	98
Total kilometres scheduled: metropolitan	km	119.9	116.9	116.9	113.3
bus	(million)				
The higher 2017-18 target reflects the introduct Sooner initiative and the New Bus Services initia				rt of the More E	us Services
Total kilometres scheduled: regional bus	km (million)	26.4	25.6	25.6	24.8
The higher 2017-18 target reflects changes mad	le in 2016-17 to	routes in Ballarat	, Drouin, Warrag	ul and the Latro	obe Valley.
Total kilometres scheduled: school bus	km (million)	31.1	31.1	31.1	30.7
Quality					
Customer satisfaction index: metropolitan bus services	score	77	76	77	77
Customer satisfaction index: regional coach services	score	84	82	84	82
Timeliness					
Service punctuality for: metropolitan bus	per cent	82	82	82	79
services					
Metropolitan buses are on-time when services of four minutes and 59 seconds late at key monito		ing points no more	e than 59 second	s early and no r	nore than
Service punctuality for: regional bus	per cent	92	92	92	95
services Regional buses are on-time when services depart j minutes and 59 seconds late at key monitoring po		nts no more than !	59 seconds early	and no more th	an four
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	1 169.2	1 119.0	1 119.3	1 049.9
The higher 2017-18 target is mainly due to inde	+				1015.5
Source: Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Tra					

Integrated Transport

(2017-18: \$64.4 million)

This output delivers strategic transport infrastructure activity to improve the transport system. The output contributes to the Department's objective to create more productive and liveable cities and regions through improved transport services and better infrastructure.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Quantity					
Integrated transport planning to support urban renewal projects	number	6	6	6	6
Level Crossing Removal Program: Milestones delivered in accordance with agreed budget and timelines	per cent	100	100	100	100
Planning projects for other major transport infrastructure	number	5	5	5	5
Quality					
Ballarat Line Upgrade – planning and development: Milestones delivered in	per cent	100	nm	nm	nm
accordance with agreed budget and					
timelines					
New performance measure for 2017-18 to repo undertaken by Melbourne Metropolitan Rail Au	, ,				ctivities
Melbourne Metro Rail Project – planning and development: Milestones delivered in accordance with agreed budget and timelines	per cent	100	100	100	100
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	64.4	68.9	65.5	14.8
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the delivery of major infrastructure projects. The lower 2017-18 target is mainly due to a dec	-			ng associated w	vith the

Port and Freight Network Access

(2017-18: \$104.0 million)

This output delivers capital initiatives and programs to increase the capacity, efficiency and safety of the ports, freight and logistics network.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Quantity					
Annual Boating Safety and Facilities Grant Program funding committed	per cent	100	100	100	100
Containers transported by rail under the Mode Shift Incentive Scheme program	number	42 500	42 500	42 500	42 830
Number of months per year average channel depth at Lakes Entrance meets standards	number	9	9	9	9
Road-based freight accessibility and reliability improvement projects completed	number	16	9	6	3
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than to target was set. The higher 2017-18 target reflects new funding	·				
Quality					
Number of accessible local ports	number	14	14	14	14
Road network permitted for use by high productivity freight vehicles	per cent	10	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017-18 to refle vehicles.	ct the percentag	ge of the network	k available for use	by high produc	tivity freight
Road-based freight accessibility and reliability projects completed within specified scope and standards	per cent	100	100	100	100
Timeliness					
Delivery of a Metropolitan Intermodal System – Market Engagement	date	TBC	-	ТВС	-
The target for 2017-18 is subject to Commonwe	alth approval o	f the proposed in	nplementation pla	n.	
Road-based freight accessibility and reliability projects completed within agreed timeframes	per cent	100	100	100	100
Cost					
Total output cost The lower 2017-18 target reflects the funding p Access project and Port Phillip Bay Fund.	\$ million rofile for the Boo	104.0 ating and Safety	114.9 Facilities program	116.6 n, Gippsland Lak	105.0 res Ocean

Road Asset Management

(2017-18: \$604.3 million)

This output group delivers programs and initiatives to maintain Victoria's freeways and arterial road network. Activities support the safety and reliability of the network.

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Quantity					
Bridges maintained: metropolitan	number	927	927	927	938
Bridges maintained: regional	number	2 255	2 255	2 255	2 258
Road area treated: high strategic priority roads	m² (000)	8 846	nm	nm	nm
This performance measure is proposed to repla and 'Pavements resurfaced: regional'. These me road treatments to maintain or extend the usef Road treatments include pavement resurfacing Road Maintenance Categories 1, 2 and 3. Roac the number of vehicles using the road per day,	easures are being ful life of a road. and rehabilitations are allocated to	or replaced to prov on. High strategic o road maintenar	vide greater tran	sparency of inve re roads within N	estments in /icRoads'
Road area treated: medium strategic	m ² (000)	2 001	nm	nm	nm
priority roads					
road treatments to maintain or extend the usef Road treatments include pavement resurfacing VicRoads' Road Maintenance Categories 4.1 an connectivity, the number of vehicles using the r	and rehabilitation ad 4.2. Roads are oad per day, and	allocated to road	l maintenance co		
Road area treated: low strategic priority roads	m ² (000)	11	nm	nm	nm
This performance measure is proposed to repla and 'Pavements resurfaced: regional'. These me road treatments to maintain or extend the usef Road treatments include pavement resurfacing Road Maintenance Categories 5.1 and 5.2. Roo the number of vehicles using the road per day,	easures are being ful life of a road. and rehabilitation ads are allocated	preplaced to prov on. Low strategic to road maintend	vide greater tran priority roads are	sparency of inve e roads within V	estments in 'icRoads'
Road network maintained: metropolitan	lane-km	12 302	12 302	12 302	12 308
Road network maintained: regional	lane-km	41 435	41 435	41 435	41 495
Traffic signal operational availability	per cent	99.95	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017-18 to repo the safe and efficient movements of all road us provides the percentage of sites performing at aggregated outage over the month) or less tha	ort on traffic signa ers. Traffic signal an average of 10	operational avai 0% (sites with no	lability (from the alarms), 99.95%	drivers' perspe (sites with 20 r	ctive)
Traffic signal performance –	per cent	97	nm	nm	nm
communications ('DA Alarm'): vehicle					
detector connectivity to signals					
New performance measure for 2017-18 to repo the safe and efficient movements of all road us using 'Detector Alarms' (DA Alarm). This measu	ers. Signals are o	ften triggered by	vehicle detector	s which VicRoad	ls monitors

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Traffic signal performance –	per cent	99.6	nm	nm	nm
communications ('Stop Talk'):					
connectivity between different traffic					
signals					
New performance measure for 2017-18 to rep the safe and efficient movements of all road us neighbouring sites.				,	
Quality					
Bridges that are acceptable for legal load	per cent	99.6	99.6	99.6	99.6
vehicles: metropolitan					
Bridges that are acceptable for legal load vehicles: regional	per cent	99.6	99.6	99.6	99.6
Road length meeting cracking standard: metropolitan	per cent	97.7	nm	nm	nm
This performance measure is proposed to replo distressed: Metropolitan'. This has been replac investments in pavements. Cracking is indicative of how waterproof a pav	ed to provide grea	-			
Road length meeting cracking standard:	per cent	98.8	nm	nm	nm
regional					
This performance measure is proposed to reple distressed: Regional'. This has been replaced to investments in pavements. Cracking is indicative of how waterproof a pav	o provide greater t	-			
Road length meeting roughness standard: metropolitan	per cent	98.2	nm	nm	nm
This performance measure is proposed to reple distressed: Metropolitan'. This has been replac investments in pavements. Roughness is used to measure user ride quality	ed to provide grea	-			
Road length meeting roughness standard: regional	per cent	96.4	nm	nm	
This performance measure is proposed to real					nm
This performance measure is proposed to reple distressed: Regional'. This has been replaced to investments in pavements. Roughness is used to measure user ride quality	o provide greater t	-		of road pavemei	nts not
distressed: Regional'. This has been replaced to investments in pavements.	o provide greater t	-		of road pavemei	nts not
distressed: Regional'. This has been replaced to investments in pavements. Roughness is used to measure user ride quality	o provide greater t v.	ransparency in n	neasuring the ove	of road pavemen erall effectivene:	nts not ss of
distressed: Regional'. This has been replaced to investments in pavements. Roughness is used to measure user ride quality Road length meeting rutting standard:	p provide greater t , per cent ace the 2016-17 per red to provide grea	98.9 98.9	neasuring the over nm sure 'Proportion o	of road pavemen erall effectivenes nm of road pavemen	nts not ss of nm nts not
distressed: Regional'. This has been replaced to investments in pavements. Roughness is used to measure user ride quality Road length meeting rutting standard: metropolitan This performance measure is proposed to replac distressed: Metropolitan'. This has been replace investments in pavements.	p provide greater t , per cent ace the 2016-17 per red to provide grea	98.9 98.9	neasuring the over nm sure 'Proportion o	of road pavemen erall effectivenes nm of road pavemen	nts not ss of nm nts not
distressed: Regional'. This has been replaced to investments in pavements. Roughness is used to measure user ride quality Road length meeting rutting standard: metropolitan This performance measure is proposed to repla distressed: Metropolitan'. This has been replac investments in pavements. Rutting is indicative of how likely a pavement i	p provide greater t , per cent ace the 2016-17 per ced to provide great is to fail.	ransparency in n 98.9 erformance meas ster transparency	neasuring the over nm sure 'Proportion o in measuring the	of road pavemen erall effectivene: nm of road pavemen e overall effection	nts not ss of nm nts not veness of
distressed: Regional'. This has been replaced to investments in pavements. Roughness is used to measure user ride quality Road length meeting rutting standard: metropolitan This performance measure is proposed to repla distressed: Metropolitan'. This has been replace investments in pavements. Rutting is indicative of how likely a pavement i Road length meeting rutting standard:	per cent per cent ace the 2016-17 per ced to provide great s to fail. per cent ace the 2016-17 per provide greater t	98.9 98.9 erformance meas ater transparency 97.8 erformance meas	neasuring the over nm sure 'Proportion of ' in measuring the nm sure 'Proportion of	of road pavemen erall effectivenes nm of road pavemen e overall effection nm	nts not ss of nm nts not veness of nm nts not
distressed: Regional'. This has been replaced to investments in pavements. Roughness is used to measure user ride quality Road length meeting rutting standard: metropolitan This performance measure is proposed to repla distressed: Metropolitan'. This has been replace investments in pavements. Rutting is indicative of how likely a pavement i Road length meeting rutting standard: regional This performance measure is proposed to replace distressed: Regional'. This has been replaced to investments in pavements.	per cent per cent ace the 2016-17 per ced to provide great s to fail. per cent ace the 2016-17 per provide greater t	98.9 98.9 erformance meas ater transparency 97.8 erformance meas	neasuring the over nm sure 'Proportion of ' in measuring the nm sure 'Proportion of	of road pavemen erall effectivenes nm of road pavemen e overall effection nm	nts not ss of nm nts not veness of nm nts not
distressed: Regional'. This has been replaced to investments in pavements. Roughness is used to measure user ride quality Road length meeting rutting standard: metropolitan This performance measure is proposed to repla distressed: Metropolitan'. This has been replace investments in pavements. Rutting is indicative of how likely a pavement it Road length meeting rutting standard: regional This performance measure is proposed to replace distressed: Regional'. This has been replaced to investments in pavements. Rutting is indicative of how likely a pavement it Road length meeting rutting standard: regional	per cent per cent ace the 2016-17 per ced to provide great s to fail. per cent ace the 2016-17 per provide greater t	98.9 98.9 erformance meas ater transparency 97.8 erformance meas	neasuring the over nm sure 'Proportion of ' in measuring the nm sure 'Proportion of	of road pavemen erall effectivenes nm of road pavemen e overall effection nm	nts not ss of nm nts not veness of nm nts not

		2016-17							
Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual				
Annual road maintenance program completed within agreed timeframes: regional	per cent	100	100	100	100				
Cost									
Total output cost	\$ million	604.3	460.5	440.3	437.3				
The higher 2017-18 target reflects additiona activities, in part offset by the completion of	, ,	0,	a number of initia	itives for road n	naintenance				

Road Operations and Network Improvements

(2017-18: \$1 037.6 million)

This output group delivers network improvement initiatives to enhance and develop Victoria's freeways, arterial road network and strategic local road connections. Activities support improvements to the safety and reliability of the network.

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Quantity					
Bridge strengthening and replacement projects completed: metropolitan	number	2	4	2	6
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the target was set.	the 2016-17 targ	get due to the inclu	ision of two proje	ects in the progr	am after
Bridge strengthening and replacement	number	9	8	7	5
projects completed: regional					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than The higher 2017-18 target reflects new funding initiative.					
Congestion projects completed	number	18	10	10	6
The higher 2017-18 target reflects new funding Performance and Productivity' initiative.	provided in the	2017-18 Budget <i>f</i> e	or the 'Optimising	g Transport Net	work
Cycling projects completed	number	4	2	3	2
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than t identified due to be completed in 2016-17, ana The higher 2017-18 target includes three proje funded by the Safer Cyclists and Pedestrians Fu	inclusion of two cts originally pla	projects not origin	nally included in 2	2016-17 target.	
Major road improvement projects	number	1	0	0	2
completed: metropolitan					
The higher 2017-18 target reflects the number projects are underway and often span multiple and beyond.					•
Major road improvement projects completed: regional	number	1	0	1	2
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than t duplication having an estimated completion da 17, Heyfield Road to Reid Road, will be comple	nte of 30 June 20				
Other road improvement projects	number	10	7	7	3
completed: metropolitan					
The higher 2017-18 target reflects new funding Performance and Productivity' initiative.	provided in the	2017-18 Budget fo	or the 'Optimising	g Transport Net	work
Other road improvement projects	number	8	8	7	12
completed: regional					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than being completed in 2016-17. The higher 2017-18 target reflects the funding seal roads program – South western Victoria' i	provided in the 2		-		
Pedestrian projects completed	number	9	7	1	13
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than program after the target was set and an additi The higher 2017-18 target reflects funding pro Transport Network Performance and Productiv	onal four project	ts carried over from	n previous years.	, ,	

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Quality					
Road projects completed within agreed scope and standards: metropolitan	per cent	98	98	98	98
Road projects completed within agreed scope and standards: regional	per cent	98	98	98	98
Safer Cyclists and Pedestrians Fund allocated	per cent	100	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017-18 to refle It reports the percentage of the \$100 million fro including any funding committed in prior years	om the Safer Cyc				
West Gate Tunnel Project – Milestones delivered in accordance with agreed budget and timelines	per cent	100	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017-18 to repo undertaken by the Western Distributor Authori				procurement a	ctivities
Timeliness					
Programmed works completed within agreed timeframes: metropolitan	per cent	95	95	95	95
Programmed works completed within agreed timeframes: regional	per cent	95	95	95	95
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	1 037.6	1 023.6	982.9	945.0
The higher 2017-18 target is mainly due to ada	litional funding ir	n the 2017-18 Bud	lget for a number	r of initiatives.	

Taxi and Hire Vehicle Services

(2017-18: \$269.4 million)

This output delivers safe and accessible taxi and hire vehicle services in metropolitan and regional Victoria through the regulation of drivers and operators and promoting choices available to customers.

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Quantity					
Average occupancy rate of metropolitan	per cent	29	28	31	30
taxis in December (period of high service demand)					
1	a 2010 17 tana	at due te chanaina	manlat as aditio		
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the The lower 2017-18 taraet reflects expected ave					
This performance measure was proposed to be	5 1 1		,		following
the Public Accounts and Estimates Committee's	review of the 2	016-17 budget est	imates.		
Average occupancy rate of metropolitan	per cent	26	26	28	28
taxis in June (period of low service					
demand)					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the	ne 2016-17 targe	et due changing m	arket conditions.		
The lower 2017-18 target reflects expected ave					
This performance measure was proposed to be the Public Accounts and Estimates Committee's		•		been reinstated	following
	number	4 450	4 450	4 450	nm
Multi-Purpose Taxi Program: trips subsidised	(000)	4 4 5 0	4 4 5 0	4 4 5 0	11111
I I	. ,	maggura (Numbar	of multi purposo	tavi programi	rinc
This performance measure renames the 2016-1 subsidised'. The new measure reports on the sa					
consistency.	ine delivity us ti	ie previous meusu		beenrenamea	<i>J</i> 01
Multi-Purpose Taxi Program:	number	950	950	950	nm
wheelchair and scooter lifting fees paid	(000)				
This performance measure renames the existing and scooter lifting fees paid'. The new measure renamed for consistency.					
Taxi and hire vehicle compliance and	number	19 200	19 200	19 200	20 373
enforcement interventions					
Quality					
Average wait time for conventional taxis	minutes	9.6	9.9	9.2	9.6
booked to arrive at peak periods of					
demand					
	ha 2010 17 taxa		anaina markat a	onditions	
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than t	ne 2016-17 targ	et as a result of ch	iunging murket c	Siluitions.	
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than t The higher 2017-18 target is a result of industry		iet as a result of ch	iunging murket o	Sinditions.	
		28	26	29	28
The higher 2017-18 target is a result of industry	rtrends.	-			28
The higher 2017-18 target is a result of industry Average wait time for wheelchair	rtrends.	-			28
The higher 2017-18 target is a result of industry Average wait time for wheelchair accessible taxis booked to arrive at peak periods of demand The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than th	v <u>trends.</u> minutes ne 2016-17 targe	28 et which could be c	26 attributed to the i	29 increase in the v	vheelchair
The higher 2017-18 target is a result of industry Average wait time for wheelchair accessible taxis booked to arrive at peak periods of demand The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than th lifting fee from \$16.70 to \$20. This became effe	v trends. minutes ne 2016-17 targe active from Octob	28 et which could be c ber 2016 and creat	26 attributed to the i	29 increase in the v	vheelchair
The higher 2017-18 target is a result of industry Average wait time for wheelchair accessible taxis booked to arrive at peak periods of demand The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than th lifting fee from \$16.70 to \$20. This became effe taxi drivers to prioritise wheelchair trips over co	y trends. minutes ne 2016-17 targe ctive from Octor inventional trips	28 et which could be c ber 2016 and creat	26 attributed to the i	29 increase in the v or wheelchair a	vheelchair ccessible
The higher 2017-18 target is a result of industry Average wait time for wheelchair accessible taxis booked to arrive at peak periods of demand The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than th lifting fee from \$16.70 to \$20. This became effe	n trends. minutes the 2016-17 target cative from Octoo inventional trips o average wait th	28 et which could be c ber 2016 and creat ime for wheelchair	26 attributed to the i tes an incentive for accessible taxis i	29 increase in the v or wheelchair a booked at peak	vheelchair ccessible periods

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Taxi services online customer rating:	score	61.0	61.0	60.4	61.4
overall satisfaction in metropolitan					
Melbourne					
The higher 2017-18 target reflects an improver December 2016 quarter.	nent in custome	r satisfaction, calc	culated on a rollir	g basis for the	October to
Taxi services online customer rating:	score	72.8	72.8	72.3	72.7
overall satisfaction in regional Victoria					
The higher 2017-18 target reflects an improver. December 2016 quarter.	nent in custome	r satisfaction, calc	culated on a rollir	g basis for the	October to
Taxi services online customer rating:	score	69.7	68.2	69.7	67.8
safety and comfort of journeys					
Taxis and hire vehicles conform to safety	per cent	83	83	82	83
and quality standards					
The higher 2017-18 target reflects improved pr	ocess that is exp	ected to improve	outcomes.		
Timeliness					
Commercial passenger vehicle service	per cent	85	nm	nm	nm
complaints and intelligence reports					
investigated and closed within 45 days					
This performance measure replaces the 2016-1				, ,	
closed within 45 days' and 'Taxi and hire vehicle					
on the same activity as the previous measure h and to better reflect the service received by the		n amended to incl	ude a broader sc	ope aue to ride:	snare reform
Taxi and hire vehicle: calls to the Taxi	per cent	56	54	54	52
Services Commission call centre	per cent	50	54	54	52
answered within 20 seconds					
The higher 2017-18 target reflects expectations	s of improved pe	erformance			
This performance measure was proposed to be			been reinstated f	ollowing the Pu	blic
Accounts and Estimates Committee's review of	the 2016-17 Bu	dget Estimates. Tl	his measure repla	ices the discont	inued
measure 'Taxi and hire vehicle: average speed of	of calls answere	d in the Taxi Servio	ces Commission o	all centre'	
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	269.4	321.7	89.2	89.4
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than t	he 2016-17 targ	get due to the imp	lementation of th	ne Commercial	Passenger
Vehicle Reform in 2016-17.					
The higher 2017-18 target reflects the funding	profile of the Co	mmercial Passeng	ger Vehicle Refori	n.	
Source: Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Tro	ansport and Reso	urces			

(2017-18: \$3 143.9 million)

Train Services

This output delivers reliable and cost effective train services and infrastructure investments across the Victorian rail network, including services delivered through contractual arrangements with private operators.

			2016-17		
Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Quantity					
Passengers carried: metropolitan train services	number (million)	239.6	234.2	241.3	233
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than t bus replacement services due to closures of sec upgrades. The lower 2017-18 target reflects the anticipat due to level crossing removals and infrastructu	tions of the rail n ed impact on pat	network for level o	crossing removals	s and other infr	astructure
Passengers carried:	number	20.6	19.8	19.8	17.7
regional train and coach services	(million)				
The higher 2017-18 target reflects the expected	d growth as a res	ult of improved s	ervice frequencie	<i>s.</i>	
Payments made for: metropolitan train services	\$ million	784	807	760	782
of Night Network, and additional operating an of capital subsidy funding from 2015-16. The higher 2017-18 target reflects additional fi public transport on weekends.	unding provided i				
Payments made for:	\$ million	516	487	468	460
regional train and coach services The higher 2017-18 target mainly reflects the i the 2017-18 Budget.	ncreased funding	for additional re	gional rail service	es as announced	l as part of
Public railway crossings upgraded	number	32	43	25	29
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than The higher 2017-18 target reflects the projects				ng of crossing up	ogrades.
Public transport network improvement: minor projects completed – train	number	3	15	11	10
This performance measure records the number The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than 2016-17. The lower 2017-18 target reflects the project s forward from 2017-18 to 2016-17.	the 2016-17 targ	et due to projects	that were broug	ht forward from	
Public transport network improvement: multimodal projects completed	number	2	3	2	2
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than to 2016-17.	the 2016-17 targ	et due to one proj	iect that was bro	ught forward fr	om 2017-18
Scheduled services delivered: metropolitan train	per cent	99	99	99	99
Scheduled services delivered: regional train	per cent	98.5	96.7	98.5	96.6
Total kilometres scheduled: metropolitan train	km (million)	23.0	22.8	22.8	22.9
The higher 2017-18 target reflects the current	master timetable	2			

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Total kilometres scheduled: regional train	km	24.8	24.7	24.7	24.1
and coach	(million)				
The higher 2017-18 target reflects additional fun additional services' initiative.	nding provided i	n the 2017-18 Bu	dget for the 'She	pparton Line Up	ograde and
Quality					
Availability of rolling stock: metropolitan trains	per cent	94	93	94	93
Availability of rolling stock: VLocity fleet	per cent	92.5	91	92.5	88.3
Calls to the Public Transport Victoria call centre answered within 30 seconds	per cent	80	80	80	76
Customer satisfaction index: metropolitan train services	score	73	72.2	72.2	72.3
The higher 2017-18 target reflects performance	improvement a	s a result of netw	ork upgrades.		
Customer satisfaction index: regional train services	score	78	77	77	76
The higher 2017-18 target reflects the timetable	changes and a	ditional services	introduced in 20	16-17.	
Metropolitan fare compliance rate across all public transport modes	per cent	96.5	96.0	96.5	nm
This performance measure renames the 2016-1 performance measure reports on the same activ					
Public transport network improvement: performance against master project schedule	per cent	90	90	90	90
Timeliness					
Major periodic maintenance works completed against plan: metropolitan train network	per cent	100	100	100	100
Major periodic maintenance works completed against plan: regional train network	per cent	100	100	100	96
Service punctuality for metropolitan train services	per cent	92.5	92.2	92.5	92.5
Metropolitan trains are considered on time if the in the timetable.	ey arrive no moi	e than four minu	tes and 59 secon	ds after the sch	eduled time
Service punctuality for regional train services	per cent	92	87	92	87
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the restrictions, and congestion on the metropolitan	-	t due to a range o	of factors includir	ng level crossing	y speed
Long-distance regional trains are considered on destination. Short-distance regional trains are co late at their destination.					
Cost					
Total output cost The higher 2017-18 target primarily reflects ada increase in the capital assets charge as a result o				2 952.6 er of initiatives	2 827.7 and an

Tram Services

(2017-18: \$685.9 million)

This output delivers reliable and cost-effective tram services and infrastructure investments, including public transport services delivered through contractual arrangements with private operators.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

	Unit of	2017-18	2016-17 expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Quantity					
Level access tram stop upgraded	number	12	2	6	10
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than	the 2016-17 targe	t due to project d	lelays due to loca	l government a	pproval
processes. The higher 2017-18 target reflects the revised	construction sche	dule.			
Passengers carried:	number	212.9	205.3	200.1	203.8
tram services	(million)				
The higher 2017-18 target reflects patronage capacity E-Class trams.	growth associated	d with service imp	provements and t	he deployment	of high
Payments made for: tram services	\$ million	200	207	200	203
Progress of Tram procurement and	per cent	93	81	93	77
supporting infrastructure – cumulative					
project expenditure					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than construction.	the 2016-17 targe	t due to ongoing	negotiations reg	arding land for s	substation
Public transport network improvement:	number	1	2	2	2
minor projects completed – tram					
This performance measure records the numbe The lower 2017-18 target reflects the current					3.
Scheduled services delivered: tram	per cent	99.2	98.8	99.2	98.8
Total kilometres scheduled: tram	km (million)	24.0	23.7	23.7	23.9
The higher 2017-18 target reflects additional j services' initiative.	funding provided i	<i>in the</i> 2017-18 Bu	dget for the 'Mo	re train, tram ai	nd bus
W-Class trams fully restored	number	2	0	0	1
The higher 2017-18 target reflects the numbe 2017-18. Projects within this measure often sp		-	neduled and expe	ected to be deliv	ered within
Quality					
Availability of rolling stock: trams	per cent	94	93	94	92
Customer satisfaction index:	score	76	76	76	76
tram services					
Timeliness					
Major periodic maintenance works	per cent	100	100	100	100
completed against plan: tram network	1				
Service punctuality for: tram services	per cent	82.9	83.5	82.9	83.7
Trams are on-time when services are no more passing key monitoring locations.	than 59 seconds of	early or no more t	than four minute	s 59 seconds lat	e when
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	685.9	664.9	652.2	621.9
The higher 2017-18 target mainly reflects an i	increase in the can	ital asset charae	as a result of inv	estment in infra	structure

Transport Safety, Security and Emergency Management (2017-18: \$363.9 million)

This output delivers initiatives and regulatory activities that will improve safety and security and strengthen resilience.

erformance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actua
vantity					
Accredited State maritime training providers audited in accordance with	number	20	20	20	20
annual audit plan					
Regulatory interventions conducted on high-risk or accredited rail transport	number	100	96	70	70
operators					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the investigations undertaken in accordance with Oj The higher 2017-18 target is based on the Office This performance measure was proposed to be the Public Accounts and Estimates Committee's	fice of the Nati of the Nationa liscontinued in	onal Rail Safety Re I Rail Safety Regul the 2016-17 Budg	egulator work pro ator work progra et, however has b	ogram for 2016 m for 2017-18.	-17.
Risk-based recreational vessel	number	500	nm	nm	nm
inspections undertaken in accordance		500			
with state legislative requirements					
Auditor-General's audit of recreational maritime This measure replaces the measure 'Recreationa requirements'. Road safety projects/initiatives		ions undertaken ir 2	n accordance with	n state legislativ	ie
completed: safe road users					
completed: safe road users The lower 2017-18 target reflects the number of		-			
completed: safe road users The lower 2017-18 target reflects the number of Road safety projects/initiatives completed: safe roads	number	93	129	<i>017-18.</i> 125	169
completed: safe road users The lower 2017-18 target reflects the number of Road safety projects/initiatives	number	93	129		169
completed: safe road users The lower 2017-18 target reflects the number of Road safety projects/initiatives completed: safe roads	number	93	129		169
completed: safe road users The lower 2017-18 target reflects the number of Road safety projects/initiatives completed: safe roads The lower 2017-18 target reflects a reduction in Road safety projects/initiatives	number Black Spot fund number	93 ding by the Commo 0	129 onwealth. 4	125	5
completed: safe road users The lower 2017-18 target reflects the number of Road safety projects/initiatives completed: safe roads The lower 2017-18 target reflects a reduction in Road safety projects/initiatives completed: safe vehicles The lower 2017-18 target reflects the number of measure often span across multiple years.	number Black Spot fund number	93 ding by the Commo 0	129 onwealth. 4	125	
completed: safe road users The lower 2017-18 target reflects the number of Road safety projects/initiatives completed: safe roads The lower 2017-18 target reflects a reduction in Road safety projects/initiatives completed: safe vehicles The lower 2017-18 target reflects the number of measure often span across multiple years. Road vehicle and driver regulation: driver	number Black Spot fund number committed pro	93 ding by the Commo 0 bjects scheduled to	129 onwealth. 4 be delivered in 2	125 4 017-18. Project	s within this
completed: safe road users The lower 2017-18 target reflects the number of Road safety projects/initiatives completed: safe roads The lower 2017-18 target reflects a reduction in Road safety projects/initiatives completed: safe vehicles The lower 2017-18 target reflects the number of measure often span across multiple years. Road vehicle and driver regulation: driver	number Black Spot fund number committed pro number (000)	93 ding by the Commo 0 bjects scheduled to	129 onwealth. 4 be delivered in 2	125 4 017-18. Project	s within thi
completed: safe road users The lower 2017-18 target reflects the number of Road safety projects/initiatives completed: safe roads The lower 2017-18 target reflects a reduction in Road safety projects/initiatives completed: safe vehicles The lower 2017-18 target reflects the number of measure often span across multiple years. Road vehicle and driver regulation: driver licences renewed The lower 2017-18 target reflects cyclical trends	number Black Spot fund number committed pro number (000)	93 ding by the Commo 0 bjects scheduled to	129 onwealth. 4 be delivered in 2	125 4 017-18. Project	s within thi 794
completed: safe road users The lower 2017-18 target reflects the number of Road safety projects/initiatives completed: safe roads The lower 2017-18 target reflects a reduction in Road safety projects/initiatives completed: safe vehicles The lower 2017-18 target reflects the number of measure often span across multiple years. Road vehicle and driver regulation: driver licences renewed The lower 2017-18 target reflects cyclical trends Road vehicle and driver regulation: new	number Black Spot fund number committed pro number (000) in renewal.	93 ling by the Commo 0 ojects scheduled to 648	129 onwealth. 4 o be delivered in 2 707	125 4 017-18. Project 716	s within thi
completed: safe road users The lower 2017-18 target reflects the number of Road safety projects/initiatives completed: safe roads The lower 2017-18 target reflects a reduction in Road safety projects/initiatives completed: safe vehicles The lower 2017-18 target reflects the number of measure often span across multiple years. Road vehicle and driver regulation: driver licences renewed The lower 2017-18 target reflects cyclical trends Road vehicle and driver regulation: new driver licences issued Road vehicle and driver regulation: new	number Black Spot fund number committed pro number (000) in renewal. number (000) number	93 ling by the Commo 0 ojects scheduled to 648	129 onwealth. 4 o be delivered in 2 707	125 4 017-18. Project 716	s within thi 794 18
completed: safe road users The lower 2017-18 target reflects the number of Road safety projects/initiatives completed: safe roads The lower 2017-18 target reflects a reduction in Road safety projects/initiatives completed: safe vehicles The lower 2017-18 target reflects the number of measure often span across multiple years. Road vehicle and driver regulation: driver licences renewed The lower 2017-18 target reflects cyclical trends Road vehicle and driver regulation: new driver licences issued Road vehicle and driver regulation: new	number Black Spot fund number committed pro number (000) in renewal. number (000) number (000)	93 ding by the Commo 0 ojects scheduled to 648 190 610	129 onwealth. 4 be delivered in 2 707 182 594	125 4 017-18. Project 716 190 593	25 within thi 794 18: 584
completed: safe road users The lower 2017-18 target reflects the number of Road safety projects/initiatives completed: safe roads The lower 2017-18 target reflects a reduction in Road safety projects/initiatives completed: safe vehicles The lower 2017-18 target reflects the number of measure often span across multiple years. Road vehicle and driver regulation: driver licences renewed The lower 2017-18 target reflects cyclical trends Road vehicle and driver regulation: new driver licences issued Road vehicle and driver regulation: new vehicle registrations issued	number Black Spot fund number committed pro number (000) in renewal. number (000) number (000)	93 ding by the Commo 0 ojects scheduled to 648 190 610	129 onwealth. 4 be delivered in 2 707 182 594	125 4 017-18. Project 716 190 593	25 within thi 794 185 584
completed: safe road users The lower 2017-18 target reflects the number of Road safety projects/initiatives completed: safe roads The lower 2017-18 target reflects a reduction in Road safety projects/initiatives completed: safe vehicles The lower 2017-18 target reflects the number of measure often span across multiple years. Road vehicle and driver regulation: driver licences renewed The lower 2017-18 target reflects cyclical trends Road vehicle and driver regulation: new driver licences issued Road vehicle and driver regulation: new vehicle registrations issued The higher 2017-18 target reflects forecasts of t economic indicators and historical movements. Road vehicle and driver regulation: vehicle and driver information requests, including toll operator and council	number Black Spot fund number committed pro number (000) in renewal. number (000) number (000)	93 ding by the Commo 0 ojects scheduled to 648 190 610	129 onwealth. 4 be delivered in 2 707 182 594	125 4 017-18. Project 716 190 593	25 within thi 794 183 584
completed: safe road users The lower 2017-18 target reflects the number of Road safety projects/initiatives completed: safe roads The lower 2017-18 target reflects a reduction in Road safety projects/initiatives completed: safe vehicles The lower 2017-18 target reflects the number of measure often span across multiple years. Road vehicle and driver regulation: driver licences renewed The lower 2017-18 target reflects cyclical trends Road vehicle and driver regulation: new driver licences issued Road vehicle and driver regulation: new vehicle registrations issued The higher 2017-18 target reflects forecasts of the economic indicators and historical movements. Road vehicle and driver regulation: vehicle and driver regulation: vehicle and driver regulation: Vehicle and driver regulation: Road vehicle and driver regulation: Noad vehicle and driver regulation: Noad vehicle and driver regulation: Vehicle and driver regulation: Vehicle and driver regulation: Vehicle and driver information requests,	number Black Spot fund number committed pro number (000) in renewal. number (000) number (000) he number of no number (000)	93 ding by the Commo 0 ojects scheduled to 648 190 610 ew vehicle registro 3 940	129 onwealth. 4 be delivered in 2 707 182 594 ations issues, base	125 4 017-18. Project 716 190 593 ed on demograp	s within th 79 18 58 ohic and

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Road vehicle and driver regulation:	number	930	904	900	904
vehicle registration transfers	(000)				
The higher 2017-18 target reflects forecasts of t economic indicators and historical movements.	he number of r	new vehicle regist	ration transfers, b	ased on demogi	raphic and
Road vehicle and driver regulation:	number	5 725	5 587	5 600	5 533
vehicle registrations renewed	(000)				
The higher 2017-18 target reflects forecasts of t economic indicators and historical movements.	he number of r	new vehicle regist	trations issues, bas	ed on demogra	phic and
Safety audits of bus operators conducted	number	560	1 033	560	560
in accordance with Bus Safety Act 2009					
(Vic) requirements					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the safety audits of registered bus operators for this			ernal audit provide	er conducting ad	lditional
Sector Resilience Plans endorsed by State Crisis and Resilience Council	number	3	3	4	nm
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than th July 2016. The Energy Sector Resilience Plan was The lower 2017-18 target also reflects the mach from a quality measure in 2016-17 to a quantity	s transferred to inery of govern	the Department ment changes. T	of Environment, L his performance n	and, Water and neasure has bee	Planning.
Security and emergency management	number	8	8	14	8
exercises coordinated or contributed to by the Department					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than th July 2016. Six energy portfolio exercises were tro The lower 2017-18 target also reflects the mach	ansferred to the	e Department of I			
Transport and marine safety	per cent	100	100	100	100
investigations: proportion of notified					
accidents with passenger fatalities and/or					
multiple serious passenger injuries					
investigated					
Transport safety regulation: rail safety	number	100	96	50	50
audits/compliance inspections conducted					
in accordance with legislative					
requirements					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the investigations undertaken in accordance to the The higher 2017-18 target is based on the Office This performance measure was proposed to be the Public Accounts and Estimates Committee's	Office of the No of the Nationa discontinued in	ational Rail Safety al Rail Safety Reg the 2016-17 Buc	y Regulator work p ulator work progra lget, however has	orogram for 201 am for 2017-18	6-17.
Quality					
Commercial maritime duty holders other	per cent	100	100	100	100
than vessel owners and operators	p				
audited in accordance with legislative					
requirements and timelines					
Compliance inspections of managed and	per cent	100	nm	nm	nm
unmanaged Victorian waterways in accordance with risk-based plan					
This performance measures replaces the 2016-1 zoning rules in designated Victorian waterways The new measure is the same as the previous m waterways.	conducted in a	ccordance with a	nnual audit plan'.		-

	Unit of	2017-18	2016-17 expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Deliver regulatory services under	per cent	100	100	100	100
delegation of the Australian Maritime	per cent	100	100	200	100
Safety Authority (AMSA) for domestic					
commercial vessel actions undertaken in					
accordance with national regulation,					
timelines and transition plan					
This performance measure renames the existing undertaken in accordance with national regulat under delegation of the national maritime safet	ion and timelin				
Rail safety audits, compliance inspections	per cent	100	100	100	100
and investigations conducted in					
accordance with state and national					
legislative requirements and timelines					
This performance measure was proposed to be the Public Accounts and Estimates Committee's	review of the 2	016-17 Budget Es	timates.		
Road safety projects completed within agreed scope and standards	per cent	100	100	100	100
Road vehicle and driver regulation:	per cent	99	99	99	99
currency of vehicle registration and					
driver licensing records					
Road vehicle and driver regulation: user	per cent	85	91	>85	90
satisfaction with vehicle registration and					
driver licensing					
The higher 2016-17 expected outcome is a resul digital services to meet customer expectations. The 2017-18 target has been amended in accord unbounded ranges as targets should be modifie	dance with the	recommendation	from the PAEC th	at measures wit	h
Timeliness	5		3	, ,,	·
Applications for bus operator registration	per cent	100	100	100	100
and safety accreditation processed on	per cent	100	100	100	100
time in accordance with <i>Bus Safety Act</i>					
2009 (Vic) requirements					
Applications for rail accreditation and	per cent	100	100	100	100
variations to accreditation processed	per cent	100	100	100	100
within state and national legislative					
requirements and timelines					
Initiate marine pollution response action	per cent	100	100	100	100
Initiate marine pollution response action within 60 minutes of incident notification	per cent	100	100	100	100
within 60 minutes of incident notification	•				
within 60 minutes of incident notification Multi-Purpose Taxi Program: applications	per cent	100 97	100 97	100 97	100
within 60 minutes of incident notification Multi-Purpose Taxi Program: applications assessed and completed within 14 days	per cent	97	97	97	99
within 60 minutes of incident notification Multi-Purpose Taxi Program: applications assessed and completed within 14 days New and renewed taxi, hire vehicle and	•				
within 60 minutes of incident notification Multi-Purpose Taxi Program: applications assessed and completed within 14 days New and renewed taxi, hire vehicle and bus driver accreditation applications	per cent	97	97	97	99
within 60 minutes of incident notification Multi-Purpose Taxi Program: applications assessed and completed within 14 days New and renewed taxi, hire vehicle and bus driver accreditation applications processed within 14 days	per cent	97 85	97 85	97 85	99 70
within 60 minutes of incident notification Multi-Purpose Taxi Program: applications assessed and completed within 14 days New and renewed taxi, hire vehicle and bus driver accreditation applications processed within 14 days This performance measure amends the 2016-17 applications processed within 14 days.' The med This performance measure was proposed to be	per cent per cent performance r asure has been discontinued in	97 85 neasure 'Taxi, hire updated to include the 2016-17 Budg	97 85 e vehicle and bus of e both new and re get, however has i	97 85 driver accreditat	99 70 tion ions.
within 60 minutes of incident notification Multi-Purpose Taxi Program: applications assessed and completed within 14 days New and renewed taxi, hire vehicle and bus driver accreditation applications processed within 14 days This performance measure amends the 2016-17 applications processed within 14 days.' The mea This performance measure was proposed to be the Public Accounts and Estimates Committee's	per cent per cent performance r issure has been discontinued in review of the 2	97 85 neasure 'Taxi, hire updated to include the 2016-17 Budg 016-17 Budget Es	97 85 e vehicle and bus of e both new and re ret, however has i timates.	97 85 driver accreditat enewed applicat been reinstated	99 70 tion tions. following
within 60 minutes of incident notification Multi-Purpose Taxi Program: applications assessed and completed within 14 days New and renewed taxi, hire vehicle and bus driver accreditation applications processed within 14 days This performance measure amends the 2016-17 applications processed within 14 days.' The med This performance measure was proposed to be	per cent per cent performance r asure has been discontinued in	97 85 neasure 'Taxi, hire updated to include the 2016-17 Budg	97 85 e vehicle and bus of e both new and re get, however has i	97 85 driver accreditat	99 70 tion ions.

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Road vehicle and driver regulation: average speed of calls answered in VicRoads' call centres	seconds	240	290	240	268
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the experience by resolving enquiries on the first compared by the		et due to process	changes designe	d to enhance cu	istomer
Road vehicle and driver regulation: customers served within 10 minutes in VicRoads' Customer Service Centres	per cent	80	80	80	76
Road vehicle and driver regulation: new and renewed driving instructor authority applications processed within 14 days	per cent	85	85	85	88
This performance measure was proposed to be the Public Accounts and Estimates Committee's				been reinstated	l following
Taxi, hire vehicles and other commercial passenger vehicle licence applications processed within 14 days	per cent	85	85	85	nm
Transport and marine safety investigations: accidents/incidents assessed within two days of notification to determine need for detailed investigation	per cent	100	100	100	100
Transport and marine safety investigations: average time taken to complete investigations	months	12	12	12	16
Cost					
Total output cost The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than th Systems Road Infrastructure Program. The higher 2017-18 target is mainly due to the f					286.8 Safer

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION AND TRAINING

Ministerial portfolios

The Department supports the ministerial portfolios of families and children, education, and training and skills.

Departmental mission statement

The Department of Education and Training's mission is captured within its statement of 'strategic intent':

'Together we give every Victorian the best learning and development experience, making our state a smarter, fairer and more prosperous place.'

As part of this vision, we want Victoria to be a place where:

- children and young people are confident, optimistic, healthy and resilient;
- students reach their potential, regardless of background, place, circumstance or abilities;
- Victorians develop knowledge, skills and attributes needed now and for the jobs of the future; and
- the Department's workforce is high performing, empowered, valued and supported.

Departmental objectives

Achievement

• Raise standards of learning and development achieved by Victorians using education, training, development and child health services.

Engagement

• Increase the number of Victorians actively participating in education, training, development and child health services.

Wellbeing

• Increase the contribution education, training, development and child health services make to good health and quality of life for all Victorians, particularly children and young people.

Productivity

• Increase the productivity of our services.

Output summary by departmental objectives

The Department's outputs and funding (presented by output) are provided in the table below. Detailed descriptions of objectives, outputs, together with their key performance indicators are presented in subsequent tables.

	2016-17	2016-17	2017-18	Variation ^(a)
	budget	revised	budget	%
Strategy, Review and Regulation ^(b)	95.7	113.1	106.2	11.0
Early Childhood Development ^(c)	582.4	585.5	605.8	4.0
School Education – Primary ^(d)	4 930.9	5 000.1	5 219.7	5.9
School Education – Secondary ^(d)	4 156.8	4 117.7	4 270.7	2.7
Training, Higher Education and Workforce Development	2 477.5	2 412.2	2 432.0	(1.8)
Support Services Delivery ^(e)	313.9	352.9	342.5	9.1
Support for Students with Disabilities ^(f)	932.4	932.8	975.1	4.6
Total	13 489.6	13 514.3	13 952.0	3.4

Source: Department of Education and Training

Notes:

(a) Variation between 2016-17 budget and 2017-18 budget.

(b) The higher 2017-18 target primarily reflects the implementation of the Department's strategic policy functions and realignment of its operating model to support the vision of the Education State.

(c) The higher 2017-18 target primarily reflects new funding announced as part of the 2017-18 Budget and indexation. These are offset by a decrease in Commonwealth funding for Universal Access.

(d) The higher 2017-18 target primarily reflects indexation and continuation of Education State funding.

(e) The higher 2017-18 target compared with the 2016-17 target primarily reflects higher estimated carry forward included in 2017-18 than in 2016-17 and new funding announced as part of the 2017-18 Budget process.

(f) The higher 2017-18 target primarily reflects increase in existing base funding, indexation and new funding announced as part of the 2017-18 Budget process.

Amounts available

The following tables detail the amounts available to the Department from Parliamentary authority and income generated through transactions.

(\$ million)

Table 2.4 outlines the Department's income from transactions and Table 2.5 summarises the sources of Parliamentary authority available to the Department to fund the provision of outputs, additions to the net asset base and payments made on behalf of the State.

Table 2.4:	Income from	transactions
Table 2.4.	income nom	transactions

Grants	30.1	6.1	6.2	12.6
Fair value of assets and services received free of charge or for				12.0
	30.1	6.1	6.2	12.6
0				
Sales of goods and services	674.6	774.4	625.6	720.9
Interest	25.4	30.1	22.5	22.5
Special appropriations	22.0	12.0	22.3	6.2
Output appropriations	11 172.0	12 149.1	12 347.8	12 766.7
	actual	budget	revised	budget ^(a)
	2015-16	2016-17	2016-17	2017-18

Source: Department of Education and Training

Note:

(a) Includes an estimated \$1.3 billion of non-public account contributions in 2017-18.

Table 2.5: Parliamentary authority for resources

(\$ million)

(\$ million)

	2016-17	2016-17	2017-18
	budget	revised	budget
Annual appropriations	11 666.0	11 579.9	12 347.4
Provision of outputs	11 456.6	11 544.5	12 021.1
Additions to the net asset base	209.3	35.4	326.3
Payments made on behalf of the State			
Receipts credited to appropriations	525.5	597.8	571.1
Unapplied previous years appropriation	200.0	264.0	215.0
Provision of outputs	200.0	246.0	215.0
Additions to the net asset base		18.0	
Payments made on behalf of the State			
Accumulated surplus – previously applied appropriation			
Gross annual appropriation	12 391.5	12 441.8	13 133.5
Special appropriations	12.0	22.3	6.2
Trust funds	3 116.1	3 055.7	3 218.3
State Grants (School Funding Reform framework) – Non-Government Programs ^(a)	3 036.1	3 031.2	3 193.1
Other	80.0	24.6	25.2
Total parliamentary authority	15 519.6	15 519.9	16 358.1

Source: Department of Education and Training

Note:

(a) The purpose of this trust primarily relates to Student First funding for non-government schools provided by the Commonwealth Government under its Australian Education Act 2013.

Departmental performance statement

Strategy Review and Regulation

The Strategy Review and Regulation output contributes to the Department's objectives by developing, planning and monitoring strategic policy settings across all stages of learning. It includes inter-governmental negotiations as well as research, data and performance evaluations. This output also supports regulation that ensures quality education and training is delivered and contributes to all the Department's objectives.

Objective 4: Productivity

The departmental objective indicators are:

- \$ per primary school student per year^(a);
- \$ per secondary school student per year^(a); and
- \$ per VET student contact hour.

```
Note:
(a) These indicators refer to government and non-government schools.
```

Strategy Review and Regulation

(2017-18: \$106.2 million)

This output develops, plans and monitors strategic policy settings across all stages of learning. It also includes inter-governmental negotiations as well as research, data and performance evaluations. This output also supports regulation that ensures quality education and training is delivered and contributes to all the Department's objectives of achievement, engagement, wellbeing and productivity.

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Quantity					
Number of registered training organisation quality audits and school reviews undertaken annually	number	94	90	67	182
This performance measure relates to the calenda review by the Victorian Registration and Qualific the anniversary of a provider's registration and t The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than th high-risk providers. This resulted from potential i increased demand for high-risk thematic areas s Quality	nation Authority therefore vary fi the 2016-17 targo non-compliance	in 2017. Provide rom year to year et due to unanti e identified by co	er audit and review r. cipated audits and	v cycles are sch reviews of pot	eduled on entially
Education peak bodies that rate the	per cent	90	100	70	nm
Victorian Registration and Qualifications Authority (VRQA) effective or highly	percent	50	100	70	1111
effective in performing its regulatory					
function					
This performance measure relates to the calendor potential impacts of imminent regulatory reform The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than th satisfaction with VRQA than that estimated prior	ns that will affeo ne 2016-17 targ	ct education pea et due to peak b	k bodies. odies reporting sig		

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Regulated schools and Registered Training Organisations that rate the VRQA effective or highly effective in performing its regulatory function	per cent	90	95	70	nm
This performance measure relates to the calend potential impacts of imminent regulatory reform (RTOs). The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than th	ns that will affeo ne 2016-17 targ	ct regulated schoo et due to schools	ols and Registered and RTOs reportin	l Training Orga	nisations
satisfaction with VRQA than that estimated prio	r to the collecti	on of data for this	new measure.		
Percentage of government schools where an enrolment audit is conducted	per cent	32.8	32.8	32.8	32.7
This performance measure relates to the calendo	ar year.				
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	106.2	113.1	95.7	91.8
The higher 2016-17 expected outcome compare Department's strategic policy functions and real In addition, the higher 2016-17 expected outcon target. The higher 2017-18 target primarily reflects the realignment of its operating model to support th	ignment of its c ne reflects highe implementation	operating model to er carry forward fi n of the Departme	o support the visio rom 2015-16 thar	on of the Educa estimated in t	tion State. he 2016-17

Source: Department of Education and Training

Early Childhood Development

The Early Childhood Development output contributes to the Department's objectives by providing funding for a range of services that support children in the early years, including kindergarten and children's services, maternal and child health, and early intervention services for children with a disability. This output makes a significant contribution to the Government's key outcomes in early childhood services.

The departmental objective indicators are:

Objective 1: Achievement

The departmental objective indicators are:

- children developmentally 'on track' on the Australian Early Development Census (AEDC) in the language and cognitive skills domains^(a); and
- proportion of early childhood services meeting or exceeding National Quality Standard Area 1 (NQSA1 Educational program and practice).

Objective 2: Engagement

The departmental objective indicators are:

- participation in a kindergarten service in the year before school;
- participation in maternal and child health services; and
- proportion of Early Childhood Education and Care (ECEC) services meeting or exceeding National Quality Standard Area 6 (NQSA6 Collaborative partnerships with families and communities).

Objective 3: Wellbeing

The departmental objective indicators are:

- proportion of infants fully or partially breastfed at three and six months;
- proportion of children who have no behavioural issues on entry into Prep;
- proportion of children who have no general development issues on entry into Prep; and
- children developmentally 'on track' on the AEDC social competence and emotional maturity domains^{(a).}

Objective 4: Productivity

The departmental objective indicator is:

• \$ per kindergarten student per year (or Early Childhood Intervention Services or Maternal and Child Health).

Note: (a) These indicators refer to government and non-government schools.

Early Childhood Development

(2017-18: \$605.8 million)

This output involves the provision of kindergarten and children's services. Services include the monitoring of education and care services and specialist services to improve access to kindergartens for disadvantaged children. It also includes community based maternal and child health services available to all families with children aged 0–6 years. This output provides developmental health surveillance, early intervention, parenting support and health education. It also includes a range of services and support for children with a developmental delay or disability and their families.

~ ·	•		2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Quantity					
Children funded to participate in	number	75 000	76 250	74 250	74 650
kindergarten					
This performance measure relates to the cale kindergarten participants. The higher 2017-1	, ,			,	
Kindergarten participation rate	per cent	96.0	96.2	96.0	98.1
This performance measure relates to the cale second year of the four-year-old kindergarter kindergarten participation rate was develope kindergarten and for alignment with school/k	n program. In 2016 d to more accurat	an improved met ely reflect the actu	hodology for esti	mation of the	
Maternal and child health clients with	per cent	15	15.2	10	15.2
children aged 0 to 1 year receiving	·				
additional support through enhanced					
maternal and child health services					
The performance measure may underestimat services, due to potential overestimation of u child health IT system. The higher 2017-18 tau recommendations from the Royal Commissio. The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher thar with a child aged 0–1 years beyond the 10 pe	niversal enrolment rget reflects Gover n into Family Viole n the 2016-17 targ	ts associated with nment priorities re nce. et due to municipo	the introduction egarding implem	of a new mate entation of	rnal and
Total number of children receiving Early	number	7 999	12 708	13 936	13 936
Childhood Intervention Services					
The lower 2017–18 target is due to Early Chilo Insurance Scheme (NDIS). This target reflects The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than Central Highlands and Loddon (including chilo transition to the full scheme.	the current NDIS c the 2016-17 targe	area roll-out timeli et as ECIS children j	nes. from North East	Metropolitan A	rea,
Total number of Maternal and Child	number	76 000	78 955	75 000	78 955
Health Service clients (aged 0 to 1 year)					
The performance measure may overestimate of a new Maternal and Child Health IT system population. The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher thar	n. The higher 2017	-18 target reflects	expected growth	in the 0 to 1-y	
Quality					
Education and care services offering a	per cent	43	44	43	43
funded kindergarten program assessed a	IS				
exceeding the National Quality Standard					
QA6					
This performance measure relates to the cale partnerships with families and communities. This performance measure renames the 2016 kindergarten program assessed as exceeding as the previous measure however has been a	-17 performance i the National Qual	neasure 'Educatio ity Standard'. The	n and care servic	es offering a fu	Inded

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actua
Education and care services offering a	per cent	90	88	88	87
funded kindergarten program assessed as					
meeting or exceeding the National					
Quality Standard QA1					
This performance measure relates to the calenda proportion of services offering a funded kinderga Government's commitment to providing access This performance measure renames the 2016-13 kindergarten program assessed as meeting or ex same activity as the previous measure however	arten program i to high-quality 7 performance i xceeding the No	meeting the Natio early childhood se measure 'Educatio ntional Quality Sta	nal Quality Stanc rvices. n and care servic ndard'. The new	lard QA1, as po ses offering a fu	art of the unded
Families who are satisfied with the Early	per cent	90	90	90	90
Childhood Intervention Services provided					
This performance measure includes internal and	l external provid	lers.			
Parent satisfaction with kindergarten	per cent	85	nm	nm	nm
services					
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflec services. This performance measure relates to th providers.					
Timeliness					
Children aged 0 to 1 month enrolled at	per cent	98.5	100.9	98.5	100.9
maternal and child health services from birth notifications					
The performance measure may overestimate un of a new Maternal and Child Health IT system.	iversal enrolme	nts due to data ar	nomalies associa	ted with the ini	roduction
Contribution to National Disability Insurance Scheme costs paid on time	per cent	100	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflec Memorandum of Understanding between the Du financial year. This performance measure report clients.	epartment, DTF	and DHHS. This p	erformance mea	sure relates to	
Timely transfer of client data that	per cent	100	nm	nm	nm
complies with the agreed schedule and the NDIA data standard to the NDIA					
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflec Disability Insurance Agency (NDIA) on data trans					he National
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	605.8	585.5	582.4	534.5
The higher 2017-18 target primarily reflects new are offset by a decrease in Commonwealth fund.			e 2017-18 Budge	et and indexation	on. These

Source: Department of Education and Training

School Education – Primary

The School Education – Primary output contributes to the Department's objectives by providing services to develop essential skills and learning experiences to engage young minds in the primary sector.

Objective 1: Achievement

The departmental objective indicators are:

- primary students meeting the expected standard in national and international literacy and numeracy assessment^(a); and
- percentage of positive responses to teacher collaboration within primary schools^(b).

Objective 2: Engagement

The departmental objective indicators are:

- mean number of primary student absent days per full time equivalent (FTE) a year(c);
- mean number of unapproved student absence days per FTE per year in primary schools^(c); and
- primary students with a positive opinion about their school providing a stimulating learning environment^(c).

Objective 3: Wellbeing

The departmental objective indicators are:

- primary students feeling connected to their school^(c); and
- primary students with a positive opinion about their school providing a safe and orderly environment for learning^(c).

Objective 4: Productivity

The departmental objective indicator is:

• \$ per primary school student per year^(c).

Notes:

- (a) This indicator refers to government schools for the national assessments and both government and non-government schools for the international assessments.
- (b) These indicators refer to government schools.

(c) These indicators refer to government and non-government schools.

School Education – Primary

(2017-18: \$5 219.7 million)

The School Education – Primary output provides education and other associated services designed to improve the quality of learning of students in Prep to Year 6 in government and non-government schools.

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actua
Quantity					
Average days lost due to absence at	number	14.1	15.1	14.1	14.4
Year 5					
This performance measure relates to the calend attendance rate covers all absences, including t desirable, as it indicates that students are havin The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than t levels, with some indication of a 'reporting effe relative to previous years.	hose due to illne ng fewer days aw he 2016-17 targ	ess and approved j vay from school. et due to an increa	family holidays. A ase in student abs	lower figure is sence across m	more ost year
Average days lost due to absence at Year 6	number	14.5	15.6	14.5	15.1
desirable, as it indicates that students are havir The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than t levels, with some indication of a 'reporting effe relative to previous years.	he 2016-17 targ	et due to an incre			,
Average days lost due to absence for Aboriginal students in Years Prep to 6	number	24.0	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017-18 to refle between disadvantage and achievement. This p measure refers to government schools only. The calendar years.	erformance me	asure relates to th	e calendar year.	This performan	се
Investment in non-government schools (primary)	\$ million	365.5	375.9	370.7	325.5
Percentage of government primary school students receiving equity funding	number	28	28	28	nm
This performance measure relates to the calend	, ,	-	, ,		
Number of teachers completed professional development as Mathematics and Science Specialists	number	100	100	100	nm
This performance measure relates to the calend	lar year. This pei	rformance measu	re refers to gover	nment schools	only.
Number of Assistant Principals participating in leadership development programs, including the Aspiring Principals Program	number	500	602	470	503
This performance measure relates to the calend 2017-18 target reflects planned delivery of proj The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than t in 2016 (in comparison to previous years), as w	essional practice he 2016-17 targ ell as an increase	e workshops by Ba et as Bastow deliv e in events relating	istow in 2017. Pered more profes I to the Framewo	sional practice	workshops

Outcomes and increased throughput in Bastow's Aspirant Principals Program (UP).

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Number of principals participating in	number	730	863	730	749
statewide, centrally funded leadership					
development programs, including the					
Expert Leaders of Education Program					
This performance measure relates to the calend The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than th in 2016 (in comparison to previous years), as we Outcomes and a dedicated program for network	ne 2016-17 targ ell as an increas k chairs (WISE).	et as Bastow deliv e in events relating	vered more profes g to the Framewo	ssional practice ork for Improvir	workshops ng Student
Number of school staff who are not	number	1 950	2 949	1 950	1 897
principals or assistant principals					
participating in leadership development					
programs, including the Aspiring					
Principals Program and the Local Leaders Program					
This performance measure relates to the calend performance measure includes all school staff (t The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than th in 2016 (in comparison to previous years), as we Outcomes.	eaching and ea ne 2016-17 targ ell as an increas	lucation support). let as Bastow deliv e in events relating	vered more profes	ssional practice	workshops
Number of teachers completing	number	800	nm	nm	nm
mentoring training					
This performance measure relates to the calend non-government schools. New performance me State.	, ,				Education
Number of Victorian schools participating	number	120	nm	nm	nm
as a 'lead school' for the Respectful					
Relationships initiative					
New performance measure for 2017–18 to refle Commission into Family Violence. This performa			-	-	oyal
Number of school-based staff who have	number	15 000	nm	nm	nm
participated in whole-school Respectful					
Relationships professional learning					
initiative					
New performance measure for 2017–18 to refle Commission into Family Violence. This performa This performance measure relates to Victorian p	nce measure w	ill include all schoo	-	-	-
Quality					
Parent satisfaction with primary schooling on a 100-point scale	100-point scale	83	82	83	83
This performance measure relates to the calend is drawn from the Parent Opinion Survey, where					only. Data
Percentage of Aboriginal students above	per cent	43.9	40.7	43.9	38.1
the bottom three bands for numeracy in					
Year 3 (National Assessment Program					
Literacy and Numeracy – NAPLAN testing)					
This performance measure relates to the calend non-government schools. When interpreting res be considered, as the reported number is an est standard to any such assessment.	ults, a 95 per ce	ent confidence inte	erval of +/- 3.18 p	ercentage poir	

	Unit of	2017-18	2016-17 expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures Percentage of Aboriginal students above the bottom three bands for numeracy in Year 5 (NAPLAN testing)	<i>measure</i> per cent	<i>target</i> 33.4	outcome 30.1	target 33.4	actual 29.7
This performance measure relates to the calend non-government schools. When interpreting res be considered, as the reported number is an est standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than th in May 2016, therefore student achievement du State and Marrung initiatives.	sults, a 95 per co imate of the stu e 2016-17 targe	ent confidence inte Ident ability for wh et as NAPLAN resu	erval of +/- 2.97 p hich there is associ Its reflect studen	ercentage poir ciated measure t performance	ment error, as assessed
Percentage of Aboriginal students above the bottom three bands for reading in Year 3 (NAPLAN testing)	per cent	49.9	48.9	48.7	47.3
This performance measure relates to the calena non-government schools. When interpreting res be considered, as the reported number is an est standard to any such assessment. The higher 2017–18 target reflects the ambition link between disadvantage and achievement.	sults, a 95 per co imate of the stu	ent confidence inte Ident ability for wh	erval of +/- 3.29 p nich there is assoc	ercentage poir ciated measure	ment error,
Percentage of Aboriginal students above the bottom three bands for reading in Year 5 (NAPLAN testing)	per cent	40.0	37.5	40.0	32.9
This performance measure relates to the calenc non-government schools. When interpreting res be considered, as the reported number is an est standard to any such assessment.	sults, a 95 per ce	ent confidence inte	erval of +/- 3.32 p	ercentage poir	
Percentage of students above the bottom three bands for numeracy in Year 3 (NAPLAN testing)	per cent	68.9	67.8	68.5	66.4
This performance measure relates to the calena non-government schools. When interpreting res be considered, as the reported number is an est standard to any such assessment. The higher 2017–18 target reflects the ambition link between disadvantage and achievement.	sults, a 95 per co imate of the stu	ent confidence inte Ident ability for wh	erval of +/- 0.96 p nich there is assoc	ercentage poir ciated measure	ment error,
Percentage of students above the bottom three bands for numeracy in Year 5 (NAPLAN testing)	per cent	62.3	61.0	62.3	61.2
This performance measure relates to the calena non-government schools. When interpreting res be considered, as the reported number is an est standard to any such assessment.	sults, a 95 per ce	ent confidence inte	erval of +/- 1.04 p	ercentage poir	
Percentage of students above the bottom three bands for reading in Year 3 (NAPLAN testing)	per cent	77.0	75.6	77.0	76.2
This performance measure relates to the calend non-government schools. When interpreting res be considered, as the reported number is an est standard to any such assessment.	sults, a 95 per ce	ent confidence inte	erval of +/- 0.82 p	ercentage poir	

	Unit of	2017-18	2016-17 expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Percentage of students above the bottom three bands for reading in Year 5 (NAPLAN testing)	per cent	66.9	66.2	64.5	62.2
· •		6			
This performance measure relates to the calenda non-government schools. When interpreting res be considered, as the reported number is an esti standard to any such assessment. The higher 2017-18 target reflects the ambition link between disadvantage and achievement.	ults, a 95 per ce mate of the stu	ent confidence inte dent ability for wh	rval of +/- 0.89 p ich there is assoc	ercentage poin ciated measure	ment error,
Percentage of students in the top two bands for numeracy in Year 3 (NAPLAN	per cent	41.9	40.7	41.5	38.4
testing)					
This performance measure relates to the calenda non-government schools. When interpreting resu- be considered, as the reported number is an esti- standard to any such assessment. The higher 2017–18 target reflects the ambition link between disadvantage and achievement.	ults, a 95 per ce mate of the stu	ent confidence inte dent ability for wh	rval of +/- 1.02 p ich there is assoc	ercentage poin ciated measure	ment error,
Percentage of students in the top two bands for numeracy in Year 5 (NAPLAN testing)	per cent	32.9	31.7	32.9	31.9
This performance measure relates to the calendo non-government schools. When interpreting res be considered, as the reported number is an esti standard to any such assessment.	ults, a 95 per ce	ent confidence inte	rval of +/- 0.97 p	ercentage poir	
Percentage of students in the top two bands for reading in Year 3 (NAPLAN testing)	per cent	55.1	54.1	54.6	53.6
This performance measure relates to the calend non-government schools. When interpreting res be considered, as the reported number is an esti standard to any such assessment. The higher 2017–18 target reflects the ambition link between disadvantage and achievement.	ults, a 95 per ce mate of the stu	ent confidence inte dent ability for wh	rval of +/- 0.95 p hich there is assoc	ercentage poin ciated measure	ment error,
Percentage of students in the top two bands for reading in Year 5 (NAPLAN testing)	per cent	39.1	38.3	38.7	36.9
This performance measure relates to the calend non-government schools. When interpreting res be considered, as the reported number is an esti standard to any such assessment. The higher 2017-18 target reflects the ambition link between disadvantage and achievement.	ults, a 95 per ce mate of the stu	ent confidence inte dent ability for wh	rval of +/- 0.92 p ich there is assoc	ercentage poin ciated measure	ment error,
Years 5-6 students' opinion of their connectedness with the school	number (1-5)	4.4	4.4	4.4	4.4
This performance measure relates to the calendo are drawn from the Attitudes to School Survey, v students feel they belong and enjoy attending sc	where a higher s				

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Schools that underwent a priority review increase the proportion of School Improvement Measure threshold standards met.	per cent	53.0	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflec creating a high performance learning culture. Th measure refers to government schools only.	,	5	5		
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	5 219.7	5 000.1	4 930.9	4 542.0
The higher 2017-18 target primarily reflects inde	exation and con	tinuation of Edu	cation State fundin	ng.	

Source: Department of Education and Training

School Education – Secondary

The School Education – Secondary output contributes to the Department's objectives by delivering services to consolidate literacy and numeracy competencies including creative and critical thinking, as well as physical, social, emotional and intellectual development in adolescence. It also provides education services as well as varied pathways and support for transition across sectors to further study.

Objective 1: Achievement

The departmental objective indicators are:

- secondary students meeting the expected standard in national and international literacy and numeracy assessment^(a);
- percentage of positive responses to teacher collaboration within secondary schools^(b);
- average score in Science (Programme for International Student Assessment (PISA) 15 year-olds) in Victoria compared to global top performers^(a); and
- Year 12 or equivalent completion rates of young people^(b).

Objective 2: Engagement

The departmental objective indicators are:

- mean number of secondary student absent days per full time equivalent (FTE) per year^(b);
- mean number of unapproved student absence days per FTE per year in secondary schools^(b); and
- secondary students with a positive opinion about their school providing a stimulating learning environment^(b).

Objective 3: Wellbeing

The departmental objective indicators are:

- secondary students feeling connected to their school^(b); and
- secondary students with a positive opinion about their school providing a safe and orderly environment for learning^(b).

Objective 4: Productivity

The departmental objective indicator is:

• \$ per secondary school student per year^(c).

Notes:

- (a) This indicator refers to government schools for the national assessments and both government and non-government schools for the international assessments.
- (b) These indicators refer to government schools.
- (c) These indicators refer to government and non-government schools.

School Education – Secondary

(2017-18: \$4 270.7 million)

The School Education – Secondary output involves provision of education and support services designed to improve student learning, development and wellbeing in Years 7 to 12 in government and non-government schools. It also covers the provision of services to improve pathways to further education, training and employment.

Performance measures Quantity	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Investment in non-government schools (secondary)	\$ million	374.1	385.1	385.8	338.8
Number of school students enrolled in Victorian Certificate of Applied Learning This performance measure relates to the calend non-government schools.	number dar year. This per	19 000 formance measur	18 946 re includes govern	19 000 nment and	18 549
Number of school students participating in accredited vocational programs This performance measure relates to the calend non-government schools.	number dar year. This per	47 000 formance measur	46 872 re includes gover	47 000 nment and	46 995
Number of school-based apprentices/trainees This performance measure relates to the calend non-government schools. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than th apprenticeship or traineeship (SBAT) activity ho	he 2016-17 targe	rt as an assessmen	t of schools and		3 538
Proportion of all secondary schools offering vocational options to students as part of their secondary school certificate This performance measure relates to the calend non-government schools.	per cent dar year. This per	95.0 formance measur	94.5 re includes govern	95.0 nment and	95.2
Number of students for which government secondary schools are funded to 'catch up' New performance measure for 2016-17 to refle measure relates to the calendar war. This perfo					nm ormance
measure relates to the calendar year. This performed percentage of government secondary school students receiving equity funding New performance measure for 2016-17 to refler measure relates to the calendar year. This performance measure relates to the calendar year.	per cent ect Government p	35 priorities regarding	34 g the Education S	35 State. This perfo	nm ormance
Quality Average days lost due to absence in Years 11 and 12 This performance measure relates to the calend Average days lost covers all student absences, a absences. A lower figure is more desirable, as it	including those d	ue to illness, appro	oved family holid	lays and unapp	,
Average days lost due to absence in Years 7–10 This performance measure relates to the calend Average days lost covers all student absences, i absences. A lower figure is more desirable, as it	including those d	ue to illness, appro	oved family holia	lays and unapp	,

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Average days lost due to absence for Aboriginal students in Years 7 to 12	number	35.0	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017-18 to ref between disadvantage and achievement. This measure refers to government schools only. Th calendar years.	performance mea	sure relates to the	e calendar year.	This performan	се
Median VCE study score	number	29	29	29	29
This performance measure relates to the caler	ıdar year. This perf	^f ormance measur	e refers to gover	nment schools	only.
Parent satisfaction with secondary	100-point	76	77	76	77
schooling on a 100-point scale	scale				
This performance measure relates to the caler is drawn from the Parent Opinion Survey, whe has been set as the average of the actual data	ere a higher score re a across the last thr	epresents a highe ree years.	r level of satisfac	tion. The 2017	-18 target
Percentage of Aboriginal students above	per cent	29.4	29.1	26.4	24.4
the bottom three bands for numeracy in					
Year 7 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the caler					
non-government schools. The higher 2017-18 and maths and to break the link between disa confidence interval of +/- 3.73 percentage poi student ability for which there is associated m Percentage of Aboriginal students above	dvantage and achients needs to be con	evement. When in nsidered, as the re	nterpreting resul	ts, a 95 per cen s an estimate c	t
the bottom three bands for numeracy in Year 9 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the caler					
non-government schools. When interpreting robe considered, as the reported number is an estandard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than a in May 2016, therefore student achievement of State and Marrung initiatives.	stimate of the stud the 2016-17 target during this reportin	lent ability for wh as NAPLAN resul g period does not	ich there is assoc ts reflect student reflect the full in	iated measure performance on pact of recent	ment error, as assessed Education
Percentage of Aboriginal students above the bottom three bands for reading in	per cent	29.2	28.6	29.2	
Year 7 (NAPLAN testing)					28.1
Year 7 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the caler non-government schools. When interpreting r be considered, as the reported number is an e- standard to any such assessment.	esults, a 95 per cen	nt confidence inter	rval of +/- 3.25 p	ercentage poin	ts needs to
This performance measure relates to the caler non-government schools. When interpreting r be considered, as the reported number is an e- standard to any such assessment. Percentage of Aboriginal students above the bottom three bands for reading in	esults, a 95 per cen	nt confidence inter	rval of +/- 3.25 p	ercentage poin	ts needs to
This performance measure relates to the caler non-government schools. When interpreting r be considered, as the reported number is an e standard to any such assessment. Percentage of Aboriginal students above	esults, a 95 per cen stimate of the stud per cent ndar year. This perf esults, a 95 per cen stimate of the stud the 2016-17 target	nt confidence inter lent ability for wh 26.3 formance measur nt confidence inter lent ability for wh	rval of +/- 3.25 p ich there is assoc 21.4 e includes goverr rval of +/- 3.45 p ich there is assoc ts reflect student	ercentage poin iated measure 26.3 ment and ercentage poin iated measure performance o	ts needs to ment error, 24.6 ts needs to ment error, as assessed
This performance measure relates to the caler non-government schools. When interpreting r be considered, as the reported number is an e- standard to any such assessment. Percentage of Aboriginal students above the bottom three bands for reading in Year 9 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the caler non-government schools. When interpreting r be considered, as the reported number is an e- standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than in May 2016, therefore student achievement of	esults, a 95 per cen stimate of the stud per cent ndar year. This perf esults, a 95 per cen stimate of the stud the 2016-17 target during this reportin per cent	nt confidence inter lent ability for wh 26.3 formance measur nt confidence inter lent ability for wh	rval of +/- 3.25 p ich there is assoc 21.4 e includes goverr rval of +/- 3.45 p ich there is assoc ts reflect student	ercentage poin iated measure 26.3 ment and ercentage poin iated measure performance o	ts needs to ment error, 24.6 ts needs to ment error, as assessed

			2016-17	004647	
lorformanco mogeuros	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16 actual
Performance measures	measure	target 85	outcome 85	target 85	85
Percentage of school leavers completing an Intermediate or Senior Victorian	per cent	60	60	60	60
Certificate of Applied Learning in a school					
progressing to further education, training					
or work					
This performance measure relates to the calendo	ar year. This pe	rformance measu	re includes gover	nment and	
non-government schools.		-	-		
Percentage of students above the bottom	per cent	62.3	62.1	56.4	56.4
three bands for numeracy in Year 7					
(NAPLAN testing)					
This performance measure relates to the calendo	ar year. This pe	rformance measu	re includes gover	nment and	
non-government schools. When interpreting res		-			
be considered, as the reported number is an esti-	mate of the stu	ident ability for wh	nich there is asso	ciated measure	ment error,
standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than th	e 2016-17 tar	et which may be	attributable to ve	ar on vear coh	ort and
assessment variations. NAPLAN results reflect st			,	,	
during this reporting period therefore does not r			, .		
The higher 2017-18 target reflects the ambition	of the Educatio	n State for excelle	nce in reading an	d maths and to	break the
link between disadvantage and achievement.					
Development of a first state of the state of	norcont	54.3	51.5	54.3	54.0
Percentage of students above the bottom	per cent	54.5	51.5	54.5	54.0
three bands for numeracy in Year 9	percent	54.5	51.5	54.5	54.0
three bands for numeracy in Year 9 (NAPLAN testing)	·				54.0
three bands for numeracy in Year 9 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calenda	ar year. This pe	rformance measu	re includes gover	nment and	
three bands for numeracy in Year 9 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calenda non-government schools. When interpreting resu	ar year. This pe ults, a 95 per ce	rformance measu ent confidence inte	re includes gover erval of +/- 1.95 p	nment and ercentage poir	nts needs to
three bands for numeracy in Year 9 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calenda non-government schools. When interpreting results be considered, as the reported number is an esti-	ar year. This pe ults, a 95 per ce	rformance measu ent confidence inte	re includes gover erval of +/- 1.95 p	nment and ercentage poir	nts needs to
three bands for numeracy in Year 9 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calenda non-government schools. When interpreting resi be considered, as the reported number is an esti- standard to any such assessment.	ar year. This pe ults, a 95 per co mate of the stu	rformance measu ent confidence inte dent ability for wh	re includes gover rval of +/- 1.95 p iich there is assoc	nment and ercentage poir ciated measure	nts needs to ment error,
three bands for numeracy in Year 9 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calenda non-government schools. When interpreting results be considered, as the reported number is an esti-	ar year. This pe ults, a 95 per co mate of the stu 2016-17 targe	rformance measu ent confidence inte dent ability for wh et as NAPLAN resu	re includes gover rval of +/- 1.95 p lich there is associ Its reflect studen	nment and ercentage poir iated measure t performance	nts needs to ment error, as assessed
three bands for numeracy in Year 9 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calenda non-government schools. When interpreting res- be considered, as the reported number is an esti- standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the	ar year. This pe ults, a 95 per co mate of the stu 2016-17 targe	rformance measu ent confidence inte dent ability for wh et as NAPLAN resu	re includes gover rval of +/- 1.95 p lich there is associ Its reflect studen	nment and ercentage poir iated measure t performance	nts needs to ment error, as assessed
three bands for numeracy in Year 9 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calenda non-government schools. When interpreting rest be considered, as the reported number is an esti standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the in May 2016, and student achievement during th	ar year. This pe ults, a 95 per co mate of the stu 2016-17 targe	rformance measu ent confidence inte dent ability for wh et as NAPLAN resu	re includes gover rval of +/- 1.95 p lich there is associ Its reflect studen	nment and ercentage poir iated measure t performance	nts needs to ment error, as assessed ecent
three bands for numeracy in Year 9 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calenda non-government schools. When interpreting res- be considered, as the reported number is an esti standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the in May 2016, and student achievement during th Education State initiatives.	ar year. This pe ults, a 95 per co mate of the stu 2 2016-17 targo his reporting pe	rformance measu ent confidence inte dent ability for wh et as NAPLAN resu riod therefore doe	re includes gover, rval of +/- 1.95 p nich there is associ lts reflect studen is not reflect the j	nment and ercentage poir ciated measure t performance full impact of re	nts needs to ment error, as assessed
three bands for numeracy in Year 9 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calenda non-government schools. When interpreting res- be considered, as the reported number is an esti- standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the in May 2016, and student achievement during the Education State initiatives. Percentage of students above the bottom	ar year. This pe ults, a 95 per co mate of the stu 2 2016-17 targo his reporting pe	rformance measu ent confidence inte dent ability for wh et as NAPLAN resu riod therefore doe	re includes gover, rval of +/- 1.95 p nich there is associ lts reflect studen is not reflect the j	nment and ercentage poir ciated measure t performance full impact of re	nts needs to ment error, as assessed ecent
three bands for numeracy in Year 9 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calenda non-government schools. When interpreting res- be considered, as the reported number is an esti- standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the in May 2016, and student achievement during the Education State initiatives. Percentage of students above the bottom three bands for reading in Year 7 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calenda	ar year. This pe ults, a 95 per co mate of the stu 2 2016-17 targo is reporting pe per cent ar year. This pe	rformance measu ent confidence inte ident ability for wh et as NAPLAN resu riod therefore doe 60.0 rformance measu	re includes gover, rval of +/- 1.95 p nich there is associ Its reflect studen is not reflect the p 56.9 re includes gover,	nment and ercentage poir ciated measure t performance full impact of ra 60.0 nment and	nts needs to ment error, as assessed ecent 59.5
three bands for numeracy in Year 9 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calenda non-government schools. When interpreting resi- be considered, as the reported number is an esti- standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the in May 2016, and student achievement during the Education State initiatives. Percentage of students above the bottom three bands for reading in Year 7 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calenda non-government schools. When interpreting resi-	ar year. This pe ults, a 95 per co mate of the stu 2 2016-17 targe is reporting pe per cent per cent ar year. This pe ults, a 95 per co	rformance measu ent confidence inte ident ability for wh et as NAPLAN resu riod therefore doe 60.0 rformance measu ent confidence inte	re includes gover, rval of +/- 1.95 p hich there is associ Its reflect studen is not reflect the j 56.9 re includes gover, rval of +/- 1.54 p	nment and ercentage poir iated measure t performance full impact of ra 60.0 nment and ercentage poir	nts needs to ment error, as assessed ecent 59.5 ts needs to
three bands for numeracy in Year 9 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calenda non-government schools. When interpreting resi- be considered, as the reported number is an esti- standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the in May 2016, and student achievement during the Education State initiatives. Percentage of students above the bottom three bands for reading in Year 7 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calenda non-government schools. When interpreting resi- be considered, as the reported number is an esti-	ar year. This pe ults, a 95 per co mate of the stu 2 2016-17 targe is reporting pe per cent per cent ar year. This pe ults, a 95 per co	rformance measu ent confidence inte ident ability for wh et as NAPLAN resu riod therefore doe 60.0 rformance measu ent confidence inte	re includes gover, rval of +/- 1.95 p hich there is associ Its reflect studen is not reflect the j 56.9 re includes gover, rval of +/- 1.54 p	nment and ercentage poir iated measure t performance full impact of ra 60.0 nment and ercentage poir	nts needs to ment error, as assessed ecent 59.5 ts needs to
three bands for numeracy in Year 9 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calenda non-government schools. When interpreting rest be considered, as the reported number is an esti standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the in May 2016, and student achievement during the Education State initiatives. Percentage of students above the bottom three bands for reading in Year 7 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calenda non-government schools. When interpreting rest be considered, as the reported number is an esti standard to any such assessment.	ar year. This pe ults, a 95 per co mate of the stu 2 2016-17 targo is reporting pe per cent per cent ar year. This pe ults, a 95 per co mate of the stu	rformance measu ent confidence inte ident ability for wh et as NAPLAN resu riod therefore doe 60.0 formance measu ent confidence inte ident ability for wh	re includes govern rval of +/- 1.95 p hich there is associated Its reflect studen is not reflect the p 56.9 re includes gover rval of +/- 1.54 p hich there is associated	nment and ercentage poir ciated measure t performance full impact of ra 60.0 nment and ercentage poir ciated measure	nts needs to ment error, as assessed ecent 59.5 nts needs to ment error,
three bands for numeracy in Year 9 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calenda non-government schools. When interpreting rest be considered, as the reported number is an esti standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the in May 2016, and student achievement during th Education State initiatives. Percentage of students above the bottom three bands for reading in Year 7 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calenda non-government schools. When interpreting rest be considered, as the reported number is an esti standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the	ar year. This pe ults, a 95 per co mate of the stu 2016-17 targu is reporting pe per cent per cent ar year. This pe ults, a 95 per co mate of the stu 2016-17 targu	rformance measu ent confidence inte ident ability for wh et as NAPLAN resu riod therefore doe 60.0 formance measu ent confidence inte ident ability for wh	re includes govern rval of +/- 1.95 p nich there is associ Its reflect studen is not reflect the j 56.9 re includes govern rval of +/- 1.54 p nich there is associ Its reflect studen	nment and ercentage poir ciated measure t performance full impact of ra 60.0 nment and ercentage poir ciated measure t performance	ats needs to ment error, as assessed ecent 59.5 ats needs to ment error, as assessed
three bands for numeracy in Year 9 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calenda non-government schools. When interpreting rest be considered, as the reported number is an esti standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the in May 2016, and student achievement during the Education State initiatives. Percentage of students above the bottom three bands for reading in Year 7 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calenda non-government schools. When interpreting rest be considered, as the reported number is an esti standard to any such assessment.	ar year. This pe ults, a 95 per co mate of the stu 2016-17 targu is reporting pe per cent per cent ar year. This pe ults, a 95 per co mate of the stu 2016-17 targu	rformance measu ent confidence inte ident ability for wh et as NAPLAN resu riod therefore doe 60.0 formance measu ent confidence inte ident ability for wh	re includes govern rval of +/- 1.95 p nich there is associ Its reflect studen is not reflect the j 56.9 re includes govern rval of +/- 1.54 p nich there is associ Its reflect studen	nment and ercentage poir ciated measure t performance full impact of ra 60.0 nment and ercentage poir ciated measure t performance	ats needs to ment error, as assessed ecent 59.5 ats needs to ment error, as assessed
three bands for numeracy in Year 9 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calenda non-government schools. When interpreting rest be considered, as the reported number is an esti standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the in May 2016, and student achievement during th Education State initiatives. Percentage of students above the bottom three bands for reading in Year 7 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calenda non-government schools. When interpreting rest be considered, as the reported number is an esti standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the in May 2016, and student achievement during th Education State initiatives.	ar year. This pe ults, a 95 per co mate of the stu 2 2016-17 targo is reporting pe per cent ar year. This pe ults, a 95 per co mate of the stu 2 2016-17 targo is reporting pe	rformance measu ent confidence inte ident ability for wh et as NAPLAN resu riod therefore doe 60.0 formance measu ent confidence inte ident ability for wh	re includes govern rval of +/- 1.95 p nich there is associ Its reflect studen is not reflect the j 56.9 re includes govern rval of +/- 1.54 p nich there is associ Its reflect studen	nment and ercentage poir ciated measure t performance full impact of ra 60.0 nment and ercentage poir ciated measure t performance	ats needs to ment error, as assessed ecent 59.5 ats needs to ment error, as assessed ecent
three bands for numeracy in Year 9 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calenda non-government schools. When interpreting rest be considered, as the reported number is an esti standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the in May 2016, and student achievement during th Education State initiatives. Percentage of students above the bottom three bands for reading in Year 7 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calenda non-government schools. When interpreting rest be considered, as the reported number is an esti standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the in May 2016, and student achievement during th Education State initiatives. Percentage of students above the bottom	ar year. This pe ults, a 95 per co mate of the stu 2016-17 targu is reporting pe per cent per cent ar year. This pe ults, a 95 per co mate of the stu 2016-17 targu	rformance measu ent confidence inte ident ability for wh et as NAPLAN resu riod therefore doe 60.0 formance measu ent confidence inte ident ability for wh et as NAPLAN resu riod therefore doe	re includes govern rval of +/- 1.95 p hich there is associated the reflect studen is not reflect the p 56.9 re includes govern rval of +/- 1.54 p hich there is associated the reflect studen is not reflect the p	nment and ercentage poir ciated measure t performance full impact of ra 60.0 nment and ercentage poir ciated measure t performance full impact of ra	ats needs to ment error, as assessed ecent 59.5 ats needs to ment error, as assessed
three bands for numeracy in Year 9 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calenda non-government schools. When interpreting rest be considered, as the reported number is an esti standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the in May 2016, and student achievement during th Education State initiatives. Percentage of students above the bottom three bands for reading in Year 7 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calenda non-government schools. When interpreting ress be considered, as the reported number is an esti standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the in May 2016, and student achievement during th Education State initiatives.	ar year. This pe ults, a 95 per co mate of the stu 2 2016-17 targo is reporting pe per cent ar year. This pe ults, a 95 per co mate of the stu 2 2016-17 targo is reporting pe	rformance measu ent confidence inte ident ability for wh et as NAPLAN resu riod therefore doe 60.0 formance measu ent confidence inte ident ability for wh et as NAPLAN resu riod therefore doe	re includes govern rval of +/- 1.95 p hich there is associated the reflect studen is not reflect the p 56.9 re includes govern rval of +/- 1.54 p hich there is associated the reflect studen is not reflect the p	nment and ercentage poir ciated measure t performance full impact of ra 60.0 nment and ercentage poir ciated measure t performance full impact of ra	ats needs to ment error, as assessed ecent 59.5 ats needs to ment error, as assessed ecent
three bands for numeracy in Year 9 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calenda non-government schools. When interpreting res- be considered, as the reported number is an esti- standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the in May 2016, and student achievement during the Education State initiatives. Percentage of students above the bottom three bands for reading in Year 7 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calenda non-government schools. When interpreting res- be considered, as the reported number is an esti- standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the in May 2016, and student achievement during the Education State initiatives. Percentage of students above the bottom three bands for reading in Year 9 (NAPLAN testing)	ar year. This per ults, a 95 per co mate of the stu 2 2016-17 targe is reporting per per cent ar year. This per ults, a 95 per co mate of the stu 2 2016-17 targe is reporting per per cent	rformance measu ent confidence inte ident ability for wh et as NAPLAN resu riod therefore doe 60.0 rformance measu ent confidence inte ident ability for wh et as NAPLAN resu riod therefore doe	re includes govern rival of +/- 1.95 p hich there is associated the reflect student is not reflect the p 56.9 re includes govern rival of +/- 1.54 p hich there is associated the reflect student is not reflect the p 48.9	nment and ercentage poir iated measure t performance full impact of ra 60.0 nment and ercentage poir ciated measure t performance full impact of ra 50.4	ats needs to ment error, as assessed ecent 59.5 ats needs to ment error, as assessed ecent
three bands for numeracy in Year 9 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calenda non-government schools. When interpreting rest be considered, as the reported number is an esti standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the in May 2016, and student achievement during the Education State initiatives. Percentage of students above the bottom three bands for reading in Year 7 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calenda non-government schools. When interpreting rest be considered, as the reported number is an esti standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the in May 2016, and student achievement during the Education State initiatives. Percentage of students above the bottom three bands for reading in Year 9	ar year. This per ults, a 95 per co mate of the stu 2 2016-17 targe his reporting per per cent ar year. This per ults, a 95 per co mate of the stu 2 2016-17 targe his reporting per per cent per cent	rformance measu ent confidence inte ident ability for wh et as NAPLAN resu riod therefore doe 60.0 rformance measu ent confidence inte ident ability for wh et as NAPLAN resu riod therefore doe 50.4 rformance measu	re includes govern rival of +/- 1.95 p lich there is associ- lts reflect studen is not reflect the p 56.9 re includes govern rival of +/- 1.54 p lich there is associ- ts reflect studen is not reflect the p 48.9 re includes govern	nment and ercentage poir ciated measure t performance full impact of ro 60.0 nment and ercentage poir ciated measure t performance full impact of ro 50.4	nts needs to ment error, as assessed ecent 59.5 hts needs to ment error, as assessed ecent 50.2
three bands for numeracy in Year 9 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calendar non-government schools. When interpreting resis be considered, as the reported number is an esti- standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the in May 2016, and student achievement during the Education State initiatives. Percentage of students above the bottom three bands for reading in Year 7 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calendar non-government schools. When interpreting resis be considered, as the reported number is an esti- standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the in May 2016, and student achievement during the Education State initiatives. Percentage of students above the bottom three bands for reading in Year 9 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calendar three bands for reading in Year 9 (NAPLAN testing)	ar year. This per ults, a 95 per co mate of the stu 2016-17 targo his reporting per per cent ar year. This per ults, a 95 per co mate of the stu 2016-17 targo his reporting per per cent ar year. This per ults, a 95 per co	rformance measu ent confidence inte ident ability for wh et as NAPLAN resu riod therefore doe 60.0 formance measu ent confidence inte ident ability for wh et as NAPLAN resu briod therefore doe 50.4 formance measu ent confidence inte	re includes govern rival of +/- 1.95 p hich there is associated the reflect studen is not reflect the p 56.9 re includes govern rival of +/- 1.54 p hich there is associated the reflect studen is not reflect studen is not reflect studen re includes govern rival of +/- 1.73 p	nment and ercentage poir ciated measure t performance full impact of re 60.0 nment and ercentage poir ciated measure t performance full impact of re 50.4 nment and ercentage poir	ats needs to ment error, as assessed ecent 59.5 ats needs to ment error, as assessed ecent 50.2 ats needs to

	Unit of	2017-18	2016-17 expected	2016-17	2015-1
erformance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actua
Percentage of students in the top two	per cent	32.5	32.4	28	27.
bands for numeracy in Year 7 (NAPLAN					
testing)					
This performance measure relates to the calend non-government schools. When interpreting re- be considered, as the reported number is an est standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than t assessment variations. NAPLAN results reflect s during this reporting period therefore does not The higher 2017-18 target reflects the ambition	sults, a 95 per cer timate of the stud the 2016-17 targe tudent performal reflect the full im	nt confidence inte lent ability for wh nt, which may be o nce as assessed ir pact of recent Ed	rval of +/- 1.68 p ich there is assoc attributable to ye May 2016, and ucation State init	ercentage poir ciated measure ear on year coh student achiev ciatives.	ement erro ort and rement
link between disadvantage and achievement.					
Percentage of students in the top two	per cent	26.4	23.3	26.4	26
bands for numeracy in Year 9 (NAPLAN					
testing)					
non-government schools. When interpreting re- be considered, as the reported number is an est standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than th in May 2016, and student achievement during t Education State initiatives.	timate of the stud	lent ability for wh	ich there is associated in the student student	ciated measure t performance	ement erro as assesso
	por cont	30.7	27.4	30.7	30
Percentage of students in the top two					
Percentage of students in the top two bands for reading in Year 7 (NAPLAN	per cent	50.7	27.4		
Percentage of students in the top two bands for reading in Year 7 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calend non-government schools. When interpreting re- be considered, as the reported number is an est	dar year. This perj sults, a 95 per cer	formance measui nt confidence inte	e includes gover rval of +/- 1.39 p	nment and percentage poir	
bands for reading in Year 7 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calend non-government schools. When interpreting re- be considered, as the reported number is an est standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than th in May 2016, and student achievement during to	dar year. This perj sults, a 95 per cer timate of the stua ne 2016-17 target	formance measur nt confidence inte lent ability for wh t as NAPLAN resu	e includes gover rval of +/- 1.39 p ich there is assoc Its reflect studen	nment and ercentage poir ciated measure t performance	ement erro as assesse
bands for reading in Year 7 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calend non-government schools. When interpreting re- be considered, as the reported number is an est standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than th in May 2016, and student achievement during to Education State initiatives.	dar year. This perj sults, a 95 per cer timate of the stud ne 2016-17 target this reporting per	formance measur ht confidence inte lent ability for wh as NAPLAN resu iod therefore doe	e includes gover, rval of +/- 1.39 p ich there is assou Its reflect studen s not reflect the j	nment and ercentage poir ciated measure t performance full impact of re	ement erro as assesse ecent
bands for reading in Year 7 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calend non-government schools. When interpreting re- be considered, as the reported number is an est standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than th in May 2016, and student achievement during to Education State initiatives. Percentage of students in the top two	dar year. This perj sults, a 95 per cer timate of the stua ne 2016-17 target	formance measur nt confidence inte lent ability for wh t as NAPLAN resu	e includes gover rval of +/- 1.39 p ich there is assoc Its reflect studen	nment and ercentage poir ciated measure t performance	ement erro as assesse ecent
 bands for reading in Year 7 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calend non-government schools. When interpreting rebe considered, as the reported number is an est standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the in May 2016, and student achievement during the Education State initiatives. Percentage of students in the top two bands for reading in Year 9 (NAPLAN 	dar year. This perj sults, a 95 per cer timate of the stud ne 2016-17 target this reporting per	formance measur ht confidence inte lent ability for wh as NAPLAN resu iod therefore doe	e includes gover, rval of +/- 1.39 p ich there is assou Its reflect studen s not reflect the j	nment and ercentage poir ciated measure t performance full impact of re	ement erro as assesse ecent
bands for reading in Year 7 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calend non-government schools. When interpreting re- be considered, as the reported number is an est standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than th in May 2016, and student achievement during to Education State initiatives. Percentage of students in the top two	dar year. This perj sults, a 95 per cer timate of the stua ne 2016-17 target this reporting per per cent dar year. This perj sults, a 95 per cer timate of the stua ne 2016-17 target	formance measur nt confidence inte lent ability for wh as NAPLAN resu iod therefore doe 23.0 formance measur t confidence inte lent ability for wh a s NAPLAN resu	e includes gover, rval of +/- 1.39 p ich there is assoc Its reflect studen s not reflect the j 20.7 e includes gover, rval of +/- 1.50 p ich there is assoc	nment and vercentage poir ciated measure t performance full impact of ra 23.0 nment and vercentage poir ciated measure t performance	ement erro as assesse ecent 22 ats needs t ement erro as assesse
 bands for reading in Year 7 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calend non-government schools. When interpreting rest be considered, as the reported number is an est standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the in May 2016, and student achievement during teducation State initiatives. Percentage of students in the top two bands for reading in Year 9 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calend non-government schools. When interpreting rest be considered, as the reported number is an est standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the in May 2016, and student achievement during the standard to any such assessment. 	dar year. This perj sults, a 95 per cer timate of the stua ne 2016-17 target this reporting per per cent dar year. This perj sults, a 95 per cer timate of the stua ne 2016-17 target	formance measur nt confidence inte lent ability for wh as NAPLAN resu iod therefore doe 23.0 formance measur t confidence inte lent ability for wh a s NAPLAN resu	e includes gover, rval of +/- 1.39 p ich there is assoc Its reflect studen s not reflect the j 20.7 e includes gover, rval of +/- 1.50 p ich there is assoc	nment and vercentage poir ciated measure t performance full impact of ra 23.0 nment and vercentage poir ciated measure t performance	ement erro as assesse ecent 22 hts needs to ment erro as assesse ecent
 bands for reading in Year 7 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calend non-government schools. When interpreting rese be considered, as the reported number is an est standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the in May 2016, and student achievement during teducation State initiatives. Percentage of students in the top two bands for reading in Year 9 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calend non-government schools. When interpreting rese be considered, as the reported number is an est standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the in May 2016, and student achievement during terms and to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the in May 2016, and student achievement during terms and the state initiatives. Percentage of students who remain at 	dar year. This perj sults, a 95 per cer timate of the stua ne 2016-17 target this reporting per per cent dar year. This perj sults, a 95 per cer timate of the stua ne 2016-17 target this reporting per per cent	formance measur ti confidence inte lent ability for wh as NAPLAN resu- iod therefore doe 23.0 formance measur ti confidence inte lent ability for wh as NAPLAN resu- iod therefore doe 92.2	e includes gover, rval of +/- 1.39 p ich there is assoc Its reflect studen s not reflect the j 20.7 re includes gover, rval of +/- 1.50 p ich there is assoc Its reflect studen s not reflect the j 92.2	nment and ercentage poir ciated measure t performance full impact of ra 23.0 nment and percentage poir ciated measure t performance full impact of ra 92.2	ement erro as assesse ecent 22 hts needs t ement erro as assesse
 bands for reading in Year 7 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calend non-government schools. When interpreting rese be considered, as the reported number is an est standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the in May 2016, and student achievement during to Education State initiatives. Percentage of students in the top two bands for reading in Year 9 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calend non-government schools. When interpreting rese be considered, as the reported number is an est standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the in May 2016, and student achievement during the considered of the set on the reported number is an est standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the in May 2016, and student achievement during the Education State initiatives. Percentage of students who remain at school from Year 7 to Year 12 This performance measure relates to the calend the performance measure relates to the calend to any such assessment. 	dar year. This perj sults, a 95 per cer timate of the stua ne 2016-17 target this reporting per per cent dar year. This perj sults, a 95 per cer timate of the stua ne 2016-17 target this reporting per per cent	formance measur ti confidence inte lent ability for wh as NAPLAN resu- iod therefore doe 23.0 formance measur ti confidence inte lent ability for wh as NAPLAN resu- iod therefore doe 92.2	e includes gover, rval of +/- 1.39 p ich there is assoc Its reflect studen s not reflect the j 20.7 re includes gover, rval of +/- 1.50 p ich there is assoc Its reflect studen s not reflect the j 92.2	nment and ercentage poir ciated measure t performance full impact of ra 23.0 nment and percentage poir ciated measure t performance full impact of ra 92.2	ement erro as assesse ecent 22 hts needs t ement erro as assesse ecent
 bands for reading in Year 7 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calend non-government schools. When interpreting rese be considered, as the reported number is an est standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the in May 2016, and student achievement during to Education State initiatives. Percentage of students in the top two bands for reading in Year 9 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calend non-government schools. When interpreting rese be considered, as the reported number is an est standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the in May 2016, and student achievement during the considered of the set on the set of the set on the set of the se	dar year. This perj sults, a 95 per cer timate of the stud ne 2016-17 target this reporting per per cent dar year. This perj sults, a 95 per cer timate of the stud ne 2016-17 target this reporting per per cent dar year. This perj	formance measur th confidence inter- lent ability for white as NAPLAN resur- iod therefore doe 23.0 formance measure the confidence inter- lent ability for white as NAPLAN resur- iod therefore doe 92.2 formance measure	e includes gover, rval of +/- 1.39 p ich there is assoc Its reflect studen s not reflect the j 20.7 re includes gover, rval of +/- 1.50 p ich there is assoc Its reflect studen s not reflect the j 92.2 re includes gover,	nment and ercentage poir ciated measure t performance full impact of ra 23.0 nment and percentage poir ciated measure t performance full impact of ra 92.2 nment and	ement erro as assesse ecent 22 hts needs t ment erro as assesse ecent 90
 bands for reading in Year 7 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calend non-government schools. When interpreting rese be considered, as the reported number is an est standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the in May 2016, and student achievement during to Education State initiatives. Percentage of students in the top two bands for reading in Year 9 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calend non-government schools. When interpreting rese be considered, as the reported number is an est standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the in May 2016, and student achievement during the considered of students when interpreting rese be considered, as the reported number is an est standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the in May 2016, and student achievement during the Education State initiatives. Percentage of students who remain at school from Year 7 to Year 12 This performance measure relates to the calend non-government schools. Percentage of Victorian Certificate of 	dar year. This perj sults, a 95 per cer timate of the stud ne 2016-17 target this reporting per per cent dar year. This perj sults, a 95 per cer timate of the stud ne 2016-17 target this reporting per per cent dar year. This perj	formance measur th confidence inter- lent ability for white as NAPLAN resur- iod therefore doe 23.0 formance measure the confidence inter- lent ability for white as NAPLAN resur- iod therefore doe 92.2 formance measure	e includes gover, rval of +/- 1.39 p ich there is assoc Its reflect studen s not reflect the j 20.7 re includes gover, rval of +/- 1.50 p ich there is assoc Its reflect studen s not reflect the j 92.2 re includes gover,	nment and ercentage poir ciated measure t performance full impact of ra 23.0 nment and percentage poir ciated measure t performance full impact of ra 92.2 nment and	ement erro as assesse ecent 22 hts needs t ment erro as assesse ecent 90
 bands for reading in Year 7 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calend non-government schools. When interpreting rese be considered, as the reported number is an est standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the in May 2016, and student achievement during to Education State initiatives. Percentage of students in the top two bands for reading in Year 9 (NAPLAN testing) This performance measure relates to the calend non-government schools. When interpreting rese be considered, as the reported number is an est standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the in May 2016, and student achievement during the calend non-government schools. When interpreting rese be considered, as the reported number is an est standard to any such assessment. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the in May 2016, and student achievement during the Education State initiatives. Percentage of students who remain at school from Year 7 to Year 12 This performance measure relates to the calend non-government schools. Percentage of Victorian Certificate of Applied Learning Certificates 	dar year. This perj sults, a 95 per cer timate of the stud ne 2016-17 target this reporting per per cent dar year. This perj sults, a 95 per cer timate of the stud ne 2016-17 target this reporting per per cent dar year. This perj	formance measur th confidence inter- lent ability for white as NAPLAN resur- iod therefore doe 23.0 formance measure the confidence inter- lent ability for white as NAPLAN resur- iod therefore doe 92.2 formance measure	e includes gover, rval of +/- 1.39 p ich there is assoc Its reflect studen s not reflect the j 20.7 re includes gover, rval of +/- 1.50 p ich there is assoc Its reflect studen s not reflect the j 92.2 re includes gover,	nment and ercentage poir ciated measure t performance full impact of ra 23.0 nment and percentage poir ciated measure t performance full impact of ra 92.2 nment and	ement erro as assesse ecent 22 nts needs ment erro as assesse ecent 90

	Unit of	2017-18	2016-17 expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Years 7-9 students' opinion of their connectedness with the school	number (1-5)	3.7	3.7	3.7	3.7
This performance measure relates to the calena are drawn from the Attitudes to School Survey, students feel they belong and enjoy attending s	where a higher s				
Percentage of students in out of home care receiving targeted supports in school	per cent	60.0	nm	nm	nm
(LOOKOUT Education Support Centres)					
	erformance me				
(LOOKOUT Education Support Centres) New performance measure for 2017-18 to refle- between disadvantage and achievement. This p	erformance me				
(LOOKOUT Education Support Centres) New performance measure for 2017-18 to refle between disadvantage and achievement. This p measure refers to government and non-govern Proportion of Navigator program	erformance men ment schools. per cent ct Government p	asure relates to the 70.0 priorities regarding	e calendar year. nm g Education State	This performan	nm the Link
 (LOOKOUT Education Support Centres) New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflebetween disadvantage and achievement. This pmeasure refers to government and non-govern Proportion of Navigator program participants re-engaged in schooling New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflebetween disadvantage and achievement. This pmeasure disadvantage and achievement. 	erformance men ment schools. per cent ct Government p	asure relates to the 70.0 priorities regarding	e calendar year. nm g Education State	This performan	nm the Link
 (LOOKOUT Education Support Centres) New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflebetween disadvantage and achievement. This pmeasure refers to government and non-government and non-government and non-government in schooling Proportion of Navigator program participants re-engaged in schooling New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflebetween disadvantage and achievement. This pmeasure refers to government schools. 	erformance men ment schools. per cent ct Government p	asure relates to the 70.0 priorities regarding	e calendar year. nm g Education State	This performan	nm the Link

Source: Department of Education and Training

Training, Higher Education and Workforce Development

The Training, Higher Education and Workforce Development output contributes to the Department's objectives by supporting Victorians to gain the skills and capabilities essential for success in employment and further training or study. The Victorian Government expects the TAFE and training sector to deliver quality training that strongly supports industry to meet the evolving needs of the economy; provides Victorians with the skills needed for initial and continuing employment; promotes equity and addresses disadvantage; and aligns with government priorities, with an emphasis on growth sectors of the economy, implementing 'Ending Family Violence: Victoria's Plan for Change' and the National Disability Insurance Scheme. An innovative, dynamic, sustainable and stable TAFE and training system working effectively with other education sectors is critical to the achievement of the Government's vision for establishing Victoria as the Education State.

Objective 1: Achievement

The departmental objective indicators are:

- VET course completions;
- Certificate III or above completions; and
- proportion of graduates with improved employment status after training.

Objective 2: Engagement

The departmental objective indicators are:

- VET enrolments by age and gender;
- VET enrolments by administrative regions;
- VET enrolments by skills shortage category courses;
- VET enrolments by specialised category courses;
- VET participation by learners facing barriers;
- VET participation by unemployed learners; and
- proportion of VET students satisfied with the teaching in their course.

Objective 3: Wellbeing

The departmental objective indicator is:

• level of student satisfaction with VET.

Objective 4: Productivity

The departmental objective indicator is:

• \$ per VET student contact hour.

Training, Higher Education and Workforce Development (2017-18: \$2 432.0 million)

The Training, Higher Education and Workforce Development output supports Victorians to acquire skills Victorian industries and businesses need to grow or adjust by:

- developing strategic advice on Victoria's skill requirements;
- supporting better training choices by individuals and employers through improved access to information and advice;
- contracting quality training delivery provided by TAFEs and dual sector universities, not-for-profit community providers and private registered training organisations;
- ensuring there is a highly capable and diverse internationally focused TAFE and training system in Victoria;
- supporting growth industries or those in adjustment, job creation and development of workforces;
- supporting Government priorities through training and skills development, such as the Government's response to the Family Violence Royal Commission through the Plan for Change;
- developing and implementing effective strategies for accredited and pre-accredited training through adult community education and youth transition pathways to ensure access to and increased participation in life long skills development; and
- growing TAFE institutes as public institutions that play a key role in helping the state to meet its economic and employment needs, as well as a unique role in the community to promote equity and address disadvantage.

This output includes the functions of training system design, industry engagement, stakeholder information, contracting and monitoring of quality and training services. It involves the development and implementation of strategies for accredited and pre-accredited vocational education and training through to adult community education.

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Quantity					
Annual government subsidised module enrolments	number (million)	3.5	3.5	4.5	4.5

This performance measure is proposed to be discontinued as the number of modules is a poor measure of training activity and as a simple quantum does not reflect the level and complexity of subsidised training. This performance measure relates to the calendar year.

The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 2016-17 target due to past policy changes such as tightened eligibility to subsidised training and foundation courses, and reductions in subsidies. Enrolment numbers have also been affected by the shift of students to VET FEE-HELP, and fewer enrolments in sub-standard training as part of the Government's implementation of the Review of Quality Assurance. The lower 2017-18 target reflects the impact of these changes and is based on the 2016-17 expected outcome.

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures Government subsidised student contact	<i>measure</i> number	target 125	outcome 125	target 154	actual 154
hours of training and further education	(million)	125	125	134	134
provided	(minon)				
This performance measure is proposed to be dis and it has been agreed for discontinuation as po measure relates to the calendar year. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than th subsidised training and foundation courses, and shift of students to VET FEE-HELP, and fewer en implementation of the Review of Quality Assura based on the 2016-17 expected outcome.	art of the nation e 2016-17 targe reductions in st rolments in sub-	al VET data stando t due to past polic ıbsidies. Enrolmen standard training	ard and data coll y changes such c t numbers have as part of the Go	ection. This per Is tightened elig also been affect wernment's	formance gibility to ted by the
Number of apprenticeship/ traineeship commencements by new employees	number	38 000	38 000	36 100	38 272
This performance measure is proposed to be dis 'Number of government subsidised apprentices for apprentices. This performance measure rela The 2017-18 target has been increased to more	hip enrolments', tes to the financ	which will better i ial year.	reflect Governme	-	
Number of government subsidised	number	390 000	389 414	466 681	466 681
course enrolments This performance measure relates to the calend due to past policy changes such as tightened eli subsidies. Enrolment numbers have also been a sub-standard training as part of the Governmen target reflects the impact of these changes and	gibility to subsic ffected by the sl nt's implementa	lised training and f hift of students to V tion of the Review	oundation cours /ET FEE-HELP, ar of Quality Assure	es, and reducti nd fewer enroln	ons in nents in
Number of pre-accredited module enrolments government subsidised through the Adult Community and Further Education (ACFE) Board – Adult Community Education organisations and Adult Education Institutes This performance measure relates to the calend	number	45 000	45 000	45 000	46 801
Number of students enrolled in	number	322 000	321 090	377 831	377 831
government subsidised courses This performance measure relates to the calend due to past policy changes such as tightened eli subsidies. Enrolment numbers have also been aj sub-standard training as part of the Governmer target reflects the impact of these changes and	'ar year. The 20. gibility to subsic ffected by the sl t's implementa	16-17 expected out lised training and f lift of students to V tion of the Review	tcome is lower th oundation cours /ET FEE-HELP, ar of Quality Assurd	nan the 2016-1 es, and reducti nd fewer enroln	7 target ons in nents in
Number of students without Year 12, Certificate II or above enrolled in foundation courses	number	14 700	14 653	19 775	19 775
This performance measure relates to the calend due to a reduction in foundation course subsidy Preparation from the foundation course list, and Enrolment numbers have also been affected by implementation of the Review of Quality Assura based on the 2016-17 expected outcome.	rates, tighter el d the establishm fewer enrolmen	igibility rules, the r ent of the Foundat ts in sub-standard	emoval of the Ce tion Skills approv training as part	ertificate I in Vo red provider list of the Governn	cational : nent's
Grants to support workforce development, skills sector reform, structural adjustment and job creation initiatives	number	10	10	10	nm

	Unit of	2017-18	2016-17 expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Participation rate of 15-24 year olds in government subsidised training and further education in Victoria	per cent	15.9	15.9	18.7	18.7
This performance measure relates to the calen due to past policy changes such as tightened er subsidies. Enrolment numbers have also been sub-standard training as part of the Governme target reflects the impact of these changes and	ligibility to subsic affected by the sl ent's implementa	lised training and hift of students to tion of the Reviev	l foundation cours VET FEE-HELP, ar v of Quality Assur	es, and reducti nd fewer enroln	ons in nents in
Participation rate of 25-64 year olds in	per cent	5.6	5.6	6.7	6.7
government subsidised training and further education in Victoria					
due to past policy changes such as tightened e subsidies. Enrolment numbers have also been sub-standard training as part of the Governme target reflects the impact of these changes and	affected by the sl nt's implementa d is based on the	hift of students to tion of the Reviev 2016-17 expected	VET FEE-HELP, an v of Quality Assur d outcome.	nd fewer enroln ance. The lowe	nents in r 2017-18
Number of government subsidised	number	44 300	43 420	nm	nm
apprenticeship enrolments This performance measure relates to the calen priorities regarding apprentices as part of the s		-	ure for 2017–18 t	o reflect Gover	nment
Proportion of government subsidised enrolments related to qualifications that will lead to jobs and economic growth	per cent	83.0	80.6	nm	nm
This performance measure relates to the calen priorities regarding: apprentice and pre-appren training, foundation and VCAL/VCE, and trainin	ntice training, hig	gh value traineesl		-	
Number of government subsidised enrolments by students living in regional Victoria	number	104 000	103 690	nm	nm
This performance measure relates to the calen priorities and investment in training as part of		-	-	o reflect Gover	nment
Proportion of government subsidised enrolments by students eligible for fee concession	per cent	21.3	21.3	nm	nm
This performance measure relates to the calen priorities and investment to lift training partici		-		-	
Number of students with low prior education in government subsidised training at Certificate III or above	number	80 000	79 999	nm	nm
This performance measure relates to the calen priorities and ongoing work to lift the skills of V case, low prior education is defined as students	/ictorians with lo	wer education lev	vels as part of the		
Number of government subsidised enrolments in TAFE networks	number	135 000	134 910	nm	nm
This performance measure relates to the calen providers. This new performance measure refle sustainable TAFE Networks (TAFE institutes an and traineeships, and retraining workers with I	ects the focus und d dual sector uni	der the Skills First versities): partnei	reforms on a cen	tral role for stro	ong and

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Quality					
Proportion of employers satisfied with the training provided by the Registered Training Organisation for apprenticeship and traineeship completers	per cent	78	78	85	83
This performance measure is proposed to be dis 'Proportion of employers of apprentices and tra training delivered for both continuing and comp calendar year. The 2016-17 expected outcome i providers that may have affected on employer s issues and is based on the 2016-17 expected ou	inees who are so oleting apprentions to lower than the satisfaction. The	atisfied with trair ces and trainees. 2016-17 target	ning', which will be This performance as there were qua	tter reflect the measure relate ity issues with s	quality of s to the some
Proportion of employers of apprentices and trainees who are satisfied with training	per cent	76.5	76.5	nm	nm
This performance measure replaces the 2017–1 provided by the Registered Training Organisatic a more complete picture of the quality of trainin This performance measure relates to the calenc training in 2015.	on for apprentice	eship and trainee both continuing d	ship completers'. T and completing ap	The new measu prentices and t	re provides rainees.
Proportion of VET completers who are	per cent	83.7	82.5	80.8	78.4
satisfied with their training					
This performance measure relates to the calence and early leavers. The 2017-18 target reflects in Review of Quality Assurance.	,				
Proportion of VET completers with an improved employment status after training	per cent	51.8	50.6	53.2	50.7
This performance measure relates to the calence graduates and early leavers. The 2016-17 expect with some providers in 2015 that may have affer reflects the impact of these quality issues and is expected from the Government's implementation	cted outcome is acted on employ based on the 20	lower than the 20 ment outcomes f 016-17 expected	016-17 target as th following training. outcome, while ind	ere were quali The 2017-18 to	ty issues rget
Proportion of VET completers who	per cent	78.7	77.2	nm	nm
achieved their main reason for training					
This performance measure relates to the calence priorities regarding the Education State and me survey result of 2015 VET graduates and early le Government's implementation of the Review of	asure the impac eavers. The 201	t of Skills First rej 7-18 target reflec	forms. The 2016-1	7 result refers t	o the 2016
Successful training completions as	per cent	80.8	80.8	80.7	80.7
measured by module load completion rate					
This performance measure is proposed to be dis 'Number of government subsidised course comp This performance measure relates to the calenc The 2017-18 taraet has been increased to more	oletions', which lar year.	will provide an in	nproved measure o		

The 2017-18 target has been increased to more closely reflect the 2016-17 expected outcome.

			2016-17				
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16		
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual		
Number of government subsidised course completions	number	108 000	107 905	nm	nm		
This performance measure relates to the calendar year. This performance measure replaces the 2017-18 performance measure 'Successful training completions as measured by module load completion rate'. This new performance measure for 2017-18 is proposed to reflect Government priorities regarding the Education State and measure the impact of Skills First reforms and will provide an improved measure of training completions in comparison to module load completion rate, which is proposed for discontinuation.							
Cost							
Total output cost	\$ million	2 432.0	2 412.2	2 477.5	2 026.5		
The lower 2017-18 target primarily reflects reduced appropriation applied as part of the 2017-18 Budget to align with forecast demand.							

Source: Department of Education and Training

Support Services Delivery

The Support Services Delivery output contributes to the Department's objectives by providing student welfare and support, student transport (excluding transport for special needs students) and health services.

Objective 4: Productivity

The departmental objective indicators are:

- \$ per primary school student per year^(a); and
- \$ per secondary school student per year^(a).

Note: (a) These indicators refer to government and non-government schools.

Support Services Delivery

(2017-18: \$342.5 million)

The Support Services Delivery output primarily covers the Regional Services Group and provides student welfare and support, student transport (excluding transport for special needs students) and health services. This output contributes towards providing and improving services to support all the Department's objectives of achievement, engagement, wellbeing and productivity.

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Quantity					
Eligible Primary School students in	number	139 000	127 022	139 000	nm
receipt of Camps, Sports and Excursions					
Fund					
This performance measure relates to the calence priorities regarding assisting families, to ensure activities. The 2016-17 expected outcome is low eligible families (holders of a concession card).	all Victorian stu	dents can take pa	rt in school camp	os, excursions a	nd sporting
Eligible Secondary School students in	number	81 000	78 637	81 000	nm
receipt of Camps, Sports and Excursions					
Fund					
This performance measure relates to the calence priorities regarding assisting families, to ensure activities. The 2016-17 expected outcome is low eligible families (holders of a concession card).	all Victorian stu	dents can take pa	rt in school camp	s, excursions a	nd sporting
Investment in student welfare and	\$ million	301.2	311.1	274.8	301.9
support					
This performance measure refers to governmen 2016-17 target primarily reflects higher carry fo the 2016-17 target. The higher 2017-18 target compared with the 2 2017-18 than in 2016-17 and new funding anno	rward from 201 016-17 target p	5-16 in compariso rimarily reflects hi	n with the estimo	ated amount re	eflected in
Investment in travelling allowances and	\$ million	41.3	41.8	39.2	41.0
transport support (not including special needs students)					
This performance measure includes governmen compared with the 2016-17 target primarily ref compared with the 2016-17 target primarily ref	lects growth in e	enrolment based f	unding. The high		

			2016-17				
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16		
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual		
Prep-aged students assessed by school	number	60 000	64 110	60 000	63 330		
nurses							
This performance measure relates to the calence non-government schools. The 2016-17 expected increased demand on services of the Primary Sc	d outcome is hig	her than the 2016			owth and		
School students (government) supported	number	10 800	9 267	9 600	9 503		
by conveyance allowance							
This performance measure relates to the calendar year. The higher 2017-18 target reflects increased number of expected recipients due to implementation of metropolitan boundary change.							
School students (non-government)	number	30 250	29 468	29 800	29 990		
supported by conveyance allowance							
This performance measure relates to the calence recipients due to implementation of metropolity	, .		et reflects increas	ed number of e	expected		
Schools allocated a nurse through the	number	193	200	193	200		
Secondary School Nursing Program							
This performance measure relates to the calence	lar year. This pe	rformance measu	re refers to gover	mment schools	only.		
Schools funded for primary welfare	number	806	804	806	806		
officers							
This performance measure relates to the c	alendar year.						
Quality							
School satisfaction with student support	per cent	85.0	85.2	85.0	87.4		
services							
This performance measure relates to the calence	lar year. This pe	rformance measu	re refers to gover	mment schools	only.		
Cost							
Total output cost	\$ million	342.5	352.9	313.9	342.9		
The higher 2016-17 expected outcome compare	ed with the 2016	5-17 target primar	ily reflects higher	carry forward	from		
2015-16 in comparison with the estimated amo							
The higher 2017-18 target compared with the 2				arry forward ir	icluded in		
2017-18 than in 2016-17 and new funding anno	ounced as part o	f the 2017-18 Bud	iget process.				

Source: Department of Education and Training

Support for Students with Disabilities

The Support for Students with Disabilities output contributes to the Department's objectives by delivering programs for students with disabilities, transport, welfare and support services for students with special needs.

Objective 4: Productivity

The departmental objective indicators are:

- \$ per primary school student per year^(a); and
- \$ per secondary school student per year^(a).

Note: (a) These indicators refer to government and non-government schools.

Support for Students with Disabilities

(2017-18: \$975.1 million)

The Support for Students with Disabilities output covers the program for students with disabilities, transport, welfare and support services for students with special needs. This output contributes towards providing and improving services to support all the Department's objectives of achievement, engagement, wellbeing and productivity.

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Quantity					
Eligible special school students provided with appropriate travel	number	9 200	9 003	9 217	8 846
This performance measure relates to the calendo rate in enrolments at specialist schools (2.2 per c	,	ver 2017-18 targ	et reflects a slowe	r than anticipa	ted growth
Students funded under the disabilities	per cent	4.2	4.2	4.2	4.2
program in government schools as a					
proportion of the total student					
population					
This performance measure relates to the calendo	ar year. This pe	rformance meas	ure refers to gover	mment schools	only.
Quality					
Parent satisfaction with special education	100-point	85	85	85	85
on a 100-point scale	scale				
This performance measure relates to the calendo is drawn from the Parent Opinion Survey, where	, ,		, ,		only. Data
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	975.1	932.8	932.4	860.3
The higher 2017-18 target primarily reflects incr part of the 2017-18 Budget process.	ease in existing	base funding, in	dexation and new	funding annou	inced as

Source: Department of Education and Training

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT, LAND, WATER AND PLANNING

Ministerial portfolios

The Department supports the ministerial portfolios of Energy, Environment and Climate Change, Water, Planning, Local Government and Suburban Development.

Departmental mission statement

The Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's mission is to shape and support liveable, inclusive and sustainable communities, and thriving natural environments across Victoria by:

- listening, working alongside and partnering with the community in everything we do;
- leveraging the connectivity between our portfolios to respond to the impacts of climate change in a productive, collaborative and coordinated way;
- maximising opportunities for attracting investment and jobs through supporting the development of new, low-carbon industries; and
- protecting, enhancing and strengthening our State's liveability and protecting our natural environment, infrastructure and heritage for future generations.

The Department contributes to the Victorian Government's commitment to a stronger, fairer, better Victoria by supporting our natural and built environment, to ensure economic growth and liveable, sustainable and inclusive communities that are resilient to the impacts of climate change.

Departmental objectives

Zero emission, climate-ready economy and community¹

Leads the Victorian Government response to climate change, in line with the *Climate Change Act 2017*, Victoria's Climate Change Framework and Victoria's Climate Change Adaptation Plan 2017-20. The Government's response includes reducing greenhouse gas emissions, adapting to the impacts of climate change, and supporting the economic and social transition to a net-zero emissions and climate resilient future.

The Climate Change output contributes to this objective by leading the development and implementation of strategic, whole of government climate change policy and programs that contribute to Victoria's 2050 target of net-zero emissions.

¹ This is a new objective for 2017-18 that reflects a change to the Department's priorities, following machinery of government changes on 1 July 2016.

Healthy, resilient and biodiverse environment

Leads the development and implementation of strategic regulation and investment in environmental and natural resource programs across Victoria.

The Environment and Biodiversity output contributes to this objective by developing and implementing environmental policy and delivering investment, regulatory and research functions.

The Statutory Activities and Environment Protection output contributes to this objective by regulating pollution through statutory and non-statutory tools and settings, conducting enforcement activities and undertaking environmental condition monitoring and research.

Reliable, efficient, accessible, safe and sustainable energy services²

Delivers programs on renewable energy, improving energy efficiency and productivity, plus provides policy advice to government on the delivery of reliable, efficient, accessible, safe and sustainable energy services to households and business consumers.

The Energy output contributes to this objective through state-based energy programs, including renewable energy development, energy efficiency improvement and facilitation of new investment.

Productive and effective land management

Delivers effective management and governance of Victoria's public land to protect its social, economic and environmental values and maximise its use by all Victorians.

The Land Use Victoria output contributes to this objective by delivering high quality and authoritative land administration and property information services, including the registration of land titles, survey, valuation and property sales and planning and property certificates.

The Management of Public Land and Forests output contributes to this objective by providing stewardship of Victoria's forests, coasts and Crown land reserves, to ensure that natural, built and historic assets are managed responsibly.

The Parks Victoria output contributes to this objective by managing the development and protection of Victoria's natural, cultural and community assets.

Safe and sustainable water resources

Increases the efficiency of supply and use of water in cities and towns, and improves environmental conditions of waterways to ensure that Victoria has safe and sustainable water resources to meet future urban, rural and environmental needs.

The Effective Water Management and Supply output contributes to this objective by developing policies, providing strategic advice and overseeing regulatory systems and institutional arrangements to effectively manage Victoria's water resources.

² This is a new objective for 2017-18 that reflects a change to the Department's priorities, following machinery of government changes on 1 July 2016.

A quality built environment

Plans for the future growth and transformation of Victoria's cities and regions, and provides leadership and advice on heritage protection and the built environment.

The Planning, Building and Heritage output contributes to this objective by delivering programs to address the future growth and transformation of cities and regions.

Affordable and reliable access to jobs, services and infrastructure in Melbourne's suburbs³

Coordinates government activities to ensure that Melbourne is prosperous and that the benefits of growth are shared fairly.

The Suburban Development output contributes to this objective by delivering activities to engage with all levels of government, business and community sectors to manage Melbourne's growth, to better meet community needs for jobs, services and infrastructure, and maintain and strengthen Melbourne's status as one of the world's most liveable cities.

Sustainable and effective local governments

Supports effective and efficient local governance and service provision, and supports communities to manage change and growth at a local level.

The Local Government output contributes to this objective by delivering activities in partnership with the local government sector to support effective and efficient governance and service provision.

Reduced impact of major bushfires and other emergencies on people, property and the environment

Safer Together delivers an integrated approach to reducing the risk of bushfires and other emergencies to protect people, property and the environment.

The Fire and Emergency Management output contributes to this objective by planning and delivering integrated bushfire management and the provision of emergency response.

³ This is a new objective for 2017-18 that reflects a change to the Department's priorities following the creation of the new Suburban Development portfolio that came into effect in May 2016.

Output summary by departmental objectives

The Department's outputs and funding are provided in the table below. Detailed descriptions of objectives, outputs, together with their key performance indicators are presented in subsequent tables.

provence in cussequent abres				(\$ million)
	2016-17	2016-17	2017-18	Variation ^(a)
	budget	revised	budget	%
Zero emission, climate-ready economy and community				
Climate Change ^(b)			36.1	100
Healthy, resilient and biodiverse environment				
Environment and Biodiversity ^(c)	134.2	149.0	130.6	(2.7)
Statutory Activities and Environment Protection ^(d)	96.4	107.8	122.6	27.2
Reliable, efficient, accessible, safe and sustainable				
energy services				
Energy ^(e)	65.8	126.4	180.5	174.3
Productive and effective land management				
Land Use Victoria	77.0	75.2	80.4	4.4
Management of Public Land and Forests ^(f)	321.8	335.9	187.1	(41.9)
Parks Victoria ^(g)			176.7	100
Safe and sustainable water resources				
Effective Water Management and Supply ^(h)	486.2	426.6	521.5	7.3
A quality built environment				
Planning, Building and Heritage ⁽ⁱ⁾	156.1	158.5	194.6	24.7
Affordable and reliable access to jobs, services and infrastructure in Melbourne's suburbs				
Suburban Development ^(j)			2.5	100
Sustainable and effective local governments				
Local Government ^(k)	114.4	125.5	92.1	(19.5)
Reduced impact of major bushfires and other emergencies on people, property and the environment				
Fire and Emergency Management ^(I)	371.8	373.5	414.9	11.6
Total	1 823.7	1 878.6	2 139.6	17.3

Source: Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning

Notes:

(a) Variation between the 2016-17 budget and the 2017-18 budget.

(b) Climate Change has been disaggregated from the 2016-17 Environment, Biodiversity and Climate Change output to provide increased clarity and accountability. As such there is no 2016-17 budget and 2016-17 revised.

(c) Environment and Biodiversity has been disaggregated from the 2016-17 Environment, Biodiversity and Climate Change output to provide increased clarity and accountability. The 2016-17 budget and 2016-17 revised represent the total former Environment, Biodiversity and Climate Change output.

(d) The higher 2017-18 budget primarily reflects an increase to the expenditure profile of the Municipal Industrial Landfill Levy trust account.

(e) Energy has been disaggregated from the 2016-17 Energy and Resources output within the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources as a result of machinery of government changes that came into effect on 1 July 2016. The higher 2017-18 budget primarily reflects additional Government investment provided for Energy initiatives including Greener Government Buildings and the recashflow of the Powerline Bushfire Safety Program.

(f) Management of Public Land and Forests has been disaggregated from the 2016-17 Management of Forests, Parks and Public Land output to provide increased clarity and accountability. The 2016-17 budget and 2016-17 revised represent the total former Management of Forests, Parks and Public Land output. Notes (continued):

- (g) Parks Victoria has been disaggregated from the 2016-17 Management of Forests, Parks and Public Land output to provide increased clarity and accountability. As such there is no 2016-17 budget and 2016-17 revised.
- (h) The higher 2017-18 budget is primarily related to the rephasing of the Goulburn-Murray Water (GMW) Connections project and an increase in new funding announced in 2017-18.
- (i) The higher 2017-18 budget is primarily related to additional Government investment provided in the 2017-18 Budget related to Fishermans Bend - Planning for a city's future, Revitalising central Geelong, and increases in the Growth Area Public Transport Fund and Building New Communities Fund expenditure profiles.
- (j) Suburban Development is a new output. As such, there is no 2016-17 budget and 2016-17 revised.
- (k) The lower 2017-18 budget reflects a restructured Growing Suburbs Fund. The Fund is allocated across 2017-18 and 2018-19 to focus on medium and long term projects.
- (I) The higher 2017-18 budget is primarily related to additional Government investment provided in the 2017-18 Budget for the Reducing bushfire risk program.

Amounts available

The following tables detail the amounts available to the Department from Parliamentary authority and income generated through transactions.

Table 2.6 outlines the Department's income from transactions and Table 2.7 summarises the sources of Parliamentary authority available to the Department to fund the provision of outputs, additions to the net asset base and payments made on behalf of the State.

Table 2.6: Income from transactions

2015-16 2016-17 2016-17 2017-18 budget^(a) budget revised actual 1 450.2 Output appropriations 1 164.4 1 276.0 1 334.5 92.9 Special appropriations 58.7 62.3 113.8 Interest 32.3 21.0 21.0 24.8 Sales of goods and services 91.9 50.3 50.8 43.1 Grants 64.3 393.9 194.9 186.6 Fair value of assets and services received free of charge or for .. •• nominal consideration Other income 301.8 304.6 301.5 271.7 Total income from transactions 1713.4 2 100.8 2 016.0 2 077.0

Source: Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning

Note:

(a) There are no non-public account contributions in 2017-18 estimates.

(\$ million)

Table 2.7: Parliamentary authority for resources

(\$ million)

	2016-17	2016-17	2017-18
	budget	revised	budget
Annual appropriations	1 818.5	1 792.2	2 018.6
Provision of outputs	1 101.4	1 110.4	1 257.1
Additions to the net asset base	87.8	57.0	119.5
Payments made on behalf of the State ^(a)	629.3	624.8	642.0
Receipts credited to appropriations	118.0	151.9	143.6
Unapplied previous years appropriation	85.2	134.4	73.1
Provision of outputs	59.5	99.3	59.6
Additions to the net asset base	18.8	21.5	11.3
Payments made on behalf of the State ^(a)	6.9	13.6	2.3
Accumulated surplus – previously applied appropriation			
Gross annual appropriation	2 021.7	2 078.5	2 235.2
Special appropriations	62.3	117.1	92.9
Trust funds ^(b)	1 359.4	1 183.7	1 193.9
Commonwealth Local Government Grants Trust ^(c)	540.0	542.1	564.7
G-MW Connections Project Trust ^(d)	376.2	151.9	165.8
Municipal and Industrial Landfill Levy Trust ^(e)	199.5	212.3	208.3
Parks and Reserves Trust ^(f)	159.4	167.8	163.9
Other	84.3	109.6	91.2
Total parliamentary authority	3 443.3	3 379.3	3 522.0

Source: Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning

Notes:

(a) Includes contributions by the State under agreements pursuant to Section 25 of the Murray Darling Basin Act 1993.

(b) The 2016-17 Budget figure has been restated due to a change in methodology to better reflect the nature of trust fund income.
 (c) The purpose of this trust primarily relates to the issuing of grants pursuant to the Commonwealth allocation to the state for passing on to local government.

(d) The purpose of this trust primarily relates to the collection and disbursement of Commonwealth funding provided for the G-MW Connections project and any interest earned on the cash balance. The variance between the 2016-17 Budget and the 2016-17 revised figures largely reflects the revised Commonwealth funding following the G-MW project reset.

⁽e) The purpose of this trust primarily relates to the collection and distribution of the General Landfill Levy as required under section 70E of the Environment Protection and Sustainability Victoria Amendment Act 2014.

⁽f) The purpose of this trust primarily holds the park charge collected to support ongoing core operations of Parks Victoria throughout the metropolitan area, the Royal Botanic Gardens, Zoos Victoria and the Shrine of Remembrance.

Changes to the output structure

The Department has made changes to its output structure for 2017-18, as shown in the table below:

2016-17 outputs Environment, Biodiversity and Climate Change	Reason This output has been disaggregated to provide increased clarity and accountability.	2017-18 outputs Environment and Biodiversity Climate Change
na	The Energy and Resources output has been partially transferred from the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources to the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning, as a result of machinery of government changes.	Energy
Management of Forests, Parks and Public Land	This output has been disaggregated to provide increased clarity and accountability.	Management of Public Land and Forests Parks Victoria
na	This is a new output created for the new Suburban Development portfolio	Suburban Development
Land Victoria	This output has been renamed to reflect the new name of the former Land Victoria agency.	Land Use Victoria

Source: Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning

Departmental performance statement

Objective 1: Zero emission, climate-ready economy and community^(a)

This objective leads a whole of government response to climate change, including reducing greenhouse gas emissions, adapting to the impacts of a warmer climate, and supporting the economic and social transition to a net-zero emissions and climate resilient future.

The Department leads the modernisation of legislative, regulatory and governance arrangements in the environment portfolio, and uses economic, research and scientific expertise to develop policy responses to harness Victoria's current and emerging sustainability opportunities.

The foundation stones for the Department's work on these issues are: the *Climate Change Act 2017*; Victoria's Climate Change Framework; and Victoria's Climate Change Adaptation Plan 2017-2020.

The departmental objective indicators^(b) are:

- reduction in emissions from government operations;
- percentage reduction in Victoria's greenhouse gas emissions relative to 2005; and
- number of pledges made under the TAKE2 climate change pledge program. *Notes:*
- (a) This is a new objective for 2017-18 that reflects a change to the Department's priorities, following machinery of government changes on 1 July 2016.
- (b) These are new objective indicators that reflect achievement of the new objective, 'Zero emission, climate-ready economy and community'

Outputs

Climate Change

(2017-18: \$36.1 million)

This output leads the development and implementation of strategic, whole of government climate change policy and programs that contribute to Victoria's 2050 target of net-zero emissions.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Quantity					
Victorian schools participating in the	number	868	868	868	nm
ResourceSmart Schools program					
This performance measure is transferred directly f	from the former	Environment, Bi	odiversity and Clin	nate Change ou	ıtput.
Quality					
Departmental stakeholder satisfaction	per cent	75	75	75	nm
with engagement in completed policy					
projects					
This performance measure is transferred directly j	from the former	Environment, Bi	odiversity and Clin	nate Change ou	ıtput.
Timeliness					
Delivery of policy, advice and research on	per cent	80	80	80	nm
climate change within agreed timeframes					
This performance measure is transferred directly J	from the former	Environment, Bi	odiversity and Clin	nate Change ou	ıtput.
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	36.1	nm	nm	nm
This output has been disaggregated from the 2016-17 Environment, Biodiversity and Climate Change output to provide					
increased clarity and accountability. As such there	e is no 2016-17 e	expected outcom	e, 2016-17 target	and 2015-16 a	ctual.

Source: Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning

Objective 2: Healthy, resilient and biodiverse environment

This objective leads the development and implementation of strategic regulation and investment in environmental and natural resource programs across Victoria.

The Department works with portfolio partners, local communities and external stakeholders to develop effective, evidence-based policies, programs and regulatory responses for: environment protection; ecosystem resilience; native vegetation management; threatened species; and land management practices.

The departmental objective indicators are:

- participation in community-based environmental programs; and
- reduction in pollutants from priority hotspots.

Outputs

Environment and Biodiversity

(2017-18: \$130.6 million)

This output leads the development and implementation of strategic, whole of government environmental policy and delivers investment, regulatory and research functions that support Victoria's diverse and resilient ecosystems.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Quantity					
Area of revegetation protected or enhanced through departmental- supported Landcare activities	hectares	1 600	1 500	1 500	1 602
The higher 2017-18 target reflects an expected in		-			
Victorian Landcare Groups supported by a facilitator	number	435	440	395	nm
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the commenced in early 2017. The higher 2017-18 target reflects this.	2016-17 target	due to additional	Landcare facilita	tor positions th	at
Habitat managed for biodiversity in Victoria	hectare	10 000	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect environment- Biodiversity 2036 initiative.	funding provide	ed in the 2017-18 E	Budget for the Pro	otecting Victori	a's
Area protected from pest predators, weeds and herbivores	hectare	180 000	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect funding provided in the 2017-18 Budget for the Protecting Victoria's environment- Biodiversity 2036 initiative.					
Quality					
Completion of annual reporting and board appointment processes in accordance with legislation	per cent	100	100	100	95

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Delivery of key milestones for the Keeping e-waste out of landfill program	per cent	100	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflec resource recovery for growing Victoria initiative.	t funding provide	ed in the 2017-18 E	Budget for the Inv	vesting in wast	e and
Presentations made and scientific publications in peer reviewed journals	number	60	60	60	63
Timeliness					
Native Vegetation Credit Extracts processed within 10 days	per cent	95	95	90	100
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than th 18 target reflects this.	e 2016-17 target	due to improved	performance effic	ciencies. The hi	gher 2017-
Planning referrals relating to native vegetation processed within statutory timeframes	per cent	80	80	80	77
Wildlife Licence renewals processed by target dates	per cent	96	96	96	96
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	130.6	nm	nm	nm
Environment and Biodiversity has been disaggre to provide increased clarity and accountability. T the total former Environment, Biodiversity and C	he 2016-17 targe	et, 2016-17 expect	, ,		5 1

The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 2016-17 target due to additional funding announced as part of the 2017-18 Budget.

Source: Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning

Statutory Activities and Environment Protection

(2017-18: \$122.6 million)

This output effectively regulates pollution through statutory and non-statutory tools and settings, conducts enforcement activities and undertakes environmental condition monitoring and research. These activities protect and improve the environment to support a liveable and prosperous state by delivering clean air, healthy waterways, safe land, less waste and minimal disturbances from noise and odour for Victorians.

This output focuses on reducing local pollution problems, working with stakeholders to improve environmental outcomes and using knowledge and science to underpin decision making to shape Victoria's environmental future. Through collaboration, communication and information programs, this output enables greater community involvement in, and ownership of, environmental issues.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Quantity		5		<u> </u>	
Inspections that test compliance of licensed premises	number	200-250	nm	nm	nm
This performance measure replaces the 2016-17 or measure demonstrates EPA's focus on planned, ri better reflects increased government focus on rec	sk-based and pr	eventative comp	, ,		
Events that engage business and community in environment protection	number	10-12	nm	nm	nm
This performance measure replaces the 2016-17 of improvement tools, guidelines, policies, systems of different ways that the EPA seeks to provide infor stakeholders, and better reflects increased govern	and plans comple mation and awa	eted and issued'. areness of curren	The new measure t and future envirc	provides insigl	ht into the
Activities that support business to comply with environmental obligations	number	15-20	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Modern Era initiative.	funding provide	ed in the 2017-18	Budget for the Bri	inging our EPA	into the
Quality					
EPA prosecutions are successful, and conditions in enforceable undertakings are focused on improving environmental performance	per cent	90	100	90	100
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the date.	2016-17 target	due to EPA havir	ng been successful	in all prosecut	ions to
Land audits submitted by EPA appointed auditors are reviewed to ensure compliance with statutory requirements and guidelines	per cent	90	90	90	99
Notices complied with by due date or escalation in line with Compliance and Enforcement policy	per cent	90	96	90	88
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the	2016-17 target	due to a focus o	n operational perf	ormance in this	s area.

			2016-17			
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16	
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual	
Timeliness						
Pollution reporters requesting follow-up	per cent	80	90	80	83	
by EPA receive contact within three						
working days						
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 2016-17 target due to a focus on operational performance in this area.						
Works approvals and licences completed	per cent	96	100	96	99	
within required statutory timelines						
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 2016-17 target due to a focus on operational performance in this area.						
Cost						
Total output cost	\$ million	122.6	107.8	96.4	151.8	
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the approved as part of the 2016-17 Budget Update.	2015-16 target	due to the adjus	tments in cash flov	v of existing fu	nding	
The higher 2017-18 target primarily reflects an increase to the expenditure profile of the Municipal Industrial Landfill Levy trust						

The higher 2017-18 target primarily reflects an increase to the expenditure profile of the Municipal Industrial Landfill Levy trust account.

Source: Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning

Objective 3: Reliable, efficient, accessible, safe and sustainable energy services^(a)

This objective delivers leading programs on renewable energy, improving energy efficiency and productivity. It also provides policy advice to government on the delivery of reliable, efficient, accessible, safe and sustainable energy services to households and business consumers.

The Department works with the renewable energy industry, electricity networks and retailers and consumer groups to attract and facilitate investment in renewable energy and support the development of low emission technologies.

The departmental objective indicators are:

- relative share of Victoria's energy sourced from renewables; and
- percentage of surveyed users of the Victorian Energy Compare website who report that they plan to switch offers after using the website^(b).

Notes:

(a) This is a new objective for 2017-18 that reflects a change to the Department's priorities, following machinery of government changes on 1 July 2016.

(b) New objective indicator to reflect the achievement of the objective Reliable, efficient, accessible, safe and sustainable energy services'.

Outputs

Energy

(2017-18: \$180.5 million)

This output advocates for the provision of reliable, efficient, accessible, safe and sustainable energy services through state-based energy programs, including renewable energy development, energy efficiency improvement and facilitation of new investment.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual		
Quantity							
Delivery of key milestones for the Powerline Bushfire Safety Work Program	per cent	100	100	100	100		
This performance measure is transferred directly from the 2016-17 Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources output of Energy and Resources, as a result of machinery of government changes.							
Delivery of a pilot independent energy brokerage service for Victorian hardship and culturally and linguistically diverse (CALD) consumers	per cent	100	nm	nm	nm		
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect funding provided in the 2017-18 Budget for the Energy Affordability initiative.							
Quality							
Users of the Victorian Energy Compare website who report a better understanding of their usage costs after using the website	per cent	50	nm	nm	nm		
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect the additional emphasis on supporting customer choice and engagement with retail energy sector.							

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Victoria is represented at each COAG	per cent	100	nm	nm	nm
Energy Council meeting					
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Reform and Advocacy initiative.	funding provide	d in the 2017-18 B	udget for the No	ntional Energy I	Markets -
Delivery of key Australian Energy Market	per cent	100	nm	nm	nm
Commission funding milestones, in line					
with funding agreements and agreed					
project deliverables					
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Reform and Advocacy initiative.	funding provide	d in the 2017-18 B	udget for the No	ntional Energy I	Markets -
Timeliness					
Delivery of key milestones for the energy efficiency and productivity work program	per cent	100	100	100	100
This performance measure is transferred directly j and Resources output of Energy and Resources, a				pment, Jobs, Tr	ansport
Delivery of key milestones for the	per cent	100	100	100	nm
Victorian Energy Efficiency Target					
Scheme work program					
This performance measure is transferred directly j and Resources output of Energy and Resources, a				pment, Jobs, Tr	ansport
Delivery of key milestones for the Solar	per cent	100	nm	nm	nm
Trams Program					
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect initiative.	funding provide	d in the 2017-18 B	udget for the Se	curing Our Ene	rgy Future
Delivery of key milestones for the	per cent	100	100	100	100
renewable energy work program					
This performance measure is transferred directly j and Resources output of Energy and Resources, a				pment, Jobs, Tr	ansport
Delivery of key milestones for the Smart	per cent	100	nm	nm	nm
System, Microgrid and Storage trials					
program					
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Consumers First initiative.	funding provide	d in the 2017-18 B	udget for the En	ergy Affordabil	ity: Putting
Facilitate the delivery of key energy	per cent	100	100	100	100
technology innovation milestones in line					
with grant agreements					
This performance measure is transferred directly j and Resources output of Energy and Resources, a				pment, Jobs, Tr	ansport
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	180.5	126.4	65.8	69.6
This output has been disaggregated from the 201	6-17 Energy and	Resources output	within the Depa	artment of Econ	omic
Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources as a 2016.	result of machir	nery of governmen	t changes that c	ame into effect	on 1 July
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the	5	-	funding annound	ced as part of th	he 2017-18
Budget and the recashflow of the Powerline Bush The higher 2017-18 target primarily reflects addit Greener Government Buildings and the recashflow	ional Governme	nt investment pro	, ,,	initiatives inclu	ding
Source: Department of Environment Land Water and Plu		ic businine sujety	r rograni.		

Source: Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning

Objective 4: Productive and effective land management

This objective delivers effective management and governance of Victoria's public land to protect its social, economic and environmental values and maximise its use by all Victorians.

The Department works with statutory agencies, committees and local governments to ensure that: land is productive and is used in a sustainable manner; infrastructure on public land and in coastal environments is appropriate and well managed; the condition of marine, coastal and estuarine environments is protected, maintained and improved; and that key biodiversity assets, priority habitats and ecological processes are healthy and secure.

The Department also provides quality land information services, including comprehensive and accessible spatial information, to support integrated planning and decision making and ensure confidence in the integrity and efficiency of the property system.

The departmental objective indicators are:

- efficient provision of timely and authoritative land administration and property information services;
- number of visits to the public land estate managed by the Department's portfolio agencies: Parks Victoria; and
- bay and park assets rated in average to excellent condition.

Outputs

Land Use Victoria

(2017-18: \$80.4 million)

This output delivers high quality and authoritative land administration and property information services, including the registration of land titles under the Torrens system, survey, valuation and property sales and planning and property certificates.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual	
Quantity						
Planning certificates issued	number (000)	60	57	55	57	
The higher 2017-18 target reflects an increase in transactions relating to property information searches.						
Property transfers, discharge of mortgages and registration of new mortgages	number (000)	800	840	800	855	
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 2016-17 target due to increased levels of activity in the property market.						
Proportion of title searches supplied (remotely) online	per cent	98	99	98	99	

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actua
Property reports generated online	number	3.9	3.9	3.9	3.3
	(million)				
This performance measure is transferred directly f	rom the 2017-18	output Manager	ment of Public La	ind and Forests	to
consolidate spatial related measures. This perform				-	
Channel'. The new measure reports on the same a				-	-
Title searches supplied	number	2 220	2 220	2 220	2 232
	(000)				
Quality					
Audited Vicmap digital map base not requiring correction	per cent	98	98	98	97
This performance measure is transferred directly factors consolidate spatial related measures.	rom the 2017-18	output Manager	ment of Public La	ind and Forests	; to
Government-owned properties sold,	per cent	80	80	80	80
bought or leased within 10 per cent of					
valuation					
Strategic Land Use Assessments delivered	per cent	80	nm	nm	nn
within agreed timeframes	P				
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect ;	funding provided	<i>in the</i> 2017-18 E	Budget for the La	nd Use Victoria	initiative.
Timeliness	51		0)		
Delivery of updated Vicmap Foundation	per cent	98	nm	nm	nm
Data within one week	per cent	50			
This performance measure replaces the 2016-17 q	wantity measure	'Mans generated	d on Land Chann	el' The new m	easure
underpins the provision of land administration and					
performance.					
Land dealings registered within five days	per cent	95	98	95	99
New titles (subdivisions) created within	per cent	95	80	95	78
three weeks					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 2	2016-17 target di	ue to higher than	expected demai	nd. Resourcing	strategies
have been implemented to improve performance i	in 2017-18.	Ū.			
Update transactions for the Vicmap	per cent	98	98	98	99
digital map base processed within the					
required timeframes					
This performance measure is transferred directly f	rom the 2017-18	output Manager	ment of Public La	ind and Forests	to
consolidate spatial related measures.					
Cost					
-	\$ million	80.4	75.2	77.0	95.6
Total output cost		00.4	75.2	77.0	90.0

Management of Public Land and Forests

(2017-18: \$187.1 million)

This output provides for the improved stewardship of Victoria's forests, coasts and Crown land reserves. Through this output, the Department manages the natural, built and historic assets on public land responsibly, and incorporates management of public land in partnership with statutory agencies, committees of management and local government.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Quantity					
Crown land leases directly managed by the Department	number	700	701	684	696
The higher 2017-18 target reflects an increased nu	umber of Crown	land leases being	g managed.		
Crown land licenses directly managed by the Department	number (000)	44	44	43	44
The higher 2017-18 target reflects the addition of			tive and reinstatir	ng old apiary sit	tes.
Participants in Coastcare activities	number (000)	10	nm	nm	nm
This performance measure replaces the 2016-17 o The new measure reflects funding provided in the			,	are Victoria par	ticipants'.
Visitors to the Royal Botanic Gardens in Melbourne and Cranbourne	number (million)	1.6-2	1.8	1.6-2	1.8
Specimens curated in the State Botanical Collection	number	12 100	18 000	12 100	nm
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the during 2016-17.	2016-17 target	due to additiona	l one-off investme	ent in curating s	species
Visitors to Zoos Victoria at Melbourne, Werribee and Healesville	number (million)	2.60	2.33	2.49	2.45
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the The higher 2017-18 target reflects Zoos Victoria's population growth in Melbourne.					e to
Coastal protection infrastructure projects delivered	number	6	nm	nm	nm
This performance measure replaces the 2016-17 o Western Port Bays rated as 'good' to 'very good' o program.					
Quality					
Level of compliance with environmental regulatory framework for commercial timber operations as required by the Forest Audit Program	per cent	90	80	90	82
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the a process being used in VicForests.	2016-17 target,	due to disruption	ns caused by the ir	mplementation	of a new
Publicly elected Committees of Management that have a current statutory appointment	per cent	90	94	90	93
Recreational facilities in state forests with a life expectancy greater than five years	per cent	75	78	75	81

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Timeliness Rent reviews of Department managed Crown land leases undertaken within specified time frames	per cent	95	95	95	94
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	187.1	335.9	321.8	321.7
This output has been disaggregated from the 20. increased clarity and accountability. The 2016-17 former Management of Forests, Parks and Public The lower 2017-18 target reflects the removal of	7 expected outcol c Land output.	me, 2016-17 tar			

(2017-18: \$176.7 million)

Parks Victoria

This output provides for the improved stewardship of Victoria's parks. Through this output, Parks Victoria manages the development and protection of natural, cultural and community assets for safe enjoyment and sustainable use by all Victorians. Parks Victoria works to ensure the state's park assets are managed efficiently and effectively.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Quantity					
Area treated to minimise the impact of	hectares	1 100	1 100	1 100	1 100
pest plants, pest animals and over	(000)				
abundant native animals in parks managed by Parks Victoria					
Visits to national, state, urban and other	number	54-55	nm	nm	nm
terrestrial parks	(million)	54-55		11111	
This performance measure edits the 2016-17 per	,	ure 'Visits to Parks	Victoria manage	d estate' The	new
measure reports on the same activity as the prev					
increased transparency and clarity.					
Visits to piers and jetties	number	45-46	nm	nm	nm
	(million)				
This performance measure edits the 2016-17 per					
measure reports on the same activity as the prev other parks for increased transparency and clarit		wever has been s	eparated from na	itional, state, u	rban and
Total area of estate managed by Parks	hectares	4 104	4 111	4 104	4 104
Victoria	(000)	4 104	4 111	4 104	4 104
Quality	(000)				
Significant built bay assets managed by	per cent	80	82	75	82
Parks Victoria rated in average to	percent	00	02	75	02
excellent condition					
The 2016-17 Expected outcome is higher than the	e 2016-17 taraet	due to a hiah nui	mber of improver	nent and main	tenance
works completed.	<u>.</u>	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,			
The higher 2017-18 target reflects the expectatio	n that this increa	ased activity will c	continue.		
Significant built park assets managed by	per cent	88	88	88	88
Parks Victoria rated in average to					
excellent condition					
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	176.7	nm	nm	nm
This output has been disaggregated from the 201		· · ·			
increased clarity and accountability. As such there	e is no 2016-17 t	arget, 2016-17 ex	xpected outcome	and 2015-16 a	ctual.

Objective 5: Safe and sustainable water resources

This objective increases the efficiency of supply and use of water in cities and towns and improves environmental conditions of waterways to ensure Victoria has safe and sustainable water resources to meet future urban, rural and environmental needs.

The Department works in partnership with water corporations, catchment management authorities, government agencies, industry and the community to balance the economic, environmental and social values of water. This helps to deliver secure water supplies, greener and liveable cities and towns, and healthy waterways and aquifers.

The departmental objective indicators are:

- proportion of properties completely connected to the modernised irrigation delivery system (in the Goulburn Murray, Macalister, Werribee and Bacchus Marsh irrigation districts)^(a); and
- number of river reaches/wetlands with maintained or improved environmental condition.

Note:

Outputs

Effective Water Management and Supply

(2017-18: \$521.5 million)

This output develops policies, provides strategic advice and oversees regulatory systems and institutional arrangements to effectively manage Victoria's water resources. Through this output, the Department delivers: on-ground environmental programs to improve the health of waterways; water industry reform, governance and performance oversight; sustainable irrigation programs; and makes water resource information accessible to enable informed decision-making.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Quantity					
Area of waterway vegetation works undertaken to improve the health and resilience of waterways	hectares	8 500	8 500	8 500	8 010
Cumulative water savings (permanent reduction in irrigation distribution system delivery losses) realised through water recovery projects	megalitres	802 507	744 021	682 056	681 056
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the Project, resulting in the re-phasing of targets. The higher 2017-18 target reflects the cumulative	5		of the Goulburn-N	Aurray Water C	Connections

⁽a) This objective indicator replaces the 2016-17 indicator Proportion of properties completely connected to the modernised irrigation delivery system (in the Goulburn Murray and Macalister Irrigation Districts)'. The new indicator reflects a broader range of irrigation modernisation projects.

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Sites with environmental water managed	number	160	160	160	179
to meet environmental objectives					
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p to meet environmental objectives'. The new measu amended for increased clarity.					
Cumulative other Victorian retail water entitlements (including licences to take and use water and other miscellaneous entitlements) recorded in the water register as the authoritative record	per cent	>97	97	91	95
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p licences to take and use water and other miscelland record'. The new measure reports on the same acti clarity. The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 2 The higher 2017-18 Target reflects the cumulative	eous entitleme vity as the prev 2016-17 target	nts) recorded in th vious measure how due to a focus on	ne water register wever has been a	as the authorit mended for inc	tative creased
People engaged to increase the	number	4 500	5 000	4 500	8 601
knowledge/capacity of waterway					
management					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 2	-		levels of commur	nity engageme	nt and
participation associated with the funding provided		-	12.122	10.000	10.100
Schools signed up to Schools Water Efficiency Program (SWEP)	number	1 100	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect f					
Sites where works have been undertaken	number	60	120	60	173
to improve in stream health					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 2					
Water information products (including annual water accounts, water resource condition reports and water monitoring materials) delivered for greater accountability in sustainable water resource management	number	6	5	5	5
The higher 2017-18 target reflects funding provided	d in the 2017-1	8 Budget for the N	Nater for Victoria	a initiative.	
Quality					
Manage Victoria's salinity impacts in the Murray Darling Basin so that Victoria is compliant with the Murray Darling Basin Agreement	per cent	100	100	100	100
Bulk and environmental entitlement records publicly available	per cent	100	100	100	100
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p records publicly available'. The new measure repor amended for increased clarity.					

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Timeliness					
Statutory obligations of Water	per cent	100	100	100	100
Corporations complied with, including					
annual reports, audits and corporate plans					
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	521.5	426.6	486.2	384.6
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 2	2016-17 target	to reflect the rep	phasing of the Gou	ılburn- Murray	Water
(GMW) Connections project. The higher 2016-17 target reflects increased fundir	na for Water fo	r Victoria initiati	wes and the renha	ing of the GM	47
Connections project.	ig joi water jo		ves una the replius		~ ~

Objective 6: A quality built environment

This objective plans for the future growth and transformation of cities and regions, and provides leadership and advice on heritage protection and the built environment. It delivers streamlined, fair and transparent planning, building and heritage systems.

The Department recognises the link between the natural and built environment in the quality of our lives, and works to accommodate population growth while maintaining world class liveability and protecting our heritage for future generations.

The departmental objective indicators are:

- efficient provision of timely and authoritative information on population and land use^(a); and
- efficient administration of Victoria's planning, building and heritage systems.
- Note:

Outputs

Planning, Building and Heritage

This output delivers programs to address the future growth and transformation of cities and regions through: strategic and integrated land use planning; urban development, design and renewal; land supply; heritage conservation and management; and regulatory reform. Through this output, the Department administers the statutory responsibilities of the Minister for Planning and provides for fair and transparent planning, building and heritage systems.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Quantity					
Local governments undertaking work to support strategic planning for coastal settlements and areas	number	15	15	9	9
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the will contribute to this initiative. The 2017-18 target is higher than the 2016-17 tau been included in this funding agreement.	5			5	
Places or objects assessed for the Victorian Heritage Register	number	45	40	45	51
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the	2016-17 target (due to an unfores	een shortage in o	utput resource	s.
Research published: demographic and spatial trends	number	5	5	5	7

(2017-18: \$194.6 million)

⁽a) This objective indicator replaces the 2016-17 indicator Efficient provision of timely and authoritative information on population growth and change?. The new indicator provides a broader indication of how the Department supports government priorities through the delivery of data and research outputs.

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Conservation projects funded for 'at risk'	number	29	24	24	nm
State significant heritage places and					
objects					
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 State significant heritage places and objects'. The has been amended for increased clarity. The higher 2017-18 target reflects the approval oj	new measure re	ports on the same	e activity as the p	previous measu	re however
Heritage: Building on the Living Heritage Program					
Quality					
Environment effects statements, referrals and assessments are completed effectively and within the timeframes	per cent	70	70	70	80
necessary to meet targets in the					
Ministerial Guidelines					
Proportion of planning applications that proceed through VicSmart	per cent	7	7	7	nm
Projects delivered through the Planning support for councils initiative that meet agreed project objectives	per cent	100	100	100	nm
Amendments that are correct upon	per cent	25	5	20	nm
submission for approval This performance measure renames the 2016-17 submission for approval'. The new measure repor					
This performance measure renames the 2016-17	ts on the same a 2016-17 target a	ctivity as the prev	ious measure ho implementing sy	wever has beer rstem changes	n amended
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 submission for approval'. The new measure repor for increased clarity. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the . Smart Planning program.	ts on the same a 2016-17 target a	ctivity as the prev	ious measure ho implementing sy	wever has beer rstem changes	n amended
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 submission for approval'. The new measure report for increased clarity. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the Smart Planning program. The higher 2017-18 target reflects expected impro- Timeliness Average number of days to issue an	ts on the same a 2016-17 target a	ctivity as the prev	ious measure ho implementing sy	wever has beer rstem changes	n amended
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 submission for approval'. The new measure report for increased clarity. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the . Smart Planning program. The higher 2017-18 target reflects expected improv Timeliness	ts on the same a 2016-17 target a ovements as a re days	ctivity as the prev due to delays with sult of the Smart 30	ious measure ho implementing sy Planning program 10	wever has beer rstem changes n. 30	for the
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 j submission for approval'. The new measure report for increased clarity. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the Smart Planning program. The higher 2017-18 target reflects expected improved Timeliness Average number of days to issue an archaeological consent The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the second	ts on the same a 2016-17 target a ovements as a re days	ctivity as the prev due to delays with sult of the Smart 30	ious measure ho implementing sy Planning program 10	wever has beer rstem changes n. 30	for the
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 submission for approval'. The new measure report for increased clarity. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the Smart Planning program. The higher 2017-18 target reflects expected impro- Timeliness Average number of days to issue an archaeological consent The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the nature of some of the applications submitted. Average number of days to issue heritage	ts on the same a 2016-17 target a ovements as a re- days 2016-17 target a days	ctivity as the prev due to delays with sult of the Smart 30 due to operational 7	ious measure ho implementing sy Planning program 10 I efficiencies and 5	wever has beer istem changes n. 30 the simpler tha 7	for the 22 In usual
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 submission for approval'. The new measure report for increased clarity. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the Smart Planning program. The higher 2017-18 target reflects expected impro- Timeliness Average number of days to issue an archaeological consent The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the nature of some of the applications submitted. Average number of days to issue heritage certificates	ts on the same a 2016-17 target a ovements as a re- days 2016-17 target a days	ctivity as the prev due to delays with sult of the Smart 30 due to operational 7	ious measure ho implementing sy Planning program 10 I efficiencies and 5	wever has beer istem changes n. 30 the simpler tha 7	for the 22 In usual
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 submission for approval'. The new measure report for increased clarity. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the Smart Planning program. The higher 2017-18 target reflects expected impro- Timeliness Average number of days to issue an archaeological consent The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the nature of some of the applications submitted. Average number of days to issue heritage certificates The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the Heritage permits issued within initial 60	ts on the same a 2016-17 target a ovements as a re days 2016-17 target a days 2016-17 target a per cent	ctivity as the prev lue to delays with sult of the Smart 30 lue to operational 7 lue to operational 90	ious measure ho implementing sy Planning program 10 I efficiencies and 5 I processing effici 98	wever has been istem changes n. 30 the simpler that 7 iencies. 90	n amended for the 22 in usual 7
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 submission for approval'. The new measure report for increased clarity. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the a Smart Planning program. The higher 2017-18 target reflects expected impro- Timeliness Average number of days to issue an archaeological consent The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the nature of some of the applications submitted. Average number of days to issue heritage certificates The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the a Heritage permits issued within initial 60 day statutory timeframes The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the Median number of days taken by the department to assess a planning scheme	ts on the same a 2016-17 target a ovements as a re days 2016-17 target a days 2016-17 target a per cent	ctivity as the prev lue to delays with sult of the Smart 30 lue to operational 7 lue to operational 90	ious measure ho implementing sy Planning program 10 I efficiencies and 5 I processing effici 98	wever has been istem changes n. 30 the simpler that 7 iencies. 90	n amended for the 22 in usual 7
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 submission for approval'. The new measure report for increased clarity. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the a Smart Planning program. The higher 2017-18 target reflects expected impro- Timeliness Average number of days to issue an archaeological consent The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the nature of some of the applications submitted. Average number of days to issue heritage certificates The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the Heritage permits issued within initial 60 day statutory timeframes The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the Median number of days taken by the department to assess a planning scheme amendment	ts on the same a 2016-17 target a ovements as a re days 2016-17 target a days 2016-17 target a per cent 2016-17 target a days	ctivity as the prev due to delays with sult of the Smart 30 due to operational 90 due to operational 25	ious measure ho implementing sy Planning program 10 I efficiencies and 5 I processing effici 98 al processing effic 25	wever has been rstem changes m. 30 the simpler tha r iencies. 90 ciencies. 25	n amended for the 22 in usual 7 98 36
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 submission for approval'. The new measure report for increased clarity. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the a Smart Planning program. The higher 2017-18 target reflects expected impro- Timeliness Average number of days to issue an archaeological consent The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the nature of some of the applications submitted. Average number of days to issue heritage certificates The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the a Heritage permits issued within initial 60 day statutory timeframes The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the Median number of days taken by the department to assess a planning scheme	ts on the same a 2016-17 target a ovements as a re days 2016-17 target a days 2016-17 target a per cent 2016-17 target a	ctivity as the prev lue to delays with sult of the Smart 30 lue to operational 100 to operational 90 due to operational	ious measure ho implementing sy Planning program 10 I efficiencies and 5 I processing effici 98	wever has been istem changes n. 30 the simpler that the simpler that 7 iencies. 90 ciencies.	n amended for the 22 In usual 7 98
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 submission for approval'. The new measure report for increased clarity.The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the Smart Planning program.The higher 2017-18 target reflects expected improTimelinessAverage number of days to issue an archaeological consentThe 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the nature of some of the applications submitted.Average number of days to issue heritage certificatesThe 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the nature of some of the applications submitted.Average number of days to issue heritage certificatesThe 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the day statutory timeframesThe 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the department to assess a planning scheme amendmentReport annually on analysis of supply, consumption and adequacy of residential	ts on the same a 2016-17 target a ovements as a re days 2016-17 target a days 2016-17 target a per cent 2016-17 target a days	ctivity as the prev due to delays with sult of the Smart 30 due to operational 90 due to operational 25 Dec	ious measure ho implementing sy Planning program 10 I efficiencies and 5 I processing effici 98 al processing effici 25 Dec	wever has been rstem changes m. 30 the simpler tha r iencies. 90 ciencies. 25 Dec	n amended for the 22 in usual 7 98 36 0ec

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Victoria in Future data prepared to support infrastructure and service delivery planning	date	Jun 2018	Jun 2017	Jun 2017	nm
Planning permit applications for new wind farms (excluding call-ins) prepared for determination within 45 days after completion of public notice and receipt of council response to public notice	per cent	70	70	70	nm
Cost					
Total output cost The higher 2017-18 target is primarily related to a	\$ million additional Gover	194.6 Inment investme	158.5 nt provided in the	156.1 2017-18 Budge	81.8 et <i>related to</i>

The higher 2017-18 target is primarily related to additional Government investment provided in the 2017-18 Budget related to Fishermans Bend - Planning for a city's future, Revitalising central Geelong, and increases in the Growth Area Public Transport Fund and Building New Communities Fund expenditure profiles.

Objective 7: Affordable and reliable access to jobs, services and infrastructure in Melbourne's suburbs^(a)

This objective coordinates government activities to ensure that Melbourne is prosperous and that the benefits of growth are shared fairly.

The Department works with Commonwealth, local government, industry and community stakeholders to identify opportunities for the development and delivery of initiatives to strengthen Melbourne's economy, create jobs and improve suburban liveability.

The departmental objective indicator^(a) is:

• Community satisfaction in public places.

Note:

```
(a) These are all new objective indicators to reflect the achievement of the objective 'Affordable and reliable access to jobs, services and
infrastructure in Melbourne's suburbs'.
```

Outputs

Suburban Development

(2017-18: \$2.5 million)

This output delivers activities to engage with all levels of government, business and community sectors to manage Melbourne's growth, to better meet the communities' needs for jobs, services and infrastructure and maintain and strengthen Melbourne's status as one of the world's most liveable cities.

Funding will support the implementation of key deliverables of the Suburban Development portfolio, including the establishment and operation of Metropolitan Partnerships and the development and delivery of Five-year Plans for jobs, services and infrastructure.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Quantity					
Annual assemblies held for Metropolitan Partnerships	number	6	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect	Government prior	rities for the new	v portfolio of Sub	urban Developi	ment.
Timeliness					
Five-year Plans for Jobs, Services and Infrastructure endorsed	per cent	100	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect	Government prior	rities for the new	v portfolio of Sub	urban Develop	ment.
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	2.5	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect	Government prior	rities for the new	v portfolio of Sub	urban Developi	ment.

Objective 8: Sustainable and effective local governments

This objective supports effective and efficient local governance and service provision, and supports communities to manage change and growth at a local level.

The Department works with local governments to support the delivery of services and infrastructure and build stronger communities across the state.

The departmental objective indicator is:

• satisfaction with the performance of councils as measured through the Local Government Community Satisfaction Survey.

Outputs

Local Government

(2017-18: \$92.1 million)

This output delivers activities in partnership with the local government sector to support effective and efficient governance and service provision. Through this output, the Department administers programs to support local governments to increase accountability and provide support to the Victoria Grants Commission.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

	Unit of	2017-18	2016-17 expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Quantity					
Meetings held annually with Victorian councils regarding the Victoria Grants Commission financial assistance grants allocation model	number	19	nm	nm	nm
This performance measure replaces the 2016-17 p support the completion of council budgets within recognise the importance of consultation with loc	statutory timefr	ames.' The new			
Meetings held with Local Government Mayoral Advisory Panel	number	4	4	4	5
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 Panel' to reflect the new name of the advisory par however has been amended for increased clarity.				,	,
Victorian councils participating in emergency management planning in collaborative partnerships as part of the Municipal Emergency Management Enhancement Groups	per cent	80	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect more resilient communities.	Government pr	iorities regarding	councils working	in partnership	to build
Quality					
Average council satisfaction rating with	scale	8	nm	nm	nm
the specific financial assistance support provided through the Local Government	(1-10)				
Financial and Accounting Support Team					
New performance measure for 2017-18 to assess	the satisfaction	of Councils with	financial assistand	e support serv	ices.

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
New policy and program initiatives with	per cent	80	nm	nm	nm
an accompanying comprehensive					
community and stakeholder engagement					
strategy		Gaugenerativ	te viele le vieletion e		
This performance measure replaces the 2016-17 incorporate stakeholder feedback' and 'Local Gov			-		
stakeholder feedback'. The new measure provides					
community and stakeholder engagement.					
Submissions that fully meet the	per cent	60	nm	nm	nm
objectives within the Growing Suburbs					
Fund program guidelines					
New performance measure for 2017-18 to refle	ct funding provi	ded in the 2017-	18 Budget <i>for the</i> (Growing Suburl	os Fund.
Councils with approved roadside weeds	number	56	nm	nm	nm
and pests control plan					
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect	funding provide	ed in the 2017-18	Budget for Roads	ide Weeds and	Pests.
Timeliness					
Victoria Grants Commission allocations	per cent	100	100	100	100
finalised to support the completion of					
council budgets within statutory					
timeframes					
Municipal Emergency Resource Program	per cent	100	nm	nm	nm
grant payments made within 21 days of					
completion of agreed milestones in the					
funding agreement		a (Danaantaraa af	identified equals	funded as north	ofthe
This performance measure replaces the 2016-17 o Vulnerable People in Emergencies Program who h					
as the previous measure and has been amended f					,
Public Library Services grant payments	per cent	100	100	100	100
made within 21 days of completion of					
agreed milestones in the funding					
agreement					
This performance measure renames the 2016-17					
made against completion of milestone deliverable			the same activity of	as the previous	measure
and has been amended for increased clarity and e			100	100	100
Roadside Weeds and Pests program grant payments made within 21 days of	per cent	100	100	100	100
completion of agreed milestones in the					
funding agreement					
This performance measure renames the 2016-17	auantity measu	re 'Percentage o	f Roadside Weeds	and Pest Mana	aement
grant payments made against completion of mile.					
the same activity as the previous measure and ha	s been amended	d for increased cl	arity and emphasi	s on timeliness.	
Projects completed in accordance with	per cent	80	nm	nm	nm
approved milestones within the Growing					
Suburbs Fund funding agreements					
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect	funding provide	d in the 2017-18	Budget for the Gr	owing Suburbs	Fund.
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	92.1	125.5	114.4	120.1
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the	2016-17 target	due to addition	al investment in the	e Broadmeadov	ws Activity
Centre Revitalisation project. The lower 2017-18 budget reflects the movement	in funded initia	tives			
Source: Department of Environment, Land, Water and Pla		uves.			

Objective 9: Reduced impact of major bushfires and other emergencies on people, property and the environment

This objective delivers an integrated approach to reducing the risk of bushfires and other emergencies to protect people, property and the environment.

The Department works together with land and fire managers and with the community to plan and deliver bushfire management across public and private land, and uses world leading science to manage fire and ecosystems.

The departmental objective indicators are:

- percentage of bushfires contained at first attack and/or under five hectares to suppress bushfires promptly, keep bushfires small and minimise loss;
- area treated through planned burning and other treatments to maintain the statewide bushfire risk at or below 70 per cent;
- adoption of consistent systems across the Department to support efficient and effective emergency management;
- percentage of agreed departmental emergency management obligations met on time and to standard; and
- the economic impact of fire prevention and preparedness investment^(a).

Note:

(a) This is a new indicator that reflects funding provided in the 2017-18 Budget for the Reducing bushfire risk program.

Outputs

Fire and Emergency Management

(2017-18: \$414.9 million)

This output plans and delivers integrated bushfire management. Through this output, the Department: works with land and fire managers to plan and deliver bushfire management across public and private land; involves local communities in decision making, drawing on local values and insights to promote resilience; invests in science and partnerships to build knowledge of the relationship between fire and the environment to better manage risk; monitors and assesses the impact and effectiveness of fire management operations; ensures its workforce is effectively trained and prepared; and maintains a strategic road network to facilitate fire and emergency related activities and provide access for the community, timber and tourism industries.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

			2016-17		
Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Quantity					
Community-based bushfire management plans prepared for high risk communities	number	5	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect	Government pr	iorities for the Safe	er Together initia	tive.	

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Bushfire management engagement plans	number	12	12	12	12
developed and implemented for high risk communities					
	1/ma	1 200	1.070	1 000	44.5
Length of strategic fire access roads and fuel breaks treated to manage safety	Km	1 200	1 076	1 000	415
risks posed by dangerous trees					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the	2016-17 taraet	t due to a focus o	n operational effic	ciencies in the d	leliverv of
the program. The 2017-18 target is higher than the 2016-17 tar Bushfire Risk program.	-	-			
Personnel with accreditation in a fire and emergency management role	number	2 000	2 200	1 950	1 979
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the The higher 2017-18 target reflects this.	2016-17 target	t due to a new acc	creditation system	1.	
State forests roads (Category 1) and	per cent	100	100	100	100
bridges (on Category 1 roads) with					
documented inspections and/or					
maintenance programs to meet regulatory obligations					
Statewide bushfire risk is maintained at	per cent	70	70	70	nm
or below the target	percent	70	70	70	
Stakeholder and community forums on	number	18	18	18	nm
bushfire management and planned		10	10	10	
burning held					
Quality					
Fires contained at less than five hectares	per cent	80	85	80	91
to suppress fires before they become					
established, minimising impact					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the	-	t due to seasonal	conditions, minim	al extreme fire	danger
days and fire containment being the preferred opt	number	300	290	300	286
capacity (level 2 or 3) in a fire and	number	500	290	500	200
emergency management role					
Timeliness					
Assessment of model of cover completed	date	Dec	Dec	Dec	Dec
to assess resource requirements and	uute	2017	2016	2016	2015
availability		2017		2010	2010
Fire operation plans completed	date	Sep	Aug	Oct	Sep
		2017	2016	2016	2015
The 2016-17 expected outcome is earlier than the operational scheduling and staff rostering. The earlier 2017-18 target reflects this new planni		t, as plans were co	ompleted in advai	nce to allow for	improved
Fires contained at first attack to suppress	per cent	80	80	80	84
fires before they become established, minimising impact	per cent				0.
Readiness and response plans completed	date	Oct	Oct	Oct	Nov
prior to the upcoming fire season		2017	2016	2016	2015
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	414.9	373.5	371.8	393.0
The higher 2017-18 target reflects increase in fund	•			2	
Source: Department of Environment, Land, Water and Pla		_ /			

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

Ministerial portfolios

The Department supports the ministerial portfolios of Health, Ambulance Services, Housing, Disability and Ageing, Mental Health, Families and Children, Youth Affairs, Sport and Women and the Prevention of Family Violence.

Departmental mission statement

The Department contributes to the Victorian Government's commitment to a stronger, fairer, better Victoria by developing and delivering policies, programs and services that support and enhance the health and wellbeing of all Victorians.

With its service partners and the community, the Department provides services to:

- support people to live healthier, more active lives and participate in their local communities;
- empower patients, clients and carers;
- build the capacity of universal services to better respond to risk and vulnerability;
- increase earlier intervention;
- reduce waits for health and human services;
- make it easier to access better connected care;
- improve Aboriginal health and wellbeing;
- support better, safer care;
- plan together for the future.

Departmental objectives

The Department is focused on delivering the following outcomes:

Victorians are healthy and well¹

- Victorians have good physical health;
- Victorians have good mental health; and
- Victorians act to protect and promote health.

Victorians are safe and secure¹

- Victorians live free from abuse and violence; and
- Victorians have suitable and stable housing.

¹ The objectives and objective indicators for the Department of Health and Human Services have been reviewed and updated.

Victorians have the capabilities to participate²

- Victorians participate in learning and education;
- Victorians participate in and contribute to the economy; and
- Victorians have financial security.

Victorians are connected to culture and community²

- Victorians are socially engaged and live in inclusive communities; and
- Victorians can safely identify and connect with their culture and identity.

The Department will deliver health and human services that are person centred and sustainable. Our services will:

- be appropriate and available in the right place, at the right time;
- respond to choice, culture, identity, circumstances and goals;
- be efficient and sustainable; and
- be safe, high quality and provide a positive experience.

Changes to the output structure

The Department has made changes to its output structure for 2017-18 as shown in the table below:

2016-17 outputs Youth Services and Youth Justice	Reason Removal of outputs to reflect machinery of government change with outputs moved to the Department of Justice and Regulation.	2017-18 outputs na
HACC Primary Health, Community Care and Support	This output has been renamed to reflect the focus on a younger target group (0-64 years old) in need of assistance as people aged 65 and older have transitioned to the Commonwealth Home Support Programme.	Home and Community Care Program for Younger People
na	New output created for flagship family violence reform initiatives	Family Violence Service Delivery
na	One output has been disaggregated, renamed and partially transferred from the Department of Premier and Cabinet (DPC) to the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) as a result of machinery of government changes.	Gender equality and the prevention of family violence policy and programs

Source: Department of Health and Human Services

² The objectives and objective indicators for the Department of Health and Human Services have been reviewed and updated.

Output summary by departmental objectives

The Department's outputs and funding are provided in the table below. Detailed descriptions of objectives, outputs, together with their key performance indicators are presented in subsequent tables.

presented in subsequent tables.				(\$ million)
	2016-17	2016-17	2017-18	Variation ^(a)
	budget	revised	budget	%
Victorians are healthy and well				_
Acute Health Services ^(b)	11 875.0	12 764.2	13 128.2	10.6
Ageing, Aged and Home Care	779.6	787.5	789.2	1.2
Ambulance Services ^(b)	804.1	981.4	1028.7	27.9
Drug Services ^(b)	192.5	197.8	220.1	14.4
Mental Health ^(b)	1 398.0	1 437.1	1 498.9	7.2
Primary, Community and Dental Health ^(b)	467.5	513.2	500.1	7.0
Public Health	389.8	374.9	399.2	2.4
Small Rural Services	561.7	547.2	558.8	(0.5)
Victorians are safe and secure				
Child Protection and Family Services ^(b)	1 105.6	1 184.1	1 364.2	23.4
Housing Assistance ^(b)	513.1	512.1	583.0	13.6
Family Violence Service Delivery ^(c)		42.0	107.5	100.0
Victorians have the capabilities to participate				
Concessions to Pensioners and Beneficiaries ^{(b)(d)}	685.1	694.1	729.5	6.5
Disability Services ^(e)	1 952.0	2 024.9	2 093.5	7.2
Victorians are connected to culture and community				
Empowering Individuals and Communities	176.8	181.9	184.4	4.3
Gender equality and the prevention of family violence policy and programs ^(f)	20.9	18.0	32.2	54.3
Total	20 921.7	22 260.4	23 217.5	10.9

Source: Department of Health and Human Services

Notes:

(a) Variation between 2016-17 budget and 2017-18 budget.

(b) The higher 2017-18 budget primarily reflects funding provided for government policy commitments.

(c) New 2017-18 budget output reflecting funding provided for government policy commitments.

(d) The output summary includes funding for transport concessions transferred to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Integrated Transport output.

(e) The higher 2017-18 budget primarily reflects funding provided for government policy commitments and Commonwealth funding received for older people in specialist disability services under cross billing arrangements.

(f) New 2017-18 budget output as a result of machinery of government changes.

Amounts available

The following tables detail the amounts available to the Department from Parliamentary authority and income generated through transactions.

Table 2.8 outlines the Department's income from transactions and Table 2.9 summarises the sources of Parliamentary authority available to the Department to fund the provision of outputs, additions to the net asset base and payments made on behalf of the State.

Table 2.8: Income from transactions			(\$	s million)
	2015-16	2016-17	2016-17	2017-18
	actual	budget	revised	budget ^(a)
Output appropriations	12 901.7	13 382.1	13 822.1	14 708.3
Special appropriations	1 341.2	1 403.9	1 361.0	1 400.7
Interest	46.5	67.9	38.3	38.3
Sales of goods and services	1 617.9	1 649.6	1 776.6	1 818.8
Grants	5 508.8	5 303.9	6 132.1	6 150.2
Fair value of assets and services received free of charge or for nominal consideration	20.5		147.0	
Other income	575.3	495.9	699.9	700.6
Total income from transactions	22 012.0	22 303.3	23 977.0	24 817.0

Source: Department of Health and Human Services

Note:

(a) Includes an estimated \$4.9 billion of Commonwealth funding under the National Health Reform Agreement and \$3.0 billion of other non-public account contributions in 2017-18.

Table 2.9: Parliamentary authority for resources

(\$ million)

	2016-17	2016-17	2017-18
	budget	revised	budget
Annual appropriations	13 029.8	13 381.1	14 598.4
Provision of outputs	12 848.0	13 077.7	14 086.5
Additions to the net asset base	181.8	302.5	450.9
Payments made on behalf of the State		0.9	61.0
Receipts credited to appropriations	469.8	572.6	560.2
Unapplied previous years appropriation	72.1	198.5	73.4
Provision of outputs	72.1	198.5	73.4
Additions to the net asset base			
Payments made on behalf of the State			
Accumulated surplus – previously applied appropriation	225.7	306.4	33.3
Gross annual appropriation	13 797.3	14 458.6	15 265.3
Special appropriations	1 403.9	1 386.3	1 400.7
Trust funds	4 527.0	5 024.1	5 264.3
National Health Funding Pool – Victorian State Pool Account ^(a)	4 385.9	4 798.9	4 866.0
Other	141.0	225.2	398.3
Total parliamentary authority	19 728.2	20 869.0	21 930.4

Source: Department of Health and Human Services

Note:

(a) The purpose of this trust primarily relates to receiving all Commonwealth public hospital funding under the National Health Reform Agreement.

Departmental performance statement

Objective 1: Victorians are healthy and well^(a)

This objective aims for Victorians to have good physical health, good mental health and act to protect and promote health.

The departmental objective indicators are:

- reduce the incidence of avoidable harm in Victorian hospitals;
- reduce obesity and increase physical activity across Victoria;
- increase the proportion of children with healthy birth weight with a focus on reducing smoking during pregnancy;
- reduce infant mortality;
- reduce inequalities in premature death;
- reduce the suicide rate;
- improve rates of self-reported health and wellbeing;
- reduce deaths resulting from misuse of prescription medicine; and
- increase immunisation coverage rates at two years of age and at school entry.

Note:

(a) The objectives and objective indicators for the Department of Health and Human Services have been reviewed and updated.

Outputs

Acute Health Services

(2017-18: \$13 128.2 million)

This output provides: a range of timely and high quality acute hospital inpatient, ambulatory, emergency, community based and specialist services.

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Admitted Services					
Acute and sub-acute patient services (el- public hospitals.	ective and non-elec	tive) provided	at Victorian m	netropolitan a	ind rural
Quantity					
Palliative separations	number	7 670	nm	nm	nm
This performance measure replaces the 2016- number of completed palliative care admitted as opposed to their length of stay.					
Subacute care separations	number	37 313	nm	nm	nm
This performance measure replaces the 2016 of completed sub-acute admitted episodes an to their length of stay.					
Total separations – all hospitals	number	1 855	1 814	1 774	1 720
	(thousand)				
The higher 2017-18 target reflects growth in a	activity and additional fu	Inding provided in	<i>the</i> 2017-18 Budg	jet.	

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Weighted Inlier Equivalent Separations	number	1 338	1309	1 241	1 259
(WIES) – all hospitals except small rural	(thousand)				
health services					
The 2017-18 target has increased to include addit	ional funding alloco	ited since the 2016	-17 Budget, addit	ional funding in	the 2017-18
Budget and a change in the reporting methodolog The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the particularly on long-waiting and complex patients, The 2015-16 actual published in the Department a	, 2016-17 target due , which saw health	services undertake	additional WIES f	unded activity in	2016–17.
WIES funded emergency separations – all	number	646	611	584	571
hospitals	(thousand)				
The higher 2017-18 target reflects growth in activ	ity and additional f	unding provided in	the 2017-18 Budg	get.	
WIES funded separations – all hospitals	number	1 672	1 632	1 591	1 537
except small rural health services	(thousand)				
The higher 2017-18 target reflects growth in activ	ity and additional f	unding provided in	the 2017-18 Budg	get.	
Perinatal mortality rate per 1000 of	rate per	13.6	nm	nm	nm
babies of Aboriginal mothers, using	1 000				
rolling 3 year average	(3 year				
	rolling				
	average)				
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect	Government priorit	ies regarding Abor	iginal women in a	ntenatal and po	stnatal care.
Quality					
Eligible newborns screened for hearing	per cent	97.0	98.5	97.0	98.5
deficit before one month of age	p =				
Hand hygiene compliance	per cent	80	85	80	84
The higher 2016-17 expected outcome reflects a posi					-
implementing best practice approaches of infection p					
national target is 70 percent and Victoria has consist	ently overachieved	against this target			
Healthcare worker immunisation –	per cent	75	75	75	79
influenza					
Hospitals participating in Victorian	per cent	100	100	100	100
Hospital Acquired Infection Surveillance					
System (VICNISS)					
Intensive Care Unit central line	rate	1.5	1.0	1.5	0.7
associated blood stream infections					
(CLABSI) per 1 000 device days					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 2	2016-17 target due	to continued stron	g performance of	health services.	This is a
positive result.					
Major trauma patients transferred to a	per cent	85	85	85	91
major trauma service					
Perinatal and child mortality reports	per cent	95	nm	nm	nm
received, reviewed and classified					
This performance measure is proposed to replace and reported'. It has been replaced to more accure			,		, processed
Public hospitals accredited	per cent	100	100	100	100
Patient reported hospital cleanliness	per cent	70	nm	nm	nm
This performance measure is proposed to replace assessed by external audit'. The new measure mon patient care areas.	the 2016-17 perfor				

Performance measuresmeasuretargetoutcometargetStaphylococcus aureus bacteraemiasrate1.00.72.0(SAB) infections per 10 000 patient daysThe lower 2017-18 target reflects outcomes observed over the past five years and expected improvements in clinical care. His targets have not reflected modern care and expected outcomes. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 2016-17 target due to continued strong performance at health services. The positive result.Unplanned/unexpected readmission for per cent2.51.73.7acute myocardial infarctionper cent2.51.73.7The lower 2017-18 target reflects outcomes observed over the past five years and expected improvements in clinical care. His targets have not reflected modern care and expected outcomes. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 2016-17 target due to continued strong performance at health services. The positive result.Unplanned/unexpected readmission for per centper cent10.39.410.3Heart failure The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 2016-17 target due to continued strong performance at health services. The positive result.2.52.52.5Unplanned/unexpected readmission for per centper cent2.52.52.52.5Unplanned/unexpected readmission for per centper cent2.22.22.2Unplanned/unexpected readmission for per centper cent2.22.22.52.5Unplanned/unexpected readmission for per centper cent2.22.22.22.2Unplanned/unexpec		Unit of	2017 10	2016-17	2016 17	2015-16
Staphylococcus aureus bacteraemiasrate1.00.72.0(SAB) infections per 10 000 patient daysThe lower 2017-18 target reflects outcomes observed over the past five years and expected improvements in clinical care. His targets have not reflected modern care and expected outcomes. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 2016-17 target due to continued strong performance at health services. Thi positive result.Unplanned/unexpected readmission for per cent2.51.73.7The lower 2017-18 target reflects outcomes observed over the past five years and expected improvements in clinical care. His targets have not reflected modern care and expected outcomes. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 2016-17 target due to continued strong performance at health services. Thi positive result.Unplanned/unexpected readmission for per cent10.39.410.3heart failure The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 2016-17 target due to continued strong performance at health services. Thi positive result.9.410.3Unplanned/unexpected readmission for per cent2.52.52.5Unplanned/unexpected readmission for per cent2.52.52.5hip replacement5.06.06.0Knee replacementThe 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 2016-17 target due to continued strong performance at health services. Thi positive result.2.22.22.2Unplanned/unexpected readmission for per cent2.52.52.55hip replacementThe 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 2016-17 target due to continued strong performance at health services. The 	Performance measures	2				2015-16 actua
The lower 2017-18 target reflects outcomes observed over the past five years and expected improvements in clinical care. His targets have not reflected modern care and expected outcomes. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 2016-17 target due to continued strong performance at health services. The positive result. Unplanned/unexpected readmission for per cent targets have not reflected modern care and expected outcomes. 2.5 1.7 3.7 acute myocardial infarction 1.7 3.7 3.7 acute myocardial infarction 2.5 1.7 3.7 acute myocardial infarction 2.6 1.7 3.7 acute myocardial infarction 2.5 1.7 3.7 acute myocardial infarction 2.6 1.0.3 9.4 10.3 uplanned/unexpected readmission for per cent 10.3 9.4 10.3 uplanned/unexpected readmission for per cent 2.2	Staphylococcus aureus bacteraemias					0.7
acute myocardial infarctionThe lower 2017-18 target reflects outcomes observed over the past five years and expected improvements in clinical care. His targets have not reflected modern care and expected outcomes. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 2016-17 target due to continued strong performance at health services. The positive result.Unplanned/unexpected readmission for 	The lower 2017-18 target reflects outcomes observer targets have not reflected modern care and expected The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 201	d outcomes.				
targets have not reflected modern care and expected outcomes. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 2016-17 target due to continued strong performance at health services. Thi positive result.Unplanned/unexpected readmission for positive result.per cent10.39.410.3Unplanned/unexpected outcome is lower than the 2016-17 target due to continued strong performance at health services. Thi positive result.9.410.3Unplanned/unexpected readmission for positive result.per cent2.52.52.5Unplanned/unexpected readmission for per centper cent6.05.06.0Knee replacementfor per cent6.05.06.0Unplanned/unexpected readmission for 		per cent	2.5	1.7	3.7	1.7
heart failureThe 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 2016-17 target due to continued strong performance at health services. This positive result.Unplanned/unexpected readmission for hip replacementper cent2.52.52.5Unplanned/unexpected readmission for knee replacementper cent6.05.06.0Unplanned/unexpected readmission for positive result.per cent6.05.06.0Unplanned/unexpected readmission for positive result.per cent2.22.22.2Unplanned/unexpected readmission for positive result.per cent2.22.22.2Unplanned/unexpected readmission for positive result.per cent2.22.22.2Unplanned/unexpected readmission for positive result.per cent2.22.22.2Unplanned/unexpected readmission for patients admitted within 365 daysper cent959595Semi-urgent (Category 3) elective surgery patients admitted within 90 daysper cent838182.5Semi-urgent (Category 1) elective surgery patients admitted within 30 daysper cent100100100Urgent (Category 1) elective surgery patients admitted within 30 daysfer cent100100100	targets have not reflected modern care and expected The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 201	d outcomes.				
positive result.Unplanned/unexpected readmission for hip replacementper cent2.52.52.5Unplanned/unexpected readmission for knee replacementper cent6.05.06.0The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 2016-17 target due to continued strong performance at health services. This positive result.5.02.22.2Unplanned/unexpected readmission for 		per cent	10.3	9.4	10.3	9.4
hip replacementImage: constraint of the services of t		16-17 target due	to continued stron	ng performance at	health services.	This is a
knee replacement Image: constraint of the services of the servic	•	per cent	2.5	2.5	2.5	3.1
Unplanned/unexpected readmission for paediatric tonsillectomy and adenoidectomyper cent2.22.22.2TimelinessNon-urgent (Category 3) elective surgery patients admitted within 365 daysper cent959595Semi-urgent (Category 2) elective surgery patients admitted within 90 daysper cent838182.5Urgent (Category 1) elective surgery patients admitted within 30 daysper cent100100100CostCostImage: context admitted within 30 daysImage: context admitted within 30 days	knee replacement					5.C This is a
Non-urgent (Category 3) elective surgery per cent patients admitted within 365 days 95 95 Semi-urgent (Category 2) elective surgery patients admitted within 90 days per cent patients admitted within 90 days 83 81 82.5 The higher 2017-18 target reflects additional funding to health services. 100 100 100 Urgent (Category 1) elective surgery per cent admitted within 30 days per cent 100 100 Cost	Unplanned/unexpected readmission for paediatric tonsillectomy and	per cent	2.2	2.2	2.2	2.3
patients admitted within 365 days 9 Semi-urgent (Category 2) elective surgery per cent at higher 2017-18 target reflects additional funding to health services. 83 81 82.5 Urgent (Category 1) elective surgery per cent admitted within 30 days 9 100 100 100 Cost 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9	Timeliness					
patients admitted within 90 days Image: The higher 2017-18 target reflects additional funding to health services. Urgent (Category 1) elective surgery per cent 100 100 100 patients admitted within 30 days Cost Image: Cost<		per cent	95	95	95	94
Urgent (Category 1) elective surgery patients admitted within 30 daysper cent100100100Cost	patients admitted within 90 days	·		81	82.5	77
	Urgent (Category 1) elective surgery			100	100	100
Total output cost Ś million 10 374 3 10 010 4 9 385 5	Cost					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 2016-17 target due to new arrangements with the Commonwealth Goverr under the National Health Reform Agreement. The higher 2017-18 target reflects funding provided for government policy commitments.	under the National Health Reform Agreement.	-	-		9 385.5 monwealth Gov	8 816.9 rernment
Non-admitted Services		, , ,	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,			

sub-acute services improve consumer access to services closer to home by providing models of integrated community care, which significantly reduces the demand for hospital beds and supports the transition from hospital to home in a safe and timely manner. The services improve health outcomes, particularly for older people and people with complex care needs.

Quantity					
Completed post-acute episodes	number	44 700	47 492	44 700	46 985
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the ambulatory services.	e 2016-17 target due	e to ongoing high de	mand for early di	scharge pathwa	ys and

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Health Independence Program direct	number	1 545	1 511	1 411	1 487
contacts	(thousand)				
The higher 2017-18 target reflects growth in activ The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the efficiencies in the sector.				atory services ar	d improved
Patients treated in Specialist Outpatient	number	1 786	1 718	1 755	1 729
Clinics – unweighted	(thousand)				
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the The 2015-16 actual published in the Department of	-		• /	•	
Quality					
Post-acute clients not readmitted to	per cent	90	93	90	93
acute hospital					
Timeliness					
Health Independence Program clients	per cent	85	89	80	90
contacted within three days of referral					
The higher 2017-18 target reflects system improve The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the		e to improved prac	tice. This is a posit	ive outcome.	
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	1 843.9	1 866.0	1 627.9	1 542.4
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the National Health Reform Agreement. The higher 2017-18 target reflects funding provid				ng received unde	er the
Emergency Services					
This output relates to emergency presentat	ions at reportin	ng hospitals wit	h emergency o	lenartments	It aims to
provide high quality, accessible health and o	•	•	ι,	•	
times for emergency services.			,		
Quantity					
Emergency presentations	number	1 764	1 726	1 696	
	(thousand)	1701	1,20	1 050	1 680
The higher 2017-18 target reflects growth in activ	. ,				1 680
3 3 7 3	'ity ana additionai j	unding provided in	the 2017-18 Budg	et.	1 680
Emergency patients that did not wait for		unding provided in <5	<i>the</i> 2017-18 Budg 5.0	jet. <5	1 680 nm
Emergency patients that did not wait for treatment	per cent				
treatment	per cent				
0 71		<5	5.0	<5	nm
treatment Emergency patients re-presenting to the	per cent	<5	5.0	<5	nm
treatment Emergency patients re-presenting to the emergency department within 48 hours	per cent	<5	5.0	<5	nm
treatment Emergency patients re-presenting to the emergency department within 48 hours of previous presentation	per cent	<5 <6	5.0	<5 <6	nm
treatment Emergency patients re-presenting to the emergency department within 48 hours of previous presentation Patients' experience of emergency	per cent	<5 <6	5.0	<5 <6	nm
treatment Emergency patients re-presenting to the emergency department within 48 hours of previous presentation Patients' experience of emergency department care	per cent	<5 <6	5.0	<5 <6	nm
treatment Emergency patients re-presenting to the emergency department within 48 hours of previous presentation Patients' experience of emergency department care Timeliness	per cent	<5 <6 85	5.0 5.9 83	<5 <6 85	nm nm

Emergency patients treated within clinically recommended 'time to

The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 2016-17 target due to higher numbers of emergency presentations and the increasing numbers of patients presenting in the more complex triage categories (2 and 3) which placed more pressure on emergency departments. Collaborative projects between Better Care Victoria and the Department of Health and Human Services are underway to identify and resolve system wide constraints and patient flow issues.

per cent

80

73.4

This performance measure renames the 2016-17 performance measure 'Emergency patients treated within time'. The new measure reports on the same activity as the previous measure, however has been amended for increased clarity.

80

74.3

treatment'

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Emergency patients with a length of stay	per cent	75	72	75	71.2
of less than four hours					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 2 number of patients presenting for less urgent cond	-	-			
has slightly improved despite a 4.8 per cent increas					igin of stuy
Proportion of ambulance patient transfers within 40 minutes	per cent	90	86	90	85.6
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 2 increase in Cat 2 and 10 per cent increase in Cat 3. improve ambulance performance.	-	-			
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	637.8	618.7	598.2	566.9
The higher 2017-18 target reflects funding prov	vided for governi	ment policy comm	itments.		
Acute Training and Development					
Provision of grants to hospitals for the traini	ng and accred	itation of healt	h workers. The	se outputs ai	m to
provide career opportunities and contribute	-			•	
Victoria.					
Quantity					
Clinical placement student days (medicine)	number	385 000	nm	nm	nm
This performance measure is proposed to replace t	he 2016-17 perfo	rmance measure 'C	linical placement s	student davs for	medicine.
nursing and allied health' as one of the three disag			,	, ,	
Clinical placement student days (nursing and midwifery)	number	385 000	nm	nm	nm
This performance measure is proposed to replace t nursing and allied health' as one of the three disag			linical placement s	student days for	medicine,
Clinical placement student days (allied health)	number	160 000	nm	nm	nm
This performance measure is proposed to replace t nursing and allied health' as one of the three disag			Clinical placement s	student days for	medicine,
Number of filled rural generalist GP	number	15	15	11	15
procedural positions					
The higher 2017-18 target reflects that system cap departmental priorities. The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the .			-		
funded in accordance with departmental priorities.	-			, joi addicional p	
Funded post graduate nursing and	number	832	832	832	832
midwifery places at Diploma and Certificate level					
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p level'. The new measure reports on the same activi					
Total funded FTE (early graduate) allied health positions in public system	number	700	670	700	622
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p system'. The new measure reports on the same act	-				
Total funded FTE (early graduate) medical	number	1 525	1 525	1 525	1 475.5
positions in public system					
. This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p	erformance meas	sure 'Total FTE (earl	y graduate) medic	al positions in pu	ıblic system'.
The new measure reports on the same activity as t	he previous meas	ure however has be	en amended for in	creased clarity.	

			2016-17						
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16				
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual				
Total funded FTE (early graduate) nursing and midwifery positions in public system	number	1 591	1 591	1 455	1 591				
The higher 2017-18 target reflects a commitment to increase recurrent funding which will allow additional positions to be funded. The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 2016-17 target due to additional positions made possible through internal reprioritisation of funds. This performance measure renames the 2016-17 performance measure 'Total FTE (early graduate) nursing positions in public system' The new measure reports on the same activity as the previous measure however has been amended for increased clarity.									
Quality									
Learner perceptions about their feeling of safety and wellbeing while undertaking their program of study at health services	per cent	70	nm	nm	nm				
	formanco moac			oos utilising the I					
This performance measure replaces the 2016-17 per Clinical Learning Environment (BPCLE) tool' and focu perceptions of their placement. This indicator is also (VAGO) audit into bullying and harassment in the he	ises on the quality informing the D	ty indicator of the E	BPCLE Framework	that reports lear	ner				
Clinical Learning Environment (BPCLE) tool' and focu perceptions of their placement. This indicator is also	ises on the quality informing the D	ty indicator of the E	BPCLE Framework	that reports lear	ner				

Ageing, Aged and Home Care

(2017-18: \$789.2 million)

The outputs encompass leading and coordinating the whole of government policy on issues affecting our ageing community. It includes a range of in-home, specialist geriatric, residential care and community-based programs, such as Home and Community Care (HACC), that are targeted to older people, people with a disability, and their carers.

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Seniors Programs and Participation					
Support broader community planning proces	sses to facilita	ate an integrate	ed community	y planning an	d response
approach aimed at encouraging older Victor	ians to fully p	articipate and	engage in the	community.	
Quantity					
New University of the Third Age (U3A)	number	45-60	55	45-60	60
programs funded					
Seniors funded activities and programs:	number	140-160	168	140-160	157
number approved					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the .	2016-17 target d	ue to a higher num	ber of activities o	approved for fun	ding.
Open rates for Seniors Card	per cent	45	45	45	nm
e-Newsletters					
Quality					
Eligible seniors in the Seniors Card	per cent	95	95	95	95
Program					
Senior satisfaction with Victorian Seniors	per cent	90	90	90	90
Festival events					
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	7.7	11.2	8.7	9.4
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the .	2016-17 target d	ue to additional ex	penditure on the	Seniors and Cor	npanions
Cards.					
The lower 2017-18 Target reflects lower actual car	ryover than estin	nated in the 2016	17 target.		
Residential Aged Care					
This output includes delivery of services for	older Victoria	ns requiring or	ngoing care ar	nd support in	а
residential aged care setting.					
Quantity					
Available bed days	days	1 152 417	1 152 417	1 185 685	1 191 484
The lower target for 2017-18 is due to the reconfig	uration of service	25.			
Quality					
Residential care services accredited	per cent	100	100	100	100
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	382.7	370.5	366.3	348.5
Aged Care Assessment					
This output includes delivery of comprehens	ive assessme	nt of older Vict	orians require	ements for tr	eatment
and residential aged care services.			ionano require		cutificati
Quantity					
Aged Care Assessments	number	59 000	52 000	59 000	53 972
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 2					
that are not counted towards the target.	oro in largel be			, requirements c	301 11003
5					

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Timeliness					
Average waiting time (calendar days) from referral to assessment	days	90	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Services (ACAS). The new measure reports numbe based assessment.					
Percentage of high, medium and low priority clients assessed within the	per cent	90	87	85	87
appropriate time – community The higher 2017-18 target reflects anticipated eff This performance measure renames the 2016-17 appropriate time – community-based assessment has been amended for increased clarity.	performance mea	sure 'Percentage o			
Percentage of high, medium and low Priority clients assessed within the	per cent	90	90	85	99.6
appropriate time – hospital					
The 2017-18 target aligns with the Commonweal The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the bedding down of new national system. This performance measure renames the 2016-17 appropriate time – hospital-based assessment'. T been amended for increased clarity.	2016-17 target de performance mea	sure 'Percentage oj	f priority 1, 2 and	3 clients assesse	ed within the
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	63.7	63.2	62.4	60.0
Aged Support Services					
This output includes delivery of a range of c such as respite services, eye care services, F Services.	•	••			
such as respite services, eye care services, R	•	••			
such as respite services, eye care services, f Services. Quantity Individuals provided with respite and	•	••			
such as respite services, eye care services, F Services. Quantity Individuals provided with respite and support services	Personal Alert	Victoria, and pe	ension-level Su	upported Res	idential
such as respite services, eye care services, F Services. Quantity Individuals provided with respite and	Personal Alert	Victoria, and pe	ension-level Su 8 254	apported Res	8 643
such as respite services, eye care services, F Services. Quantity Individuals provided with respite and support services Number of hours of respite and support services Pension-level beds available in assisted	Personal Alert	Victoria, and pe	ension-level Su 8 254	apported Res	8 643
such as respite services, eye care services, F Services. Quantity Individuals provided with respite and support services Number of hours of respite and support services	number hours	Victoria, and pe 8 254 161 250	8 254 161 250	8 254 161 250	8 643 187 876
such as respite services, eye care services, f Services. Quantity Individuals provided with respite and support services Number of hours of respite and support services Pension-level beds available in assisted Supported Residential Services facilities	Personal Alert number hours number	Victoria, and pe 8 254 161 250 1 876	8 254 161 250 1 876	8 254 161 250 1 876	8 643 187 876 1 876
such as respite services, eye care services, f Services. Quantity Individuals provided with respite and support services Number of hours of respite and support services Pension-level beds available in assisted Supported Residential Services facilities Pension-level Supported Residential Services residents provided with service coordination and support/brokerage	Personal Alert number hours number	Victoria, and pe 8 254 161 250 1 876	8 254 161 250 1 876	8 254 161 250 1 876	8 643 187 876 1 876
such as respite services, eye care services, F Services. Quantity Individuals provided with respite and support services Number of hours of respite and support services Pension-level beds available in assisted Supported Residential Services facilities Pension-level Supported Residential Services residents provided with service coordination and support/brokerage services	Personal Alert ' number hours number number	Victoria, and pe 8 254 161 250 1 876 775	8 254 161 250 1 876 775	8 254 161 250 1 876 775	8 643 187 876 1 876 775
such as respite services, eye care services, f Services. Quantity Individuals provided with respite and support services Number of hours of respite and support services Pension-level beds available in assisted Supported Residential Services facilities Pension-level Supported Residential Services residents provided with service coordination and support/brokerage services Personal alert units allocated Victorian Eye Care Service (occasions of	number hours number number number	Victoria, and pe 8 254 161 250 1 876 775 27 370	8 254 161 250 1 876 775 27 371	161 250 1 876 775 27 370	8 643 187 876 1 876 775 27 371
such as respite services, eye care services, F Services. Quantity Individuals provided with respite and support services Number of hours of respite and support services Pension-level beds available in assisted Supported Residential Services facilities Pension-level Supported Residential Services residents provided with service coordination and support/brokerage services Personal alert units allocated Victorian Eye Care Service (occasions of service)	number hours number number number	Victoria, and pe 8 254 161 250 1 876 775 27 370	8 254 161 250 1 876 775 27 371	161 250 1 876 775 27 370	8 643 187 876 1 876 775 27 371
such as respite services, eye care services, F Services. Quantity Individuals provided with respite and support services Number of hours of respite and support services Pension-level beds available in assisted Supported Residential Services facilities Pension-level Supported Residential Services residents provided with service coordination and support/brokerage services Personal alert units allocated Victorian Eye Care Service (occasions of service) Quality Funded research and service development projects for which	number hours number number number number number	Victoria, and periods of the second s	8 254 161 250 1 876 775 27 371 75 800	8 254 161 250 1 876 775 27 370 75 800	8 643 187 876 1 876 775 27 371 72 111

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual			
Home and Community Care Program for Y	ounger People	•						
This output includes delivery of a range of community based nursing, allied health and support services enabling younger people who may be frail or disabled to maintain their independence in the community. This includes Home and Community Care Program for Younger People (HACC – PYP) services.								
Home and Community Care for Younger	number	69 778	69 778	nm	nm			
People – number of clients receiving a								
service								
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect assistance as people aged 65 and older have tran progressively over the next three years to reflect t	sitioned to the Cor	mmonwealth Home	Support Program	. ,				
Home and Community Care for Younger	number	2 216	2 196	nm	nm			
People – hours of service delivery								
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Government priorities regarding Home and Community Care services for younger target group (0-64 years old) in need of assistance as people aged 65 and older have transitioned to the Commonwealth Home Support Programme.								
Cost								
Total output cost	\$ million	230.4	238.2	239.5	733.1			
Source: Department of Health and Human Services								

Ambulance Services

(2017-18: \$1 028.7 million)

This output describes the units of activity for emergency and non-emergency ambulance services under the new funding model introduced 1 July 2014, including a range of performance deliverables that measure the quality and timeliness of ambulance services expected over the period. The quality and timeliness measures identify expected clinical output measures and ambulance response times, which are important to ensure critically ill Victorians receive the care they need.

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Ambulance Emergency Services					
Emergency road, rotary and fixed air wing pa	atient treatme	nt and transpo	rt services prov	vide timelv a	nd high
quality emergency ambulance services. Time		•	•	•	0
high quality, accessible health and communi	, ,	, .			
Quantity					
Community Service Obligation	number	231 851	225 098	238 558	238 468
emergency road and air transports					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 2 resulted in a reduction in emergency transport actor designed to increase the availability of emergency performance, and ensure that patients receive resp service. These reforms have resulted in a one-off rebasing v	vity. The 2016-17 ambulance resour ponse appropriate	expected outcomes rces, improve statev to their needs, via .	s reflect actual 201 wide emergency C	16-17 year-to-de ode 1 response	ate activity, time
Statewide emergency air transports	number	4 338	4 212	4 290	4 089
The higher 2017-18 target reflects actual 2016-17			4 212	4 250	4 005
Statewide emergency road transports	number	413 194	401 159	413 866	425 032
Reform of Ambulance Victoria's dispatch grid has i					
responsibility. The 2017-18 target is lower than the		• ,		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	
Treatment without transport	number	96 920	94 097	90 604	95 780
The higher 2017-18 target reflects the increased in				t of demand ma	nagement
activities. This is a positive outcome based on actu	al 2016-17 activity	v plus anticipated gi	rowth.		
Quality					
Audited cases attended by Community	per cent	90	97	90	98.3
Emergency Response Teams (CERT)					
meeting clinical practice standards	2016 17 to an at the		toward This is		
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the	-	-	ove target. This is 99		
Audited cases statewide meeting clinical practice standards	per cent	95	99	95	98.9
Proportion of adult patients suspected of	per cent	80	92	80	88.9
having a stroke who were transported to	percent	80	52	80	00.9
a stroke unit with thrombolysis facilities					
within 60 minutes					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the .	2016-17 target du	e to compliance ab	ove target. This is	a positive result	
Proportion of adult VF/VT cardiac arrest	nor cont	45	51	45	51.4
	per cent		51		
patients with vital signs at hospital	percent	15	51		
•	·			a positive result	
patients with vital signs at hospital	·			a positive result 90	90.8
patients with vital signs at hospital The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the Proportion of patients experiencing severe cardiac or traumatic pain whose	2016-17 target du	e to compliance ab	ove target. This is		
patients with vital signs at hospital The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the Proportion of patients experiencing	2016-17 target du	e to compliance ab	ove target. This is		
patients with vital signs at hospital The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the Proportion of patients experiencing severe cardiac or traumatic pain whose	2016-17 target du	e to compliance ab	ove target. This is		
patients with vital signs at hospital The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the Proportion of patients experiencing severe cardiac or traumatic pain whose level of pain is reduced significantly	2016-17 target du per cent	e to compliance ab 90	ove target. This is 90	90	90.8

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Timeliness					
CERT arrival occurs prior to ambulance	per cent	85	83	85	80.9
Proportion of emergency (Code 1) incidents responded to within	per cent	85	80	85	75.2
15 minutes – statewide					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 2	016-17 target due	e to a range of inter	related factors.		
Proportion of emergency (Code 1) incidents responded to within 15 minutes	per cent	90	85	90	80.5
in centres with more than 7500					
population					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 2 emergency ambulance services and a reduction in 6	-		related factors inc	cluding growing	demand for
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	890.9	845.7	692.3	706.8
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 2 Agreement.	•				
The higher 2017-18 target reflects funding provide	d for government	policy commitmen	ts.		
Ambulance Non-Emergency Services					
Non-emergency road, rotary and fixed air wi	ng natient tre	atment and tra	nsnort service	s provide acc	ess to
	• •		•	•	
timely, high quality non-emergency ambular					
contribute to high quality, accessible health	and communi	ty services for a	Ill Victorians. T	he output su	upports
departmental priorities through provision of	patient trans	port officers to	service non-er	nergency, pr	e and
post hospital patients.					
Quantity					
Community Service Obligation non-	number	185 539	180 135	186 539	162 737
emergency road and air transports					
Air transport activity is historically variable. Target 18 targets reflect actual 2016-17 activity plus antic		rly considered chan	ges in activities foi	r a number of ye	ears 2017-
Statewide non-emergency air transports	number	2 546	2 472	3 033	2 400
The lower 2017-18 target reflects actual 2016-17 a The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 2 activity which is historically variable. The 2015-16 actual published in the Department oj	016-17 target due	e to fluctuation in a			
Statewide non-emergency road	number	256 819	249 339	292 762	225 176
transports					
The lower 2017-18 target reflects decline in levels of 2017-18 target reflects actual 2016-17 activity plus			ollowing funding o	changes in 2014	I-15. The
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 2 following funding changes in 2014-15.			els of non-emerger	ncy transport ad	tivity
Quality					
Audited cases statewide meeting clinical	per cent	95	95	95	97.1
practice standards					
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	137.8	135.7	111.8	92.2
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 2 Agreement.	-	ie to additional fund	ding for the Ambu		
The higher 2017-18 target reflects funding provide	d for government	policy commitmen	ts.		
Source: Department of Health and Human Services					

Drug Services

(2017-18: \$220.1 million)

This output include programs and services aimed at promoting and protecting health by reducing death, disease and social harm caused by the use and misuse of licit and illicit drugs.

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Drug Prevention and Control					
Quantity					
Number of phone contacts from family members seeking support	number	14 300	nm	nm	nm
This performance measure replaces the 2016-17 pe same as the previous measure except that the new and Ice Advice Line contacts and intake and assess	replacement med		• • •		
Needles and syringes provided through	number	8 800	8 800	8 800	10 419
the Needle and Syringe Program	(thousand)				
Number of telephone, email, website	number	2 000	nm	nm	nm
contacts and requests for information on	(thousand)				
alcohol and other drugs	<i>c</i>	(A) 1 ()			
This performance measure replaces the 2016-17 per responses to queries and requests for information measure is the same as the previous measure exce requests and queries including Directline and Ice Ad	on alcohol and dru pt that the full sui	ug issues (through ite of state-wide p	the Australian Drug hone services funde	g Foundation)'. 1 ed to respond to	he new information
Quality					
Pharmacotherapy permits processed within designated timeframe	per cent	100	98	100	98
Timeliness					
Percentage of new licences and permits	per cent	100	nm	nm	nm
issued to health services or businesses					
for the manufacture, use or supply of					
drugs and poisons within six weeks					
following receipt of full information					
This performance measure is proposed to replace t practitioners or nurse practitioners to prescribe Sch reflect timely responses to clients and reducing del	nedule 8 drugs, inc	cluding pharmaco	therapy'. It has beer		
Percentage of treatment permits for	per cent	75	nm	nm	nm
medical practitioners or nurse					
practitioners to prescribe Schedule 8					
drugs assessed within four weeks					
This performance measure is proposed to replace t practitioners or nurse practitioners to prescribe Sch reflect timeliness of processes for high-priority trea	nedule 8 drugs, inc				
Cost					

Darformance measures	Unit of	2017-18	2016-17 expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Drug Treatment and Rehabilitation	سما ممط سمط بد		offects of illigit	ممطائمته طعب	~~
Assists the community and individuals to cont including alcohol, in Victoria through the prov					
treatment services, education and training, a			on residential	and resident	
Quantity					
Clients on the pharmacotherapy program	number	14 000	14 000	14 000	13 881
Commenced courses of treatment:	number	7 669	7 494	7 494	8 392
community-based drug treatment					
services					
The higher 2017-18 target reflects growth in activity	and additional f	unding provided in	the 2017-18 Budg	get.	
Commenced courses of treatment:	number	6 313	6 302	6 302	6 050
residential-based drug treatment services					
Number of Drug Treatment Activity Units	number	82 431	75 885	75 885	73 006
(DTAUs)	and additional f	unding provided in	the 2017 19 Pude	ot.	
The higher 2017-18 target reflects growth in activity Number of new residential withdrawal	number	2 262	2 200	2 200	1 862
clients	number	2 202	2 200	2 200	1 802
The higher 2017-18 target reflects additional funding	a provided in the	2017-18 Budget.			
Residential bed days	number	110 048	107 310	107 310	108 494
The higher 2017-18 target reflects additional fundin					
Quality		-			
Percentage of new clients to existing	per cent	50	50	50	37
clients					-
Percentage of residential rehabilitation	per cent	50	50	50	40.6
courses of treatment greater than 65					
days					
Successful courses of treatment	number	6 665	6 508	6 508	7 594
(episodes of care): community-based					
drug treatment services					
Successful courses of treatment	number	5 869	5 589	5 859	5 411
(episodes of care): residential-based drug treatment services					
	a providad in the	2017 18 Budgot			
The higher 2017-18 target reflects additional funding Trained alcohol and drug workers	per cent	2017-18 Budget. 85	68	85	68
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 20					
with a formal qualification specialising in alcohol and					
other qualifications and informal education/professi	,			, ,	
a formal health science or behavioural science qualij Training Package are included.	fication or have c	ompleted AOD uni	ts of competency j	rom the Commu	inity Services
Timeliness					
Average working days between screening	days	3	3	3	0
of client and commencement of	aayo	Ū	Ū		
community-based drug treatment					
Average working days between screening	days	6	6	6	8
of client and commencement of					
residential-based drug treatment					
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	185.9	164.0	157.9	153.2

Mental Health

(2017-18: \$1 498.9 million)

This output includes the provision of a range of inpatient, community-based residential and ambulatory services that target and support people with a mental illness and their families and carers, identifying mental illness early, and seek to reduce its impact through providing timely acute care services and appropriate longer term accommodation and support for those living with a mental illness.

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Clinical care					
A range of inpatient residential and commun	nity-based clini	ical services pro	ovided to peop	le with ment	al illness,
and their families so that those experiencing	mental health	n problems can	access timely,	high quality	care and
support to recover and live successfully in th	e community.	-	-		
Quantity					
Clinical inpatient separations	number	22 689	25 000	22 110	24 540
The higher 2017-18 target reflects growth in activit The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 2 high acuity patients (requiring admission) presentir inpatient settings.	2016-17 target du	e to a high level of	demand for acute	inpatient treatn	
Total community service hours	number	1 236	800	1 161	959
	(thousand)				
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 2 This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p same activity as the previous measure however has consistent with the Mental Health Annual Report w impact of the change to time series will be minima	erformance meas s been amended f vhich includes a sr	ure 'Community sel or increased clarity	rvice hours'. The ne . The renaming als	ew measure rep o enables the m	orts on the easure to be
New case index	per cent	50	50	50	50
New cases as a proportion of total cases.					
Registered community clients	number	64 000	64 000	64 000	66 029
Residential bed days	number	153 574	165 000	181 730	168 824
The lower 2016-17 expected outcome and lower 20 processed.	017-18 target are	due to the reconfig	uration of aged ca	re facilities curre	ently being
Sub-acute bed days	number	182 427	173 000	171 412	162 134
The higher 2017-18 target reflects alignment betw	een acute admitte	ed beds and sub-act	ute beds targets.		
Quality					
Clients readmitted (unplanned) within 28	per cent	14	14	14	14
days					
New client index	per cent	45	45	45	45
New clients as a proportion of total clients.					
Number of area mental health services	number	21	21	21	21
achieving or maintaining accreditation					
under the National Standards for Mental					
Health Services					
Post-discharge community care	per cent	80	75	75	84
Proportion of clients accessing community care wit	hin seven days of	discharge from an	acute inpatient sei	vice.	
Pre-admission community care	per cent	60	50	60	57
Proportion of clients accessing community care wit The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 2			,		services.
Seclusions per 1 000 occupied bed days	number	15	9	15	9
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 2	016-17 target due	to under reporting	n of community cou	ntacts by health	services

	Unit of	2017-18	2016-17 expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Timeliness					
Emergency patients admitted to a mental health bed within eight hours	per cent	80	60	80	64
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 20 for in-patient services faced by five metropolitan he demand and reducing avoidable hospitalisations.	-			-	
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	1 381.8	1 320.4	1 269.9	1 141.9
The 2017-18 target reflects funding provided for go	vernment policy	commitments.			
Mental Health Community Support Services	(MHCSS)				
A range of rehabilitation and support services their families and carers, so that those experi care and support to recover and reintegrate i	iencing menta	al health proble			
Quantity					
Bed days	number	79 500	82 949	87 000	78 456
The lower 2017-18 target reflects the impact of the		·			
Client Support Units	number	623 860	783 100	783 100	790 213
The lower 2017-18 target reflects the impact of the		,			
Clients receiving community mental	number	11 550	12 600	12 600	12 354
health support services					
The lower 2017-18 target reflects the impact of the	National Disabili	ty insurance Scher	ne.		
Quality					
Proportion of major agencies accredited	per cent	100	100	100	100
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	117.1	116.7	128.1	128.1
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 20)16-17 target due	e to the phased int	roduction of the No	ational Disability	Scheme.

Source: Department of Health and Human Services

Primary, Community and Dental Health

(2017-18: \$500.1 million)

This output, through the provision of a range of in-home, community-based, community, primary health and dental services promotes health and wellbeing and prevents the onset of more serious illnesses.

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Community Health Care					
This output includes delivery of a range of co	ommunity care	e and support	services, includ	ing counsellir	ng, allied
health and nursing, that enable people to co	ntinue to live	independently	/ in the commu	nity.	
Quantity					
Better Health Channel visits	number (thousand)	40 000	42 510	40 000	47 426
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the that enables a greater presence in social media, an bushfire smoke, immunisation, and family violence	d more topics and				
Number of referrals made using secure electronic referral systems	number	250 000	250 000	250 000	250 000
Primary Care Partnerships with reviewed and updated Strategic Plans	per cent	100	100	100	100
Service delivery hours in community	number	1 015	1 082	1 000	1 082
health care	(thousand)				
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 2	2016-17 target du	ie to a better than	expected result in t	the first half of 2	016-17.
Quality					
Agencies with an Integrated Health	per cent	95	100	95	100
Promotion plan that meets the stipulated					
planning requirements	2016 17 town at de			2015 16	
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 2	2016-17 target au	le to the continued	a strong result from	2015-16.	
Cost	\$ million	274.0	265.7	261.2	240.4
Total output cost		274.0	265.7	261.3	240.4
The higher 2017-18 target reflects funding provided	a jor government	policy commitme	nts.		
Dental Services This output includes delivery of a range of de community.	ental health se	ervices to supp	oort health and	wellbeing in t	:he
Quantity					
Persons treated	number	332 150	345 099	332 150	387 730
Quality					
Ratio of emergency to general courses of	ratio	40:60	40:60	40:60	40:60
dental care					
Timeliness					
Waiting time for dentures	months	22	22	22	14
The 2016-17 expected outcome has increased due	to reduced invest	ment by the Comn	nonwealth Governm	nent.	
Waiting time for restorative dental care	months	23	23	23	15
The 2016-17 expected outcome has increased due	to reduced invest	ment by the Comn	nonwealth Governn	nent.	
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	226.1	247.6	206.2	223.6
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 2 under the National Partnership Agreement for Adu The higher 2017-18 target reflects additional third-	lt Public Dental Se	ervices.		nmonwealth Gov	vernment

Source: Department of Health and Human Services

Public Health

(2017-18: \$399.2 million)

This output encompasses services and support, including screening for health conditions and safety inspections, that promote and protect the health and wellbeing of all Victorians. These services are delivered in partnership with key stakeholders and communities.

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Health Protection					
Protects the health of Victorians through a r	ange of preven	tion programs	including regu	lation, surve	illance
and the provision of statutory services.					
Quantity					
Calls to food safety hotlines	number	4 500	4 500	4 500	5 292
Inspections of cooling towers	number	1 250	1 350	1 250	1 345
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the investigated for linkages to legionnaires disease co	-	-	s of cooling tower	s inspected in ar	eas
Inspections of radiation safety	number	480	450	480	447
management licences					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 2 major VCAT appeal related to a mine site. This affe	•	-		alf of the financi	al year to a
Number of available HIV rapid test trial	number	2 688	2 916	2 688	2 989
appointments used					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the	2016-17 target due	to increasing serv	ice utilisation and	acceptance.	
Number of shade grants funded under	number	320	300	460	393
the Community Shade Grant Program					
and the Schools Shade Grant Program					
period. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 2 number of grant rounds over a three year period.	2016-17 target due	to a changed prog	ram roll-out sched	lule to evenly sp	read the
Women screened for breast cancer by	number	260 000	250 000	243 000	
				215 000	246 359
BreastScreen Victoria		<i>(</i> -			
BreastScreen Victoria This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p conditions – breast cancer screening'. The new me amended for increased clarity. The 2016-17 outcor BreastScreen Victoria from the Project Agreement. The higher 2017-18 target reflects additional fundi	asure reports on th me is higher than th for the Expansion c	e same activity as ne 2016-17 target o nf BreastScreen Au	the previous meas due to additional f	and early detect sure however ha	ion of health s been
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p conditions – breast cancer screening'. The new me amended for increased clarity. The 2016-17 outcor BreastScreen Victoria from the Project Agreement	asure reports on th me is higher than th for the Expansion c	e same activity as ne 2016-17 target o nf BreastScreen Au	the previous meas due to additional f	and early detect sure however ha	s been
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p conditions – breast cancer screening'. The new me amended for increased clarity. The 2016-17 outcor BreastScreen Victoria from the Project Agreement The higher 2017-18 target reflects additional fundi	asure reports on th me is higher than th for the Expansion of ing provided in the number performance measu	e same activity as be 2016-17 target of f BreastScreen Au 2017-18 Budget. 570 000 re 'Persons screen	the previous meas due to additional f stralia Program. 570 000 ed for prevention	and early detect sure however ha unding provided 570 000 and early detect	ion of health s been I to 575 329 ion of health
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p conditions – breast cancer screening'. The new me amended for increased clarity. The 2016-17 outcor BreastScreen Victoria from the Project Agreement The higher 2017-18 target reflects additional fund Women screened for cervical cancer This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p conditions – cervical cancer screening'. The new m	asure reports on th me is higher than th for the Expansion of ing provided in the number performance measu	e same activity as be 2016-17 target of f BreastScreen Au 2017-18 Budget. 570 000 re 'Persons screen	the previous meas due to additional f stralia Program. 570 000 ed for prevention	and early detect sure however ha unding provided 570 000 and early detect	ion of health s been I to 575 329 ion of health as been
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p conditions – breast cancer screening'. The new me amended for increased clarity. The 2016-17 outcon BreastScreen Victoria from the Project Agreement The higher 2017-18 target reflects additional fundi Women screened for cervical cancer This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p conditions – cervical cancer screening'. The new m amended for increased clarity.	asure reports on th me is higher than th for the Expansion of ing provided in the number nerformance measu easure reports on t	e same activity as he 2016-17 target of fBreastScreen Au 2017-18 Budget. 570 000 re 'Persons screen he same activity a	the previous meas due to additional f stralia Program. 570 000 ed for prevention s the previous mea	and early detect sure however ha unding provided 570 000 and early detect asure however h	ion of health s been I to 575 329 ion of health as been
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p conditions – breast cancer screening'. The new me amended for increased clarity. The 2016-17 outcon BreastScreen Victoria from the Project Agreement. The higher 2017-18 target reflects additional fundi Women screened for cervical cancer This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p conditions – cervical cancer screening'. The new m amended for increased clarity. Number of persons participating in	asure reports on th me is higher than th for the Expansion of ing provided in the number nerformance measu easure reports on t	e same activity as he 2016-17 target of fBreastScreen Au 2017-18 Budget. 570 000 re 'Persons screen he same activity a	the previous meas due to additional f stralia Program. 570 000 ed for prevention s the previous mea	and early detect sure however ha unding provided 570 000 and early detect asure however h	ion of health s been I to 575 329 ion of health as been
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p conditions – breast cancer screening'. The new me amended for increased clarity. The 2016-17 outcor BreastScreen Victoria from the Project Agreement The higher 2017-18 target reflects additional fundi Women screened for cervical cancer This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p conditions – cervical cancer screening'. The new m amended for increased clarity. Number of persons participating in newborn bloodspot or maternal serum	asure reports on th me is higher than th for the Expansion of ing provided in the number erformance measu easure reports on t number erformance measu	e same activity as the 2016-17 target of fBreastScreen Au 2017-18 Budget. 570 000 re 'Persons screen he same activity a 80 000 re 'Persons screen	the previous meas due to additional f stralia Program. 570 000 ed for prevention s the previous mea 80 000 ed for prevention	and early detect sure however ha unding provided 570 000 and early detect 80 000 and early detect	ion of health s been t to 575 329 ion of health as been 81 078 ion of health
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p conditions – breast cancer screening'. The new me amended for increased clarity. The 2016-17 outcor BreastScreen Victoria from the Project Agreement. The higher 2017-18 target reflects additional fundi Women screened for cervical cancer This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p conditions – cervical cancer screening'. The new m amended for increased clarity. Number of persons participating in newborn bloodspot or maternal serum screening This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p conditions – newborn and maternal serum screeni	asure reports on th me is higher than th for the Expansion of ing provided in the number erformance measu easure reports on t number erformance measu	e same activity as the 2016-17 target of fBreastScreen Au 2017-18 Budget. 570 000 re 'Persons screen he same activity a 80 000 re 'Persons screen	the previous meas due to additional f stralia Program. 570 000 ed for prevention s the previous mea 80 000 ed for prevention	and early detect sure however ha unding provided 570 000 and early detect 80 000 and early detect	ion of health s been 1 to 575 329 ion of health as been 81 078 ion of health sure however
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p conditions – breast cancer screening'. The new me amended for increased clarity. The 2016-17 outcon BreastScreen Victoria from the Project Agreement The higher 2017-18 target reflects additional fundi Women screened for cervical cancer This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p conditions – cervical cancer screening'. The new m amended for increased clarity. Number of persons participating in newborn bloodspot or maternal serum screening This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p conditions – newborn and maternal serum screenin has been amended for increased clarity.	asure reports on th me is higher than th for the Expansion of ing provided in the number erformance measu easure reports on t number erformance measu ng'. The new measu	e same activity as the 2016-17 target of f BreastScreen Au 2017-18 Budget. 570 000 re 'Persons screen the same activity as 80 000 re 'Persons screen ure reports on the	the previous meas due to additional f stralia Program. 570 000 ed for prevention s the previous mea 80 000 ed for prevention same activity as th	and early detect sure however ha unding provided 570 000 and early detect asure however h 80 000 and early detect he previous mea	ion of health s been I to 575 329 ion of health as been 81 078 ion of health sure however
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p conditions – breast cancer screening'. The new me amended for increased clarity. The 2016-17 outcor BreastScreen Victoria from the Project Agreement The higher 2017-18 target reflects additional fundi Women screened for cervical cancer This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p conditions – cervical cancer screening'. The new m amended for increased clarity. Number of persons participating in newborn bloodspot or maternal serum screening This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p conditions – newborn and maternal serum screening has been amended for increased clarity.	asure reports on th me is higher than th for the Expansion of ing provided in the number erformance measu easure reports on t number erformance measu ng'. The new measu	e same activity as the 2016-17 target of f BreastScreen Au 2017-18 Budget. 570 000 re 'Persons screen the same activity as 80 000 re 'Persons screen ure reports on the	the previous meas due to additional f stralia Program. 570 000 ed for prevention s the previous mea 80 000 ed for prevention same activity as th	and early detect sure however ha unding provided 570 000 and early detect asure however h 80 000 and early detect he previous mea	ion of health s been I to 575 329 ion of health as been 81 078 ion of health sure however
 This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p conditions – breast cancer screening'. The new me amended for increased clarity. The 2016-17 outcon BreastScreen Victoria from the Project Agreement. The higher 2017-18 target reflects additional fundi Women screened for cervical cancer This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p conditions – cervical cancer screening'. The new m amended for increased clarity. Number of persons participating in newborn bloodspot or maternal serum screening This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p conditions – newborn and maternal serum screening This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p conditions – newborn and maternal serum screening This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p conditions – newborn and maternal serum screening has been amended for increased clarity. 	asure reports on th me is higher than th for the Expansion of ing provided in the number erformance measu easure reports on t number erformance measu ng'. The new measu	e same activity as the 2016-17 target of f BreastScreen Au 2017-18 Budget. 570 000 re 'Persons screen the same activity as 80 000 re 'Persons screen ure reports on the	the previous meas due to additional f stralia Program. 570 000 ed for prevention s the previous mea 80 000 ed for prevention same activity as th	and early detect sure however ha unding provided 570 000 and early detect asure however h 80 000 and early detect he previous mea	ion of health s been t to 575 329 ion of health as been 81 078 ion of health
 This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p conditions – breast cancer screening'. The new me amended for increased clarity. The 2016-17 outcor BreastScreen Victoria from the Project Agreement. The higher 2017-18 target reflects additional fundi Women screened for cervical cancer This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p conditions – cervical cancer screening'. The new m amended for increased clarity. Number of persons participating in newborn bloodspot or maternal serum screening This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p conditions – newborn and maternal serum screening This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p conditions – newborn and maternal serum screening This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p conditions – newborn and maternal serum screening has been amended for increased clarity. Persons screened for prevention and early detection of health conditions – pulmonary tuberculosis screening 	asure reports on th me is higher than th for the Expansion of ing provided in the number eerformance measu easure reports on t number eerformance measu ng'. The new measu number	e same activity as the 2016-17 target of f BreastScreen Au 2017-18 Budget. 570 000 re 'Persons screen the same activity a 80 000 re 'Persons screen ure reports on the 2 000	the previous meas due to additional f stralia Program. 570 000 ed for prevention s the previous mea 80 000 ed for prevention same activity as th 2 000	and early detect sure however ha unding provided 570 000 and early detect asure however h 80 000 and early detect he previous mea 2 000	ion of health s been I to 575 329 ion of health as been 81 078 ion of health sure however 1 562

		2017 40	2016-17	201647	
Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Smoking cessation of Aboriginal mothers	per cent	21.4	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect G and Wellbeing. Maternal smoking is a major risk far pregnancy than non-Aboriginal mothers and less lik	overnment priori ctor for infant mo	ties regarding targe prbidity and Aborigi	eted interventions	to improve Abor	iginal Health
Quality					
Calls to food safety hotlines that are answered	per cent	97	98	97	99
Immunisation coverage: adolescent (Year 7) students fully immunised for DTPa (diphtheria, tetanus and pertussis)	per cent	90	90	80	77.4
The higher 2017-18 target reflects a marked increas vaccination as a result of vaccination implementatio The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 2 returned and a corresponding increase in vaccinatio	on being moved f 016-17 target du	rom Year 10 to Yea e to a marked incre	r 7. ease in compliance	of consent card	s being
Immunisation coverage: at school entry	per cent	95	93	95	93
Immunisation coverage: at two years of age	per cent	95	92	95	91
Public health emergency response calls dealt with within designated plans and procedure timelines	per cent	100	100	100	100
Timeliness					
Average time taken from notification of a food complaint to commencement of appropriate action	hours	24	24	24	24
Infectious disease outbreaks responded to within 24 hours	per cent	100	100	100	100
Participation rate of women in target age range screened for breast cancer	per cent	54	52	54	52.2
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 pe breast cancer'. The new measure reports on the sar clarity.	-				
Participation rate of women in target age range screened for cervical cancer	per cent	62	60	62	59.9
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 pe cervical cancer'. The new measure reports on the so clarity.		• • •			
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	252.5	247.9	258.6	207.8
Health Advancement Improves the general health and wellbeing of the fostering of healthy behaviours.	f Victorians th	rough the prov	ision of comm	unity informa	ation and
Quantity Persons completing the Life! – Diabetes and Cardiovascular Disease Prevention program	number	5 616	5 616	5 616	5 486
Workplaces and pubs and clubs complying with smoke free environment laws	per cent	99	99	99	99

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual					
Quality Local Government Authorities with Municipal Public Health and Wellbeing Plans	per cent	100	100	100	100					
<i>Cost</i> Total output cost	\$ million	81.8	75.9	78.0	67.4					
· ·	Public Health Development, Research and Support Develops and advocates for research and development activities, which support evidence based public health									
Quantity Number of people trained in emergency response	number	2 000	2 000	2 000	2 028					
Operational infrastructure support grants under management	number	11	10	10	10					
The higher 2017-18 target reflects additional fundin	g provided in the	e 2017-18 Budget.								
Timeliness Practitioner medicinal cannabis authorisations processed within prescribed timeline	per cent	95	95	95	nm					
Cost										
Total output cost The higher 2017-18 target reflects funding provided	\$ million for government	64.9 policy commitme	51.0 nts.	53.1	44.6					

Small Rural Services

(2017-18: \$558.8 million)

This output includes a range of health and aged care services delivered in small rural towns. The funding and service delivery approach focuses on achieving a sustainable, flexible service mix that is responsive to local needs. Service providers include small rural hospitals, community health services, bush nursing centres, multi-purpose services and public sector residential aged care services.

	Unit of	2017-18	2016-17 expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Small Rural Services – Acute Health					
Admitted and non-admitted services deliver surgical and medical care, accident and eme	•		0	e and non-ele	ctive
	ergency service	s, and maternit	y services.		
Quantity Separations	number	35.8	35.8	41.6	37.2
Separations	(thousand)	55.0	55.0	41.0	57.2
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the acute, aged and home care, primary health service services funding model.	2016-17 target due	-			-
Small rural weighted activity unit	number (thousand)	350 000	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect non-admitted and community-based activities to l			l rural services inc	luding admitted	and
Quality					
Percentage of health services accredited	per cent	100	100	100	100
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p activity as the previous measure however has bee	•		d'. The new measu	ure reports on th	e same
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	340.5	333.4	341.4	309.9
Small Rural Services – Aged Care This output includes delivery of in home, co delivered in small rural towns.	mmunity based	d and residentia	al care services	s for older pe	ople,
Quantity Small rural available bed days	days	701 143	701 143	701 143	706 200
Quality	uays	701 145	701 145	701 143	700 200
Residential care services accredited	per cent	100	100	100	100
Cost	per cent	100	100	100	100
Total output cost	\$ million	186.5	185.8	192.4	174.0
Small Rural Services – Home and Communi This output includes delivery of in home, co with disabilities delivered by small rural serv	mmunity based		for older peop	le, and young	ger people
Home & Community Care for Younger People – hours of service delivery	hours	107 719	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect target group (0-64 years old) in need of assistance Support Programme. There will be no change in th The target will progressively decline to reflect the	e as people aged 65 ne method of calcul	and older have tra ating and monitori	insitioned to the C ing the aggregate	commonwealth H hours from the c	lome old measure.
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	11.8	8.5	7.8	32.7
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the The higher 2017-18 target reflects additional thira transition of services to the Commonwealth.	-				

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Small Rural Services – Primary Health					
This output includes delivery of in home, co rural services and designed to promote hea	,			,	
Quantity					
Service delivery hours in community	number	99 000	108 987	99 000	108 987
health care					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the	2016-17 target du	e to better than e	pected result in the	e first half of 201	6-17.
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	20.1	19.5	20.3	18.3

Objective 2: Victorians are safe and secure^(a)

This objective aims for Victorians to live free from abuse and violence and for Victorians to have suitable and stable housing.

The departmental objective indicators are:

- reduce the abuse and neglect of children and young people;
- reduce the rate of growth in out-of-home care especially for Aboriginal children;
- reduce the number of children in out-of-home care who live in residential care;
- reduce the level of continuing risk for victims of family violence;
- identify and respond to bullying, assault and inappropriate behaviour in departmental and public health services to reduce occurrence;
- reduce the proportion of the population experiencing homelessness especially victims of family violence, and young people.

Note:

(a) The objectives and objective indicators for the Department of Health and Human Services have been reviewed and updated.

Outputs

Child Protection and Family Services

(2017-18: \$1 364.2 million)

The Child Protection and Family Services output, through the funding and statutory child protection services, family support and parenting services, family violence and sexual assault services, adoption and placement care services and specialist support services, aims to ensure the safety and wellbeing of adolescents and children at risk of harm, abuse and neglect. This output aims to make a positive difference to Victorians experiencing disadvantage by providing excellent community services to meet clients' needs.

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Child Protection and Family Services					
This output provides:					
 child protection services to ensure the sa abuse and neglect; 	afety and well	being of childre	en and young p	eople at risk	of harm,
• specialist support and placement service people who require support to remain w		•	0	•	ung
 a range of early intervention and suppor people and families. 	t services to e	nsure the safet	y and wellbein	g of childrer	i, young
Quantity					
Daily average number of children in out-	number	9 441	8 948	8 159	8 752
of-home care placements					
The 2017-18 target and the 2016-17 expected outc home care and increased demand consistent with <i>I</i> arising from inquiries such as the Royal Commission Abuse.	historic trends, wit	th a heightened ob	servance of child a	buse in the com	munity,

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Number of Child FIRST assessments and interventions	number	13 103	17 396	11 681	15 190
	016 17 target du	a to increasing dom	and in referrals to	Child EIRST	
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 20 The higher 2017-18 target reflects additional fundin	-	-	unu in rejerruis it	CIIIIU FINST.	
Number of children in kinship care whose	number	838	838	750	752
placements are managed by community					
service organisations					
The higher 2017-18 target and 2016-17 expected ou 2016-17 Budget, resulting in an additional 88 contro	-	-		onal funding fro	m the
Number of children receiving an intensive	number	1 400	1 400	1 400	1 400
support service					
Number of family services cases provided to Aboriginal families	number	3 347	2 728	2 547	2 342
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 20 and strengthened policy around priority access for A The higher 2017-18 target reflects additional fundin	Aboriginal families	s in both Child FIRST			l families
Reports to child protection services about the wellbeing and safety of children	number	121 600	115 000	121 600	106 909
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 20 result.)16-17 target bec	ause demand was l	ower than estima	ted. This is a pre	eliminary
Total number of family services cases provided	number	38 166	39 399	35 215	35 448
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 20 Services following additional investment in 2015-16,	, not being comm	5		ST and Integrate	ed Family
The higher 2017-18 target reflects additional fundin	ng provided in the	2017-18 Budget.			
The higher 2017-18 target reflects additional fundin Number of clients assisted by a Risk	number	2017-18 Budget. 860	860	nm	nm
		-	860	nm	nm
Number of clients assisted by a Risk	number overnment priorit	860 ties regarding family	y violence. The Ris	sk Assessments	and
Number of clients assisted by a Risk Assessment and Management Panel New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect G Management Panels (RAMPs) are a co-ordinated m family violence. Number of children who receive a SABTS	number overnment priorit	860 ties regarding family	y violence. The Ris	sk Assessments	and
Number of clients assisted by a Risk Assessment and Management Panel New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Go Management Panels (RAMPs) are a co-ordinated m family violence.	number overnment priorit ulti-agency respo number overnment priorit	860 ties regarding famil nse for women at s 1 150 ties regarding famil	v violence. The Ris erious and immin nm y violence. The Se	sk Assessments ent risk of harm nm xually Abusive E	and from nm Behaviour
Number of clients assisted by a Risk Assessment and Management Panel New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Go Management Panels (RAMPs) are a co-ordinated m family violence. Number of children who receive a SABTS response New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Go Treatment Services (SABTS) is an early intervention of	number overnment priorit ulti-agency respo number overnment priorit	860 ties regarding famil nse for women at s 1 150 ties regarding famil	v violence. The Ris erious and immin nm y violence. The Se	sk Assessments ent risk of harm nm xually Abusive E	and from nm Behaviour violence,
Number of clients assisted by a Risk Assessment and Management Panel New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Ge Management Panels (RAMPs) are a co-ordinated m family violence. Number of children who receive a SABTS response New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Ge Treatment Services (SABTS) is an early intervention s and who demonstrate problematic behaviours.	number overnment priorit ulti-agency respo number overnment priorit service for adoles	860 iies regarding famil, nse for women at s 1 150 iies regarding famil, cents, including tho	y violence. The Rie erious and immin nm y violence. The Se se who have expe	sk Assessments ent risk of harm nm xually Abusive E crienced family	and from nm Behaviour violence,
Number of clients assisted by a Risk Assessment and Management Panel New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Ge Management Panels (RAMPs) are a co-ordinated m family violence. Number of children who receive a SABTS response New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Ge Treatment Services (SABTS) is an early intervention and who demonstrate problematic behaviours. Number of calls made to the statewide	number overnment priorit ulti-agency respo number overnment priorit service for adoles	860 iies regarding famil, nse for women at s 1 150 iies regarding famil, cents, including tho	y violence. The Rie erious and immin nm y violence. The Se se who have expe	sk Assessments ent risk of harm nm xually Abusive E crienced family	and from nm Behaviour
Number of clients assisted by a Risk Assessment and Management Panel New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Ge Management Panels (RAMPs) are a co-ordinated m family violence. Number of children who receive a SABTS response New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Ge Treatment Services (SABTS) is an early interventions and who demonstrate problematic behaviours. Number of calls made to the statewide telephone help line for men regarding	number overnment prioriti ulti-agency respo number overnment priorit service for adoles number overnment priorit	860 ites regarding famil, nse for women at s 1 150 ites regarding famil, cents, including tho 9 000 ites regarding famil,	y violence. The Rie erious and immin nm y violence. The Se se who have expe nm	sk Assessments ent risk of harm nm xually Abusive E crienced family nm	and from nm Behaviour violence, nm
Number of clients assisted by a Risk Assessment and Management Panel New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Ge Management Panels (RAMPs) are a co-ordinated m family violence. Number of children who receive a SABTS response New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Ge Treatment Services (SABTS) is an early interventions and who demonstrate problematic behaviours. Number of calls made to the statewide telephone help line for men regarding family violence New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Ge statewide telephone referral service for perpetrators	number overnment prioriti ulti-agency respo number overnment priorit service for adoles number overnment priorit	860 ites regarding famil, nse for women at s 1 150 ites regarding famil, cents, including tho 9 000 ites regarding famil,	y violence. The Rie erious and immin nm y violence. The Se se who have expe nm	sk Assessments ent risk of harm nm xually Abusive E crienced family nm	and from nm Behaviour violence, nm
Number of clients assisted by a Risk Assessment and Management Panel New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Ge Management Panels (RAMPs) are a co-ordinated m family violence. Number of children who receive a SABTS response New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Ge Treatment Services (SABTS) is an early interventions and who demonstrate problematic behaviours. Number of calls made to the statewide telephone help line for men regarding family violence New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Ge	number overnment prioriti ulti-agency respo number overnment priorit service for adoles number overnment priorit	860 ites regarding famil, nse for women at s 1 150 ites regarding famil, cents, including tho 9 000 ites regarding famil,	y violence. The Rie erious and immin nm y violence. The Se se who have expe nm	sk Assessments ent risk of harm nm xually Abusive E crienced family nm	and from Nm Behaviour violence, nm rvice is a
Number of clients assisted by a Risk Assessment and Management Panel New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Ge Management Panels (RAMPs) are a co-ordinated m family violence. Number of children who receive a SABTS response New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Ge Treatment Services (SABTS) is an early interventions and who demonstrate problematic behaviours. Number of calls made to the statewide telephone help line for men regarding family violence New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Ge statewide telephone referral service for perpetrator. Quality Children and young people in out-of- home care who have had two or less	number overnment priorit ulti-agency respo number overnment priorit service for adoles number overnment priorit s of family violend	860 ties regarding famil, nse for women at s 1 150 ties regarding famil, cents, including tho 9 000 ties regarding famil, ce.	y violence. The Rie erious and immin nm y violence. The Se se who have expe nm y violence. The M	sk Assessments ent risk of harm nm xually Abusive E erienced family nm en's Referral Sei	and from Nm Behaviour violence, nm rvice is a
Number of clients assisted by a Risk Assessment and Management Panel New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Ge Management Panels (RAMPs) are a co-ordinated m family violence. Number of children who receive a SABTS response New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Ge Treatment Services (SABTS) is an early interventions and who demonstrate problematic behaviours. Number of calls made to the statewide telephone help line for men regarding family violence New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Ge statewide telephone referral service for perpetrator. Quality Children and young people in out-of- home care who have had two or less placements in the past 12 months (not	number overnment priorit ulti-agency respo number overnment priorit service for adoles number overnment priorit s of family violend	860 ties regarding famil, nse for women at s 1 150 ties regarding famil, cents, including tho 9 000 ties regarding famil, ce.	y violence. The Rie erious and immin nm y violence. The Se se who have expe nm y violence. The M	sk Assessments ent risk of harm nm xually Abusive E erienced family nm en's Referral Sei	and from Nm Behaviour violence, nm rvice is a
Number of clients assisted by a Risk Assessment and Management Panel New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Ge Management Panels (RAMPs) are a co-ordinated m family violence. Number of children who receive a SABTS response New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Ge Treatment Services (SABTS) is an early interventions and who demonstrate problematic behaviours. Number of calls made to the statewide telephone help line for men regarding family violence New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Ge statewide telephone referral service for perpetrator. Quality Children and young people in out-of- home care who have had two or less	number overnment priorit ulti-agency respo number overnment priorit service for adoles number overnment priorit s of family violend	860 ties regarding famil, nse for women at s 1 150 ties regarding famil, cents, including tho 9 000 ties regarding famil, ce.	y violence. The Rie erious and immin nm y violence. The Se se who have expe nm y violence. The M	sk Assessments ent risk of harm nm xually Abusive E erienced family nm en's Referral Sei	and from nm Behaviour violence, nm
Number of clients assisted by a Risk Assessment and Management Panel New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Ge Management Panels (RAMPs) are a co-ordinated m family violence. Number of children who receive a SABTS response New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Ge Treatment Services (SABTS) is an early interventions and who demonstrate problematic behaviours. Number of calls made to the statewide telephone help line for men regarding family violence New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Ge statewide telephone referral service for perpetrator. Quality Children and young people in out-of- home care who have had two or less placements in the past 12 months (not	number overnment priorit ulti-agency respo number overnment priorit service for adoles number overnment priorit s of family violend per cent	860 ities regarding famil, inse for women at s 1 150 ities regarding famil, cents, including the 9 000 ities regarding famil, ities regarding famil, ce.	y violence. The Ris erious and immin nm y violence. The Se se who have expe nm y violence. The M 91	sk Assessments ent risk of harm nm xually Abusive E rrienced family nm en's Referral Sea 86	and from nm Behaviour violence, nm rvice is a 91
Number of clients assisted by a Risk Assessment and Management Panel New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Ge Management Panels (RAMPs) are a co-ordinated m family violence. Number of children who receive a SABTS response New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Ge Treatment Services (SABTS) is an early interventions and who demonstrate problematic behaviours. Number of calls made to the statewide telephone help line for men regarding family violence New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Ge statewide telephone referral service for perpetrator. Quality Children and young people in out-of- home care who have had two or less placements in the past 12 months (not including placements at home) The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 20 placements.	number overnment priorit ulti-agency respo number overnment priorit service for adoles number overnment priorit s of family violend per cent	860 ities regarding famil, inse for women at s 1 150 ities regarding famil, cents, including the 9 000 ities regarding famil, ities regarding famil, ce.	y violence. The Ris erious and immin nm y violence. The Se se who have expe nm y violence. The M 91	sk Assessments ent risk of harm nm xually Abusive E rrienced family nm en's Referral Sea 86	and from nm Behaviour violence, nm rvice is a 91
Number of clients assisted by a Risk Assessment and Management Panel New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Ge Management Panels (RAMPs) are a co-ordinated m family violence. Number of children who receive a SABTS response New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Ge Treatment Services (SABTS) is an early interventions and who demonstrate problematic behaviours. Number of calls made to the statewide telephone help line for men regarding family violence New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Ge statewide telephone referral service for perpetrator. Quality Children and young people in out-of- home care who have had two or less placements in the past 12 months (not including placements at home) The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 20 placements. Children and young people who were the subject of a substantiated report within	number overnment priorit ulti-agency respo number overnment priorit service for adoles number overnment priorit s of family violend per cent 016-17 target due	860 ites regarding family nse for women at s 1 150 ites regarding family cents, including tho 9 000 ites regarding family re. 86 e to more children c	y violence. The Rie erious and immin nm y violence. The Se se who have expe nm y violence. The M 91	sk Assessments ent risk of harm nm xually Abusive E erienced family v nm en's Referral Sea 86 remaining in sta	and from Nm Behaviour violence, nm rvice is a 91 able
Number of clients assisted by a Risk Assessment and Management Panel New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Ge Management Panels (RAMPs) are a co-ordinated m family violence. Number of children who receive a SABTS response New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Ge Treatment Services (SABTS) is an early interventions and who demonstrate problematic behaviours. Number of calls made to the statewide telephone help line for men regarding family violence New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Ge statewide telephone referral service for perpetrator. Quality Children and young people in out-of- home care who have had two or less placements in the past 12 months (not including placements at home) The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 20 placements.	number overnment priorit ulti-agency respo number overnment priorit service for adoles number overnment priorit s of family violend per cent 016-17 target due	860 ites regarding family nse for women at s 1 150 ites regarding family cents, including tho 9 000 ites regarding family re. 86 e to more children c	y violence. The Rie erious and immin nm y violence. The Se se who have expe nm y violence. The M 91	sk Assessments ent risk of harm nm xually Abusive E erienced family v nm en's Referral Sea 86 remaining in sta	and from Nm Behaviour violence, nm rvice is a 91 able

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Children and young people who were the	per cent	3	3	3	2.5
subject of an investigation which led to a					
decision not to substantiate, who were subsequently the subject of a					
subsequently the subject of a substantiation within three months of					
case closure					
Organisations that have successfully	per cent	95	100	95	100
completed a certification review (family					
and community services)					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 2 quarters in achieving or maintaining certification /a This performance measure renames the 2016-17 pe review (family and community services)'. The new n amended for increased clarity.	ccreditation agai	inst the Human Se ure 'Organisation	ervices Standards. T s that have success	his is a positive fully completed	result. a quality
Organisations that have successfully	per cent	95	100	95	100
completed a certification review					
(specialist support and placement services)					
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 per review (specialist support and placement services)'. has been amended for increased clarity. Proportion of Aboriginal children placed		-			
with relatives/kin, other Aboriginal carers or in Aboriginal residential care	·				
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 2 other Aboriginal carers or in Aboriginal residential c	-	e to more Aborigi	nal children being p	placed with relat	ives/kin,
Proportion of placements that are home- based care	per cent	90	95	90	94.8
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 2 positive result and consistent with previous years.	016-17 target du	e to the prioritisa	tion of home-based	care placement	ts. This is a
ïmeliness					
Percentage of child protection	per cent	97	97	97	96.2
investigations assessed as urgent, that					
were visited, or where attempts were made to visit, within two days of receipt					
of the report					
Sexual assault support services clients	per cent	95	98	95	97.5
receiving an initial response within five working days of referral	percent	35	50	55	57.5
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	1 364.2	1 184.1	1 105.6	1 006.7
The higher 2016-17 expected outcome primarily ref and the transfer of the Safe at Home initiative from The higher 2017-18 target primarily reflects funding	lects higher actuation the Housing Assi	al carryover from istance output.	2015-16 than estim	ated in the 201	

Housing Assistance

(2017-18: \$583.0 million)

The Housing Assistance output, through the provision of homelessness services, crisis and transitional accommodation and long-term adequate, affordable and accessible housing assistance, coordinated with support services where required, home renovation assistance and the management of the home loan portfolio, aims to make a positive difference for Victorians experiencing disadvantage by providing excellent housing and community services to meet clients' needs.

		2016-17		
Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
measure	target	outcome	target	actual

Housing Assistance

This output provides:

- housing assistance for low income families, older people, singles, youth and other households. It
 responds to the needs of clients through the provision of appropriate accommodation, including shortterm and long-term properties that assist in reducing and preventing homelessness;
- and housing support services to people who are homeless or at risk of homelessness, in short-term
 housing or crisis situations. Support will assist clients in accessing and maintaining tenancies in
 appropriate accommodation. Services provided will assist in the prevention and overall reduction or
 homelessness and decrease for social housing.

Quantity					
Bond loans provided during year	number	12 000	12 426	12 000	11 763
Households assisted with housing	number	36 000	36 000	36 000	40 00
establishment assistance during year					
Number of clients assisted to address and	number	118 400	113 500	113 500	105 28
prevent homelessness					
The higher 2017-18 target reflects increased investm violence investment. The impact of any potential Con National Partnership Agreement on Homelessness fu The 2015-16 actual published in the Department of H	nmonwealth Gov nding in the 201	ernment change 7-18 budget has	rs to National Afford not been included.	lable Housing Ag	greement o
Number of households assisted with	number	9 000	9 000	9 000	8 98
crisis/transitional accommodation					
Number of households assisted with long	number	78 036	78 036	77 343	78 03
term social housing (public, Aboriginal and					
community long-term tenancies at end of					
year)					
The 2015-16 actual published in the Department of He	ealth and Humai	n Services' 2015	-16 Annual Report	was a prelimina	ıry result.
Number of public housing dwellings	number	2 134	2 298	2 298	2 04
upgraded during year					
The lower 2017-18 target reflects the Victorian Prope	erty Fund allocati	on ceasing in 20.	16-17.		
Total number of social housing dwellings	number	86 809	86 555	85 524	86 26
The higher 2017-18 target primarily reflects addition family violence in the 2017-18 Budget.	al funding provid	ed for governme	nt policy commitme	ents including fu	nding for
Total social housing dwellings acquired	number	1 078	640	640	1 36
during the year					
The higher 2017-18 target reflects the increasing inve to increase social housing and the investment of \$120					lion funding
Number of family violence victims who	number	595	nm	nm	nr
receive a refuge response					
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Go to victims of family violence. This measure will report refuge providers.			· ·		

	Unit of	2017-18	2016-17 expected	2016-17	2015-16
	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Number of nights of refuge	number	48 000	nm	nm	nm
accommodation provided to victims of family violence					
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Gov supported accommodation to victims of family violen refuges.					
Number of calls made to the statewide	number	75 000	nm	nm	nm
24/7 family violence victim/survivor crisis service					
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Gov information and support for victims of family violence			,		provides
Number of clients assisted to address and	number	50 790	nm	nm	nm
prevent homelessness due to family violence					
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Gov homelessness assistance. This measure is a sub-meas performance measure.					-
Quality					
Percentage of clients with case plans in	per cent	90	90	90	92
homelessness support programs with					
some, most or all of their case plan goals					
achieved					
The impact of any potential Commonwealth Governn Agreement on Homelessness funding in the 2017-18	-		le Housing Agreer	nent or Nationa	l Partnership
Social housing tenants satisfied with	per cent	85	85	85	87.7
completed urgent maintenance works	p				-
Social housing tenants satisfied with	per cent	80	nm	nm	nm
completed non-urgent maintenance works					
New measure for 2017-18 to complement the current urgent maintenance works'.	t performance me	easure of 'Social h	nousing tenants sa	tisfied with com	pleted
Timeliness					
Average waiting time for public rental housing for those clients who have	months	10.5	10.5	10.5	10
received priority access housing allocation					
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 perf clients who have received early housing allocation'. The has been amended for increased clarity to reflect the Register.	he new measure	reports on the sai	me activity as the	previous measu	re however
Average waiting time for public rental	months	10.5	nm	nm	nm
housing for clients who have received a					
priority access housing or priority transfer					
allocation due to family violence					
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	arnment prioritie	es regarding the i	mplementation of	the recommend	lations from
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Gov the Royal Commission into Family Violence.					
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Gov the Royal Commission into Family Violence. Proportion of clients where support to	per cent	18	18	18	15
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Gov the Royal Commission into Family Violence.		18	18	18	15
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Gov the Royal Commission into Family Violence. Proportion of clients where support to sustain housing tenure was unable to be	per cent	lational Affordab			
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Gou the Royal Commission into Family Violence. Proportion of clients where support to sustain housing tenure was unable to be provided or referred The impact of any potential Commonwealth Governm Agreement on Homelessness funding in the 2017-18 to	per cent	lational Affordab			
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Gov the Royal Commission into Family Violence. Proportion of clients where support to sustain housing tenure was unable to be provided or referred The impact of any potential Commonwealth Governm	per cent	lational Affordab			15 I Partnership 460.4

Family Violence Service Delivery

(2017-18: \$107.5 million)

This output will lead and coordinate whole of government family violence policy, and implement and deliver the Government's family violence reform agenda. This will include establishing and operating Support and Safety Hubs, implementing information sharing legislation, and delivery of risk assessment and management programs.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Quantity					
Workers trained in the Family Violence	number	10 000	nm	nm	nm
Risk Assessment and Risk Management					
Framework					
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect <u>c</u> their work practices with the new Risk Assessment			ly violence. Trainin	g will assist wor	kers to align
Support and Safety Hubs established	number	5	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect <u>c</u> Support and Safety Hubs which provide intake, ass children and their families.					
Total assessments completed at the	number	2 500	nm	nm	nm
Support and Safety Hubs					
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect of Support and Safety Hubs which provide intake, ass children and their families. An assessment may be depending on the circumstances. The target reflect	essments and refe conducted in relat	errals to services for tion to an individua	family violence vi	ctims, and vulne	rable
Quality					
Satisfaction by workers with family violence training	per cent	80	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect g	government priori	ties regarding famil	ly violence.		
Satisfaction of clients with Support and	per cent	80	nm	nm	nm
Safety Hubs services					
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect g	governments prior	ities regarding fam	ily violence.		
Timeliness					
Assessments completed within agreed	per cent	80	nm	nm	nm
timeframes					
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect g	governments prior	ities regarding fam	ily violence.		
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	107.5	42.0		nm
The new output for 2017-18 budget includes key for commitments.	amily violence serv	vice delivery initiativ	e funding provided	d for governmei	nt policy

Objective 3: Victorians have the capabilities to participate^(a)

This objective aims for Victorian's to participate in learning and education, participate in and contribute to the economy, and to have financial security.

The departmental objective indicators are:

- increase educational engagement and achievement by children and young people in contact with departmental services especially those in out-of-home care;
- increase participation in three and four year old kindergarten by children known to child protection;
- increase the satisfaction of those who care voluntarily for people with a disability; people with mental illness; and children in out-of-home care; and
- increase labour market participation by people with a disability; people with a mental illness; and people living in specified locations and communities.

Note:

(a) The objectives and objective indicators for the Department of Health and Human Services have been reviewed and updated.

Outputs

Concessions to Pensioners and Beneficiaries

(2017-18: \$568.6 million)³

The Concessions to Pensioners and Beneficiaries output, through the development and coordination of the delivery of concessions and relief grants to eligible consumers and concession card holders, aims to make a positive difference for Victorians experiencing disadvantage by providing excellent community services to meet clients' needs.

			2016-17				
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16		
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual		
This output provides reductions in the price of energy, water, and municipal rates to eligible consumers and concession card holders. It also provides trustee services for people on a low income or those who are subject to an order by the Victorian Civil and Administrative Tribunal, and other social and community services, including the provision of emergency relief for individuals or families who are experiencing immediate and personal distress due to a financial or domestic crisis.							
Quantity							
Households receiving mains electricity concessions	number	914 406	912 666	911 070	910 866		
The higher 2017-18 target is due to a forecast incre	ase in the numbe	er of eligible househ	olds.				
Households receiving mains gas concessions	number	669 360	656 536	650 482	643 957		
The higher 2017-18 target is due to a forecast increase in the number of eligible households.							
Households receiving non-mains energy concessions	number	24 054	23 388	23 074	22 739		
The higher 2017-18 target is due to a forecast incre	ase in the numbe	er of eligible househ	olds.				

³ This excludes funding for transport concessions transferred to the Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' Integrated Transport output.

Performance measures Households receiving pensioner concessions for municipal rates and charges	Unit of measure number	2017-18 target 430 234	2016-17 expected outcome 437 427	2016-17 target 441 821	2015-16 actual 437 031			
The lower 2017-18 target is due to a forecast decrease in the number of eligible households associated with Commonwealth changes in pensioner eligibility.								
Households receiving water and sewerage concessions	number	690 578	689 102	688 725	688 159			
The higher 2017-18 target is due to a forecast increase in the number of eligible households.								
Number of clients receiving trustee services	number	14 600	14 600	14 600	13 092			
Quality								
Percentage of Community Service Agreement performance targets that have been achieved by State Trustees	per cent	90	90	90	93.8			
Percentage of customers satisfied with State Trustee Limited Services	per cent	75	75	75	76.8			
Timeliness								
Percentage of customer requests answered by State Trustees within the timelines set in the Community Service Agreement	per cent	90	90	90	91.6			
Cost								
Total output cost \$ million 568.6 540.2 531.2 557.5 The higher 2017-18 target reflects funding provided for government policy commitments.								

Disability Services

(2017-18: \$2 093.5 million)

The Disability Services output, through the provision of continuing care and support services for people with disabilities, their carers and their families, aims to make a positive difference for Victorians experiencing disadvantage and provide excellent community services to meet clients' needs.

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Disability Services					
This output provides:					
 programs and resources that enable clie use of packages of individualised fundir 		bility to exercis	se choice and	control thro	ugh the
• specialised support for people with a di respond to the needs of people with a di	•	ources and pro	ograms that bu	uild capacity	to
• bed and facility-based services character support.	rised by the bu	undling of accor	mmodation se	ervices and d	isability
Quantity					
Clients accessing aids and equipment	number	22 300	27 300	30 307	29 289
The lower 2017-18 target reflects the effect of Vic The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the . Insurance Scheme.		-	,		
Clients in residential institutions	number	50	70	79	89
The lower 2017-18 target reflects the transition og built homes in the community. This target will con expected to close by 30 June 2019. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the .	tinue to reduce du	e to movement of c	clients out of the r	residential institi	
Clients receiving case management	number	4 100	5 300	5 300	5 374
services					
The lower 2017-18 target reflects the effect of Vic		-	,		
Clients receiving individualised support	number	12 600	14 983	16 192	15 205
The lower 2017-18 target reflects the effect of Vic The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the . Insurance Scheme.			,		
Hours of community-based respite	number	760 300	750 000	1 000 000	1 198 186
The lower 2017-18 target reflects the effect of Vic The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the . Insurance Scheme.		5	,		
Number of respite days	number	80 600	80 000	101 475	102 742
The lower 2017-18 target reflects the effect of Vic The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the . Insurance Scheme.					
Quality					
Clients satisfied with the aids and equipment services system	per cent	85	85	85	88
Clients who have had a comprehensive health status review	per cent	90	90	90	98.3

			2016-17		
Derfermence messeures	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Organisations that have successfully	per cent	95	100	95	100
completed a certification review					
(accommodation supports)					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 2 quarters in achieving or maintaining certification/a This performance measure renames the 2016-17 per review (accommodation supports)'. The new measu amended for increased clarity.	ccreditation agai erformance meas	inst the Human Se sure 'Organisation	rvices Standards. Th s that have success	nis is a positive re fully completed o	esult. a quality
Organisations that have successfully	per cent	95	100	95	100
completed a certification review (client					
services and capacity)					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 2 quarters in achieving or maintaining certification/a This performance measure renames the 2016-17 pe review (client services and capacity)'. The new mea amended for increased clarity.	ccreditation agai erformance meas	inst the Human Se sure 'Organisation	rvices Standards. Th s that have success	nis is a positive re fully completed o	esult. a quality
Organisations that have successfully	per cent	95	100	95	100
completed a certification review (individualised supports)	F				
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 2 quarters in achieving or maintaining certification/a This performance measure renames the 2016-17 pe review (individualised supports)'. The new measure for increased clarity.	ccreditation agai erformance meas	inst the Human Se sure 'Organisation	rvices Standards. Th s that have success	nis is a positive re fully completed o	esult. a quality
Support plans reviewed at least once	per cent	100	100	100	97.8
during each period of three years commencing from when the support plan was first prepared (accommodation supports)					
Support plans reviewed at least once	per cent	100	100	100	81.8
during each period of three years commencing from when the support plan was first prepared (individualised supports)					
Support plans reviewed every 12 months	per cent	100	100	100	96.6
for persons residing in residential institutions	p				
Timeliness					
Applications for aids and equipment acknowledged in writing within 10 working days	per cent	90	95	90	98.6
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 2	016-17 target re	flective of the time	ely and responsive s	ervice to clients	
Proportion of clients whose support is commenced within departmental timelines	per cent	85	85	85	93.3
Support plans prepared within 60 days of the person commencing to regularly access the disability services (accommodation supports)	per cent	100	100	100	99.7
Support plans prepared within 60 days of the person commencing to regularly access the disability services (individualised supports)	per cent	100	100	100	90.9

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual	
Percentage of Supported Independent	per cent	100	nm	nm	nm	
Living (SIL) services vacancies filled within	per cent	100				
60 business days						
The proposed new measure will reflect the differen	t activities funded	d by the National D	isability Insurance	Scheme more a	ccurately.	
Percentage of Specialist Disability	per cent	100	nm	nm	nm	
Accommodation (SDA) services vacancies						
filled within 60 business days						
The proposed new measure will reflect the differen	t activities funded	d by the National D	isability Insurance	Scheme more a	ccurately.	
Cost						
Total output cost	\$ million	1 347.7	1 787.1	1 683.4	1761.5	
The higher 2016-17 expected outcome primarily reflects Commonwealth funding received for older people in specialist disability services under cross billing arrangements, and slower than planned phasing of existing Disability clients into the NDIS. The lower 2017-18 target primarily reflects the transfer of funding previously reported in the Disability Services output into the Contribution to NDIS output as a result of existing clients expected to transition to the scheme.						
Victorian Contribution to National Disabil	itv Insurance	Scheme				
This is the department's contribution to Au	•		nsurance Sche	me.		
The scheme ensures that people with seve	re or profoun	d disabilities ca	in access the n	ecessary sup	ports	
they need to live the life they want and ac	hieve their go	als and aspirati	ons.			
National Disability Insurance Scheme	number	50 697	20 205	20 205	nm	
participants						
The higher 2017-18 target reflects the agreed annu	al cumulative int	ake of participants	within the Bilatera	l Agreement.		
Cost						
Total output cost	\$ million	745.8	237.8	268.6	0.0	
The lower 2016-17 expected outcome is primarily a The higher 2017-18 target primarily reflects the tra and Support, Disability Services and Mental Health a result of existing clients expected to transition to This only reflects the Department of Health and Hu (NDIS). The State's total estimated funding contribu	nsfer of funding µ Community Supp the scheme. man Services' fur	previously reported port Services output ading contributions	in the HACC Primo is into the Contribu to the National Dis	ry Health, Com tion to the NDIS	munity Care Soutput, as	

Objective 4: Victorians are connected to culture and community^(a)

This objective aims for Victorians to be socially engaged and live in inclusive communities, and can safely identify and connect with their culture and identity.

The departmental objective indicators are:

- increase rates of community engagement, including through participation in sport and recreation especially for Aboriginal children and young people; and
- increase cultural connection for children in out-of-home care especially Aboriginal children.

Note:

(a) The objectives and objective indicators for the Department of Health and Human Services have been reviewed and updated.

Outputs

Empowering Individuals and Communities

(2017-18: \$184.4 million)

Empowering individuals and communities is delivered through funded programs that support community participation including sport and recreation, neighbourhood houses, Men's Sheds, community support projects and programs for youth and people with a disability. Leadership is delivered for whole of government policy on sport and recreation, youth and disability that will create an environment that encourages equity and improves all aspects of life.

atives. The				s Sheds,
eighbourh atives. The ly vulnera	nood House C ese programs able populatic	oordination Prc s support the so ons.	ogram, Men's	
atives. The ly vulnera	ese programs able populatio	s support the so ons.		
atives. The ly vulnera	ese programs able populatio	s support the so ons.		
umber	480 000	100.005		
umber	480 000	100.005		
		480 000	480 000	480 000
er cent	90	90	90	100
million	42.4	44.1	42.0	42.1
over minene p	soncy commune			
elf-advoca	acy organisati	ons so that peo	ple with a dis	sability
	nillion overnment ole of gov	r cent 90 nillion 42.4 overnment policy commitme ole of government pol	r cent 90 90 nillion 42.4 44.1 overnment policy commitments. ole of government policy, disability ac	r cent 90 90 90 nillion 42.4 44.1 42.0

Quantity					
Number of Disability Advocacy clients	number	1 700	1 700	1 700	1 771

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Timeliness					
Annual reporting against the State disability plan within agreed timeframes	per cent	100	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect to in line with the Disability Act 2006.	he Government's	priority in relation	to the new State I	Disability Plan fo	or 2017-2020
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	10.2	10.5	8.5	4.8
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 2 The higher 2017-18 target reflects funding provided	-			n other departn	ents.
Sport and Recreation					
This output provides strategic leadership to to sector development and funding support. It Victoria's elite athletes achieve their potenti facilities across the state and guides the development range of sporting events.	enhances part al. This outpu	ticipation in sp t improves cor	ort and active nmunity sport	recreation ar and recreation	nd assists on
Quantity					
Combat sports licences, registrations and permits issued	number	>600	610	>600	641
Community Facility Grants: number approved	number	>140	140	>140	165
Events facilitated: sport and recreation	number	>70	70	>70	75
Number of projects in progress that relate to the planning and development of state level facilities	number	>9	9	>9	8
Number of sports with athletes on Victorian Institute of Sport scholarships	number	>20	33	>20	37
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 2 individual scholarships.	2016-17 target dı	ie to the large nun	nber of sports that	have athletes e	ligible for
Sport and recreation organisations undertaking programs or activities to enhance participation	number	>90	105	>90	105
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 2		-		600	470
Sporting club grants: number approved The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 2	number	600	650	600	473
Victorian Institute of Sport scholarship holders on national teams/squads	per cent	>55	65	>55	70
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 2 developing athletes who are selected for national t	-		rformance of the V	/ictorian Institut	e of Sport in
Quality					
Contract management of outdoor recreation camps meets agreed key performance indicators	per cent	>90	96	>90	94
Timeliness					
Annual Community Sport and Recreation Awards held	date	Jun 2018	Mar 2017	Jun 2017	Nov 2015
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	112.5	108.1	108.8	172.5
The higher 2017-18 target reflects funding provided	d for government	policy commitme	nts.		

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Youth Affairs Youth Affairs leads and coordinates whole of young people aged between 12 and 25 to ga their local communities.	government	policy advice a	nd delivers a ra	ange of initia	tives for
Quantity					
Participation by young people in programs that provide opportunities to be involved in social and economic life in their communities	number	235 000	200 000	200 000	292 391
The higher 2017-18 target reflects continued increa	se in participatio	n.			
Participation by young people in programs that support young people to be involved in decision making in their community The higher 2017-18 target reflects continued increa	number	2 300	1 775	1 775	2 890
Quality	se in purticipatio				
Participants reporting development of transferrable skills that support education, training and vocational opportunities	per cent	75	75	75	96
Timeliness					
Percentage of programs delivered within agreed timeframes	per cent	90	90	90	98.5
Cost					
Total output cost The 2016–17 expected outcome is higher than the a funding received from other departments. The higher 2017-18 target reflects funding provided	-	-		17.5 2015-16 fundin	16.0 og and

Gender equality and the prevention of family violence policy and programs (2017-18: \$32.2 million)

This output provides initiatives that support women and the prevention of family violence and supports the economic, social and civic participation and inclusion of all Victorians.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

			2016–17		
	Unit of	2017–18	expected	2016–17	2015–16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Quantity					
Number of meetings, forums and events	number	51	51	51	30
held for Women and the Prevention of					
Family Violence consultation/					
engagement with key stakeholders					
Number of women participating in	number	1 500	2 706	2 270	1 826
funded programs, projects and events					
The lower 2017-18 target reflects reduced funding					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the					
year 2016-17, which took place in the first half of a the Victorian Gender Equality Strategy (VGES). The					
Percentage of women in new	per cent	50	nm	nm	nm
appointments to paid public boards	percent	50			
New performance measure for 2017-18, to reflect	the Premier's c	ommitment to we	omen appointed t	to public board	s.
Quality					-
Women and the Prevention of Family	per cent	100	100	100	100
Violence service agreements and	percent	100	100	100	100
contracts deliver agreed outcomes for					
the prevention of family violence and the					
social and economic participation of					
women					
Timeliness					
Timely delivery of policy analysis and	per cent	100	100	100	100
papers prepared					
Women and the Prevention of Family	per cent	100	100	100	100
Violence projects and programs which					
support the prevention of family violence					
and the social and economic participation					
of women are delivered on time					
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	32.2	18.0	20.9	12.3
The 2017-18 target is higher than the 2016-17 tar	get and expecte	ed outcome becau	ise of new fundin	g. The 2016-12	7 expected
outcome is lower than the 2016-17 target because	e of deferral of p	programs betwee	n financial years.		

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE AND REGULATION

Ministerial portfolios

The Department supports the ministerial portfolios of the Attorney-General, Police, Corrections, Youth Justice, Emergency Services, Gaming and Liquor Regulation, Racing and Consumer Affairs.

Departmental mission statement

The Department of Justice and Regulation provides policy and organisational management focus for the vision of a safe, just, innovative and thriving Victoria, where the rule of law is upheld and rights and responsibilities are respected.

Departmental objectives

Ensuring community safety through policing, law enforcement and prevention activities

This objective aims to provide a safe and secure environment for the Victorian community. This objective delivers on activities relating to the provision of effective police and law enforcement services that aim to prevent, detect, investigate and prosecute crime, and promote safer road user behaviour. It focuses on activities which enable Victorians to undertake their lawful pursuits confidently, safely and without fear of crime.

Effective management of prisoners and offenders and provision of opportunities for rehabilitation and reparation

This objective relates to the management of the State's adult correctional system. The overarching purpose of the correctional system is to promote community safety through community-based and custodial supervision of prisoners and offenders through effective management and services to provide opportunities for rehabilitation and reparation.

Effective supervision of young offenders through the provision of youth justice services promoting rehabilitation¹

This objective aims to promote opportunities for rehabilitation for young people in the youth justice system and contribute to the reduction of crime in the community by providing a range of services including the provision of diversion services, advice to courts, offending related programs, community based and custodial supervision.

¹ New objective for the Department to reflect inclusion of the Youth Justice portfolio as a result of machinery of government changes effective 3 April 2017.

A fair and accessible criminal justice system that supports a just society based on the rule of law²

This objective relates to the provision of Criminal Justice services that support legal processes and law reform. Services that support legal processes include legal assistance and education services, prosecution services, community mediation services, support for victims of crime, risk assessments for those working with or caring for children, infringement processing and enforcement activities and the delivery of independent, expert forensic medical services to the justice system.

Other services that contribute to this objective include legal policy advice to government, law reform, and sentencing advisory services.

A fair and accessible civil justice system that supports a just society with increased confidence and equality in the Victorian community³

This objective aims to support the Victorian community through the provision of services relating to: rights and equal opportunity; life-event registration and identity protection; and advocacy and guardianship for Victorians with a disability or mental illness.

Reduce the impact of, and consequences from, natural disasters and other emergencies on people, infrastructure, the economy and the environment

This objective aims to deliver a coordinated, all communities – all emergencies approach to emergency management, focusing on risk mitigation and active partnership with the Victorian community.

A fair market place for Victorian consumers and businesses with responsible and sustainable liquor, gambling and racing sectors

This objective relates to harm minimisation through the regulation of the gambling and liquor industries, as well as support and development of the racing sector. This objective promotes the empowerment of consumers and businesses to know their rights and responsibilities to promote a well-functioning market economy through regulation and support to consumers and businesses. There is a specific focus on the needs of vulnerable and disadvantaged consumers.

² The 2017-18 objective has been slightly amended for consistency across the Department's output statement and to distinguish between the criminal justice system and the civil justice system. The objective was previously 'A fair and accessible Victorian justice system that supports a just society based on the rule of law.'

³ The 2017-18 objective has been slightly amended for consistency across the department's output statement and to distinguish between the criminal justice system and the civil justice system. The objective was previously 'A just and supportive society with increased confidence and equality in the Victorian community'.

Changes to the output structure

The Department has made changes to its output structure for 2017-18 as shown in the table below:

2016-17 outputs	Reason	2017-18 outputs
na	Two outputs have been transferred from the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) to the Department of Justice and Regulation (DJR) as a result of machinery of government changes.	,

Source: Department of Justice and Regulation

Output summary by departmental objectives

The Department's outputs and funding are provided in the table below. Detailed descriptions of objectives, outputs, together with their key performance indicators are presented in subsequent tables.

				(\$ million)
	2016-17 budget	2016-17 revised	2017-18 budget	Variation ^(a) %
Ensuring community safety through policing, law enforcement and prevention activities				
Policing Services and Crime Prevention	2 728.8	2 819.4	3 037.0	11.3
Effective management of prisoners and offenders and provision of opportunities for rehabilitation and reparation				
Community Based Offender Supervision	202.4	201.5	262.2	29.6
Prisoner Supervision and Support	1 102.2	1089.0	1302.7	18.2
Effective supervision of young offenders through the provision of youth justice services promoting rehabilitation				
Youth Justice Community-Based Services	71.6	52.6	61.9	(13.5)
Youth Justice Custodial Services	89.8	100.7	103.4	15.2
A fair and accessible criminal justice system that supports a just society based on the rule of law				
Public Prosecutions and Legal Assistance	224.6	226.3	249.9	11.2
Infringements and Warrants	234.4	217.1	217.6	(7.2)
Criminal Law Support and Reform ^(b)	62.4	67.7	66.2	6.1
Victims and Community Support Services ^(b)	55.2	49.9	55.1	(0.2)
A fair and accessible civil justice system that supports a just society with increased confidence and equality in the Victorian community				
Protection of Personal Identity and Individual/Community Rights	48.4	57.5	48.4	
Dispute Resolution and Civil Justice Support Services	43.8	47.0	48.9	11.6

Total	6 204.4	6 381.7	6 860.7	10.6
Regulation of the Victorian Consumer Marketplace	126.3	133.7	139.7	10.6
Gambling, Liquor and Racing	119.4	133.5	128.8	7.8
A fair market place for Victorian consumers and businesses with responsible and sustainable liquor, gambling and racing sectors				
Emergency Management Capability	1 095.0	1 185.7	1 138.7	4.0
Reduce the impact of, and consequences from, natural disasters and other emergencies on people, infrastructure, the economy and the environment				
	2016-17 budget	2016-17 revised	2017-18 budget	Variation ^(a) %

Source: Department of Justice and Regulation

Note:

(a) Variation between 2016-17 budget and 2017-18 budget.

(b) As part of the 2016-17 output restructure, the output cost for the Victorian Institute of Forensic Medicine was incorrectly classified into the Victims and Community Support Service output and should have been included in the output cost for the Criminal Law Support and Reform output. The 2016-17 published targets have been restated to reflect the correct output costs.

Amounts available

The following tables detail the amounts available to the Department from Parliamentary authority and income generated through transactions.

Table 2.10 outlines the Department's income from transactions and Table 2.11 summarises the sources of Parliamentary authority available to the Department to fund the provision of outputs, additions to the net asset base and payments made on behalf of the State.

Table 2.10: Income from transactions

	2015-16	2016-17	2016-17	2017-18
	actual	budget	revised	budget ^(a)
Output appropriations	5 507.4	5 874.6	6 082.1	6 684.1
Special appropriations	3.9	1.4	2.0	1.4
Interest	56.3	60.3	51.4	49.1
Sales of goods and services	21.9	20.2	17.8	18.4
Grants	54.1	71.4	77.7	72.8
Fair value of assets and services received free of charge or for nominal consideration	0.8			
Other income	51.0	25.2	33.9	27.8
Total income from transactions	5 695.4	6 053.2	6 264.9	6 853.6

Source: Department of Justice and Regulation

Note:

(a) Includes an estimated \$6.3 million of non-public account contributions in 2017-18.

(\$ million)

Table 2.11: Parliamentary authority for resources

(\$ million)

	2016-17	2016-17	2017-18
	budget	revised	budget
Annual appropriations	5 963.0	5 834.2	7 136.7
Provision of outputs ^(a)	5 584.1	5 706.3	6 385.2
Additions to the net asset base	324.4	91.9	715.5
Payments made on behalf of the State	54.5	36.0	36.0
Receipts credited to appropriations	218.7	231.7	219.2
Unapplied previous years appropriation	163.0	306.1	150.6
Provision of outputs	72.4	144.7	80.2
Additions to the net asset base	90.6	161.4	70.3
Payments made on behalf of the State			
Accumulated surplus – previously applied appropriation		4.0	
Gross annual appropriation	6 344.7	6 376.0	7 506.5
Special appropriations	11.9	12.5	12.3
Trust funds ^(b)	182.6	184.0	171.4
Residential Tenancy Fund ^(c)	29.8	31.8	34.3
Victorian Property Fund ^(d)	51.4	46.7	36.0
Victorian Responsible Gambling Trust ^(e)	36.5	36.5	37.5
Other	65.0	69.0	63.6
Total parliamentary authority	6 539.2	6 572.4	7 690.2

Source: Department of Justice and Regulation

Notes:

(a) Includes appropriation relating to the Victorian Law Reform Commission pursuant to Section 17(b) of the Victorian Law Reform Commission Act 2000.

(b) The 2016-17 budget figure has been restated due to a change in methodology to better reflect the nature of trust fund income.

(c) The purpose of this trust primarily relates to holding Victorian residential tenancy bonds, including those on rented premises, long-term caravans, rooming houses and sites under site agreements.

(d) The purpose of this trust primarily relates to holding funds from license fees and fines paid by estate agents and can be used for various property-related purposes.

(e) The purpose of this trust primarily relates to programs to reduce the prevalence of problem gambling and to foster responsible gambling.

Departmental performance statement

Objective 1: Ensuring community safety through policing, law enforcement and prevention activities

This objective aims to provide a safe and secure environment for the Victorian community. This objective delivers on activities relating to the provision of effective police and law enforcement services that aim to prevent, detect, investigate and prosecute crime, and promote safer road user behaviour. It focuses on activities that enable Victorians to undertake their lawful pursuits confidently, safely and without fear of crime.

The departmental objective indicators are:

- community safety during the day and at night;
- crime statistics; and
- road fatalities and injuries.

Outputs

Policing and Crime Prevention

(2017-18: \$3 037.0 million)

Victoria Police strives to reduce violence and crime through law enforcement, judicial support, community assistance, guidance and leadership.

The output reflects the Government's focus on reducing the overall incidence and fear of crime and enhancing the safety of individuals and families.

The Community Crime Prevention Program supports local communities in preventing crime as well as addressing local crime issues.

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Quantity					
Community calls for assistance to which a	number	1 036 000	1 005 000	1 009 700	906 916
Victoria Police response is dispatched					
The higher 2017-18 target reflects analysis indicated	ting it is likely th	nat call volume w	ill continue to inc	rease.	
Contravention of family violence	number	≥650	nm	nm	nm
intervention order (FVIO) offences per					
100 000 population					
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect assistance to victims.	the Governmer	t's priority in res	ponding to family	violence and pr	oviding
Crimes against property – excluding	number	≤5 100	5 359	≤4 300	5 130
family violence related crime					
(rate per 100 000 population)					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the property crime including theft of motor vehicles, t reporting of deception crimes also contributed to	heft from moto	r vehicles and no	n-aggravated bu		
The higher 2017-18 target reflects growth in repo				ower than the 20	016-17
expected outcome however, reflecting anticipated		,			

	linit of	2017 10	2016-17	2016 17	2015 10
Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Crimes against property –	number	≥150	148.1	≥140	146.7
family violence related crime					
(rate per 100 000 population)					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the related to family violence, reflecting increased co The higher 2017-18 target reflects expectations t	mmunity aware	ness of family viol	lence.		nage crime
Crimes against the person –	number	≤660	679	≤650	677
excluding family violence related crime (rate per 100 000 population)					
The higher 2017-18 target reflects expectations to continue to increase, as per recent crime statistic anticipated benefits from the Community Safety S	s. The target is lo	ower than the 201			
Crimes against the person –	number	≥590	585	≥580	587.5
family violence related crime					
(rate per 100 000 population)					
The higher 2017-18 target reflects expectations to with increased community awareness of family v		family violence re	elated crime will	continue to incr	ease, in line
Number of alcohol screening tests conducted by booze and drug buses	number	1 100 000	1 100 000	1 100 000	1 076 061
Number of hours of family violence	number	1 700	nm	nm	nm
related education provided to police					
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect assistance to victims. This target reflects the num family violence education components incorporat	ber of hours of f	amily violence sp	ecific education	'	
Number of prohibited drug screening	number	100 000	100 000	100 000	100 182
tests conducted by booze and drug buses					
and highway patrol units					
Police record checks conducted to	number	703 000	716 000	716 000	691 029
contribute to community safety					
The lower 2017-18 target reflects a decrease in p	olice record cheo	cks expected to be	e conducted by V	lictoria Police.	
Total reported road fatalities in vehicle	number	≤225	278	<250	nm
collisions					
In 2016-17 the expected outcome is higher than t fatalities. This measure is impacted by external fo The lower 2017-18 target reflects the Victorian G	actors, such as in	creasing populati	ion and driver ch	oices.	
Total persons reported injured in vehicle	number	<18 700	18 527	<18 700	nm
collisions					
Quality					
Community Crime Prevention grant	per cent	100	100	100	100
payments properly acquitted					
Perceptions of safety – walking locally at	per cent	50	nm	nm	nm
night					
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect	the Governmen	t's priority in imp	roving communi	ty safety.	
Proportion of community satisfied with	per cent	77	75.1	77	74.8
policing services (general satisfaction)					
Proportion of drivers tested who comply		99.5	99.8		99.8

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Proportion of drivers tested by road safety cameras who comply with posted speed limits	per cent	99.5	99.5	99.5	99.9
Proportion of drivers tested who return clear result for prohibited drugs	per cent	93	91.0	93	90.9
Proportion of successful prosecution outcomes	per cent	92	92	92	93
Proportion of the community who have confidence in police (an integrity indicator)	per cent	87	85.4	87	85.4
Timeliness					
Proportion of crimes against the person resolved within 30 days	per cent	≥42	43	≥42	44.4
Proportion of property crime resolved within 30 days	per cent	≥22	22	≥22	25.1
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	3 037.0	2 819.4	2 728.8	2 620.1
The higher 2017-18 target reflects incremental in initiatives including custody officers to manage p initiative; and additional funding provided for the	risoners in police	cells, additional			

Objective 2: Effective management of prisoners and offenders and provision of opportunities for rehabilitation and reparation

This objective relates to the management of the State's adult correctional system. The overarching purpose of the correctional system is to promote community safety through community-based and custodial supervision of prisoners and offenders through effective management and services to provide opportunities for rehabilitation and reparation.

The departmental objective indicators are:

- escapes from corrective facilities;
- percentage of community corrections orders completed;
- rate of prisoner return to prison within two years; and
- rate of offender return to corrective services within two years.

Outputs

Prisoner Supervision and Support

(2017-18: \$1 302.7 million)

This output relates to the safe, secure and humane containment of prisoners as well as the delivery of programs and effective case management to engage prisoners in positive behavioural change.

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Quantity					
Average daily prison utilisation rate of	per cent	90-95	93.6	90–95	91
total prison capacity					
Total annual daily average number of	number	7 165–	6 791	6 600	6 320
prisoners		7 590			
The 2017-18 target has been amended to reflec range reflecting the accepted utilisation rate for		jected capacity o	f the prison syster	n over this perio	od, with the
Quality					
Proportion of benchmark measures in prison services agreement achieved	per cent	90	82.2	90	84.9
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than th remand population, with significant prisoner tur	5	,	on the prison syst	em from an inc	reased
Proportion of eligible prisoners in employment	per cent	89	88.4	89	87.5
Rate of prisoner participation in education	per cent	36	34.9	36	34.1
Rate of return to prison within two years	per cent	41	42.9	41	42.8
Timeliness					
Assessment of prisoners 'at risk' undertaken within two hours	per cent	100	99.8	100	nm

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	1 302.7	1 089.0	1 102.2	1 000.6
The higher 2017-18 target reflects the c	ommencement of the new	Ravenhall correc	ctional centre wh	ich is scheduled	to come

online in 2017-18 target reflects the commencement of the new Ravennai Correctional centre which is scheduled to come online in 2017-18. Additionally, new funding announced in the 2017-18 Budget for essential services to manage growth in prisons contributes to the higher target.

Community Based Offender Supervision

(2017-18: \$262.2 million)

This output relates to the effective supervision of offenders in the community, including ensuring compliance with orders of the court and Adult Parole Board, engagement in programs to reduce reoffending and reparation to the community.

			2016-17		
Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Quantity	measure	turget	outcome	target	uctuur
Average daily offenders with reparation orders	number	2 900	2 763	2 900	2 725
Average daily offenders with supervised court orders	number	11 450	10 423	11 450	9 753
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the imposed at court, following significant growth du					eing
Average daily prisoners on parole	number	1 000	908	1 000	1 007
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the practice and fewer parole eligible sentences bein		due to sentencing	g reforms resultin	g in a change in	sentencing
Community-work hours performed	number	850 000	782 000	850 000	806 700
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the projected number of offenders with reparation a opportunities.	-			-	
Quality					
Rate of return to corrective services within two years of discharge from a community corrections order	per cent	33	33.4	28	28.9
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the sentences. The 2017-18 target has been increase		t due to the ongo	ing impact of the	abolition of sus	pended
Successful completion of parole orders	per cent	70	74.8	60	54.9
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the system. The 2017-18 target has been increased t				the operation o	f the parole
Successful completion of reparation orders	per cent	73	70	73	72.1
Successful completion of supervised court orders	per cent	64	60	62	61.7
The higher-2017-18 target reflects the impact of	increased invest	ment in commun	ity corrections.		
Timeliness					
Offenders with a treatment or rehabilitation program condition who have been appropriately referred to a program within set timelines	per cent	95	91.9	95	95.5
Successful completion of violence related programs for family violence offenders in community corrections	per cent	80	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect assistance to victims. This performance measure offences who have participated in programs targ other Corrections Victoria clinical violence interve	counts commun leting violent off	ity based offende	ers with current or	historical famil	y violence
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	262.2	201.5	202.4	159.2
The higher 2017-18 target reflects new funding a and incremental funding from previous budgets i		•	, ,		

Objective 3: Effective supervision of young offenders through the provision of youth justice services promoting rehabilitation^(a)

This objective aims to promote opportunities for rehabilitation for young people in the youth justice system and contribute to the reduction of crime in the community by providing a range of services including diversion services, advice to courts, offence related programs, community-based and custodial supervision.

The departmental objective indicators are:

- percentage of community based orders successfully completed; and
- clients participating in community reintegration activities.

Note:

(a) New objective for the Department to reflect inclusion of the Youth Justice portfolio as a result of machinery of government changes effective 3 April 2017.

Outputs

Youth Justice Community-Based Services

(2017-18: \$61.9 million)

This output provides community statutory supervision and support to young people subject to community-based dispositions in order to divert young people from the youth justice system and minimise the likelihood of further offending.

	Unit of	2017 10	2016-17	2016 17	2015 10
Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Quantity		<u></u>			
Average daily number of clients under community-based supervision	number	1 200	920	1 625	923
The lower 2017-18 target reflects the continued r The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the based supervision.			, ,		mmunity-
Proportion of youth justice clients under community-based supervision	per cent	89	89	89	85
Quality					
Community-based orders completed successfully	per cent	85	85	85	90
Timeliness					
Young people on supervised orders who have a client assessment and plan completed within six weeks of the commencement of the order	per cent	95	95	95	97
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	61.9	52.6	71.6	67.4
The lower 2017-18 target reflects functions and a transfer to the Department as per the Machinery		,		th and Human :	Services on
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the Department of Health and Human Services on tro				. ,	

effective 3 April 2017.

Youth Justice Custodial Services

(2017-18: \$103.4 million)

This output provides supervision and rehabilitation, through the provision of case management, health and education services and the establishment of structured community supports, to assist young people address offending behaviour, develop nonoffending lifestyles and support reintegration of young people into the community on their exit from custody.

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Quantity					
Annual daily average number	number	15-25	20	15-25	17.9
of young people in custody:					
male (under 15 years) and female					
Annual daily average number of young	number	140-190	150	140-190	146.5
people in custody: males (15 years plus)					
Average daily custodial centre utilisation	per cent	90-95	76	90-95	64
rate: males (15 years plus)					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the	2016-17 target	due to lower nur	nbers of young pe	ople detained ii	n youth
justice centres, which is a positive result.		10.05		40.65	
Average daily custodial centre utilisation rate: males (under 15 years) and female	per cent	40-65	66	40-65	60
· · · · ·					
Quality					
Clients participating in community	per cent	65	65	65	59
re-integration activities					
The 2015-16 actual figure is lower than the targe community re-integration activity.	t due to fewer y	oung people in y	outh justice centre	es eligible to par	ticipate in a
Timeliness					
Young people on custodial orders who	per cent	95	95	95	98
have a client assessment and plan					
completed within six weeks of the					
commencement of the order					
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	103.4	100.7	89.8	85.7
The higher 2017-18 target reflects additional fun- Justice Precincts.	ding for Strengti	hening Workforc	e Response and St	rengthening of	Youth
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the Workforce Response in Youth Justice Precincts an	5			, ,	5

Objective 4: A fair and accessible criminal justice system that supports a just society based on the rule of law^(a)

This objective relates to the provision of Criminal Justice services that support legal processes and law reform. Services that support legal processes include legal assistance and education services, prosecution services, community mediation services, support for victims of crime, risk assessments for those working with or caring for children, infringement processing and enforcement activities and the delivery of independent, expert forensic medical services to the justice system.

Other services that contribute to this objective include legal policy advice to government, law reform, and sentencing advisory services.

The departmental objective indicators are:

- prosecutions completed and returning guilty outcomes (percentage of total case finalisations);
- legal advice and assistance provided;
- infringement notices processed;
- clinical forensic medical services provided;
- law reform projects completed;
- number of Sentencing Advisory Council publications;
- services provided to victims of crime against the person; and
- Working with Children Checks processed (negative notices issued within three days of receiving decision).

Note:

⁽a) The 2017-18 objective has been slightly amended for consistency across the Department's output statement and to distinguish between the criminal justice system and the civil justice system. The objective was previously 'A fair and accessible Victorian justice system that supports a just society based on the rule of law.'

Outputs

Public Prosecutions and Legal Assistance

(2017-18: \$249.9 million)

This output delivers activities relating to Victoria's public prosecutions service and Victoria Legal Aid (VLA).

The Office of Public Prosecutions (OPP) provides an independent, effective and efficient prosecutions service on behalf of the Director of Public Prosecutions (DPP). In addition to the prosecution of serious crimes, the OPP also provides professional support to prosecution witnesses and victims of crime involved in its cases.

VLA is an independent statutory authority that provides a range of legal services for both Victorian and Commonwealth law matters. These services include legal representation, legal advice and advocacy and education services.

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Quantity					
Judicial Officer sitting days requiring	number	10 500-	10 500	9 500-	11 464
prosecutors (OPP)		12 500		10 500	
The higher 2017-18 Target reflects new funding f prosecution service initiative announced in the 20		Public Prosecutior	ns – Meeting the	challenge of a n	nodern
Number of briefs prepared and hearings	number	69 500-	73 500	68 500-	72 610
attended (OPP)		75 500		73 500	
The higher 2017-18 Target reflects new funding f prosecution service initiative announced in the 20		Public Prosecutior	ns – Meeting the	challenge of a n	nodern
Number of victim and witness	number	11 000-	10 750	9 500-	10 620
consultations (OPP)		13 000		10 500	
The higher 2017-18 Target reflects new funding f prosecution service initiative announced in the 20		Public Prosecutior	ns – Meeting the	challenge of a n	nodern
Community legal education and	number	123 500 -	138 000	135 000 -	126 284
information services (VLA) – excluding		128 500		140 000	
family violence related services					
This performance measure has been renamed in responding to family violence and providing assis The 2016-17 expected outcome includes family vi 2017-18, family violence related community lega performance measure 'Community legal educatic the Government's priority in responding to family incidents. The lower 2017-18 target reflects this c	tance to those in folence related c l education and on and informati v violence and pr change.	nvolved in family ommunity legal e information servi ion services (VLA) oviding assistanc	violence related i education and inf ices will be report — family violence	incidents. formation service red separately un related service	s. From nder the new s' to reflect
Community legal education and information services (VLA) – family violence related services	number	11 500	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect assistance to those involved in family violence rel community legal education and information serve	ated incidents. 1	The new performa	ance measure ref		
Duty lawyer services – excluding family	number	57 400 -	89 700	83 000-	87 162
violence related services (VLA)		59 400		85 000	
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the summary crime, family violence and parenting di The 2016-17 expected outcome includes family vi duty lawyer services will be reported separately u reflect the Government's priority in responding to related incidents. The lower 2017-18 target reflect	sputes. iolence related a inder the new pe family violence	luty lawyer servic erformance meas	es. From 2017-18 Fure 'Family viole	8, family violence nce legal service	e related s (VLA)' to

Performance measures	linit of	2017 10	2016-17	2016 17	2015 10
	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-10 actua
Grants of legal assistance provided by VLA – excluding family violence related services	number	31 800	42 600	35 000	38 34
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than to law matters (appellate and indictable crime), an The 2016-17 expected outcome includes family grants of assistance will be reported separately reflect the Government's priority in responding related incidents. The lower 2017-18 target refle	nd parenting dispu violence related gi under the new pei to family violence	tes. rants of assistance rformance measu	e. From 2017-18, re 'Family violenc	family violence e legal services	related (VLA)' to
Legal advice and minor assistance for clients (VLA) – excluding family violence related services (VLA)	number	38 800	41 000	42 000	40 77
The 2016-17 expected outcome includes family family violence related legal advice and minor a measure 'Family violence legal services (VLA)' to providing assistance to those involved in family	ssistance for client reflect the Gover	ts will be reported nment's priority ir	separately unde responding to fo	r the new perfo amily violence a	rmance nd
Family violence legal services (VLA)		32 000	nm	nm	nr
(iii) family violence related services of legal adv telephone calls, oral or written negotiation			the perusal of do	ncuments writte	
Number of unique clients who accessed	number	84 000	before Courts or 89 000		
Number of unique clients who accessed one or more of VLA's legal services <i>The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than to</i> <i>assistance.</i>		84 000	89 000	tribunals. 84 000	86 84
one or more of VLA's legal services The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the		84 000	89 000	tribunals. 84 000	86 84
one or more of VLA's legal services The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than to assistance.		84 000	89 000	tribunals. 84 000	86 84 ants of lego
one or more of VLA's legal services The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the assistance. Quality Guilty outcomes (guilty pleas and trial convictions) as a percentage of case	he 2016-17 target	84 000 due to the increas	89 000 se in duty lawyer	tribunals. 84 000 services and gro	86 84 ants of lega
one or more of VLA's legal services The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than to assistance. Quality Guilty outcomes (guilty pleas and trial convictions) as a percentage of case completions (OPP)	he 2016-17 target	84 000 due to the increas	89 000 se in duty lawyer	tribunals. 84 000 services and gro	86 84 ants of lega 89.
one or more of VLA's legal services The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than to assistance. Quality Guilty outcomes (guilty pleas and trial convictions) as a percentage of case completions (OPP) Timeliness Proportion of trials listed which did not proceed to adjournment on application	he 2016-17 target per cent	84 000 due to the increas 87	89 000 se in duty lawyer 90	r tribunals. 84 000 services and gro 86	86 84
one or more of VLA's legal services The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the assistance. Quality Guilty outcomes (guilty pleas and trial convictions) as a percentage of case completions (OPP) Timeliness Proportion of trials listed which did not proceed to adjournment on application of the Crown (OPP) Applications for legal aid processed	he 2016-17 target per cent per cent	84 000 due to the increas 87 99	89 000 se in duty lawyer 90 99	services and gro 84 000 services and gro 86 99	86 84 ants of lega 89. 98.

Infringements and Warrants

This output reports on activities relating to the management of traffic and other infringement notices, the confiscation of assets obtained through criminal activity and enforcement action by the Office of the Sheriff.

These activities serve as an administrative method for dealing with minor criminal offences, where a person alleged to have committed an offence has the option of paying a fixed penalty rather than going to court. The fixed penalty is intended to serve as a deterrent.

			2016-17				
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16		
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual		
Quantity							
Infringement notices processed	number	2.9-3.1	3.1	2.9–3.1	3.1		
	(million)						
Warrants actioned	number	995 000	995 000	995 000	1 001 880		
Quality							
Prosecutable images	per cent	93	93	93	96.7		
Timeliness							
Clearance of infringements within 180	per cent	75	75	75	75.1		
days							
Confiscated assets sold or destroyed	per cent	85	85	85	84.1		
within 90 days							
Cost							
Total output cost	\$ million	217.6	217.1	234.4	205.1		
The lower 2017-18 target is due to a lower estimated carryover of funds from 2016-17 into 2017-18 compared to the previous year and the effect of efficiencies allocated to the output in 2017-18.							
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 2016-17 target to reflect a lower final carryover of funding from 2015-16 into 2016-17 and efficiencies allocated to the output in 2016-17.							

Criminal Law Support and Reform

(2017-18: \$66.2 million)

This output delivers a broad range of services such as the provision of law reform and sentencing advisory information, access to justice and support services for the Victorian community, including forensic medical and scientific services and medico-legal advice.

	Unit of	2017-18	2016-17 expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Quantity					
Clinical forensic medical services by the	number	2 100-	2 500	2 100-	2 483
Victorian Institute of Forensic Medicine (VIFM)		2 500		2 500	
Medico-legal death investigations (VIFM)	number	5 800-	6 200	5 800-	6 151
		6 200		6 200	
Provision of expert forensic medical and scientific evidence in court (VIFM)	number	150–250	250	150–250	174
Community education and consultation sessions conducted by Victorian Law Reform Commission (VLRC)	number	100	100	100	174
Law reform projects conducted by VLRC	number	3	3	3	4
Number of Sentencing Advisory Council (SAC) publications	number	6	6	6	nm
Quality					
Audited medico-legal death investigation reports with no significant diagnostic errors (VIFM)	per cent	95	95	95	99
Teachers and students who are satisfied with education programs delivered by VLRC	per cent	85	85	85	88
Timeliness					
Medical and scientific investigations on the body of the deceased completed within two days (VIFM)	per cent	75-85	85	75–85	79
Medico-legal death investigation reports issued within agreed period (VIFM)	per cent	60-70	70	60–70	67.4
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	66.2	67.7	62.4	58.3
The higher 2017-18 target reflects new funding an Centres, Legal Responses to Family Violence and G System.					

As part of the 2016-17 output restructure, the output cost for the Victorian Institute of Forensic Medicine was incorrectly classified into the Victims and Community Support Service output and should have been included in the output cost for the Criminal Law Support and Reform output. The 2016-17 published target has been restated to reflect the correct output cost. The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 2016-17 target mainly due to additional funding for the implementation of family violence initiatives.

Victims and Community Support Services

(2017-18: \$55.1 million)

This output delivers programs that focus on victims and community support services.

The Working with Children Check Unit, through the administration of the *Working with Children Act 2005*, aims to reduce the incidence of sexual and physical offences against children by only allowing Victorian adults who pass the working with children check to work with children.

The Victims Support Agency (VSA) is responsible for coordinating a whole of government approach to services for victims of crime against the person and for representing the voice of victims within the justice system. It provides practical assistance to help victims recover from the effects of crime and is pivotal in linking the service system.

Consistent with Victoria's commitment to the Aboriginal Justice Agreement, other initiatives undertaken focus on crime prevention and reducing re-offending of Koories in the criminal justice system.

	Unit of	2017-18	2016-17 expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Quantity					
Victims receiving a service from the Victims of Crime Helpline, Victims	number	17 600	30 000	17 600	23 399
Register, Youth Justice Group Conferencing and Victims Support (VSA)					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the Family Violence referrals, VPeR e-referrals from po	5	5		5 5	ds in Male
Victims receiving a service from the	number	12 400	12 400	12 400	11 022
Victims Assistance Program (VSA)					
Diversion initiatives established to support the Koorie community	number	35	35	35	35
Number of Working with Children Checks	number	200-250	304	200-250	233
processed	(000)	200 200		200 200	200
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the which commenced on 1 January 2017.	2016-17 target	t due to the intro	duction of Child S	afe Standards (F	Phase 2),
Quality					
Working with Children Checks:	per cent	98	98	98	100
Assessment issued within three days of					
receiving CrimTrac clear notification					
Working with Children Checks: Negative notices issued within three days of	per cent	100	100	100	100
receiving the delegate's decision					

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	55.1	49.9	55.2	55.1

The lower 2017-18 target reflects additional funding provided in the 2015-16 Budget for Working with Children Checks ceasing, however this is being offset with new funding announced in 2017-18 for Family violence perpetrator interventions in the justice system, Culturally appropriate family violence legal services for the Koori community and Delivering on the Royal Commission into Family Violence recommendations on funding reform as well as other Whole of Government Family Violence package initiatives.

As part of the 2016-17 output restructure, the output cost for the Victorian Institute of Forensic Medicine was incorrectly classified into the Victims and Community Support Service output and should have been included in the output cost for the Criminal Law Support and Reform output. The 2016-17 published target has been restated to reflect the correct output cost.

The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 2016-17 target reflecting an estimated carryover of funds from 2016-17 into 2017-18 to align with the expected timing of community grant programs supporting the Victorian Aboriginal Justice Agreement and for family violence initiatives in the Victim Support Agency.

Objective 5: A fair and accessible civil justice system that supports a just society with increased confidence and equality in the Victorian community^(a)

This objective aims to support the Victorian community through the provision of services relating to: rights and equal opportunity; life-event registration and identity protection; and advocacy and guardianship for Victorians with a disability or mental illness.

The departmental objective indicators are:

- complaint files received and handled by the Victorian Equal Opportunity and Human Rights Commission (VEOHRC);
- people assisted through Public Advocate advice and education activities;
- births, deaths and marriages registration transaction accuracy rate; and
- dispute resolution services provided in the Dispute Settlement Centre of Victoria (DSCV).

Note:

Outputs

Protection of Personal Identity and Individual/Community Rights (2017-18: \$48.4 million)

This output protects personal identity through the registration of significant life events by the Victorian Registry of Births, Deaths and Marriages (BDM). It also protects individual and community rights through the work of the Victorian Equal Opportunity and Human Rights Commission (VEOHRC), the Office of the Public Advocate (OPA) and the Native Title Unit (NTU).

The VEOHRC provides education and capacity building, and assists parties to resolve disputes. The OPA protects the rights, interests and dignity of people with disabilities and mental illness. The NTU seeks to increase the economic, social and cultural development of traditional owner communities by negotiating comprehensive settlements of native title claims.

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Quantity					
Complaint files received and handled	number	900 -	700	1 050-	865
by VEOHRC		1 050		1 200	
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than t The lower 2017-18 target reflects the decrease	5		in the number o	f complaints rec	eived.
Education and consultancy sessions delivered by VEOHRC	number	350	350	450–500	355
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than t services, to offer a more comprehensive whole systemically.					

The lower 2017-18 target reflects the redesigned strategy of fewer sessions that will provide better outcomes.

⁽a) The 2017-18 objective has been slightly amended for consistency across the Department's output statement and to distinguish between the criminal justice system and the civil justice system. The objective was previously 'A just and supportive society with increased confidence and equality in the Victorian community.'

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Information and advice provided by VEOHRC	number	8 000 – 8 500	8 100	9 000	8 171
This performance measure renames the 2016- information and advice.' The new measure rep increased clarity. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than t The lower 2017-18 target reflects the decrease nature of this performance measure.	ports on the same of the 2016-17 target	activity as the prev due to a decrease	ious measure, bu	t has been rend	imed for
Settlement rate of conciliation	per cent	65	nm	nm	nm
(VEOHRC) This performance measure replaces the 2016- resolution (VEOHRC).' The new measure is the reasons outside the control of VEOHRC. The ne rates.	same as the previ	ous measure excep	ot for matters wh	ere parties with	draw for
Groups in negotiation towards resolution of Native Title claims (NTU)	number	2	2	2	2
Information and advice provided by OPA	number	12 650 – 14 850	11 194	nm	nm
recorded in the case management system, rat may not progress to advice provision. The 2017-18 target reflects an anticipated inco Decisions Act 2016, due to commence on 12 M driven nature of this performance measure.	rease in advice pro	vision arising from	the Medical Tre	atment Planning	gand
Community education sessions (OPA)	number	100	122	nm	nm
This performance measure is one of two propo Public Advocate advice and education activitie of community education sessions delivered. The 2017-18 target reflects OPA's new strateg community education sessions to be delivered	s (OPA)' to provide	e increased transpo	arency. This new	measure counts	the number
Public Advocate auspiced volunteer	number	7 743 –	7 709	7 500	6 140
interventions for people with a disability (OPA)		8 059			
This performance measure consists of two volu program and the Independent Third Person pr The higher 2017-18 target reflects the rising du adjusted to a range to reflect the demand driv	ogram. emand for Indeper	ndent Third Person	interviews. The 2		
New guardianship and investigation orders of VCAT actioned by OPA	number	1 039 – 1 183	1 161	nm	nm
This performance measure is one of two propo people with a disability' to provide greater clau number of days a guardianship or investigatio officer by the Public Advocate (OPA).' The 2017-18 target has been set to a range to	rity and consistenc n order of VCAT is	y. It aligns with the held on a wait list	e renamed timeli prior to being all	ness measure 'A ocated to a dele	verage
Advocacy matters opened by OPA	number	301 - 342	314	nm	nm
This performance measure is one of two propo people with a disability' to provide greater clai Disability Act 2006 and the Severe Substance I arise from direct approach to OPA by an indivi The 2017-18 target has been set to a range to	rity and consistenc Dependence Treat dual or support se	y. Advocacy matte ment Act 2010 the rvice.	ers includes those It have been refe	matters under a red to OPA by N	the

2046 47

			2016-17		
Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Quality		tur g tu		un goo	
Births, Deaths and Marriages	per cent	99	99	99	99.9
registration transaction accuracy rate					
(BDM)					
Customer satisfaction rating:	per cent	85	80	85	87
Education and consultancy sessions					
delivered by VEOHRC	7	annuna (Custom	au antiafratian unti	nau Cananaunitu	
This performance measure renames the 2016-1 education/training programs, services and ever previous measure however has been amended j The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than th compulsory training sessions. As this is not a sys return to 85 per cent in 2017-18 and the target	nts delivered by VI for increased clar ne 2016-17 target stemic or ongoing	EOHRC.' The new ity and consisten due to higher th issue, it is expec	r measure reports of cy. an expected resource	on the same act	ising from
Customer satisfaction rating:	per cent	85	85	85	87
Conciliation delivered by VEOHRC					
This performance measure renames the 2016-1 services delivered by VEOHRC'. The new measu amended for increased clarity and consistency.					
Timeliness					
VEOHRC complaints finalised within six	per cent	85	80	85	80
months	2016 17	, . ,			
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than th this is not an ongoing issue and is expected to b	-	7-18, the 2017-1	8 target has been i	retained.	
Proportion of Native Title negotiations	per cent	100	100	100	100
progressed in accordance with the Department's annual work plan and					
timeframes monitored by the Federal					
Court (NTU)					
Complete applications for birth, death	per cent	95	97	95	95.3
and marriage certificates processed					
within five days of receipt (BDM)					
Average number of days a	number	45-49	44	30	31
guardianship or investigation order of					
VCAT is held on a wait list prior to					
being allocated to a delegated officer					
by the Public Advocate (OPA)					
This performance measure renames the 2016-1		-			
required by VCAT is held on a wait list prior to b performance measure reports on the same acti					
and consistency.	vity us the previot	is measure, now	ever it has been an	nended jor gret	iter clurity
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than t	he 2016-17 targe	t due to the rising	g complexity of gu	ardianship matt	ters and an
increase in demand for VCAT ordered interventi					, ,
The higher 2017-18 target reflects the rising con interventions. It has been amended to a range t					Al ordered
Cost	-,		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , . , . , . , . , . , . ,		
Total output cost	\$ million	48.4	57.5	48.4	53.1
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the	-	-			
to fund the payments approved by the Appeal C increased demand in the Registry of Births, Dea of Guardianship Program practices in the Office	Cost Board under ths and Marriage	the appeal Costs s, and additiona	Act 1998, addition I funding to implen	nal funding to m nent organisatio	eet
Source: Department of Justice and Regulation	.,		,		

Dispute Resolution and Civil Justice Support Services (2017-18: \$48.9 million)

This output provides dispute resolution and mediation services to members of the community through the Dispute Settlement Centre of Victoria (DSCV). DSCV's services cover neighbourhood disputes, workplace disputes and disputes within committees, clubs and incorporated associations.

The output also provides strategic advice and practical legal solutions to the Victorian Government and its statutory authorities through the Victorian Government Solicitor's Office (VGSO).

	Unit of	2017-18	2016-17 expected	2016-17	2015-16				
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual				
Quantity									
Dispute resolution services provided in the Dispute Settlement Centre of Victoria (DSCV)	number	21 500	23 650	21 500	23 038				
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 2016-17 target due to an increase in calls about fencing to an automated voice-message service. As these calls are transactional in nature and do not provide targeted dispute resolution advice, they will be removed from the count, as such the 2017-18 target has been retained.									
Quality									
Overall client satisfaction rate (DSCV)	per cent	85	85	85	84				
Settlement rate of mediation (DSCV)	per cent	85	85	85	86				
Client satisfaction with quality of legal advice provided (VGSO)	per cent	85	84.5	85	88				
Timeliness									
Intake and mediation services conducted within agreed timeframes by the DSCV	per cent	85	85	85	84				
Client satisfaction with timeliness of legal advice provided (VGSO)	per cent	85	81.6	85	84				
Cost									
Total output cost	\$ million	48.9	47.0	43.8	46.5				
The higher 2017-18 target and 2016-17 expected outcome over the 2016-17 target reflects the estimated additional costs from the Victorian Government Solicitor's Office associated with high demand for legal services and the funding transfer from other outputs to fund the Dispute Settlement Centre of Victoria for the implementation of Enhancing Awareness and Early Intervention in Aboriginal Communities initiative announced in the 2016-17 budget.									

Objective 6: Reduce the impact of, and consequences from, natural disasters and other emergencies on people, infrastructure, the economy and the environment

This objective aims to deliver a coordinated, all communities – all emergencies approach to emergency management, focusing on risk mitigation and active partnership with the Victorian community.

The departmental objective indicators are:

- value of domestic fire insurance claims; and
- rate of deaths from fire events.

Outputs

Emergency Management Capability

(2017-18: \$1 138.7 million)

This output provides for the management of emergencies by developing and adopting emergency prevention and mitigation strategies, providing fire suppression and road crash rescue services and supporting local government and communities in disaster mitigation and recovery.

Key components of this output reduce the level of risk to the community of emergencies occurring and the adverse effects of emergency events, such as death and injury rates.

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Quantity					
Permanent operational staff	number	3 385	3 259	3 203	3 100
The higher 2017-18 target reflects additional fur	nding.				
Permanent support staff	number	1 406	1 405	1 359	1 396
The higher 2017-18 target reflects the transition	of some staff fr	om fixed-term to	o permanent.		
Volunteers – Operational	number	43 000-	39 206	43 000-	39 381
		44 000		44 000	
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the roles.	e 2016-17 targe	t due to some vo	olunteers moving	from operationa	l to support
Volunteers – Support	number	18 000-	21 456	18 000-	21 877
		19 000		19 000	
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than th roles.	ne 2016-17 targe	et due to some v	olunteers moving	from operation	al to support
Quality					
Level 3 Incident Controller trained staff	number	96	163	129	153
and volunteers					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than th accreditation program, while also maintaining t. The lower 2017-18 target is a result of a change Level 3 Incident Controllers is expected to increa revised accreditation program.	he existing proce in the accredita	ess for determini tion program fo	ing Level 3 Incider r Level 3 Incident	nt Controller stat Controllers. The	us. number of

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actua
Road accident rescue accredited	number	131	130	130	130
brigades/units					
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 measure reports on the same activity as the prev accident rescue timeliness measure. The higher 2017-18 target reflects the number op	ious measure h	nowever has been	n renamed for co	nsistency with the	
Structural fire confined to room of origin	per cent	80	79	80	83.7
Multi agency joint procurements of systems or equipment	number	2	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017-18 to impro counts the number of procurements established agencies.					
īmeliness					
Emergency response times meeting benchmarks – emergency medical response	per cent	90	95	90	94.6
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the target.	e 2016-17 targ	et due to operatio	onal performance	e exceeding the b	aseline
Emergency response times meeting benchmarks – road accident rescue response	per cent	90	88.7	90	91.5
Emergency response times meeting benchmarks – structural fires	per cent	90	90	90	87.9
ost (
Total output cost	\$ million	1 138.7	1 185.7	1 095.0	1041.7
The higher 2017-18 target reflects the transfer og costs and additional funding announced in the 20 Support for Victoria State Emergency Services un	017-18 Budget				•
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than th output for the Country Fire Authority's depreciat Sustainability Grants Program.					

Objective 7: A fair market place for Victorian consumers and businesses with responsible and sustainable liquor, gambling and racing sectors

This objective relates to harm minimisation through the regulation of the gambling and liquor industries, as well as support and development of the racing sector. This objective promotes the empowerment of consumers and businesses to know their rights and responsibilities to promote a well-functioning market economy through regulation and support to consumers and businesses. There is a specific focus on the needs of vulnerable and disadvantaged consumers.

The departmental objective indicators are:

- percentage of licensed venues with a rating that is greater than three stars;
- responsive Gamblers Help services;
- wagering turnover on Victorian racing as a proportion of the national market; and
- increased access by consumers, tenants and businesses to digital information.

Outputs

Gambling, Liquor and Racing

(2017-18: \$128.8 million)

This output provides for monitoring and regulation of gambling and liquor activities in Victoria, including the operations of the Victorian Commission for Gambling and Liquor Regulation (VCGLR) and the Victorian Responsible Gambling Foundation (VRGF). It also provides leadership and strategic policy advice to the Minister for Liquor and Gaming Regulation and the Minister for Racing on the regulation of the gambling, liquor and racing industries, problem gambling and harm minimisation in relation to liquor and gambling, as well as development support for the racing industry.

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual			
Quantity								
Liquor and gambling approvals, licence, permit applications and variations determined by the VCGLR	number	46 000	46 000	46 000	46 400			
Liquor and gambling information and advice (VCGLR)	number	128 000	128 000	128 000	126 188			
Liquor and gambling inspections completed by the VCGLR – metropolitan	number	11 400	11 260	11 400	11 835			
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the initiatives, including the inspector training progra	0			,	ent			
Liquor and gambling inspections completed by the VCGLR – regional	number	1 600	1 440	1 600	2 512			
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 2016-17 target due to the short-term impact of quality enhancement initiatives, including the inspector training program and implementation of a new information system.								
Office of Liquor, Gaming and Racing briefings processed	number	700	700	700	700			

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Operations with co-regulators to identify licensees supplying alcohol to minors or persons who are intoxicated	number	20	30	20	35
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the aligns with recommendations made by the 2012 V enforcement strategy with Victoria Police is develo	/AGO report. Th				
Racing industry development initiatives delivered by the Victorian Racing Industry Fund	number	7	7	7	7
Racing matters processed (including licences, permits and grant applications) The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the processed.	number 2016-17 target	274 t due to the increc	292 Ised number of gi	274 rant application	299 Is being
Quality					
Liquor and gambling licensing client satisfaction (VCGLR)	per cent	80	80	80	95
The 2016-17 expected outcome was not available gathered from the VCGLR Client Satisfaction Surve					on is
Timeliness					
Calls to VCGLR client services answered within 60 seconds	per cent	80	70	96	84.4
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the team. The lower 2017-18 target better reflects the actua enquiries and service delivery expectations.	-	-			
Gamblers Help Service clients who receive a service within five days of referral (VRGF)	per cent	96	96	98	99.3
The lower 2017-18 target reflects high demand fo	r client services	, with an upward	trend impacting o	on client throug	hput.
Liquor and gambling approvals, licence, permit applications and variations completed within set time (VCGLR)	per cent	80	80	80	94.2
The 2016-17 expected outcome was not available number will align with the results of previous year		the budget papers	being published.	It is expected t	hat this
Cost					
Total output cost The higher 2017-18 target reflects a rephasing of j Improved Regulation of Victoria's Gambling and L	-	-		-	116.3 ding for
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the grandstand upgrade and the Gambling Licenses P	2016-17 targe	t due to additiona		-	ecourse

Regulation of the Victorian Consumer Marketplace

This output upholds a fair and competitive Victorian marketplace. As Victoria's consumer regulator, Consumer Affairs Victoria (CAV) works to ensure that the market works effectively by detecting and addressing non-compliance with the law. The output provides for informing consumers and businesses about their rights and responsibilities under the law, engaging with business to ensure compliance, registration and occupational licensing for individuals and organisations and regulation of the residential tenancies market. Domestic Building Dispute Resolution Victoria is an independent government agency that provides free services to help resolve domestic (residential) building disputes.

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Quantity					
Compliance activities, from compliance	number	9 600	9 911	9 600	9 774
assistance through to court actions					
Information and advice provided to	number	114 300	117 529	124 300	123 309
consumers, tenants and businesses:					
through other services including written					
correspondence, face to face and dispute assistance					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the correspondence due to user confidence in the my The lower 2017-18 target reflects this change, as Domestic Building Dispute Resolution Victoria.	CAV registration	, system generat	ing less requests	for support.	
Information and advice provided to consumers, tenants and businesses:	number	325 800	341 481	354 500	349 985
through telephone service					
The lower 2017-18 target reflects CAV's continue call centre.	d focus on direct	ting contacts to th	ne Consumer Affa	irs website rath	er than the
Transactions undertaken: Residential	number	469 000	453 355	457 000	447 934
Tenancies Bonds Authority (RTBA)					
transactions					
The higher 2017-18 target reflects historic growth					
Transactions undertaken: registration and licensing transactions	number	86 700	83 741	84 000	88 221
The higher 2017-18 target reflects the cyclical na of the rooming house operators licensing scheme		ion and licensing t	transactions, as w	vell as the imple	ementation
Victims of family violence assisted with	number	2 250	nm	nm	nm
financial counselling					
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect	the Governmen	t's priority in resp	oonding to family	violence.	
Dispute resolution services provided by Domestic Building Dispute Resolution Victoria	number	3 000	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect the establishment of Domestic Building Dispute R			ressing domestic	building dispute	es through
Quality					
Rate of compliance with key consumer laws	per cent	95	95	95	97.6
Timeliness					
Regulatory functions delivered within agreed timeframes	per cent	93	93	93	95.7

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	139.7	133.7	126.3	115.3
The higher 2017-18 target reflects new funding announced in the 2017-18 Budget including Family violence financial					

counselling and Reforms and Initiatives to support long-term leasing.

The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 2016-17 target due to funds being rephased in the Victorian Property Fund post the announcement of 2016-17 Budget to align with the expected timing of grant payments.

DEPARTMENT OF PREMIER AND CABINET

Ministerial portfolios

The Department supports the ministerial portfolios of the Premier, Deputy Premier, Special Minister of State, Aboriginal Affairs, Equality, Multicultural Affairs and Veterans.

Departmental mission statement

The Department of Premier and Cabinet's mission is to lead the Victorian Public Service by:

- working for the people of Victoria by helping the Government achieve its strategic objectives;
- setting clear expectations;
- driving the Government's purpose; and
- providing unifying intelligence within the Victorian government.

The Department of Premier and Cabinet contributes to the Victorian government's commitment to a stronger, fairer, better Victoria by pursuing excellence in whole of government outcomes in delivery and reform.

Departmental objectives

Strong policy outcomes

- Pursue policy and service delivery excellence and reform.
- Lead the public sector response to significant state issues, policy challenges and projects.
- Support the effective administration of government.

Productivity and competitiveness

• Support the delivery of policy and projects that enables increased productivity and competitiveness in Victoria.

Engaged citizens

- Support and promote full participation in strong and vibrant communities.
- Empower citizens to participate in policy making and service design.
- Ensure a holistic approach to social policy and service delivery.

Professional public administration

- Foster and promote a high-performing public service.
- Ensure effective whole of government performance and outcomes.
- Protect the values of good public governance, integrity and accountability in support of public trust.

High performing DPC

- Empower our people and invest in our culture.
- Ensure efficient and effective processes and systems.
- Ensure strong governance and risk management.

Changes to the output structure

The Department has made changes to its output structure for 2017-18 as shown in the table below:

2016–17 outputs Public Sector ICT and digital government	Reason This output has been renamed for a stronger focus on digital government and for increased clarity.	2017–18 outputs Digital government and communications
Women, the prevention of family violence and LGBTI equality policy and programs	This output has been disaggregated, splitting the Minister for Women/Minister for the Prevention of Family Violence portfolios from the Minister for Equality portfolio, renamed and partially transferred to the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) as a result of machinery of government changes.	na
Women, the prevention of family violence and LGBTI equality policy and programs	This output has been disaggregated, splitting the Minister for Equality portfolio from the Minister for Women/Minister for the Prevention of Family Violence portfolios.	LGBTI equality policy and programs

Output summary

The Department's outputs and funding are provided in the table below. Detailed descriptions of objectives, outputs, together with their key performance indicators are presented in subsequent tables.

				(\$ million)
	2016-17	2016-17	2017-18	Variation ^(a)
	budget	revised	budget	%
Strong policy outcomes ^(b)				
Government-wide leadership, reform and implementation	133.5	104.5	223.8	67.6
Strategic advice and government support	105.1	95.8	113.3	7.8
Infrastructure Victoria	10.0	10.5	10.2	2.0
Digital government and communications ^(c)	26.0	26.0	9.4	(63.9)
Office of the Victorian Government Architect	1.3	1.3	1.3	
Engaged citizens				
Aboriginal policy, strengthening Aboriginal cultural heritage and communities	33.5	33.4	56.2	67.8
Multicultural affairs policy and programs	46.8	44.1	51.1	9.2
Support to veterans in Victoria	6.9	7.8	8.1	17.4
LGBTI equality policy and programs ^(d)	3.1	2.9	3.4	9.7
Professional public administration				
Advice and support to the Governor	10.8	13.3	14.9	38.0
Chief Parliamentary Counsel services	6.6	6.6	6.8	3.0
Management of Victoria's public records	19.9	19.9	20.1	1.0
Public administration advice and support	9.8	8.6	7.0	(28.6)
Public sector integrity	84.7	69.1	95.1	12.3
State electoral roll and electoral events	67.1	66.5	42.9	(36.1)
Total	565.1	510.3	663.6	17.4

Source: Department of Premier and Cabinet

Notes:

(a) Variation between 2016-17 budget and 2017-18 budget.

(b) The outputs relating to 'productivity and competitiveness' in the 2016-17 Budget now appear under the 'strong policy outcomes' objective.

(c) The 2017-18 output 'Digital government and communications' replaces the 2016-17 output 'Public Sector ICT and Digital Government'. It has been updated for increased clarity.

(d) The 2017-18 output 'LGBTI equality policy and programs' replaces the 2016-17 output 'Women, the prevention of family violence and LGBTI equality policy and programs'. It has been disaggregated from the Minister for Women/Minister for the Prevention of Family Violence portfolio-related measures.

Amounts available

The following tables detail the amounts available to the Department from Parliamentary authority and income generated through transactions.

Table 2.12 outlines the Department's income from transactions and Table 2.13 summarises the sources of Parliamentary authority available to the Department to fund the provision of outputs, additions to the net asset base and payments made on behalf of the State.

Table 2.12: Income from transactions			(\$	Smillion)
	2015-16	2016-17	2016-17	2017-18
	actual	budget	revised	budget ^(a)
Output appropriations	309.5	490.4	478.6	592.6
Special appropriations	50.6	75.5	67.3	43.7
Interest				
Sales of goods and services	1.6	4.4	5.6	5.7
Grants	36.3	26.6	26.6	17.3
Fair value of assets and services received free of charge or for nominal consideration				
Other income	2.1	1.4	1.4	1.4
Total income from transactions	400.1	598.2	579.4	660.7

Source: Department of Premier and Cabinet

Note:

(a) There are no non-public account contributions in 2017-18 estimates.

Table 2.13: Parliamentary authority for resources

(\$ million)

	2016-17	2016-17	2017-18
	budget	revised	budget
Annual appropriations	462.4	456.9	505.1
Provision of outputs	457.7	446.7	498.0
Additions to the net asset base	4.8	10.2	7.1
Payments made on behalf of the State			
Receipts credited to appropriations	1.8	0.6	0.6
Unapplied previous years appropriation	31.5	31.7	94.0
Provision of outputs	31.0	31.3	94.0
Additions to the net asset base	0.5	0.4	
Payments made on behalf of the State			
Accumulated surplus – previously applied appropriation			
Gross annual appropriation	495.6	489.2	599.7
Special appropriations	81.1	72.9	49.3
Trust funds ^(a)	26.8	33.5	24.4
Departmental Suspense Account ^(b)	15.7	15.7	11.1
Treasury Trust Fund ^(c)	9.8	16.4	11.9
Other	1.3	1.3	1.3
Total parliamentary authority	603.6	595.6	673.4

Source: Department of Premier and Cabinet

Notes:

(a) The 2016-17 budget figure has been restated due to a change in methodology to better reflect the nature of trust fund income.

(b) This account is a departmental working account.

(c) The purpose of this trust primarily relates to facilitating the exchange of unclaimed monies and other funds held in trust.

Departmental performance statement

Strong policy outcomes

This objective pursues policy, service and administration excellence and reform. It leads the public sector response to significant state issues, policy challenges and projects. It supports the effective administration of government. It supports the delivery of policy and projects that enables increased productivity and competitiveness in Victoria.

The departmental objective indicators are:

- DPC's policy advice and its support for Cabinet, committee members and the Executive Council are valued and inform decision making;
- quality infrastructure drives economic growth activity in Victoria; and
- the development and effective use of technology supports productivity and competitiveness.

Outputs

Government-wide leadership, reform and implementation

(2017-18: \$223.8 million)

This output provides advice and support to the Premier and Cabinet on all aspects of government policy. This involves advice on issues as they arise, policy coordination, research and analysis, consultation with stakeholders and leadership in long-term policy development.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017–18 target	2016–17 expected outcome	2016–17 target	2015–16 actual
Quantity					
Whole of government emergency management forums, meetings and exercises facilitated	number	20	20	20	17
Whole of government forums, meetings and advisory groups chaired	number	80	80	73	69
The higher 2017-18 target reflects the impact of The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the (VSB) Family Violence subcommittee.					ries Board
Quality					
Relevant communication activity compliant with government advertising and communication guidelines	per cent	100	100	100	100
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	223.8	104.5	133.5	41.0
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the of \$5m related to DPC core activities. The higher , provided in 2017-18 only, and movement of initic	2017-18 target i	reflects deferral of			

Strategic advice and government support

(2017-18: \$113.3 million)

This output provides strategic policy analysis and advice to the Premier, leads policy development on key priority issues and supports informed government decision making.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017–18 target	2016–17 expected outcome	2016–17 target	2015–16 actual	
Quantity						
Number of briefs supporting Cabinet and Cabinet committee decision making	number	1 200	1 200	1 200	1 338	
Establishment or renewal of ICT whole of government State Purchase Contracts	number	5	8	8	7	
This performance measure is transferred directly f The lower 2017–18 target reflects the varying num						
Victorian Government entities using the Standard User Experience Framework	number	5	nm	nm	nm	
New performance measure for 2017-18, to reflect	government pr	iorities.				
Average monthly analysis reports generated to guide government decision making	number	20	nm	nm	nm	
New performance measure for 2017-18, to reflect	government pr	iorities.				
Quality						
Policy services satisfaction rating	per cent	90	90	90	90	
Timeliness						
Policy services timeliness rating	per cent	95	95	95	87	
Timely delivery of state events and	per cent	100	100	100	100	
functions						
This performance measure is transferred directly from the 'Government-wide leadership reform and implementation' output.						
Cost						
Total output cost	\$ million	113.3	95.8	105.1	83.7	
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than 2016-17 target due to the reprioritisation of funds carried over from 2015-16. The 2017-18 target is higher than the 2016-17 target and expected outcome due to additional grant funding from DELWP.						

Infrastructure Victoria

(2017-18: \$10.2 million)

This output provides independent and transparent advice to government on infrastructure priorities and sets a long-term strategy for infrastructure investment.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017–18 target	2016–17 expected outcome	2016–17 target	2015–16 actual
Quantity					
Number of publications or discussion papers released	number	6	10	6	6
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than th including the phasing of some subject matters o research stages.					
Quality					
Stakeholder satisfaction with consultation process	per cent	75	75	75	n/a
Timeliness					
Delivery of research, advisory or infrastructure strategies within agreed timelines	per cent	100	100	100	100
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	10.2	10.5	10.0	9.3
Source: Department of Premier and Cabinet					

Digital government and communications

(2017-18: \$9.4 million)

This output encourages innovative use of ICT to improve service delivery and business processes, and provides information and services to Victorian citizens and businesses through digital and other delivery channels.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

			2016–17			
	Unit of	2017–18	expected	2016–17	2015–16	
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual	
Quantity						
Average number of monthly visits to www.vic.gov.au	number	245 000	240 000	240 000	244 104	
The higher 2017-18 target reflects the ongoing increase of visits to the website.						
Timeliness						
Delivery of projects within agreed timelines	per cent	100	100	100	nm	
This performance measure is transferred directly from the 'Government-wide leadership, reform and implementation' output.						
Cost						
Total output cost	\$ million	9.4	26.0	26.0	12.1	
The 2017-18 target is lower than the 2016-17 target and expected outcome due to the reduction of grant funding in 2017-18 from DEDJTR, which relates to previous departmental changes.						

Office of the Victorian Government Architect

This output provides strategic leadership and advice to government and key stakeholders on architecture and the built environment.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017–18 target	2016–17 expected outcome	2016–17 target	2015–16 actual
Quantity					
Strategic advice on significant public and private sector projects from project inception and procurement to design and delivery	number	60	60	60	82
Quality					
Stakeholder satisfaction with the quality of advice on significant public and private sector projects	per cent	80	80	80	80
Timeliness					
Average number of business days to issue formal advice	days	10	12	10	12
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	1.3	1.3	1.3	1.5

Engaged citizens

This objective supports and promotes full participation in strong, resilient and vibrant communities. It empowers citizens to participate in policy-making and service design. It ensures a holistic approach to social policy and service delivery.

The departmental objective indicator is:

• increased opportunities for participation by members of the Victorian community in the social, cultural, economic and democratic life of Victoria.

Outputs

Aboriginal policy, strengthening Aboriginal cultural heritage and communities (2017-18: \$56.2 million)

This output provides a partnership with Aboriginal Victorians, other tiers of government and the private and community sectors to: coordinate the delivery of whole of government priorities; protect and manage Aboriginal cultural heritage; strengthen Aboriginal community organisations; and build community engagement to improve the long-term social and economic outcomes for Aboriginal Victorians.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

	Unit of	2017–18	2016–17 expected	2016–17	2015–16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Quantity				0	
Award Ceremonies held: Victorian Aboriginal Honour Roll	number	1	1	1	1
Capacity building activities provided for Traditional Owners and Aboriginal community organisations	number	20	20	20	20
Premier's Gatherings and Aboriginal Victoria Forums conducted	number	4	4	4	nm
Average weekly hours of case management provided to members of the Stolen Generations	number	57.7	57.7	57.7	nm
Number of family history investigations conducted by the Victorian Koorie Family History Service on behalf of members of the Stolen Generations	number	240	241	154	nm
The higher 2017-18 target reflects the ongoing su The 2016-17 expected output is higher than the 2 an unexpected increase.				ovided, and has	resulted in
Delivery of the Victorian Government Aboriginal Annual Affairs Report to Parliament	number	1	1	1	1
Victorian Aboriginal Heritage Council meetings conducted within legislative timeframes	number	6	6	6	7

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017–18	2016–17 expected	2016–17	201E 16
	measure			2010 1/	2015–16
		target	outcome	target	actual
Community consultations relating to treaty	number	10	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017–18 to reflect n	ew funding fo	r Self-determinati	on and treaty ini	tiatives.	
Removal of first mortgages on titles of property owned by Aboriginal	number	8	nm	nm	nm
Community Controlled Organisations		. C - 16 -l - t in t i			
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect no	ew junaing joi	r Self-determinatio	on ana communi	ty infrastructure	e initiatives.
Quality		100	100	100	
Funding payments for the Community Infrastructure Program made in	per cent	100	100	100	nm
accordance with milestones	r	(=);		, .	
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 pe milestones'. The new measure reports on the same clarity.	-		-		
Funding payments for Community Capacity and Co-Design made in accordance with milestones	per cent	100	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017–18 to reflect n	ew funding fo	r Self-determinati	on and treaty ini	tiatives.	
Funding payments for the Removal of First Mortgages initiative made in	per cent	100	nm	nm	nm
accordance with milestones					
New performance measure for 2017–18 to reflect n					
Funding payments for the Investing in Leadership and Governance initiative made in accordance with milestones	per cent	100	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017–18 to reflect n	ew funding fo	r Solf-determinati	on and strong cu	lture initiatives	
Funding payments for the Cultural	per cent	100	nm	nm	nm
Strengthening initiative made in accordance with milestones	percent	100			
New performance measure for 2017–18 to reflect n	ew funding fo	r Self-determinati	on and strong cu	lture initiatives.	
Funding payments for the Building Awareness of and Respect for Aboriginal	per cent	100	nm	nm	nm
Culture and Strengthen Cultural Heritage					
Protection and Management initiative made in accordance with milestones					
New performance measure for 2017–18 to reflect n	ew fundina fo	r Self-determinati	on and strona cu	lture initiatives	
Participation of Aboriginal people in	Number	2 500	2 343	2 343	2 449
Local Aboriginal Networks		2000	20.0	20.0	
The higher 2017–18 target reflects an annual perce This performance measure renames the 2016–17 p Networks'. The new measure reports on the same o to reflect the community's preference.	erformance m	easure 'Participat			-
Timeliness					
Assessments completed by Aboriginal Victoria (AV) within legislative timeframe: cultural heritage management plans	per cent	100	100	100	99
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	56.2	33.4	33.5	19.2
The 2017-18 target is higher than the 2016-17 targ and a new initiative 'Delivering on the Government	et and expecte	ed outcome due to	a carryover of 2	016-17 funding	

Multicultural affairs policy and programs

(2017-18: \$51.1 million)

This output provides policy advice on Multicultural Affairs, settlement coordination for newly arrived migrants and refugees and delivers programs to support Victoria's whole of government approach to multiculturalism. Coordinates the monitoring of government departments' responsiveness to Victorians from culturally, linguistically and religiously diverse backgrounds.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017–18 target	2016–17 expected outcome	2016–17 target	2015–16 actual
Quantity					
Consultations with culturally and linguistically diverse (CALD) communities	number	70	60	60	74
The higher 2017-18 target reflects increased activ. Statement.	ity expected foll	lowing the annour	ncement of the M	Iulticultural Pol	licy
Number of strategic partnerships (place based and issue specific) funded to deliver coordinated settlement support for refugee and asylum seeker communities	number	19	14	14	nm
The higher 2017-18 target reflects the partne Multicultural Sports Fund.	rships expected	d to be agreed thi	ough the \$1 mili	lion per annum	1
Victorian population engaged by multicultural and social cohesion initiatives New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect	per cent	67	nm Policy Statemen	nm	nm
Quality	new junuing joi		Foncy Statement		
Attendance at Cultural Diversity Week flagship event, Victoria's Multicultural Festival	number	50 000	45 000	45 000	50 000
The higher 2017-18 target reflects the current leve	el of attendance	2.			
Proportion of grants approved which are provided to organisations in regional/rural areas	per cent	20	20	20	20
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	51.1	44.1	46.8	26.2
The 2017-18 target is higher than the 2016-17 tar 2017-18 and new initiatives titled 'Communication program'.					

Support to veterans in Victoria

(2017-18: \$8.1 million)

This output provides coordination of veteran related issues at a state level, especially in relation to Anzac Centenary commemorations and other major anniversaries. Oversees commemoration, veteran welfare and education programs. This output supports the Shrine of Remembrance and the Victorian Veterans Council.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

	Unit of	2017–18	2016–17 expected	2016–17	2015–16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Quantity					
Entries received: Premier's Spirit of Anzac Prize	number	250	253	350	196
The lower 2017-18 target reflects declining numb be implemented to improve entry numbers as ide The 2016-17 expected outcome is less than the 20 100-year anniversary of the Gallipoli Landing.	ntified in the 20.	, 16 evaluation of th	ne program.	5	5
Community engagement: Shrine ceremonial activities, public and student education programs, tours and general visitation	number	750 000	nm	nm	nm
This performance measure is proposed to replace Remembrance programs'. It has been replaced to Remembrance.					-
Number of veterans who apply for Victorian Public Sector positions	number	50	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect	new funding for	the Supporting V	ictoria's veterans	initiative.	
Quality					
Commemorative and educative projects meet agreed project objectives	per cent	100	100	100	100
Timeliness					
Deliver an annual program of grants within agreed, published timelines	per cent	100	100	100	100
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	8.1	7.8	6.9	6.2
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the funding being processed in 2016-17. The 2017-18 initiatives introduced in 2017-18, titled 'Shrine of	target is higher	than the 2016-17	target and expe	cted outcome o	

LGBTI equality policy and programs

(2017-18: \$3.4 million)

This output provides for the delivery of programs and services to promote equality for LGBTI Victorians and support these communities' economic, social and civic participation.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

			2016–17	2 246 4 7			
Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017–18 target	expected outcome	2016–17 target	2015–16 actual		
Quantity							
Number of people engaged with LGBTI equality projects and consultations	number	5 000	10 000	3 000	nm		
The higher 2017-18 target reflects an anticipated increase due to the large number of people that engaged with LGBTI equality projects and consultations in 2016-17. The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 2016-17 target due to a number of ad hoc events that attracted many people. For example, the Show of Solidarity in response to the Pulse Nightclub shooting in Orlando attracted a crowd of approximately 3 000, while the LGBTI Equality Roadshow travelled to 20 towns around Victoria.							
Quality							
Proportion of LGBTI grant program recipients who met or exceeded agreed outcomes	per cent	85	n/a	85	nm		
The 2016-17 expected outcome is not able to be reported at the time of publication. The majority of 2016-17 grant recipients will still be carrying out the activities for which they received funding by the end of the 2016-17 financial year.							
Cost							
Total output cost	\$ million	3.4	2.9	3.1	nm		
The 2017-18 target is higher than the 2016-17 tar 2017-18, titled 'An LGBTI inclusive Victoria that ce	•		o a new initiative	to be introduce	ed in		

Professional public administration

This objective fosters and promotes a high performing public service. It ensures effective whole of government performance and outcomes. It protects the values of good public governance in support of public trust

The departmental objective indicator is:

• a values-driven, high-integrity public service characterised by employees who collaborate across government and in partnership with the community and other sectors, and who use evidence to support decisions that drive the progress of Victoria socially and economically.

Outputs

Advice and support to the Governor

(2017-18: \$14.9 million)

This output provides advice and support to the Governor, and maintenance to Government House and its collections as a heritage asset of national importance.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

	Unit of	2017–18	2016–17 expected	2016–17	2015–16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Quantity Increase in the annual number of guests and visitors to Government House	per cent	5	10	5	5
The 2016-17 expected outcome is greater than the Government House and the commencement of ne				y events hosted	at
Quality					
Maintenance of Government House in accordance with the asset management	per cent	73	70	70	70
strategy					
The higher 2017-18 target reflects new funding for	r building main	tenance at Gove	rnment House.		
Standard, physical appearance of gardens and grounds in accordance with contract key performance indicators	per cent	85	85	85	85
Timeliness					
Support the Governor's community engagement activities by arranging all internal and external events in a timely manner	per cent	100	100	100	100
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	14.9	13.3	10.8	12.6
The 2016–17 expected outcome of \$13.3 million corresponds with a revised target outcome of \$13.3 million, indicating that the Office of the Governor has finished 2016-17 on budget. The 2016-17 target of \$10.8 million is reproduced from the 2016-17 Budget Paper No. 3; however, it does not reflect the correction during 2016-17 of the Office of the Governor ongoing budget, following a base review, to properly reflect the operating costs of the Office.					

Chief Parliamentary Counsel services

(2017-18: \$6.8 million)

This output provides Bills for introduction in Parliament, including: provision of quality and timely legislative drafting services; hard copy and electronic publication of Acts and Statutory Rules; and the maintenance of a database of Victorian legislation and legislative information at www.legislation.vic.gov.au.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

			2016–17		
	Unit of	2017–18	expected	2016–17	2015–16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Quantity					
Formal advice provided on legislation	number	450	440	450	nm
Number of Acts and Statutory Rules	per cent	96	98	96	98
published electronically and in hard copy					
without error					
Statutory Rules made and Bills prepared	number	260	260	290	260
and introduced into Parliament					
Bills prepared and introduced has been revised to The 2016-17 expected outcome is less than the 20 2017 under the Government's legislative program The Government determines the number of bills in primary responsibility of the office is to ensure it d Quality Number of Bills and Statutory Rules drafted or settled which meet required	16-17 target. Th and fewer State atroduced into P	his is mainly due utory Rules need arliament in acc	to a number of Bil ling to be made du ordance with the l	e to sunsetting egislative prog	rprovisions. ram. The
standard					
Timeliness					
Bills and Statutory Rules drafted or settled within required timeframe	per cent	96	97	96	99
Electronically published versions of Principal Acts and Statutory Rules published within three business days of coming into operation and new Acts and Statutory Rules published within 24 hours of making	per cent	96	99	96	99
Cost					

\$ million

Source: Department of Premier and Cabinet

Total output cost

6.8

6.6

6.6

6.5

Management of Victoria's public records

(2017-18: \$20.1 million)

This output provides direction to government on the management of public records and ensures that the historical memory of the Victorian government endures, is secure and accessible.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

			2016–17		
	Unit of	2017–18	expected	2016–17	2015–16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Quantity					
Collection Usage: Utilisation of physical and digital records held by Public Record Office Victoria	number	2 600 000	2 500 000	2 600 000	609 412
The 2016-17 and 2017-18 targets are higher that available for viewing by the public on the Public I on social media, new indexes to make searching external genealogy sites following new agreeme	Record Office Vic for digital image	toria (PROV) we s easier, and the	bsite, an increase	in records share	ed by users
Quality					
Satisfaction with services provided by	per cent	90	90	90	91
Public Records Office Victoria to					
government agencies and to the public					
Timeliness					
Provision of services within published timeframes	per cent	95	95	95	98
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	20.1	19.9	19.9	17.2
Courses Department of Department of Cohinet					

Public administration advice and support

(2017-18: \$7.0 million)

This output, through the Victorian Public Sector Commission, provides advice and support on issues relevant to public administration, governance, service delivery and workforce matters; undertakes related research, data collection, reporting and dissemination of information. Advocates for an apolitical and professional public sector; monitors compliance with the public sector values, employment principles, codes and standards; conduct related reviews and makes recommendations to public sector body heads.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017–18 target	2016–17 expected outcome	2016–17 target	2015–16 actual
Quantity					
Advice and support provided to the public sector on relevant issues	number	80	80	80	80
Referred reviews underway or completed aimed at improving service delivery, governance and/or public administration efficiency and effectiveness The 2016-17 expected outcome is less than the 20 during 2016-17.	number 16-17 target du	5 ne to the complex	3 ity and length of t	5 the reviews und	5 Iertaken
Quality					
Recommendations arising from reviews of actions (Section 64) implemented by the public service	per cent	100	100	100	100
Timeliness					
Proportion of data collection and reporting activities completed within target timeframes	per cent	100	100	100	100
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	7.0	8.6	9.8	7.4

Public sector integrity

(2017-18: \$95.1 million)

This output provides independent investigations of complaints concerning administrative actions, alleged breaches of privacy and allegations of serious misconduct. Oversees the Victorian Protective Data Security regime. Enhances the Victorian government's transparency and openness and provides advice, education and guidance to public agencies.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

			2016–17		
	Unit of	2017–18	expected	2016–17	2015–16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actua
Quantity					
Corruption prevention initiatives delivered by IBAC	number	90	80	70	78
The higher 2017-18 target reflects a concerted l delivery of Independent Broad-based Anti-corru The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than th delivered continuing at a high volume following IBAC's corruption prevention strategy.	ption Commission he 2016-17 target	's (IBAC) corruptic due to the anticip	on prevention str ated number of	ategy. prevention init	iatives
Education and training activities delivered by FOI Commissioner	number	50	30	20	27
The higher 2017-18 target reflects new funding demand. The 2016–17 expected outcome is higher than t will lead to an increase in the number of training	he 2016–17 targe	t due to new face	-to-face and onli		
Jurisdictional complaints finalised – Victorian Ombudsman (VO)	number	14 000	13 400	14 000	13 987
Law enforcement, data security and privacy reviews completed	number	5	5	5	Į
Proportion of IBAC investigations into public sector corrupt conduct (excluding police personnel conduct and police personnel corrupt conduct) completed within 12 months	per cent	75	nm	nm	nn
This performance measure is proposed to replac Anti-corruption Commission investigations com type of investigations undertaken.		•			reflect the
Proportion of IBAC investigations into police personnel conduct and police personnel corrupt conduct completed within 12 months	per cent	75	nm	nm	nm
This performance measure is proposed to replac Anti-corruption Commission investigations com type of investigations undertaken.					reflect the
Proportion of jurisdictional complaints independently investigated by the Victorian Ombudsman	per cent	25	29	25	22
Reviews and complaints completed by FOI Commissioner	number	850	780	550	692
The higher 2017-18 target reflects new funding demand. The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than th resolution.					

			2016–17		
	Unit of	2017–18	expected	2016–17	2015–16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Quality		00	05	00	00
Client satisfaction with data security and	per cent	90	95	90	99
privacy training provided	2016 17 taxaa	t due te due te e :	uamu biab laval af	antiafantian hu	users of the
The 2016–17 expected outcome is higher than the privacy training module.	e 2016–17 targe				users of the
FOI Commissioner applicants that appeal to VCAT	per cent	<25	<30	<30	12.9
The lower 2017-18 target reflects new funding for demand.	r the Office of th	e Freedom of Info	rmation Commis	sioner to meet	increased
From 2016-17, the targets and results will be revis clarity of the measure.	sed to a range v	alue percentage (i	i.e. <30%) for inci	reased underst	anding and
Proportion of jurisdictional complaints	per cent	<1.5	<1.5	<1.5	0.04
where the original outcome is set aside					
by a review undertaken in accordance					
with the Ombudsman's internal review					
policy					
Recommendations accepted by agencies	per cent	95	95	95	100
upon completion of investigations by the					
Victorian Ombudsman					
Satisfaction rating with corruption	per cent	90	90	90	99
prevention initiatives delivered by IBAC					
Timeliness					
Complaints or notifications about public	per cent	80	nm	nm	nm
sector corrupt conduct (excluding police					
personnel conduct and police personnel					
corrupt conduct) assessed by IBAC within					
45 days					
This performance measure is proposed to replace				,	AC within
45 days'. It has been amended to more accurately			-		
Complaints or notifications about police	per cent	90	nm	nm	nm
personnel conduct and police personnel corrupt conduct assessed by IBAC within					
45 days					
This performance measure is proposed to replace	the 2016 17 mg	acura 'Complaint	c or notifications	accased by IP	AC within
45 days'. It has been amended to more accurately		,	,	,	
Complaints received by the Local	per cent	95	90	90	99
Government Inspectorate assessed and					
actioned within five working days					
The higher 2017-18 target reflects the increased w	vorkload undert	aken by the Inspe	ctorate, including	g work arising a	out of the
2016 local government elections.					
Complaints resolved within 30 calendar	per cent	95	85	95	88
days of receipt by the Victorian					
Ombudsman					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is less than the 20					
ensures that services are provided to the broades Ombudsman has recently introduced changes to l				-	ie
Responses within 15 days to written	per cent	90	93	90	98
enquiries relating to the legislated	per cent	90	55	50	30
responsibilities of the Commissioner for					
Privacy and Data Protection					

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017–18 target	2016–17 expected outcome	2016–17 target	2015–16 actual
Timeline agreed by FOI applicants for completion of reviews is met	per cent	90	75	85	59
The higher 2017-18 target reflects new funding j demand. The 2016-17 expected outcome is less than the 2 complex reviews during the reporting period. Th result, but it is still less than the desired perform	2016-17 Target du e addition of a se	ie to the Office fo	cusing on the res	olution of agei	ng and
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	95.1	69.1	84.7	59.5
The 2016-17 expected outcome is less than the 2 ensures that services are provided to the broade Ombudsman has recently introduced changes to	st possible range	of people. This me	eans some cases	, take longer. Th	,

State electoral roll and electoral events

(2017-18: \$42.9 million)

This output, through the Victorian Electoral Commission (VEC), provides a high quality electoral system that supports democracy in Victoria through the administration of an accurate and secure electoral roll, electoral services to ensure fair and equitable representation, the conduct of fair and impartial elections and encouraging greater participation in civic life through education and awareness activities and improving ease of access.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

	11:+ - f	2017 10	2016–17	2016 17	2015 16
Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017–18 target	expected outcome	2016–17 target	2015–16 actual
Quantity		<u> </u>			
State elections, municipal and statutory elections, by-elections, polls and electoral representation reviews	number	32	94	99	40
The lower 2017-18 target reflects the outcomes of government elections that will not occur in the nex The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 2 Legislative Assembly and on local councils tracking	t financial year 1016-17 target	due to the numbe	er of actual extrac	ordinary vacand	
Quality					<u> </u>
Legal challenges to VEC conduct upheld	number	0	0	0	0
Timeliness					
Changes to electors details, or additions to the Victorian Electoral Register are processed within set timeframes	per cent	95	95	90	92
The higher 2017-18 target reflects the performanc performance of the enrolment function. The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the					I
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	42.9	66.5	67.1	25.2
The 2017-18 target is lower than the 2016-17 targ carried from the transfer of responsibilities in 2014	•	d outcome due to	the reduction in j	funding for 201	17-18,

Source: Department of Premier and Cabinet

DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY AND FINANCE

Ministerial portfolios

The Department supports the ministerial portfolios of Treasurer and Minister for Finance.

Departmental mission statement

The Department of Treasury and Finance's mission is to provide leadership in economic, financial and resource management.

Departmental objectives

Optimise Victoria's fiscal resources¹

The Department of Treasury and Finance has a central role in providing high quality advice to Government on sustainable financial, resource and performance management policy and other key policy priorities; overseeing related frameworks; as well as leading the production of the State budget papers and reports of both financial and non-financial performance in the Victorian public sector.

The Budget and Financial Advice output contributes to this objective by providing strategic, timely and comprehensive analysis and information to Government to support decision-making and reporting.

The Revenue Management and Administrative Services to Government output contributes to this objective by providing revenue management and administration services across the various state-based taxes for the benefit of all Victorians.

Strengthen Victoria's economic performance²

The Department of Treasury and Finance provides Government with advice on key economic and financial strategies and the implications of broader Government policies to increase Victoria's productivity, competitiveness and equity across the Victorian economy.

The Economic and Policy Advice output contributes to this objective by providing strategic, timely and comprehensive analysis and information to Government to support decision-making and reporting.

The Economic Regulatory Services output contributes to this objective by providing economic regulation of utilities and other specified markets in Victoria to protect the long-term interests of Victorian consumers with regard to price, quality and reliability of essential services.

¹ This objective has been updated from 'Sound financial management of Victoria's fiscal resources' to be more clearly outcomes focused and aligned with Government service delivery priorities for the Department.

² This objective has been updated from 'Guide government actions to increase Victoria's productivity and competitiveness' to be more clearly outcomes focused and aligned with Government service delivery priorities for the Department.

Improve how Government manages its balance sheet, commercial activities and public sector infrastructure³

The Department of Treasury and Finance develops and applies prudent financial and commercial principles and practices to influence and help deliver Government policies focussed on overseeing the State's balance sheet, major infrastructure and government business enterprises (public non-financial corporations (PNFC) sector and public financial corporations (PFC) sector).

The Commercial and Infrastructure Advice output contributes to this objective by providing strategic, timely and comprehensive analysis and information to Government to support decision-making and reporting.

Deliver efficient whole of government common services⁴

The Department of Treasury and Finance assists government agencies by delivering integrated and client-centred common services that achieve value for the Victorian public sector.

The Services to Government output contributes to this objective by delivering whole of government services, policies and initiatives in areas including procurement, fleet and accommodation.

Changes to the output structure

The Department has made changes to its output structure for 2017-18 as shown in the table below:

2016-17 outputs	Reason	2017-18 outputs
Business Environment Policy Advice	Business Environment Policy Advice output has merged with Economic and Policy Advice output. The merger of these two outputs recognises that the Office for Better Regulation is not a separate legal entity.	Economic and Policy Advice

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance

³ This objective has been updated from 'Drive improvements in public sector commercial and asset management and the delivery of infrastructure' to be more clearly outcomes focused and aligned with Government service delivery priorities for the Department.

⁴ This objective has been updated from 'Deliver efficient whole of government common services to the Victorian public sector' for increased clarity and conciseness.

Output summary by departmental objectives

The Department's outputs and funding are provided in the table below. Detailed descriptions of objectives, outputs, together with their key performance indicators are presented in subsequent tables.

				(\$ million)
	2016-17	2016-17	2017-18	Variation ^(a)
	budget	revised	budget	%
Optimise Victoria's fiscal resources				
Budget and Financial Advice ^(b)	25.7	27.2	27.6	7.4
Revenue Management and Administrative Services to Government ^(c)	89.9	88.9	105.5	17.4
Strengthen Victoria's economic performance				
Economic and Policy Advice	25.9	26.4	26.2	1.2
Economic Regulatory Services ^(d)	24.6	24.1	22.8	(7.3)
Improve how Government manages its balance sheet, commercial activities and public sector infrastructure				
Commercial and Infrastructure Advice ^(e)	48.2	76.1	70.9	47.1
Deliver efficient whole of government common services				
Services to Government	43.8	43.4	41.3	(5.7)
Total	258.1	286.1	294.3	14.0

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance

Notes:

(a) Variation between 2016-17 budget and 2017-18 budget.

(b) The higher 2017-18 budget reflects an increase in internal reprioritisation for additional policy functions.

(c) The higher 2017-18 budget includes additional funding for compliance activities and the biennial purchase of municipal valuations resulting in a higher amortisation expense in the second year.

(d) The lower 2017-18 budget reflects a lower budget allocation for new initiatives announced in the 2016-17 Budget Papers.

(e) The higher 2017-18 budget includes additional funding for the West Gate Tunnel and Asset Reform projects.

Amounts available

The following tables detail the amounts available to the Department from Parliamentary authority and income generated through transactions.

Table 2.14 outlines the Department's income from transactions and Table 2.14 summarises the sources of Parliamentary authority available to the Department to fund the provision of outputs, additions to the net asset base and payments made on behalf of the State.

		(\$	Smillion)
2015-16	2016-17	2016-17	2017-18
actual	budget	revised	budget ^(a)
255.4	258.5	288.8	295.4
1.8	1.7	1.2	1.2
166.6	163.6	177.9	173.5
0.2		1.5	
0.4			
23.1	30.4	28.4	31.5
447.5	454.2	497.8	501.6
	actual 255.4 1.8 166.6 0.2 0.4 23.1	actual budget 255.4 258.5 1.8 1.7 166.6 163.6 0.2 0.4 23.1 30.4	2015-16 2016-17 2016-17 actual budget revised 255.4 258.5 288.8 1.8 1.7 1.2 166.6 163.6 177.9 0.2 1.5 0.4 23.1 30.4 28.4

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance

(a) Includes an estimated \$159.5 million of non-public account contributions in 2017-18.

Note:

Table 2.15: Parliamentary authority for resources

(\$ million)

	2016-17	2016-17	2017-18
	budget	revised	budget
Annual appropriations	7 066.6	5 243.5	7 740.8
Provision of outputs	250.6	248.6	286.9
Additions to the net asset base	2.6	2.6	52.6
Payments made on behalf of the State	6 813.3	4 992.3	7 401.3
Receipts credited to appropriations	7.9	8.5	8.5
Unapplied previous years appropriation		3.9	
Provision of outputs		3.9	
Additions to the net asset base			
Payments made on behalf of the State			
Accumulated surplus – previously applied appropriation			
Gross annual appropriation	7 074.4	5 255.9	7 749.3
Special appropriations	9 147.0	8 045.6	2 276.3
Trust funds	3 275.6	4 171.8	3 473.9
Commonwealth Treasury Trust Fund ^(a)	3 201.3	3 197.8	3 247.6
Victorian Transport Fund ^(b)		899.4	132.3
Other	74.3	74.5	94.0
Total parliamentary authority	19 497.1	17 473.3	13 499.5

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance

Notes:

(a) The purpose of this trust primarily relates to the receipt of Commonwealth Government Grants to be passed on to relevant departments.

(b) The purpose of this trust primarily relates to the use of the funds received from the lease of Port of Melbourne towards Victorian major infrastructure initiatives.

Departmental performance statement

Objective 1: Optimise Victoria's fiscal resources

This objective provides analysis and advice to Government on the management of Victoria's fiscal resources to support decision-making and reporting for the benefit of all Victorians.

The Department leads the development of financial policy advice to Government and the Victorian public sector through detailed analysis of key policy priorities including resource allocation, financial risk and government service performance, financial reporting frameworks, and the State's budget position to inform and support the publication of key whole-of-state financial reports.

The departmental objective indicators are:

- a net operating surplus consistent with maintaining general government net debt at a sustainable level^(a);
- general government net debt as a percentage of GSP to be maintained at a sustainable level^(b);
- agency compliance with the Standing Directions under the *Financial Management Act 1994*^(c); and
- advice contributes to the achievement of Government policies and priorities relating to optimising Victoria's fiscal resources^(d).

Notes:

- (a) This objective indicator has been updated from 'A net operating surplus consistent with maintaining general government net debt at a sustainable level over the medium-term'. The words 'over the medium-term' have been removed as objective indicators in the Performance Management Framework (PMF) are defined as being medium to long-term.
- (b) This objective indicator has been updated from 'General government net debt as a percentage of GSP to be maintained at a sustainable level over the medium-term. The words 'over the medium-term' have been removed as objective indicators in the PMF are defined as being medium to long-term.
- (c) New objective indicator for 2017-18 to reflect a more measurable outcomes focus, in accordance with the PMF.
- (d) This objective indicator bas been updated from Provide bigh quality, timely and relevant advice on the State's finances and budget, as assessed by feedback from our key clients' to better align with objectives.

Outputs

Budget and Financial Advice

(2017-18: \$27.6 million)

This output contributes to the provision of strategic, timely and comprehensive analysis and advice to Ministers, Cabinet and Cabinet Sub-Committees on:

- Victorian public sector resource allocation;
- departmental financial, output and asset delivery performance to support government in making decisions on the allocation of the State's fiscal resources; and
- cost mapping and other funding reviews.

This output maintains the integrity of systems and information for financial planning, management, monitoring and reporting of the State of Victoria via:

- a best practice financial reporting framework, and whole of state management information systems, supporting financial reporting across the Victorian public sector;
- publication of the State budget and financial reports, including quarterly, mid-year, annual and estimated financial reports;
- publication of non-financial performance in the Victorian public sector; and
- management of the Public Account operations.

This output develops and maintains cohesive financial and resource management frameworks that drive sound financial and resource management practices in the Victorian public sector by:

- enhancing key frameworks to drive performance;
- monitoring Victorian Public Sector (VPS) agencies' compliance;
- advising government and key stakeholders on financial and resource management and compliance issues;
- ensuring that financial and resource management frameworks are established and complied with;
- promoting continuous improvement in Victorian public sector resource allocation and management through regular reviews and updates to ensure the frameworks represent good practice; and
- promoting awareness of financial management accountabilities and roles.

This output contributes to the Department's objective to optimise Victoria's fiscal resources.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Quantity					
Number of cost mapping and other funding reviews contributed to by DTF	number	3	3	3	1
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 process for the delivery of funding reviews.	7 performance m	easure 'Funding r	eviews delivered	' to reflect chan	iges in the

	Unit of	2017-18	2016-17 expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Quality Accuracy of the revised estimate of State budget expenditure	per cent	≤5.0	≤5.0	≤5.0	0.5
Unqualified audit reports/reviews for the State of Victoria Financial Report and Estimated Financial Statements	number	2	2	2	0
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 weaknesses in financial reporting systems and pro Statements'. The new measure reports on the sar increased clarity. The 2015-16 VAGO qualification on the Estimated	ocesses for the ne activity as th	State of Victoria ne previous meas	Financial Report ure however ha	or Estimated F s been amended	inancial d for
Department of Education and Training. The VAGC in technical interpretation between DTF and VAG		of the 2015-16 Ai	nnual Financial F	Report reflected	a difference
Recommendations on financial management framework matters made by PAEC and VAGO and supported by Government are actioned	per cent	100	100	100	100
VPS stakeholder feedback indicates delivery of advice and information sessions supported the financial reporting framework across the VPS and supported the VPS to understand the financial management framework	per cent	80	80	80	87
Maintain ISO 9001 (Quality Management Systems) Certification	per cent	100	100	100	100
Timeliness					
Delivery of advice to Government on portfolio performance within agreed timeframes	per cent	100	100	100	100
Annual Budget published by date agreed by Treasurer	date	May 2018	May 2017	May 2017	April 2016
Budget Update, Financial Report for the State of Victoria, Mid-Year Financial Report, and Quarterly Financial Reports are transmitted by legislated timelines	per cent	100	100	100	71
Annual financial management compliance report for the previous financial year is submitted to the Minister for Finance	date	By end Feb 2018	By end Feb 2017	By end Feb 2017	7 Dec 2015
Cost					
Total output cost The higher 2017-18 target reflects an increase in The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the policy functions.					24.6 or additional

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance

Revenue Management and Administrative Services to Government (2017-18: \$105.5 million)

This output provides revenue management and administrative services across the various state-based taxes in a fair and efficient manner for the benefit of all Victorians. By administering Victoria's taxation legislation and collecting a range of taxes, duties and levies, this output contributes to the Department's objective to optimise Victoria's fiscal resources.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Quantity					
Revenue assessed from compliance projects meets estimates	per cent	≥95	100	≥95	107
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the Work and land tax compliance programs, toget				ity and expande	d Back To
Revenue collected as a percentage of budget target	per cent	≥99	99	≥99	99
Quality					
Customer satisfaction level	per cent	≥85	85	≥85	96
Maintain ISO 9001 (Quality Management Systems) and ISO/IEC 20000-1:2005 (IT Service management) Certification	number	3	3	3	2
Ratio of outstanding debt to total revenue	per cent	<2	1.5	<2	1.19
Objections received to assessments issued as a result of compliance projects New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect Office in regards to service delivery to customers		<4 priorities for perfo	nm ormance expectat	nm ions of the State	nm Revenue
Timeliness					
Revenue banked on day of receipt	per cent	≥99	100	≥99	100
Timely handling of objections (within 90 days)	per cent	≥80	86	≥80	87
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than th and the realisation of productivity benefits as a rulings are completed.	5			,,	,,,
Timely handling of private rulings (within 90 days)	per cent	≥80	92	≥80	87
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than th and the realisation of productivity benefits as a rulings are completed.					
Cost					
Total output cost The higher 2017-18 target reflects additional fu			88.9 nd the biennial pu	89.9 rchase of munic	92.2 ipal
valuations resulting in a higher amortisation exp	pense in the seco	ond year.			

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance

Objective 2: Strengthen Victoria's economic performance

This objective delivers advice on economic policy, forecasts, legislation and frameworks. It also supports Government by administering economic regulation of utilities and other specified markets in Victoria to protect the long-term interests of Victorian consumers with regard to price, quality, efficiency and reliability of essential services.

The Department leads the development of advice to Government on key economic and financial strategies including regulatory reform, Government tax policy and intergovernmental financial relations to drive improvements in Victoria's productive and efficient resource allocation, competitiveness and equity across the Victorian economy.

The departmental objective indicators are:

- economic growth to exceed population growth as expressed by Gross State Product (GSP) per capita increasing in real terms (annual percentage change)^(a);
- total Victorian employment to grow each year (annual percentage change)^(a); and
- advice contributes to the achievement of Government policies and priorities relating to economic and social outcomes.^(b)

Notes:

- (a) New objective indicators for 2017-18 to reflect a more measurable outcomes focus, in accordance with the PMF. The first objective indicator replaces the previous indicator Reduce the costs and barriers to doing business in Victoria, including reducing the regulatory burden'. The previous objective indicator has been replaced because it represents a small part of the broader work of the Department. The new objective indicators focus on broader outcomes for the Victorian economy.
- (b) This objective indicator has been updated from Provide high quality, timely and relevant advice on economic policy, forecasts, legislation and frameworks as assessed by feedback from our key clients' to better align with objectives.

Outputs

Economic and Policy Advice

(2017-18: \$26.2 million)

This output contributes to the Department's objective to strengthen Victoria's economic performance through increased productive and efficient resource allocation, competitiveness and equity by providing evidence, advice and engagement on:

- medium and longer-term strategies to strengthen productivity, participation and the State's overall competitiveness;
- State tax and revenue policy and insurance policy;
- intergovernmental financial relations, including the distribution of Commonwealth funding to Australian states and territories (including representation on various inter jurisdictional committees);
- production of the economic and revenue estimates that underpin the State budget;
- best practice regulatory frameworks; and
- approaches for innovative, effective and efficient delivery of government services, including social services.

This output also provides advice on ways the Government can improve the business environment by the Commissioner for Better Regulation:

- reviewing Regulatory Impact Statements, Legislative Impact Assessments, and providing advice for Regulatory Change Measurements;
- assisting agencies to improve the quality of regulation in Victoria and undertaking research into matters referred to it by the Government; and
- operating Victoria's competitive neutrality unit.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

	2016-17					
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16	
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual	
Quantity						
Economic research projects and papers completed that contribute to deeper understanding of economic issues and development of government policy	number	5	5	5	5	
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 measure reports on the same activity as the previ					ne new	
Advice on adequacy of final Regulatory Impact Statements and Legislative Impact Assessments prepared by departments This performance measure is transferred directly j	number from the former I	35 Business Environ	35 ment Policy Advic	35 se Output.	33	
High level engagement with non- Victorian Public Service stakeholder groups that contributes to public policy debate New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect engagement with non-VPS stakeholders.	number Government pric	20 rities regarding	nm the output's com	nm mitment to incl	nm rease	
Quality						
Conduct biannual surveys to assess the impact of changes to Victorian regulations on business	number	2	nm	nm	nm	
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect commitment to develop a quality measure in resp discontinuation.						
Accuracy of estimating State taxation revenue in the State budget	percentage variance	≤5.0	≤5.0	≤5.0	4.6	
Accuracy of estimating the employment growth rate in the State budget	percentage point variance	≤1.0	≤1.0	≤1.0	nm	
Accuracy of estimating the gross state product rate in the State budget	percentage point variance	≤1.0	≤1.0	≤1.0	nm	
Maintain ISO 9001 (Quality Management Systems) Certification	per cent	100	100	100	100	

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Timeliness					
Briefings on key Australian Bureau of Statistics economic data on day of release	per cent	100	100	100	100
Respond to correspondence within agreed timeframes	per cent	85	85	85	86
Completion of assessment of Regulatory Impact Statements and Legislative Impact Assessments within agreed timeframes	per cent	100	100	100	97
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p Statements and Legislative Impact Assessments w activity as the previous measure however reflects t	ithin 10 working	days of receipt	'. The new measu	re reports on the	e same

departments and agencies as the regulatory impact statements are developed, rather than on completion.

Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	26.2	26.4	25.9	20.6

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance

Economic Regulatory Services

(2017-18: \$22.8 million)

This output provides economic regulation of utilities and other specified markets in Victoria to protect the long-term interests of Victorian consumers with regard to price, quality, reliability and efficiency of essential services. By providing these services, this output contributes to the Departmental objective to strengthen Victoria's economic performance.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Quantity					
New or revised regulatory instruments issued	number	6	8	6	5
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the a instruments than originally anticipated .	2016-17 target c	lue to a higher n	eed to issue new	or revised regu	latory
Performance reports for regulated businesses or industries	number	7	11	11	7
The lower 2017-18 target reflects one-off activity in and Energy Divisions.	n the Water Divi	sion in 2016-17 c	und consolidation	of reports in th	e Transport
Performance reviews and compliance audits of regulated businesses	number	144	142	142	108
The higher 2017-18 target reflects new and increas	sed activity in Lo	cal Government.			
Price approvals of regulated businesses	number	39	27	40	29
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 2 regulated businesses than originally anticipated . Registration and accreditation	number	ue to a lesser req 6 000	uirement to perf	orm price appro	ovals of 6951
decisions/approvals in relation to the Victorian Energy Efficiency Target Scheme					
The higher 2017-18 target reflects the increase in t The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the services than originally anticipated.					VEET
Reviews, investigations or advisory	number	1	2	2	4
projects					
The lower 2017-18 target reflects the expected nur	mber of reviews	requested and th	ne timeframe spe	cified by the Go	vernment.
Compliance and enforcement activities – energy	number	15	10	10	nm
The higher 2017-18 target reflects Government pri	iorities involving	compliance and	enforcement act	ivities.	
Quality					
Decisions upheld where subject to review, appeal or disallowance	per cent	100	100	100	100
Timeliness					
Delivery of major milestones within agreed timelines	per cent	100	100	100	100
Cost					

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance

Objective 3: Improve how Government manages its balance sheet, commercial activities and public sector infrastructure

This objective delivers Government policies focussed on oversighting the State's balance sheet, major infrastructure and government business enterprises by the delivery and application of prudent financial and commercial principles and practices.

The Department leads the development of strategic commercial and financial advice to Government to support key decisions regarding the State's financial assets and liabilities and infrastructure investment to drive improvement in public sector commercial and asset management and the delivery of infrastructure for the State of Victoria.

The departmental objective indicators are:

- percentage of Government projects completed within agreed budgets, timeframes and scope or evidenced by timely and appropriate remedial actions where necessary^(a);
- Government Business Enterprises performing against agreed financial and non-financial indicators^(b); and
- advice contributes to the achievement of Government policies and priorities relating to Victoria's balance sheet, commercial activities and public sector infrastructure.^(c)

Notes:

- (a) This objective indicator has been updated from Ensure high-value high-risk Government projects are completed within agreed timeframes and scope through ensuring adherence to standards' to reflect a more measurable outcomes focus, in accordance with the PMF.
- (b) This objective indicator has been updated from 'Effective financial risk management and prudential supervision of public financial corporations and public non-financial corporations' for measurability and to better align with objectives.
- (c) This objective indicator has been updated from Provide high quality, timely and relevant advice on asset management, the delivery of infrastructure, management of government land, borrowings, investments, insurance, superannuation issues and prudential supervision, as assessed by feedback from our key clients' to better align with objectives.

Outputs

Commercial and Infrastructure Advice

(2017-18: \$70.9 million)

This output contributes to the Department's objective to improve how Government manages its balance sheet, commercial activities and public sector infrastructure by:

- providing advice to Government and guidance to departments on infrastructure investment and other major commercial projects;
- overseeing a range of commercial and transactional activities on behalf of Government, including providing governance oversight of government business enterprises and advice to Government, departments and agencies relating to future uses or disposal of surplus government land, property, management of contaminated land liabilities, office accommodation for the public service, and management of the Greener Government Buildings Program;
- providing advice and reports on the State's financial assets and liabilities and associated financial risks, including the State's investments, debts, unfunded superannuation, insurance claims liabilities and overseeing the registration and regulation of rental housing agencies;
- providing commercial, financial and risk management advice to Government and guidance to departments regarding infrastructure projects including Partnerships Victoria projects and managing major commercial activities on behalf of Government;
- overseeing potential asset recycling opportunities; and
- producing budget and financial reporting data for government business enterprise sectors.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual	
Quantity						
Develop and implement policies, procedures and training to govern and build capability to deliver infrastructure investment	number	60	63	45	72	
The higher 2017-18 target reflects the recent trenc for 2017-18. The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the Management Accountability Framework implemen	2016-17 target d	ue to work und	lertaken to develo	p guidance to s		
Gateway reviews undertaken	number	70	84	50	70	
The higher 2017-18 target reflects recent trends in the number of Gateway reviews and expected activity for 2017-18. This performance measure renames the 2016-17 performance measure 'Gateway reviews undertaken to minimise Government's exposure to project risks'. The new measure reports on the same activity as the previous measure however has been amended for increased clarity and conciseness. The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the 2016-17 target due to the elevated volume of projects and reviews experienced throughout 2016-17.						
Revenue from sale of surplus	\$ million	200	200	200	133.4	
Government land including Crown land						

Performance measures Coordinate and produce presentations	measure number	target	outcome		
	number	2		target	actual
for the annual review meetings with		2	2	2	2
credit rating agencies					
Provision of PNFC/PFC financial estimates	number	6	6	6	6
and actuals, along with commentary and					
analysis, for the State budget papers and					
financial reports					
This performance measure renames the 2016-17 p income and superannuation estimates and analys. published financial reports'. The new measure rep amended for increased clarity.	is and commenta	ry on the PNFC	and PFC sectors f	or whole of gov	ernment
Quality					
Maintain ISO 9001 (Quality Management	per cent	100	100	100	100
Systems) Certification					
Percentage of registered housing	per cent	90	nm	nm	nm
agencies assessed annually as meeting					
performance standards					
This performance measure replaces the 2016-17 p reviewed'. It has been replaced to more accurately					ally
Timeliness					
Advice provided to Government on board	per cent	100	100	100	100
appointments at least three months prior					
to upcoming board vacancies					
Analysis and review of corporate plans	per cent	90	90	90	95
within two months of receipt					
Dividend collection in accordance with	per cent	100	nm	nm	nm
budget decisions					
This performance measure replaces the 2016-17 p			ayments made w	vithin agreed tir	neframes'. It
has been replaced to more accurately reflect the p	rocess for divider	nd collection.			
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	70.9	76.1	48.2	56.4
The higher 2017-18 target reflects additional fund					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the additional funding for the West Gate Tunnel and C				UJ Projects Vici	oria ana

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance

Objective 4: Deliver efficient whole of government common services

This objective delivers whole of government common services through working with business partners.

The Department leads the delivery of integrated and client-centred whole of government services, policies and initiatives to achieve value for the Victorian public sector. Areas include procurement, fleet and accommodation.

The departmental objective indicators are:

- benefits delivered as a percentage of expenditure by mandated agencies under DTFmanaged state purchase contracts, including reduced and avoided costs^(a);
- low vacancy rates for government office accommodation maintained^(b); and
- high quality whole of government common services provided to Government agencies, as assessed by feedback from key clients.^(c)

Notes:

- (a) New objective indicator for 2017-18 to reflect a more measurable outcomes focus in accordance with the PMF. This objective indicator was previously a performance measure in the Services to Government output.
- (b) This objective indicator has been updated from Drive efficiency by maintaining low vacancy rates for government office accommodation' to be more clearly outcomes focussed.
- (c) This objective indicator has been updated from Provide high quality, timely and relevant advice on services to Government as assessed by feedback from our key clients' to better align with objectives.

Outputs

Services to Government

(2017-18: \$41.3 million)

The output contributes to the Department's objective of delivering efficient whole of government common services to the Victorian public sector by:

- developing and maintaining a framework of whole of government policies, standards • and guidelines which promote the efficient and effective use of common services including procurement, fleet and accommodation;
- managing a program of whole of government procurement contracts to ensure optimum benefit to government;
- supporting the operations of the Victorian Government Purchasing Board; ٠
- providing whole of government accommodation; and
- providing of efficient fleet leasing and management services.

The performance measures below compare targets and expected or actual results from the delivery of programs and services as part of this output:

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Quantity		<u>-</u>		un gee	
Total accommodation cost	\$ per square metre per year	395	390	395	380
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the incentives. Rental offsets over the lease term redu	5	, ,	,	o use landlord	lease
Workspace ratio	square metre per FTE	14.4	14.4	14.4	13.4
Quality					
Client agencies' satisfaction with the service provided by the Shared Service Provider	per cent	70	70	70	78.4
While the 2015-16 actual exceeded the 2015-16 t 2016-17 and 2017-18 years indicated that achievi realistic target. As a result, targets were not incre	ng above 70 per	,	,	,	,
Maintain ISO 9001 (Quality Management Systems) Certification	per cent	100	100	100	100
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	41.3	43.4	43.8	39.6

urce: Department of Treasury and Fina

PARLIAMENT (INCLUDING VICTORIAN AUDITOR-GENERAL'S OFFICE)

Departmental mission statement

Parliament

The Parliament of Victoria is an independent body that, through its elected representatives, is accountable to the Victorian community for the provision and conduct of representative government in the interests of Victorians.

The Parliament of Victoria's vision is to deliver apolitical, professional and innovative services which will support Victoria's elected representatives and the Parliament as an institution to ensure the proper, effective and independent functioning of the Parliament.

Victorian Auditor-General's Office

- Victoria's *Constitution Act 1975* provides that the Auditor-General is an independent officer of Parliament. For budgetary purposes, the Victorian Auditor-General's Office is included as an output classification within Parliament.
- The main purpose of the Victorian Auditor-General's Office is to provide assurance to Parliament on the accountability and performance of the Victorian public sector.

Departmental objectives

Parliament

The Departments of the Parliament of Victoria aim to:

- provide services that support operations, support to members, internal communication, knowledge and infrastructure management, legislation processing and compliance;
- provide fearless, apolitical and impartial advice;
- safeguard Parliament's independence and integrity;
- strengthen links with the community;
- protect building heritage; and
- strive for leadership and best practice in their activities and employment standards.

Victorian Auditor-General's Office

The Victorian Auditor-General's Office aims to:

- provide assurance to Parliament about the accountability and performance of the Victorian public sector through the provision of audits;
- be authoritative and relevant and highly regarded by Parliament;

Parliament

- leverage our systems and processes to improve organisational performance;
- foster a stimulating working environment; and
- foster productive relationships with audit clients.

Changes to the output structure

The Victorian Auditor-General's Office has made changes to its output structure for 2017-18 as shown in the table below:

2016-17 outputs	Reason	2017-18 outputs
Audit reports on Financial Statements	The output has been renamed to more accurately reflect the services delivered	Audit opinions on Financial and Performance Statements

Source: Victorian Auditor-General's Office

The following table summarises the Department's total output cost.

Output summary by departmental objectives

The Department's outputs and funding are provided in the table below. Detailed descriptions of objectives, outputs, together with their key performance indicators are presented in subsequent tables.

				(Şinnin)
	2016-17	2016-17	2017-18	Variation ^(a)
	budget	revised	budget	%
Legislative Council ^(b)	16.6	19.2	18.9	13.5
Legislative Assembly ^(c)	31.4	37.7	38.3	21.7
Parliamentary Services ^(d)	97.6	92.5	110.4	13.1
Parliamentary Investigatory Committees ^(e)	7.8	7.2	7.3	(6.3)
Parliamentary Budget Office ^(f)	4.4	1.3	4.4	
Victorian Auditor General's Office	42.5	42.5	43.9	3.3
Total	200.3	200.4	223.2	11.4

Source: Parliament of Victoria and Victorian Auditor-General's Office

Notes:

(a) Variation between 2016-17 budget and 2017-18 budget.

- (b) The 2017-18 budget for Legislative Council is higher than 2016-17 budget due to transfer of ministerial salaries from Department of Premier and Cabinet to Parliament.
- (c) The 2017-18 budget for Legislative Assembly is higher than 2016-17 budget due to transfer of ministerial salaries from Department of Premier and Cabinet to Parliament.
- (d) The 2017-18 budget for Parliamentary Services is higher than 2016-17 budget due to estimated carryover of appropriation funding from 2016-17 to 2017-18 and additional funding approved as part of the 2017-18 Budget including an increase in Members of Parliament Electorate Office and Communication budget, upgrade of security at Members' electorate offices, and increase in electorate office staffing.

(e) The 2017-18 budget for Parliamentary Investigatory Committees is lower than 2016-17 budget due to one off approval of funding as part of 2016-17 Budget for the performance audit of Victorian Auditor General's Office.

(f) The 2016-17 revised budget for Parliamentary Budget Office is lower than 2016-17 budget due to carryover of appropriation funding from 2016-17 to 2017-18 and transfer of funding in 2016-17 to Parliamentary Services pursuant to section 31 1(a) of the Financial Management Act 1994.

(\$ million)

Amounts available

The following tables detail the amounts available to the Department from Parliamentary authority and income generated through transactions.

Table 2.16 outlines the Department's income from transactions and Table 2.17 summarises the sources of Parliamentary authority available to the Department to fund the provision of outputs, additions to the net asset base and payments made on behalf of the State.

Table 2.16: Income from transactions			(\$	s million)
	2015-16	2016-17	2016-17	2017-18
	actual	budget	revised	budget ^(a)
Output appropriations	144.6	159.9	152.0	173.1
Special appropriations	29.1	40.0	48.3	49.2
Interest				
Sales of goods and services	1.6			
Grants	0.1			
Fair value of assets and services received free of charge or for nominal consideration				
Other income	(0.1)			
Total income from transactions	175.4	200.0	200.4	222.4

Source: Parliament of Victoria and Victorian Auditor-General's Office

Note:

(a) There are no non-public account contributions in 2017-18 estimates.

Table 2.17: Parliamentary authority for resources

	2016-17	2016-17	2017-18
	budget	revised	budget
Annual appropriations	128.9	122.5	146.3
Provision of outputs	128.9	122.5	140.3
Additions to the net asset base			6.0
Payments made on behalf of the State			
Receipts credited to appropriations	25.6	25.9	26.1
Unapplied previous years appropriation	5.4	3.5	6.8
Provision of outputs	5.4	3.5	6.8
Additions to the net asset base			
Payments made on behalf of the State			
Accumulated surplus – previously applied appropriation	28.7	24.7	14.8
Gross annual appropriation	188.6	176.7	193.9
Special appropriations	40.0	48.3	49.2
Trust funds			
Total parliamentary authority	228.6	225.0	243.1

Source: Parliament of Victoria and Victorian Auditor-General's Office

(\$ million)

Outputs

Legislative Council

(2017-18: \$18.9 million)

This output involves the provision of procedural advice to Members of the Legislative Council including: processing of legislation; preparation of the records of the proceedings and documentation required for the sittings of the Council; provision of assistance to Parliamentary Committees; provision of information relating to the proceedings of the Council; and the enhancement of public awareness of Parliament.

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Quantity					
Procedural References updated biannually	number	2	2	2	2
Quality					
Bills and amendments processed accurately through all relevant stages and other business of the House conducted according to law, Standing and Sessional Orders	per cent	100	100	100	100
Member satisfaction with accuracy, clarity and timeliness of advice	per cent	80	80	80	100
Timeliness					
Documents tabled within time guidelines	per cent	90	90	90	100
House documents and other Sitting related information available one day after sitting day	per cent	100	100	100	100
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	18.9	19.2	16.6	13.7
The 2017-18 budget is higher than 2016-17 bud Cabinet to Parliament.	yet aue to trans	sjer of ministerial	saiuries from Dep	our timent of Pre	mier ana

Legislative Assembly

(2017-18: \$38.3 million)

This output involves the provision of procedural advice to Members of the Legislative Assembly including: processing of legislation; preparation of the records of the proceedings and documentation required for the sittings of the Assembly; provision of assistance to Parliamentary Committees; provision of information relating to the proceedings of the Assembly; and the enhancement of public awareness of Parliament.

			2016-17		
Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Quantity	medoure	turget	outcome	curger	actaar
Procedural References updated biannually	number	2	2	2	2
Regional visits to schools to conduct Parliamentary role plays	number	5	5	5	6
Quality					
Bills and amendments processed accurately through all relevant stages in compliance with constitutional requirements and standing orders	per cent	100	100	100	100
Member satisfaction that advice is responsive, prompt, clear and objective	per cent	80	80	80	95
Teacher satisfaction with tours of Parliament for school groups	per cent	95	95	95	99
Timeliness					
Documents tabled within time guidelines	per cent	90	90	90	100
House documents available one day after sitting day	per cent	100	100	100	100
Online information relating to bills updated within one day	per cent	98	98	98	100
Cost					
Total output cost The 2017-18 budget is higher than 2016-17 bud Cabinet to Parliament.	\$ million get due to trans	38.3 fer of ministerial	37.7 salaries from Dep	31.4 partment of Pre	23.7 emier and

Parliamentary Services

(2017-18: \$110.4 million)

Parliamentary Services provides consultancy, advisory and support services in the areas of library, Hansard, education, human resources, finance, information technology (IT), maintenance, grounds and facilities along with planning, implementation and management of capital projects, for the Parliament of Victoria.

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Quantity					
IT systems availability (Parliament and Electorate Offices)	per cent	99	99	99	99
Monthly management reports to MPs and departments within five business days after the end of the month to include variance information against budgets	number	12	12	12	12
Parliamentary audio system transmission availability	per cent	99	99	99	100
Provide MPs with a functional electorate office	per cent	95	95	95	99
Quality					
Clear Audit opinion on Parliamentary financial statements (previous year)	per cent	100	100	100	100
Clients satisfied with quality of information provided by Library staff	per cent	85	85	85	96
Maintain and secure the parliamentary precinct and have it available for legislative program	per cent	95	95	95	100
Timeliness					<u> </u>
Indexes, records and speeches and transcripts provided within agreed timeframes	per cent	90	90	90	95
Payroll processing completed accurately and within agreed timeframes	per cent	99	99	99	100
Cost					
Total output cost The 2017-18 budget is higher than 2016-17 bud 2017-18 and additional funding approved as pa					

2017-18 and additional funding approved as part of the 2017-18 Budget including an increase in Members of Parliament Electorate Office and Communication budget, upgrade of security at Members' electorate offices, and increase in electorate office staffing.

Parliamentary Investigatory Committees

(2017-18: \$7.3 million)

Joint Investigatory Committees are appointed pursuant to the *Parliamentary Committees Act 2003* to inquire into and report on matters referred by either House or the Governor in Council, or which may be self-generated by a committee.

			2016-17		0015 10
Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Quantity					
Reports tabled per annum	number	28	28	28	37
Quality					
Committee members satisfied that advice	per cent	80	80	80	98
about procedure, research and					
administration is responsive, clear,					
objective and prompt		05	05	05	400
Inquiries conducted and reports	per cent	95	95	95	100
produced in compliance with procedural and legislative requirements					
Timeliness					
Reports tabled in compliance with	per cent	95	95	95	100
procedural and legislative deadlines	p =				
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	7.3	7.2	7.8	7.0
The 2017-18 budget is lower than 2016-17 budget due to one off approval of funding as part of 2016-17 Budget for the performance audit of Victorian Auditor General's Office.					

Parliamentary Budget Office

(2017-18: \$4.4 million)

This output provides policy costings and advisory services to members of Parliament, and pre-election and post-election reports. The first year of operations will mainly involve establishing the PBO and its operational capability including recruitment of the first Parliamentary Budget Officer and staff, developing governance and operational arrangements, building analytical and research capability and some policy costing services.

			2016-17			
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16	
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual	
Quantity						
Number of costing requests	number	**	nm	**	nm	
Quality						
Satisfaction of Parliamentary	per cent	80	nm	80	nm	
stakeholders with policy costings and						
financial advice						
Timeliness						
Costing requests responded by due date	per cent	80	nm	80	nm	
Operational framework, including	date	31 Mar 2018	nm	31 Mar 2017	nm	
protocols and procedures, established						
and implemented						
Cost						
Total output cost	\$ million	4.4	1.3	4.4		
The 2016-17 revised budget is lower than 2016-17 budget due to carryover of appropriation funding from 2016-17 to 2017-18						
and transfer of funding in 2016-17 to Parliamenta 1994.	iry services pur	suant to section 3	L 1(a) of the Fir	ianciai ivianageme	nt Act	

Victorian Auditor-General's Office

The purpose of the Victorian Auditor-General's Office is to provide assurance to Parliament on the accountability and performance of the Victorian public sector. Under the *Audit Act 1994*, the Auditor-General audits financial statements prepared by Victorian public sector agencies and issues audit reports. In addition, the Auditor-General carries out performance audits to determine whether authorities, operations or activities are operating effectively, economically and efficiently in compliance with all relevant Acts.

Audit opinions on financial and performance statements (2017-18: \$28.4 million)

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Quantity	measure	target	outcome	target	uctuur
Average cost of audit opinions issued on performance statements	\$ thousand	5	nm	nm	nm
This performance measure is proposed to replace performance indicators'. It has been replaced to r resources.					
Average cost of audit opinions issued on the financial statements of agencies	\$ thousand	50.0	nm	nm	nm
This performance measure is proposed to replace statements of agencies'. It has been replaced to r resources.		•			
Quality					
External/peer reviews finding no material departures from professional and regulatory standards	per cent	100	75	100	80
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the the Office this year, that led to the detection of a reviews it conducted this year as part of a broade process.	greater number	of material depa	rtures. The Office	increased the i	number of
Proportion of agencies disclosing prior period material errors in financial statements	per cent	≤5	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017-18 that cont across the public sector.	tributes to a bette	er representatior	n/capture of the O	ffice's effective	eness
Timeliness					
Audit opinions issued within statutory deadlines	per cent	98	98	98	98
Management letters to agencies issued within established timeframes	per cent	90	90	90	88
within established timenames					
Cost					

Parliamentary Reports and Services

(2017-18: \$15.5 million)

, ,			•	•	
Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Quantity					
Average cost of Parliamentary reports	\$ thousand	499	nm	nm	nm
This performance measure is proposed to replac replaced to more adequately capture the efficier				ral's reports'. It	has been
Quality					
Percentage of performance audit recommendations accepted which are reported as implemented by audited agencies	per cent	80	nm	nm	nm
This performance measure is proposed to replac external/peer assessors'. It has been replaced to					,
Overall level of external satisfaction with audit reports and services – Parliamentarians	per cent	85	85	85	86
Timeliness					
Average duration taken to finalise responses to inquiries from Members of Parliament	days	20	nm	nm	nm
This performance measure is proposed to replac and the public responded to within 28 days'. It h Office responds to inquiries from respective parl	as been replaced t				
Average duration taken to produce performance audit parliamentary reports	months	≤8	nm	nm	nm
This performance measure is proposed to replac replaced to more adequately capture the efficier	e the 2016-17 per			leted on time'.	It has been
Average duration taken to produce financial audit parliamentary reports afte balance date	months r	≤5	nm	nm	nm
This performance measure is proposed to replac replaced to more adequately capture the efficier		•		leted on time'.	It has been
Cost					
Total output cost	\$ million	15.5	16.0	16.9	15.0
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the contributing to this output than originally anticip methodology for allocating corporate services an	pated. The lower 2	017-18 target re			es

Source: Victorian Auditor-General's Office

COURT SERVICES VICTORIA

Ministerial portfolios

Victoria's courts and tribunals are part of the ministerial portfolio of the Attorney-General.

Departmental mission statement

Victoria's courts and tribunals' mission is to safeguard and maintain the rule of law through the fair, timely and efficient dispensing of justice.

Victoria's courts and tribunals are supported by Court Services Victoria, which is an independent statutory body established to provide administrative services and facilities to support Victorian courts, the Victorian Civil and Administrative Tribunal, and the Judicial College of Victoria.

Departmental objectives

The fair, timely and efficient dispensing of justice

Victoria's courts and tribunals aim to:

- provide equal access to justice;
- ensure fairness, impartiality and independence in decision making;
- follow processes that are transparent, timely and certain;
- strive for leadership and best practice in court administration; and
- strengthen links with the community.

The Courts output contributes to this objective by delivering court and tribunal services, which provide access to the highest standard of justice for the community, and inspire public confidence in the rule of law.

Output summary by departmental objectives

The Department's outputs and funding are provided in the table below. Detailed descriptions of objectives and outputs, together with their key performance indicators, are presented in subsequent tables.

	2016-17	2016-17	2017-18	Variation ^(a)
	budget	revised	budget	%
The fair, timely and efficient dispensing of justice				
Courts ^(b)	487.0	497.5	532.2	9.3
Total	487.0	497.5	532.2	9.3

Source: Court Services Victoria

Notes:

(a) Variation between the 2016-17 budget and 2017-18 budget.

(b) The higher 2017-18 estimate is primarily due to funding of new initiatives in 2017-18.

Amounts available

The following tables detail the amounts available to the Department from Parliamentary authority and income generated through transactions.

Table 2.18 outlines the Department's income from transactions and Table 2.19 summarises the sources of Parliamentary authority available to the Department to fund the provision of outputs, additions to the net asset base and payments made on behalf of the State.

Table 2.18: Income from transactions

	2015-16	2016-17	2016-17	2017-18
	actual	budget	revised	budget ^(a)
Output appropriations	309.6	325.1	335.1	361.8
Special appropriations	123.1	145.2	145.8	153.8
Interest				
Sales of goods and services				
Grants	21.7	16.6	16.6	16.6
Fair value of assets and services received free of charge or for nominal consideration	0.2			
Other income	3.3			
Total income from transactions	458.0	487.0	497.5	532.2

Source: Court Services Victoria

Note:

(a) There are no non-public account contributions in 2017-18 estimates.

(\$ million)

(\$ million)

Table 2.19: Parliamentary authority for resources

(\$ million)

	2016-17	2016-17	2017-18
	budget	revised	budget
Annual appropriations	303.0	286.2	358.0
Provision of outputs	259.7	259.9	296.4
Additions to the net asset base	43.3	26.3	61.6
Payments made on behalf of the State			
Receipts credited to appropriations	65.4	65.4	65.4
Unapplied previous years appropriation		28.0	
Provision of outputs		9.8	
Additions to the net asset base		18.2	
Payments made on behalf of the State			
Accumulated surplus – previously applied appropriation			
Gross annual appropriation	368.4	379.6	423.4
Special appropriations	208.4	185.8	194.8
Trust funds	16.6	16.6	16.6
Victorian Civil and Administrative Tribunal Trust ^(a)	16.6	16.6	16.6
Total parliamentary authority	593.4	582.0	634.8

Source: Court Services Victoria

Note:

(a) The purpose of this trust primarily relates to funding the Victorian Civil and Administrative Tribunal's Owners Corporation, Domestic Building, and Residential Tenancies lists.

Departmental performance statement

Objective 1: The fair, timely and efficient dispensing of justice

This objective delivers the fair, timely and efficient dispensing of justice for Victorians. It aims to provide equal access to justice for all, and ensure fairness, impartiality and independence in decision making. All processes followed by courts and tribunals are transparent, timely and certain for all parties. The delivery of this objective requires courts and tribunals to strive for leadership and best practice in court administration to dispense justice for Victorians, and engage with the community to strengthen their understanding of court procedure and confidence in the rule of law.

The departmental objective indicators are:

- clearance of criminal caseload (finalisations/lodgements); and
- clearance of civil caseload (finalisations/lodgements).

Outputs

Courts

(2017-18: \$532.2 million)

This output delivers impartial and independent dispensing of justice across six jurisdictions:

- Supreme Court of Victoria;
- County Court of Victoria;
- Magistrates' Court of Victoria;
- Children's Court of Victoria;
- Coroners Court of Victoria; and
- Victorian Civil and Administrative Tribunal.

Other areas that contribute to the achievement of this objective include functions that support the operation of each jurisdiction. These include:

- corporate and service functions delivered by Court Services Victoria;
- criminal recording and transcription services delivered by the Victorian Government Reporting Service; and
- judicial training and education delivered by the Judicial College of Victoria.

The performance measures below compare estimates and expected or actual results from the delivery of court services by the six jurisdictions as part of this output:

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 estimate	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 estimate	2015-16 actual
Quantity					
Average cost per case – Civil matters	dollars	2 413	2 541	2 303	2 119
disposed in the Supreme Court					
Probate matters finalised in the Supreme Court of The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than th in the Supreme Court's digital services and case r In addition, the Supreme Court has experienced s	e 2016-17 estimo management imp	nte due to increas provement.	ed one-off fundi	ng to support i	nvestment
Average cost per case – Civil matters disposed in the County Court	dollars	5 319	5 062	5 716	5 282
The 2017-18 estimate and 2016-17 expected out the number of civil matters disposed in 2016-17 of the number		than the 2016-17	estimate due to	an anticipated	increase in
Average cost per case – Civil matters	dollars	691	614	598	980
disposed in the Magistrates' Court					
The higher 2017-18 estimate is primarily due to J The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than th civil cases in 2016-17.				decline in the n	umber of
Average cost per case – Family Division matters disposed in the Children's Court	dollars	1 014	1 081	1 046	976
The lower 2017-18 estimate is primarily due to a			-		
Average cost per case – Civil matters disposed in the Victorian Civil and Administrative Tribunal	dollars	708	678	595	626
The 2017-18 estimate and 2016-17 expected out customer services improvements, a budget carry cost allocation.	-				-
Average cost per case – Coronial matters disposed in the Coroners Court	dollars	3 379	3 334	2 909	2 566
The DOAC 47 evenenteed is in the stand					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than th budget carryover from 2015-16.	e 2016-17 estimo	ate due to an incr	ease in corporate	e cost allocatio	n and a
	e 2016-17 estimo dollars	nte due to an incr 41 167	ease in corporate	e cost allocatio	n and a 34 164
budget carryover from 2015-16. Average cost per case – Criminal matters disposed in the Supreme Court The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than th	dollars e 2016-17 estimo	41 167 Inte due to one-ofj	43 359 f funding to supp	38 025 ort investment	34 164 in the
budget carryover from 2015-16. Average cost per case – Criminal matters disposed in the Supreme Court The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than th Supreme Court's digital transformation agenda of In addition, the Supreme Court has experienced s	dollars e 2016-17 estimo and the introduct significant increas	41 167 ate due to one-ofj ion of specialist s ses in maintenan	43 359 f funding to supp taff to deliver ca ce and infrastruc	38 025 ort investment se managemer	34 164 in the nt reforms.
budget carryover from 2015-16. Average cost per case – Criminal matters disposed in the Supreme Court The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than th Supreme Court's digital transformation agenda of	dollars e 2016-17 estimo and the introduct	41 167 ate due to one-ofj ion of specialist s	43 359 f funding to supp taff to deliver ca	38 025 ort investment se managemer	34 164 in the nt reforms.
budget carryover from 2015-16. Average cost per case – Criminal matters disposed in the Supreme Court The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than th Supreme Court's digital transformation agenda of In addition, the Supreme Court has experienced s Average cost per case – Criminal matters disposed in the County Court The 2017-18 estimate and 2016-17 expected out the number of criminal matters disposed in 2016	dollars e 2016-17 estimo and the introduct significant increa: dollars come are lower t	41 167 ate due to one-ofj ion of specialist s ses in maintenan 15 841 than the 2016-17	43 359 f funding to supp taff to deliver ca ce and infrastruc 15 086	38 025 ort investment se managemen ture costs. 17 570	34 164 in the nt reforms. 15 741 increase in
budget carryover from 2015-16. Average cost per case – Criminal matters disposed in the Supreme Court The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than th Supreme Court's digital transformation agenda of In addition, the Supreme Court has experienced s Average cost per case – Criminal matters disposed in the County Court The 2017-18 estimate and 2016-17 expected out	dollars e 2016-17 estimo and the introduct significant increa: dollars come are lower t	41 167 ate due to one-ofj ion of specialist s ses in maintenan 15 841 than the 2016-17	43 359 f funding to supp taff to deliver ca ce and infrastruc 15 086	38 025 ort investment se managemen ture costs. 17 570	34 164 in the nt reforms. 15 741 increase in
budget carryover from 2015-16. Average cost per case – Criminal matters disposed in the Supreme Court The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than th Supreme Court's digital transformation agenda of In addition, the Supreme Court has experienced s Average cost per case – Criminal matters disposed in the County Court The 2017-18 estimate and 2016-17 expected out the number of criminal matters disposed in 2016 Average cost per case – Criminal matters disposed in the Magistrates' Court The higher 2017-18 estimate is primarily due to f	dollars e 2016-17 estima and the introduct significant increa: dollars come are lower to i-17 and 2017-18 dollars	41 167 the due to one-ofj ion of specialist s ses in maintenan 15 841 than the 2016-17 - 632	43 359 f funding to supp taff to deliver ca ce and infrastruc 15 086 estimate due to 585	38 025 ort investment se managemer ture costs. 17 570 an anticipated	34 164 in the nt reforms. 15 741 increase in
budget carryover from 2015-16. Average cost per case – Criminal matters disposed in the Supreme Court The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than th Supreme Court's digital transformation agenda of In addition, the Supreme Court has experienced st Average cost per case – Criminal matters disposed in the County Court The 2017-18 estimate and 2016-17 expected out the number of criminal matters disposed in 2016 Average cost per case – Criminal matters disposed in the Magistrates' Court	dollars e 2016-17 estima and the introduct significant increa: dollars come are lower to i-17 and 2017-18 dollars	41 167 the due to one-ofj ion of specialist s ses in maintenan 15 841 than the 2016-17 - 632	43 359 f funding to supp taff to deliver ca ce and infrastruc 15 086 estimate due to 585	38 025 ort investment se managemer ture costs. 17 570 an anticipated	34 164 in the nt reforms. 15 741 increase in 571
budget carryover from 2015-16. Average cost per case – Criminal matters disposed in the Supreme Court The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than th Supreme Court's digital transformation agenda of In addition, the Supreme Court has experienced set Average cost per case – Criminal matters disposed in the County Court The 2017-18 estimate and 2016-17 expected out the number of criminal matters disposed in 2016 Average cost per case – Criminal matters disposed in the Magistrates' Court The higher 2017-18 estimate is primarily due to f Average cost per case – Criminal matters	dollars e 2016-17 estimo and the introduct significant increas dollars come are lower t i-17 and 2017-18 dollars funding of new in dollars	41 167 the due to one-ofj ion of specialist s ses in maintenan 15 841 than the 2016-17 632 itiatives in 2017- 313	43 359 f funding to supp taff to deliver ca ce and infrastruc 15 086 estimate due to 585 18. 231	38 025 ort investment se managemen ture costs. 17 570 an anticipated 547	34 164 in the nt reforms. 15 741 increase in 571
budget carryover from 2015-16. Average cost per case – Criminal matters disposed in the Supreme Court The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the Supreme Court's digital transformation agenda of In addition, the Supreme Court has experienced st Average cost per case – Criminal matters disposed in the County Court The 2017-18 estimate and 2016-17 expected out the number of criminal matters disposed in 2016 Average cost per case – Criminal matters disposed in the Magistrates' Court The higher 2017-18 estimate is primarily due to f Average cost per case – Criminal matters disposed in the Children's Court The higher 2017-18 estimate is primarily due to f Average cost per case – Criminal matters disposed in the Children's Court The higher 2017-18 estimate is primarily due to f Case clearance rate – Civil matters	dollars e 2016-17 estimo and the introduct significant increas dollars come are lower t i-17 and 2017-18 dollars funding of new in dollars	41 167 the due to one-ofj ion of specialist s ses in maintenan 15 841 than the 2016-17 632 itiatives in 2017- 313	43 359 f funding to supp taff to deliver ca ce and infrastruc 15 086 estimate due to 585 18. 231 18. 18.	38 025 ort investment se managemen ture costs. 17 570 an anticipated 547	34 164 in the it reforms. 15 741 increase in 571 227 103
budget carryover from 2015-16. Average cost per case – Criminal matters disposed in the Supreme Court The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the Supreme Court's digital transformation agenda of In addition, the Supreme Court has experienced st Average cost per case – Criminal matters disposed in the County Court The 2017-18 estimate and 2016-17 expected out the number of criminal matters disposed in 2016 Average cost per case – Criminal matters disposed in the Magistrates' Court The higher 2017-18 estimate is primarily due to f Average cost per case – Criminal matters disposed in the Children's Court The higher 2017-18 estimate is primarily due to f	dollars e 2016-17 estimo and the introduct significant increas dollars come are lower t 5-17 and 2017-18 dollars funding of new in dollars funding of new in per cent	41 167 the due to one-ofj ion of specialist s ses in maintenan 15 841 than the 2016-17 632 itiatives in 2017- 313 itiatives in 2017- 100	43 359 f funding to supp taff to deliver ca ce and infrastruc 15 086 estimate due to 585 18. 231 18. 100 (28 000/ 28 000)	38 025 ort investment se managemen ture costs. 17 570 an anticipated 547 224	34 164 in the nt reforms. 15 741 increase in

			2016-17		
Darformanco mogsuros	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	estimate	outcome	estimate	actual
Case clearance rate – Civil matters	per cent	100	100 (6 450/	100	111 (6 473/
disposed in the County Court			(6 450) 6 450)		(6 473) 5 821)
The case clearance rate is calculated as (number	r of cases dispose	number of cav	•		5 821)
Case clearance rate – Civil matters	per cent	100	100	100	91
disposed in the Magistrates' Court	per cent	100	(55 000/	100	(55 316/
disposed in the Magistrates Court			55 000)		60 699)
The case clearance rate is calculated as (number	r of cases dispose	d/number of cas	•		,
Case clearance rate – Family Division	per cent	100	98	95	95.5
matters disposed in the Children's Court			(19 600/		(19 110/
			20 000)		20 003)
The case clearance rate is calculated as (number The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than th			,	acklog.	
Case clearance rate – Civil matters	per cent	100	100	100	102
disposed in the Victorian Civil and			(89 000/		(87 448/
Administrative Tribunal			89 000)		85 961)
The case clearance rate is calculated as (number	of cases dispose	d/number of cas	ses initiated).		
Case clearance rate – Coronial matters	per cent	100	100	100	104.6
disposed in the Coroners Court			(6 300/		(6 596/
			6 300)		6 305)
The case clearance rate is calculated as (number	of cases dispose	ed/number of cas	ses initiated).		
Case clearance rate – Criminal matters	per cent	100	100	100	106
disposed in the Supreme Court			(550/		(594/
			550)		563)
The case clearance rate is calculated as (number	r of cases dispose	ed/number of cas	ses initiated).		
Case clearance rate – Criminal matters	per cent	100	100	100	99
disposed in the County Court			(5 450/		(5 453/
	<i>c</i> "	1/ 1 6	5 430)		5 522)
The case clearance rate is calculated as (number		-		100	104
Case clearance rate – Criminal matters	per cent	100	100	100	124
disposed in the Magistrates' Court			(180 000/ 180 000)		(199 960/ 160 942)
The case clearance rate is calculated as (number	of cases dispose	d/number of ca			100 942)
Case clearance rate – Criminal matters	per cent	100	110 110	100	108.6
disposed in the Children's Court	percent	100	(22 000/	100	(25 718/
disposed in the children's court			20 000)		23 688)
The case clearance rate is calculated as (number	r of cases dispose	number of ca	,		25 0007
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than th			,	acklog.	
Case clearance rate – Family violence	per cent	100	nm	nm	nm
intervention orders disposed in the	·				
Magistrates' and Children's Courts					
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflect	t Government pr	riorities regardin	g prevention of fo	mily violence.	
The case clearance rate is calculated as (number	r of cases dispose	ed/number of cas	ses initiated).		
Quality					
Court file integrity in the Supreme Court –	per cent	90	90	90	nm
availability, accuracy and completeness					
Court file integrity in the County Court –	per cent	90	70	90	nm
availability, accuracy and completeness					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the					
Court is working through an improvement plan,			ke longer than 12	months to imp	plement.
Therefore, it is expected that the 2016-17 estime	ate will not be me	et.			

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	estimate	outcome	estimate	actual
Court file integrity in the Magistrates' Court – availability, accuracy and	per cent	90	90	90	nm
completeness					
Court file integrity in the Children's Court – availability, accuracy and completeness	per cent	90	89	90	nm
Court file integrity in the Coroners Court –	per cent	90	87	90	nm
availability, accuracy and completeness	P				
Court file integrity in the Victorian Civil and	per cent	90	85	90	nm
Administrative Tribunal – availability,					
accuracy and completeness					
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the availability, accuracy and completeness of court j expected in 2017-18.			-		
Timeliness					
On-time case processing – Civil matters	per cent	90	90	90	93
resolved or otherwise finalised within					
established timeframes in the Supreme					
Court					
Established timeframe for Supreme Court Civil me case complexity and historical benchmarking.	atters is two yed	ars from case lod	gement to finalis	ation, based on	average
On-time case processing – Civil matters	per cent	90	90	90	86
resolved or otherwise finalised within					
established timeframes in the County					
Court					
Established timeframe for County Court Civil mat case complexity and historical benchmarking.	ters is two years	s from case loage	ement to finalisat	ion, basea on a	verage
On-time case processing – Civil matters	per cent	80	80	80	85
resolved or otherwise finalised within	p				
established timeframes in the Magistrates'					
Court					
Established timeframe for Magistrates' Court Civ based on average case complexity and historical		months from con	nmencement of a	matter to fina	lisation,
On-time case processing – Family Division	per cent	90	90	90	90.9
matters resolved or otherwise finalised					
within established timeframes in the					
Children's Court					
Established timeframe for Children's Court Family on average case complexity and historical benchr		rs is nine months	from case lodge	ment to finalisc	ition, based
On-time case processing – Civil matters	per cent	90	90	90	91
resolved or otherwise finalised within					
established timeframes in the Victorian					
Civil and Administrative Tribunal					
Established timeframe for Victorian Civil and Adn		unal matters is oi	ne year from case	e lodgement to	finalisation,
based on average case complexity and historical		80	81.5	75	80.2
On-time case processing – Coronial matters resolved or otherwise finalised	per cent	80	81.5	75	80.2
within established timeframes in the					
Coroners Court					
Established timeframe for Coronial matters is one	e vear from case	e lodaement to fi	nalisation. based	on averaae cas	e
complexity and historical benchmarking.	,				-
The 2016-17 expected outcome is greater than the					
coronial cases in an efficient and timely manner,	including contin	uous improveme	nt to case manag	gement process	ies.

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 estimate	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 estimate	2015-16 actual
On-time case processing – Criminal matters resolved or otherwise finalised within established timeframes in the Supreme Court	per cent	80	75	75	84
Established timeframe for Supreme Court Crimin average case complexity and historical benchma		e year from case	lodgement to find	ilisation, based	on
On-time case processing – Criminal matters resolved or otherwise finalised within established timeframes in the County Court	per cent	85	85	85	90
Established timeframe for County Court Criminal case complexity and historical benchmarking.	l matters is one y	ear from case lo	odgement to finali.	sation, based o	n average
On-time case processing – Criminal matters resolved or otherwise finalised within established timeframes in the Magistrates' Court	per cent	85	85	85	84
Established timeframe for Magistrates' Court Cr. on average case complexity and historical bench		six months fron	n first hearing of a	case to finalise	ition, based
On-time case processing – Criminal matters resolved or otherwise finalised within established timeframes in the Children's Court	per cent	90	92	90	94.4
Established timeframe for Children's Court Crimi on average case complexity and historical bench		c months from fi	rst hearing of a ca	se to finalisatio	n, based
On-time case processing – Family violence intervention orders resolved or otherwise finalised within established timeframes in the Magistrates' and Children's Courts	per cent	90	nm	nm	nm
New performance measure for 2017-18 to reflec Established timeframe for Magistrates' Court an from commencement of a matter to finalisation,	d Children's Cou	rt Family Violend	ce Intervention Or	der matters is s	ix months
Cost					
Total output cost The higher 2017-18 estimate is primarily due to j	\$ million funding of new in	532.2 nitiatives in 2017	497.5 7- <i>18.</i>	487.0	465.3

Source: Court Services Victoria

APPENDIX A – OUTPUT PERFORMANCE MEASURES FOR REVIEW BY THE PUBLIC ACCOUNTS AND ESTIMATES COMMITTEE

DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, JOBS, TRANSPORT AND RESOURCES

			2016-17						
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16				
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual				
Agriculture									
Quantity									
Plant health certificates issued for	number	5 000	5 000	7 000	5 042				
Melbourne markets to support domestic market access									
This performance measure is proposed to be discontinued as the demand for plant health certificates is outside of the Department's control and a target cannot reasonably be forecast. The measure has been replaced with the 2017-18 performance measure 'Plant health certificates issued within specified timeframes at the Melbourne Wholesale Fruit and Vegetable Market to support domestic market access' to demonstrate the responsiveness of the Department's regulatory function that safeguards market access. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the 2016-17 target due to private sector demand for plant health certificates variations. This is consistent with demands from 2015-16. The lower 2017-18 target reflects current private sector demand for plant health certificates, consistent with preceding years.									
Properties inspected for invasive plant and animal priority species	number	3 100	2 800	3 300	2 516				
This performance measure has been proposed to regulatory approach. The measure has been repla community-led management of invasive plant and modernised co-regulatory approach where the De Compliance projects under this measure involve p their responsibilities to manage invasive plants and a local scale. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the management responses for exotic plant, pest and storm and flood events. The lower 2017-18 target reflects the level of reso of resources to essential trade and market access response, this measure will be impacted through j	need with the 20 d animal priority partment supp roperty inspecti d animals in ac 2016-17 target disease incursio purcing from the biosecurity serv	117-18 performar y species'. This m orts community e ons across target cordance with co due to staff being ons to protect dou 2017-18 budget rices. In addition,	ce measure 'Proje easure more accu ifforts with target ted areas to ensur llaborative, comm g diverted to high mestic and export outcomes, and th in the event of sig	ects delivered to rately reflects t ed compliance e that all landh nunity driven ap priority emerge markets, as we e anticipated ro	o support he activity. olders fulfil proaches at mcy ell as to e-direction				

	Unit of	2017-18	2016-17 expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Sustainably Manage Fish, Game	and For	est Resour	ces		
Quality					
Key statutory obligations relevant to VicForests and the Game Management Authority complied with (tabling annual reports, audits, corporate plans and board appointments) This performance measure is proposed to be disco					100 Isures 'Key
statutory obligations relevant to VicForests compl appointments)' and 'Key statutory obligations rele report, audits, business plan and board appointme	evant to the Gar	ne Management J	Authority complie		annual
Resources					
Quantity					
Delivery of key milestones for the Powerline bushfire safety work program	per cent	na	na	100	100
This performance measure is proposed to be disco measure was previously presented as part of the no longer relevant as the function has been transf	Energy and Reso	ources output of th	ne Department. R	Reporting on thi	
Timeliness					
Delivery of key CarbonNet milestones, in line with funding agreements and agreed project deliverables	per cent	100	100	100	43
This performance measure is proposed to be disco 'Facilitate the delivery of resources projects in line				rformance med	isure
Delivery of key milestones for the energy efficiency and productivity work program	per cent	na	na	100	100
This performance measure is proposed to be disco measure was previously presented as part of the B no longer relevant as the function has been transf	Energy and Reso	ources output of th	ne Department. R	Reporting on thi	
Delivery of key milestones for the renewable energy work program	per cent	na	na	100	100
This performance measure is proposed to be disco measure was previously presented as part of the L no longer relevant as the function has been transf	Energy and Reso	ources output of th	ne Department. R	Reporting on thi	
Delivery of key milestones for the Victorian Energy Efficiency Target Scheme work program	per cent	na	na	100	nm
This performance measure is proposed to be disco measure was previously presented as part of the L no longer relevant as the function has been transf	Energy and Reso	ources output of th	he Department. R	Reporting on thi	
Facilitate the delivery of key energy technology innovation milestones in line with grant agreements	per cent	na	na	100	94
This performance measure is proposed to be disco measure was previously presented as part of the E no longer relevant as the function has been transf	Energy and Reso	ources output of th	ne Department. R	Reporting on thi	

			2016-17		
Dorformanco modeuros	Unit of	2017-18	expected outcome	2016-17	2015-16 actual
Performance measures	measure	target		target	ατιααι
Creative Industries Access, Dev	elopmen	t and Inno	vation		
Timeliness					
Average time to process VicArts Grants applications for each round for Ministerial consideration	days	45	43	45	37
This performance measure is proposed to be disco positive or negative. It has been replaced by the 2 days for Ministerial consideration'.			•		
Tourism, Major Events and Inte	rnationa	l Educatio	n		
Quantity					
Links from Tourism Victoria consumer sites	number (million)	1.85	1.50	1.85	1.85
This performance measure is proposed to be disco changes that include digital marketing and marke 'Visitors to Visit Victoria consumer websites' is a n The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the on the consumer website.	ting through so nore accurate ir	ocial networking s ndicator of the eff	ites. The 2016-17 fectiveness of gove	performance m ernment expend	liture.
Jobs and Investment					
Quantity					
Businesses assisted with skills needs	number	200	1 250	1 200	1,509
This performance measure is proposed to be disco Development, Business and Innovation. With the the primary responsibility of another department, to supporting disadvantaged workers. Consequen performance measures introduced in the 2016-17 (minimum number of 26 weeks)' and 'New Austra development centres attracted to Victoria'. Emplo further increase proposed for 2017-18. This measu satisfaction with services delivered to support indu the impacts of industry transition.	establishment o to supporting e tly, this measur Budget 'Disadv lian/Internation yment and inve- ure has also bee	of the Department employment inition was effectively vantaged jobseek hal regional head estment related to en replaced by the	t, the focus has mu atives through crea replaced with the ers who achieve su quarters of firms of argets were also in e 2017-18 perform	oved from skills, ating high-skille introduction of ustainable emp and/or research acreased in 201 nance measure	, which is d jobs and two new loyment 6-17, with a 'Client
Major Projects					
Quantity					
Major projects in delivery or development at 1 July by Major Projects Victoria and the Major Projects Division	number	0	14	14	20
This performance measure is proposed to be disco 'Number of economic projects in delivery' to reflec				rformance mea	sure
Quantity					
Major Projects Victoria projects, with contracts in place as of 1 July, that have had less than 5 per cent variation in contracted cost from 1 July	number	0	6	8	3
This performance measure is proposed to be disco 'Economic projects being delivered in accordance of Development Victoria. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the . Melbourne Park Batman Bridge Project and the Po	with contracted 2016-17 target	l cost (within 5 pe due to the variate	er cent variation)'	to reflect the es	tablishment

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Major Projects Victoria projects, with	number	0	7	8	3
contracts in place as of 1 July, that have had no material variation in contracted					
scope from 1 July					
This performance measure is proposed to be discu	ontinued and ha	s heen renlaced h	w the 2017-18 pe	rformance mea	surp
'Economic projects being delivered in accordance The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the Palais Theatre Project.	with contracted	scope' to reflect	the establishmen	t of Developme	nt Victoria.
Timeliness					
Major Projects Victoria projects, with	number	0	5	8	1
contracts in place as of 1 July, that have					
had less than 5 per cent variation in					
contracted time from 1 July					
This performance measure is proposed to be disco 'Economic projects being delivered in accordance establishment of Development Victoria. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the Ballarat West Employment Zone Stage 1 Project,	with contracted 2016-17 target	l timelines (withir due to the variati	5 per cent variat	ion)' to reflect t	he with the
Trade					
Quantity					
International trade marketing campaigns	number	1	11	11	11
to position Victoria globally					
This performance measure is proposed to be disc Campaign in 2016 brings all of the international of overarching campaign and therefore the target is 'Visits to the Invest Victoria website' which captur new measure is increased in 2017-18 from 66,000	campaigns under s only one campo res the success a	r a single banner aign. A new perfo Ind penetration o	with rolling and to rmance measure	argeted activitie was introduced	s under this in 2016-17,
Road Asset Management					
Quality					
Pavement resurfaced: metropolitan	m ² (000)	1 705	1 635	1 635	1 416
The higher 2017-18 target reflects the new fundir					
replacement. This performance measure is proposed to be to be measures 'Road area treated: high strategic prior area treated: low strategic priority roads', which or extend the useful life of a road.	e discontinued a rity roads', 'Roac provide greater	s it has been repl l area treated: m	aced by the three edium strategic p	new performan riority roads' an	ce d 'Road
Pavement resurfaced: regional	m² (000)	9 153	8 752	8 752	9 990
The higher 2017-18 target reflects the new fundir replacement. The 2015-16 outcome reflects an acceleration of under a new Eastern and South Victoria Maintene This performance measure is proposed to be to be measures 'Road area treated: high strategic prior area treated: low strategic priority roads', which	pavement works ance Alliance Ag e discontinued a rity roads', 'Roac	5 funded in 2014- reement. s it has been repl I area treated: m	15, with work bro aced by the three edium strategic p	ught forward fr new performan riority roads' an	om 2016-17 ce d 'Road
or extend the useful life of a road.		02.5	05.5	05 5	
Proportion of road pavements not distressed: metropolitan	per cent	92.5	95.5	95.5	nm
This performance measure is proposed to be to be measures 'Road length meeting cracking standar and 'Road length meeting rutting standard: metr effectiveness of investment in pavements.	d: metropolitan	, 'Road length me	eeting roughness	standard: metro	politan',

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Proportion of road pavements not distressed: regional	per cent	91.7	91.7	91.7	nm

This performance measure is proposed to be to be discontinued as it has been replaced by the three new 2017-18 performance measures 'Road length meeting cracking standard: regional', 'Road length meeting roughness standard: regional,' and 'Road length meeting rutting standard: regional, which provide greater transparency in measuring the overall effectiveness of investment in pavements.

Road Operations and Network Improvements

Timeliness					
Develop and release Cycling Strategy and Cycling Action plan	date	na	30 May 2017	30 Sept 2016	nm
The later completion date in 2016-17 reflects furt (including other government strategies and prior. This performance measure is proposed to be disc	ities).			transport contex	đ
Taxi and Hire Vehicle Services					
Quantity					
Taxi and hire vehicle complaints assessed, investigated and closed	number	3 450	3 450	3 450	2 933
This performance measure is proposed to be disc 'Commercial passenger vehicle service complaint performance measure reports on the same activi broader scope due to rideshare reform and to be	s and intelligenc ty as the previou	e reports investi Is measure. How	gated and closed w vever, it has been a	vithin 45 days'. Tl	he new
Timeliness					
Taxi and hire vehicle: average speed of call answered in the Taxi Services Commission call centre	seconds	240	240	240	nm
This performance measure is proposed to be disc 'Taxi and hire vehicle: calls to the Taxi Services Ca has been reinstated following the Public Accounts would make this measure a duplication.	mmission call ce	entre answered v	, within 20 seconds'.	However, that m	neasure
Taxi and hire vehicle complaints investigated and closed within 45 days	per cent	85	85	85	89
This performance measure is proposed to be disc 'Commercial passenger vehicle service complaint rideshare reform and to better reflect the service	s and intelligenc	e reports investi	<i>, , ,</i>		
Transport Safety, Security and	Emergeno	cy Manage	ement		
Quantity					
Rail safety audits, compliance inspections and investigations conducted in accordance with legislative requirements	number	80	96	80	nm
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than the investigations undertaken in accordance to the O This performance measure is proposed to be disc 2014-15 performance measure 'Transport safety with legislative requirements', and the 2015-16 n	ffice of the Nation ontinued as it w regulation: rail s	onal Rail Safety I as proposed as c safety audits/col	Regulator work pro new measure for mpliance inspection	gram for 2016-1 2016-17 to consc ns conducted in a	7. blidate the accordance

conducted in accordance with state and national legislative requirements and timeliness' and 'Regulatory interventions conducted on high risk or accredited rail transport operators'. However, those measures have been reinstated following the Public Accounts and Estimates Committee's review of the 2016-17 budget estimates which would make this measure a

duplication.

		2017 10	2016-17	2046 47	2015 10			
Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual			
Recreational vessel inspections undertaken in accordance with state legislative requirements	number	500	500	3 500	4 245			
The lower 2016-17 expected outcome reflects adoption of a risk-based regulatory approach, targeted to high areas of non-compliance. The revised regulatory approach was adopted following the 2014 Victorian Auditor General's audit of recreational maritime safety. This performance measure is proposed to be discontinued as it has been replaced by the performance measure 'Risk- based recreational vessel inspections undertaken in accordance with State legislative requirements' to reflect this substantial shift in the focus of the service.								
Quality								
Compliance inspections of vessel operating and zoning rules in designated Victorian waterways conducted in accordance with annual audit plan	per cent	100	100	100	100			
This performance measure is proposed to be disc inspections of managed and unmanaged Victoria including unmanaged Victorian waterways.		,						
Timeliness								
Taxi, hire vehicle, bus driver and driving instructor accreditation applications processed within 14 days	per cent	85	85	85	88			
This performance is proposed to be discontinued regulation: new and renewed driving instructor o bus driver accreditation applications processed v Public Accounts and Estimates Committee's revie duplication.	authority applica vithin 14 days'. H	tions processed lowever, these n	within 14 days' and neasures have beer	d 'New taxi, hire n reinstated foll	e vehicle and lowing the			

Source: Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION AND TRAINING

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual
Training, Higher Education and	Workford	e Develop	oment		
Quantity					
Annual government subsidised module enrolments	number (million)	3.5	3.5	4.5	4.5
This performance measure is proposed to be di and as a simple quantum does not reflect the le to the calendar year. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than ti subsidised training and foundation courses, an shift of students to VET FEE-HELP, and fewer er implementation of the Review of Quality Assur based on the 2016-17 expected outcome.	evel and complex he 2016-17 targe d reductions in su nrolments in sub-	kity of subsidised et due to past poli ubsidies. Enrolme standard training	training. This perf icy changes such a nt numbers have g as part of the Ga	ormance meas as tightened eli also been affec overnment's	ure relates gibility to ted by the
Government subsidised student contact	number	125	125	154	154
hours of training and further education provided	(million)				
and it has been agreed for discontinuation as p measure relates to the calendar year. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than th subsidised training and foundation courses, an shift of students to VET FEE-HELP, and fewer er implementation of the Review of Quality Assur based on the 2016-17 expected outcome.	he 2016-17 targe d reductions in si nrolments in sub-	et due to past pol ubsidies. Enrolme estandard training	icy changes such o nt numbers have g as part of the Go	as tightened eli also been affec overnment's	gibility to ted by the
Number of apprenticeship/ traineeship commencements by new employees	number	38 000	38 000	36 100	38 272
This performance measure is proposed to be di 'Number of government subsidised apprentices for Apprentices. This performance measure rele The 2017-18 target has been increased to more	ship enrolments', ates to the financ	, which will better cial year.	r reflect Governme		
Quality					
Proportion of employers satisfied with the training provided by the Registered Training Organisation for apprenticeship and traineeship completers	per cent	78	78	85	83
This performance measure relates to the calend been replaced by the 2017–18 performance me with training', which will better reflect the qua trainees. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than th have affected on employer satisfaction. The low	easure 'Proportic lity of training de he 2016-17 targe	on of employers o livered for both c et as there were q	f apprentices and ontinuing and cor uuality issues with	trainees who a mpleting appre some provider.	re satisfied ntices and s that may
the 2016-17 expected outcome.	por cort	00.0	00.0	<u>م</u>	80.7
Successful training completions as measured by module load completion	per cent	80.8	80.8	80.7	60.7
rate					
This performance measure is proposed to be di 'Number of government subsidised course com This performance measure relates to the calend The 2017-18 target has been increased to more Source: Denotroent of Education and Training	pletions', which dar year.	will provide an in	proved measure		

Source: Department of Education and Training

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT, LAND, WATER AND PLANNING

		2017 10	2016-17	2016 17	
Major outputs/deliverables Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 estimate	expected outcome	2016-17 estimate	2015-16 actual
Statutory Activities and Environ	ment Pro	otection			
Quantity					
Environmental condition research reports issued, improvement tools, guidelines, policies, systems and plans completed and issued	number	54	54	54	45
This performance measure is proposed to be disco business and community in environment'. The new provide information and awareness of current and	/ measure prov	ides insight into t	the different ways		
EPA notices issued for illegal dumping of waste	number	70	70	70	98
This performance measure is proposed to be disco compliance of licensed premises'. The new measur compliance activities with its licence holders.					
Land Use Victoria					
Quantity					
Maps generated on Land Channel	number (million)	20.0	17.5	19.0	17.5
This performance measure is transferred directly f consolidate spatial related measures. This perform 2017-18 timeliness measure 'Delivery of updated V provision of land administration and property info	ance measure /icmap Founda	is proposed to be tion data within	e discontinued as a one week'. The ne	it has been replo ew measure und	aced by the lerpins the
Parks Victoria					
Quantity					
Visits to Parks Victoria managed estate	number (million)	99-101	95.3	93.97	98.5
This performance measure is proposed to be disco state, urban and other terrestrial park' and 'Visits previous measure, however it has been separated	to piers and jet	ties'. The new me	easures report on		
Management of Public Land and	d Forests				
Quantity					
Activities undertaken by Coastcare Victoria participants	number	600	600	600	669
This performance measure is proposed to be disco Coastcare activities'. The new measure reports on increased transparency and clarity.			,		
Quality					
Foreshore protection assets around Port Phillip and Western Port Bays rated as 'good' to 'very good' condition	per cent	55	55	55	55
This performance measure is proposed to be disco infrastructure projects delivered'. The new measur revised for increased transparency and clarity.					

2016-17					
Major outputs/deliverables Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 estimate	expected outcome	2016-17 estimate	2015-16 actual
Planning, Building and Heritage					
Quality					
Community Infrastructure Fund projects completed that meet agreed project objectives	per cent	na	100	100	100
This performance measure is proposed to be discor 30 June 2017.	ntinued as Com	munity Infrastrue	cture Fund projec	ts are due for co	ompletion by
Timeliness					
Community Infrastructure Fund payments made within 21 days of completion of agreed milestones in funding agreement	per cent	na	95	95	100
This performance measure is proposed to be discort 30 June 2017.	ntinued as Com	munity Infrastru	cture Fund projec	ts are due for co	ompletion by
Local Government					
Quantity					
Local Government Victoria's legislative and regulatory initiatives incorporate stakeholder feedback	per cent	100	100	100	100
This performance measure is proposed to be discor program initiatives with an accompanying comprel measure provides increased clarity and reflects Loc	hensive commu	inity and stakeho	, older engagemen	t strategy'. The	new
Local Government Victoria's policy and program development processes incorporate stakeholder feedback	per cent	100	100	100	100
This performance measure is proposed to be discor program initiatives with an accompanying comprel measure provides increased clarity and reflects Loc	hensive commu	inity and stakeho	Ider engagemen	t strategy'. The	new
Percentage of identified councils funded as part of the Vulnerable People in Emergencies Program who have met milestone criteria	per cent	100	100	100	100
This performance measure is proposed to be discor 'Municipal Emergency Resource Program grant pay funding agreement'. The new measure reports on t increased clarity and emphasis on timeliness.	/ments made w	vithin 21 days of	completion of ag	reed milestones	in the
Timeliness					
Victoria Grants Commission allocations finalised to support the completion of council budgets within statutory timeframes	per cent	100	100	100	100
This performance measure is proposed to be discor held annually with Victorian councils regarding the The new measure reports on the same activity as the Source: Department of Environment, Land, Water and Plar	Victoria Grant he previous me	s Commission fin	ancial assistance	grants allocatio	n model'.

Source: Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

			2016-17					
Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual			
Admitted Services								
Quantity								
Palliative care bed days	number	92	88	92	91			
	(thousand)							
This performance measure is proposed to be disc	ontinued as it is no	longer relevant an	d replaced by 'Palli	ative separation	s.′			
Subacute bed days	number	771	798	759	766			
	(thousand)							
The 2016-17 expected outcome is higher than th improved efficiencies and increase in activity for This performance measure is proposed to be disc	all patient types bas	sed on interim date	a.					
Quality								
Perinatal morbidity notices received, processed and reported	per cent	100	100	100	100			
This performance measure is proposed to be disc reports received, reviewed and classified'.	ontinued as it is no	longer relevant an	d replaced by 'Peri	natal and child m	nortality			
Public hospitals meeting cleaning standards, as assessed by external audit	per cent	100	100	100	99			
This performance measure is proposed to be disc reported hospital cleanliness' following a recomr								
Acute Training and Developm	ent		· · · ·					
Quantity								
Clinical placement student days for medicine, nursing and allied health	number	930 000	945 000	993 960	945 019			
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the activity data from health services. The phased im system for clinical placements, since 2013 has pr attendance data and lower than previously forec This performance measure is proposed to be disc days (medicine); (2) Clinical placement student d	plementation of Vic ovided an auditable ast activity. ontinued and replac	: Place, Victoria's s activity data set r ced by three new r	ecure web-based ir esulting in more ac neasures, being: (1,	nformation mand curate clinical pla) Clinical placeme	agement acement ent student			
Percentage of public health services utilising the Best Practice Clinical Learning Environment (BPCLE) tool	per cent	100	100	100	98			
Learning Environment (BPCLE) tool This performance measure is proposed to be discontinued as it has been replaced by the 2017-18 quality performance measure 'Learner perceptions about their feeling of safety and wellbeing while undertaking their program of study at health services'. The new measure focuses on quality of the program while the current measure focuses on the adoption of the Best Practice Clinical Learning Environment (BPCLE) Framework in public health services and registered community health centres in Victoria. The uptake had reached 100 per cent in second half of 2016 and reporting on the measure is no longer useful.								
Residential Aged Care					_			
Quantity								
Standard Equivalent Value Units	number	671 845	698 995	698 995	704 281			
This performance measure is proposed to be disc sector and issues on the calculation of this measu		longer relevant du	e to the decreasing	role of HACC pri	icing in the			

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Home and Community Care for	Young Pe	eople			
Quantity					
Clients receiving Home and Community	number	69 778	69 778	69 778	305 123
Care services					
This performance measure is proposed to be disco Community Care for Younger People – number of o Commonwealth Home Support Program.					
Home and Community Care service delivery hours	number	2 196	2 196	2 196	11 214
This performance measure is proposed to be disco Community Care for Younger People – hours of ser Home Support Program.					
Standard Equivalent Value Units	number	1 536	1 536	1 536	6 473
	(thousand)				
This performance measure is proposed to be di provided and this sometimes leads to misleadir		is not an accurate	or transparent n	neasure of the s	ervices
Quantity					
Eligible population receiving Home and Community Care services	per cent	30.0	30.0	30.0	31.5
unmeasurable. Until the NDIS is fully rolled out, the HACC Program for Younger People (HACC P need of assistance (typically HACC PYP cohort)	YP) is unknown.	There is likely to b	e an overlap bet		
Drug Prevention and Control					
Quantity					
Contacts through Family Drug Help	number	5 000	5 000	5 000	6 047
This performance measure is proposed to be di 'Number of phone contacts from family member to respond to information requests and queries	scontinued as it i ers seeking suppo	has been replaced		-	
Licences and permits issued to health services or businesses for the manufacture, use or supply of drugs and poisons	number	1 425	1 475	1 425	1 456
This performance measure is proposed to be di 'Percentage of new licences and permits issued and poisons within 6 weeks following receipt oj	to health service	es or businesses fo	or the manufactu	re, use or supply	
Number of telephone, email, website	number	950 000	1 200 000	1 200 000	1 941 036
contacts and in person responses to					
queries and requests for information on					
alcohol and drug issues (through the					
Australian Drug Foundation)					
This performance measure is proposed to be di 'Number of telephone, email, website contacts suite of statewide phone services funded to res Line contacts and Intake and Assessment servic	and requests for pond to informa	information on A	lcohol and Other	Drugs' to reflec	ct the full

y, i.e. patients dis scontinued as it l l to health service of full informatio	2017-18 target 48 000 t due to impacts fr focontinued on alpre- has been replaced tes or businesses for n' and 'Percentage s assessed within 4	azolam. by the 2017-18 p the manufacture of treatment pe	erformance me e, use or supply rmits for medice	asures of drugs al
measure number he 2016-17 targe y, i.e. patients dis scontinued as it l to health service of full informatio	target 48 000 t due to impacts fr scontinued on alpr has been replaced es or businesses for n' and 'Percentage	outcome 45 000 oom policy change azolam. by the 2017-18 p the manufacture of treatment pe	target 48 000 es such as increa erformance me e, use or supply rmits for medica	actual 40 617 ased asures of drugs al
number he 2016-17 targe y, i.e. patients dis scontinued as it l to health service of full informatio	48 000 t due to impacts fr continued on alpr has been replaced es or businesses for n' and 'Percentage	45 000 om policy change azolam. by the 2017-18 p the manufacture of treatment pe	48 000 es such as increa erformance me e, use or supply rmits for medica	40 617 ased asures of drugs al
he 2016-17 targe y, i.e. patients dis scontinued as it l I to health service of full informatio	t due to impacts fr continued on alpr tas been replaced to or businesses for n' and 'Percentage	om policy change azolam. by the 2017-18 p the manufacture of treatment pe	es such as increa erformance me e, use or supply rmits for medica	ased asures of drugs al
y, i.e. patients dis scontinued as it l l to health service of full informatio	scontinued on alpro has been replaced a es or businesses for n' and 'Percentage	azolam. by the 2017-18 p the manufacture of treatment pe	erformance me e, use or supply rmits for medice	asures of drugs al
y, i.e. patients dis scontinued as it l l to health service of full informatio	scontinued on alpro has been replaced a es or businesses for n' and 'Percentage	azolam. by the 2017-18 p the manufacture of treatment pe	erformance me e, use or supply rmits for medice	asures of drugs al
y, i.e. patients dis scontinued as it l l to health service of full informatio	scontinued on alpro has been replaced a es or businesses for n' and 'Percentage	azolam. by the 2017-18 p the manufacture of treatment pe	erformance me e, use or supply rmits for medice	asures of drugs al
rate	30.9	16.2	30.9	16.2
Statistics' recalcu	lation of the estim	nated Aboriginal (population. The	2016-17
number	1 074	1 074	1 074	1 163
(thousand)				
	s not an accurate o	or transparent m	easure of the se	rvices
ng results.				
number	1 413	1 468	1 413	1 650
. ,	s not an accurate o	or transparent me	easure of the se	rvices
ealth				
number	1 276	1 2 2 1	1 208	1 266
	12/0	1 2 2 1	1 2 9 8	1 200
he 2016-17 targe mary health servi model. scontinued as it i	ces and other serv s no longer relevar	ices (not captured	d by these meas	sures)
number	23.8	23.8	25.7	24.6
, ,				
mary health servi model. scontinued as it l current measure entially use flexik	ces and other serv has been replaced is the weighted m ble funding to deliv	ices (not captured by the 2017-18 p easure of acute c	d by these meas erformance me admitted activit	ures) asure y and the
	he 2016-17 targe Statistics' recalcu iscontinued as it i and Wellbeing. number (thousand) iscontinued as it i ag results. ealth number (thousand) he 2016-17 targe mary health servi model. iscontinued as it i calculation of this number (thousand) he 2016-17 targe mary health servi model. iscontinued as it i calculation of this number (thousand)	he 2016-17 target due to the contin Statistics' recalculation of the estin iscontinued as it is no longer relevant and Wellbeing. number 1 074 (thousand) iscontinued as it is not an accurate of a results. accurate as it is not an accurate of thousand) iscontinued as it is not an accurate of a results. ealth number 1 276 (thousand) he 2016-17 target due to changes in mary health services and other serv model. iscontinued as it is no longer relevant calculation of this measure. number 23.8 (thousand) he 2016-17 target due to changes in mary health services and other serv model. iscontinued as it is no longer relevant calculation of this measure. number 23.8 (thousand) he 2016-17 target due to changes in mary health services and other serv model. iscontinued as it has been replaced current measure is the weighted marked the services in the services and other servi	he 2016-17 target due to the continued impact of the Statistics' recalculation of the estimated Aboriginal products of the Statistics' recalculation of the estimated Aboriginal products of the Statistics' recalculation of the estimated Aboriginal products of the Statistics' recalculation of the estimated Aboriginal products of the Statistics' recalculation of the estimated Aboriginal products of the Statistics' recalculation of the estimated Aboriginal products of the Statistics' recalculation of the estimated Aboriginal products of the Statistics' recalculation of the estimated Aboriginal products of the Statistics' recalculation of the estimated Aboriginal products of the Statistics' recalculation of this measure.	he 2016-17 target due to the continued impact of the coding change Statistics' recalculation of the estimated Aboriginal population. The iscontinued as it is no longer relevant and is being replaced with new ind Wellbeing. number 1 074 1 074 1 074 (thousand) iscontinued as it is not an accurate or transparent measure of the set ig results. number 1 413 1 468 1 413 (thousand) iscontinued as it is not an accurate or transparent measure of the set ig results. ealth number 1 276 1 221 1 298 (thousand) he 2016-17 target due to changes in service mix and the permissible mary health services and other services (not captured by these measure iscontinued as it is no longer relevant due to the decreasing dominau- calculation of this measure. number 23.8 23.8 25.7 (thousand) he 2016-17 target due to changes in service mix and the permissible mary health services and other services (not captured by these measure iscontinued as it is no longer relevant due to the decreasing dominau- calculation of this measure. number 23.8 23.8 25.7 (thousand) he 2016-17 target due to changes in service mix and the permissible mary health services and other services (not captured by these measure iscontinued as it has been replaced by the 2017-18 performance measure current measure is the weighted measure of acute admitted activity entially use flexible funding to deliver a broader range of services, in

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Small Rural Services – Aged Car	re				
Quantity					
Standard Equivalent Value Units	number	341 359	344 002	344 328	343 003
This performance measure is proposed to be di		s not an accurate	or transparent m	easure of the s	ervices
provided and this sometimes leads to misleadir	ng results.				
Small Rural Services – Home ar	ո <mark>ժ C</mark> ommւ	inity Care S	Services		
Quantity					
Home and Community Care service delivery hours	number	107 719	107 719	107 719	746 343
This performance measure is proposed to be di 'Home and Community Care service delivery ho need of assistance as people aged 65 and older	ours'. The change	is to reflect the ne	ew younger targe	et group (0-64 y	ears old) in
Standard Equivalent Value Units	number	not	59 000	59 000	363 353
		required			
This performance measure is proposed to be di provided and this sometimes leads to misleadir		s not an accurate	or transparent m	easure of the s	ervices
					<u> </u>
Small Rural Services – Primary	Health				
Quantity					
Standard Equivalent Value Units	number	not required	104 000	104 000	114 491
This performance measure is proposed to be di provided and this sometimes leads to misleadir		•	or transparent m	easure of the s	ervices
Disability Services					
Quantity					
Number of supported accommodation beds	number	948	3 935	5 141	5 114
The lower 2016-17 expected outcome to target This performance measure is proposed to be di disability services under the NDIS, which will ha	scontinued as it	does not reflect the	e separation of s		
Timeliness					
Supported accommodation occupancy rate	per cent	95	90	95	96.6
The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the This performance measure is proposed to be di- funded by the NDIS. It is to be replaced with two vacancies filled within 60 business days' and 'Po- filled within 60 business days' to more accurate Scheme.	scontinued in 20 o new measures ercentage of Spe	17-18 as it is no lo. 'Percentage of Su cialist Disability Ad	nger relevant due pported Independ ccommodation (S	e to the differer dent Living (SIL, DA) services va	nt activities) services Icancies
Office for Disability					
Timeliness					
Office for Disability projects delivered	per cent	100	100	100	100
within agreed timeframes					
This performance measure is proposed to be dia run by the Office for Disability.	scontinued as it i	is no longer releva	nt and related to	lapsed prograi	ns no longer

			2016-17		
	Unit of	2017-18	expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Community Participation					
Quantity					
Strategy implementation actions within agreed performance targets: Community Organisations	per cent	na	100	100	100
This performance measure is proposed to be dis	continued as it i	is related to lapsii	ng programs.		
Quality					
Strategy implementation actions within agreed performance targets: Volunteering	per cent	na	100	100	100
This performance measure is proposed to be dis	continued as it i	is related to lapsir	ng programs.		

Source: Department of Health and Human Services

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE AND REGULATION

Performance measures	Unit of measure	2017-18 target	2016-17 expected outcome	2016-17 target	2015-16 actual	
Protection of Personal Identity and Individual/Community Rights						
Quantity						
Proportion of finalised complaint files resolved through dispute resolution (VEOHRC)	per cent	35	35	35	42.5	
This performance measure is proposed to be discontinued as it has been replaced by the 2017-18 performance measure 'Settlement rate of conciliation (VEOHRC).' The new measure is the same as the previous measure except for matters where parties withdraw for reasons outside the control of VEOHRC. The new performance measure more accurately reflects VEOHRC's conciliation success rates.						
People assisted through Public Advocate	number	19 916 –	20 581	21 500	26 002	
advice and education activities (OPA)		23 684				
 This performance measure is proposed to be discuincreased clarity: Information and advice provided by OPA, Community education sessions (OPA). The two new performance measures report on sin has been refined for more accurate reporting. A more accurate method of calculating phone ad recorded in the case management system, rather which may not progress to advice provision. The 2017-18 target reflects an anticipated increa Decisions Act 2016, due to commence on 12 Marnature of this performance measure. 	and milar activity as t vice has been de than using the p se in advice prov ch 2018. It has a	the previous meas veloped, which re previous method o ision arising from	ure, however th lies on confirme f counting all in the Medical Tre	e counting met d instances of c coming calls, so atment Plannin	thodology advice as ome of ng and	
Public Advocate protective interventions for people with a disability (OPA)	number	1 492 – 1 698	1 664	2 600	2 738	
 This performance measure is proposed to be discurrer increased clarity and consistency: new guardianship and investigation orde advocacy matters opened by OPA. The 2016-17 expected outcome is lower than the the exclusion of 1 089 matters carried over from the lower 2017-18 target reflects refined data coadjusted to a range to reflect the demand driven 	rs of VCAT action 2016-17 target of the previous fina llation and coun	s been replaced b ned by OPA; and due to more accur ncial year. ting methodologie	ate reporting m	ethodologies, d	as well as	

Source: Department of Justice and Regulation

DEPARTMENT OF PREMIER AND CABINET

			2016–17		
	Unit of	2017–18	expected	2016–17	2015–16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Quantity					
Event attendance: Student participation in Shrine of Remembrance programs	number	65 000	65 000	65 000	56 220
This performance measure is proposed to be disco 'Community engagement: Shrine ceremonial acti			· ·		
Proportion of Independent Broad-Based Anti-Corruption Commission investigations completed within 12 months	per cent	70	70	70	86
This performance measure is proposed to be disco clarity. It has been replaced in 2017-18 by 'Propo personnel conduct and police personnel corrupt c into police personnel conduct and police personne	rtion of IBAC inve onduct) complet	estigation into pl ed within 12 mo	ublic sector corrup nths' and 'Proport	t conduct (excl	uding police
Timeliness					
Complaints or notifications assessed by IBAC within 45 days	per cent	90	94	90	94
This performance measures is proposed to be disu increased clarity. It has been replaced in 2017-18 (excluding police personnel conduct and police pe or notifications about police personnel conduct au	by 'Complaints o ersonnel corrupt	or notifications a conduct) assesse	bout public sector d by IBAC within 4	corrupt condu 45 days' and 'C	ct omplaints
Event briefs completed within the required timeframe	per cent	100	100	100	100
This performance measure is proposed to be discon performance.	ontinued as it is i	no longer consid	ered to be a releve	ant indicator of	output
Source: Department of Premier and Cabinet					

Source: Department of Premier and Cabinet

DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY AND FINANCE

	Unit of	2017-18	2016-17 expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Budget and Financial Advice					
Timeliness					
Delivery of Funding review reports within agreed timeframes	per cent	100	100	100	100
This performance measure is proposed to be discon Department.	tinued as fundi	ing reviews are	no longer manage	d solely by the	
Revenue Management and Adm	inistrativ	ve Service	es to Gover	nment	
Timeliness					
Meet Cabinet and Parliamentary timelines	per cent	100	100	100	100
This performance measure is proposed to be discon	tinued as it doe	es not enable m	neaningful analysis	of service deli	very.
Commercial and Infrastructure A	Advice				
Quality					
Registered housing agencies that are annually reviewed	per cent	100	100	100	100
This performance measure is proposed to be discon 'Percentage of registered housing agencies assesse			· ·	erformance me	asure
Timeliness					
Dividend payments made within agreed timeframes	per cent	100	100	100	100
This performance measure is proposed to be discon 'Dividend collection in accordance with budget deci		s been replaced	by the 2017-18 pe	erformance me	asure
Services to Government					
Quality					
Benefits delivered as a percentage of expenditure by mandated agencies under Department-managed state purchasing contracts, including reduced and avoided costs	per cent	≥5	7	≥5	8.1
This performance measure is proposed to be discon mandated agencies under Department- managed s indicate progress against the objective 'Deliver effic Source: Department of Treasury and Finance	tate purchasing	g contracts, inc	luding reduced and		,

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance

PARLIAMENT (INCLUDING VICTORIAN AUDITOR-GENERAL'S OFFICE)

	unit of	2017-18	2016-17 expected	2016-17	2015-16
Performance measures	measure	target	outcome	target	actual
Audit opinions on financial and	l performa	nce state	ments		
Quantity					
Audit opinions issued on non-financial	number	111	111	110	108
performance indicators					
This performance measure is proposed to be di. 'Average cost of audit opinions issued on perfor efficiency with which the Office utilises its resou	rmance statemen		,		
Audit opinions issued on the financial	number	556	556	547	539
statements of agencies					
This performance measure is proposed to be di: 'Average cost of audit opinions issued on the fir capture the efficiency with which the Office util	nancial statement		,		
Parliamentary Reports and Ser	vices				
Quantity					
Auditor-General's reports	number	31	37	36	39
Office utilises its resources. The 2017-18 target consolidated to form omnibus reports. The omn breadth of coverage from which conclusions ca Annual Reports, the Office's Annual Report will	nibus reports will o n be drawn. In ad	assess related is dition, as all de	ssues and provide partments and ag	the Office with encies also pre	greater
Quality					
Average score of audit reports by external/peer assessors	per cent	80	80	80	86
This performance measure is proposed to be di 'Percentage of performance audit recommendo has been replaced to more adequately capture	ations accepted w	hich are report	ed as implemented	-	
Timeliness					
Inquiries from Members of Parliament	per cent	95	95	95	99
and the public responded to within 28 days					
This performance measure is proposed to be di. 'Average duration taken to finalise responses to adequately capture the efficiency with which th	o inquiries from N	lembers of Parl	iament'. It has bee	en replaced to	
Reports completed on time	(per cent)	90	95	90	95
This performance measure is proposed to be di 'Average duration taken to produce performan financial audit parliamentary reports after bala with which the Office utilises its resources. The report scheduling and planning activities the Oj	ce audit parliame ince date'. It has t 2016-17 expected	ntary reports', o been replaced to l outcome is hig	and 'Average durd o more adequately her than the targe	ition taken to p capture the e	oroduce fficiency

Source: Parliament of Victoria and Victorian Auditor-General's Office

APPENDIX B – LOCAL GOVERNMENT FINANCIAL RELATIONS

This appendix provides an overview of the local government sector in Victoria and highlights the 2017-18 Budget initiatives that impact on councils.

Local government is a distinct and essential tier of government, enshrined in Victoria's Constitution. Victoria has 79 councils providing a wide range of services and infrastructure. Many government programs are either delivered by, or in partnership with, local government.

SUPPORTING SUSTAINABLE AND EFFECTIVE LOCAL GOVERNMENT

The Victorian Government recognises the important role that local councils play in creating liveable, inclusive and sustainable communities. Councils deliver vital services and infrastructure, build local economies and, as the government closest to the people, provide meaningful local democracy and governance.

The Government's commitment to create a new Local Government Act that improves the accountability of Victorian councils and their ability to more efficiently deliver services is progressing well. The comprehensive review of the *Local Government Act 1989*, supported by an extensive consultation process, aims to deliver reforms to improve the authority and practice of councils to engage, challenge, innovate and deliver for Victorians.

Victoria's local government sector has demonstrated capacity for innovation, professionalism, technical excellence and service capability. However, performance across the sector remains variable, and interface and rural councils, in particular, face a number of challenges, including a substantial reduction in real terms in Commonwealth financial assistance grants. Through a more productive partnership between the State and local government, and with stronger support, local councils will be more capable of addressing challenges and delivering efficient services to enhance the liveability and productivity of local communities.

Metropolitan interface councils have experienced significant population growth over the past two decades, with growth consistently doubling the State's average. This is expected to continue with more than one million additional residents expected to be living in interface councils by 2031. As a result, these communities face some of Victoria's greatest infrastructure and service challenges.

The Victorian Government's \$50 million extension of the Growing Suburbs Fund will ensure that Melbourne's interface suburbs have the facilities needed to build healthy and liveable communities. This additional funding will deliver value for money in local infrastructure, providing new and/or upgraded family and community centres, town centre and civic revitalisation projects, active open spaces and facilities that deliver core social and economic support services to ensure that these communities are active, resilient and liveable.

The Victorian Government will also continue to support rural and regional councils who face growing financial sustainability pressures.

The Victorian Government's \$5.4 million continuation of the Roadside Weeds and Pests Program will support rural, regional and interface councils to clear weeds and pest animals from local roadsides. Roadsides provide a clear means by which weeds and pest animals can spread throughout Victoria, posing a considerable risk to Victoria's agricultural production as well as its environmental assets - such as parks and forests. This program will enable 56 councils to undertake weed and pest control activities.

The Victorian Government is further processing reforms that have been achieved through the introduction of the Fair Go Rates System and the Local Government Performance Reporting Framework. Programs such as the Finance and Accounting Support Team (FAST), the Collaborative Councils Sustainability Fund Partnerships and previous reform activities are leveraging off one another, increasing their impact.

FUNDING SOURCES TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT IN VICTORIA

Victorian local governments spend around \$7.8 billion a year.¹ Councils have vital responsibilities which include community services, local roads, waste management, recreation and cultural activities.

In 2015-16, the local government sector generated a net surplus of \$1.6 billion, a \$100 million increase on the previous year. This was driven by growth in developer contributions from nine interface councils.² The interface councils recorded \$692.4 million in contributions in 2015-16, a 54.7 per cent increase on the prior year as a result of a higher number of community development activities.

The Government provides land and payroll tax exemptions to local government. It is estimated that these exemptions will benefit Victorian councils by nearly \$466 million in 2017-18 (refer to Tables 5.2 and 5.4 in Budget Paper No. 5).

¹ Victorian Auditor-General's Local Government 2015-16 Audit Snapshot

² Nine growth municipalities that form a ring around metropolitan Melbourne, including: Cardinia, Casey, Hume, Melton, Mornington Peninsula, Nillumbik, Whittlesea, Wyndham and Yarra Ranges.

Table B.1:Grants and transfers to local government
--

(\$ thousand)

	2016-17	2016-17	2017-18
	budget	revised	budget
Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources	140 534.2	158 266.2	149 630.9
Department of Education and Training ^(a)	10 576.0	21 036.8	30 798.2
Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning	668 024.6	684 023.2	662 362.4
Catchment Management Authorities	153.2	153.2	148.2
Environment Protection Authority			1 491.0
Parks Victoria	14.3	14.3	14.3
Department of Health and Human Services ^(b)	49 500.8	37 865.4	67 093.4
Department of Justice and Regulation	12 650.6	9 748.0	3 836.0
Country Fire Authority	308.0	308.0	315.0
Department of Premier and Cabinet	3 452.5	11 333.8	9 649.6
Department of Treasury and Finance	12 890.6	87 597.2	76 288.6
Total grants	898 104.8	1 010 346.2	1 001 627.5

Source: Department of Treasury and Finance

(a) Excludes funds provided to local government for service delivery.

(b) Excludes funds provided to local government for service delivery including the Home and Community Care program

Local Government Victoria, within the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning, provides the majority of funds to local government. For 2017-18, it is estimated that around \$565 million (56 per cent) of these grants will be Commonwealth financial assistance grants, including road and general purpose grants that are passed on to local government in their entirety. All administration costs are borne by the Department.

As shown in Table B.1, grants and transfers to local government are expected to be \$1 010 million in 2016-17. This is an increase from the original estimate of \$898 million in the *2016-17 Budget*. The key drivers of the variance in 2016-17 include:

- Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources an increase in grants and transfers relates to the transfer of road assets to local government and the increase in grants from the Regional Jobs and Infrastructure Fund.
- Department of Education and Training an increase in grants and transfers relates to grants to local government of funding for contributions towards construction of new kindergartens and new schools in growth areas.
- Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning the minor increase in grants and transfers relates to additional transfers to local government from the Sustainability Fund, to support recovery of bushfire affected communities, and as a result of the Latrobe Valley Package - Supporting Local Government.
- Department of Treasury and Finance the increase in grants and transfers is related to an increase in Natural Disaster Relief and Recovery Arrangements grant payments to local government for clean-up due to storm and flood events.

Notes:

The 2017-18 Budget provides an estimated \$1 001.6 million in grants and transfers to local government. This represents an increase of \$103.5 million from the amount estimated in the 2016-17 Budget. The key drivers of this difference are upwards revisions in grants and transfers to local government across several departments. The significant increase in grants and transfers from the Department of Treasury and Finance relates to the continued support for local government from the Natural Disaster Relief Fund for storm and flood events in 2016. The upwards revision in grants and transfers from the Department of Treasurs and transfers from the Department of Education and Training relates to grants for the construction of new early learning facilities and new schools in the growth areas, and new initiatives including Parenting and Maternal and Child Health and Education State reform – High quality learning and development for three and four year olds. The upwards revision in grants and transfers to local government by the Department of Health and Human Services relates to the carryover of the Better Indoor Stadium and Community Sports- Football Facilities funding from 2016-17 to 2017-18.

These upwards revisions are partially offset by reductions in grants and transfers to local government by the Department of Justice and Regulation due to the drop in Commonwealth funding for the Natural Disaster Resilience Program. The value of grants and transfers made to local government by a number of departments is also expected to increase due to the funding of new budget initiatives listed later in this appendix.

COMMUNITY SUPPORT FUND

The Government funds a range of initiatives through the Community Support Fund (CSF), many of which are delivered by local government and not-for-profit community organisations.

During 2016-17, local governments and community organisations received support from a number of government programs funded from the CSF. This included the Community Facility Funding Program, which provides a variety of grants towards community support and development of sporting infrastructure.

Grants awarded included the following:

- \$960 000 for the Justice Connect's Not-for-Profit Law Program, which provides legal advice, information and training to not-for-profit community entities, to help them comply with relevant legislative and regulatory requirements;
- \$500 000 to the Monash City Council for the Scammell Reserve Facilities Upgrade project, to extend the existing building footprint and remodel the facility to bring it up to a contemporary, female friendly pavilion; and
- \$105 000 to the Heyfield and District Society, to assist in the purchase of a permanent building to house the Heyfield Museum.

FLOOD AND NATURAL DISASTER RESPONSE

The Department of Treasury and Finance administers the Natural Disaster Relief and Recovery Arrangements (NDRRA), which provides financial assistance to councils affected by natural disasters, such as bushfires, floods and severe storms. This funding is largely used to reimburse costs incurred by local councils in counter disaster and asset restoration works, providing clean up and restoration grants to small business, primary producers and not-for-profit organisations and personal hardship and distress grants to individuals and households.

Actual expenditure fluctuates each year depending on the number and magnitude of natural disasters that have occurred and the funding needs of councils.

2017-18 BUDGET INITIATIVES

This section outlines the key 2017-18 Budget initiatives by department that will be undertaken in partnership with local government. This section includes initiatives where local government is the recipient of grants and transfers and other initiatives that broadly impact on local government. Funding details for each of these initiatives are provided in Chapter 1 of this budget paper.

Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources

The Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources works closely with local government to deliver a broad range of initiatives, including local transport infrastructure to benefit Victorian communities. The Department delivers programs and provides financial and in-kind support to local government across Victoria in areas such as creative industries, regional development, recreational fishing and roads.

The Department of Economic, Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources' 2017-18 Budget initiatives that affect local government are:

- School Crossings Program;
- Implementation of the Australian Disability Parking Scheme;
- Ballarat GovHub; and
- Regional Partnerships and economic projects.

Department of Education and Training

Local governments enter into joint-use agreements with schools to enable broader use of the facilities by the community. In addition, many local governments plan, provide or facilitate kindergarten and child care services. The Department of Education and Training's 2017-18 Budget initiatives that affect local government are:

- Parenting and Maternal and Child Health;
- Education State reform High quality learning and development for three and four year olds; and
- Initiatives to Support Marrung: Aboriginal Education Plan Establishing the foundations for better outcomes.

Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning

The Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning works in close partnership with the local government sector to deliver programs across Victoria and to ensure Victorians enjoy responsive and accountable local government services. The Department provides financial and in-kind support to local governments including grants for libraries, community assets and support for emergency response. In addition, the Department delivers programs and provides policy direction to support local governments to mitigate risks and adapt to changing climate, including providing regulatory frameworks around planning and environmentally sensitive urban design.

The Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning's 2017-18 Budget initiatives that affect local government are:

- Activating Victoria's heritage Building on the Living Heritage program;
- Growing Suburbs Fund;
- Investing in waste and resource recovery for a growing Victoria;
- Regional sustainability reform program; and
- Roadside weeds and pests.

Department of Health and Human Services

The Department of Health and Human Services partners with community providers and local governments across a range of areas. This includes working with local governments to deliver recreational, support and other health services for vulnerable Victorians (including children, older persons, recent arrivals and members of culturally and linguistically diverse communities) as well as grants for sporting events and community assets.

The Department of Health and Human Services' 2017-18 Budget initiatives that affect local government are:

- Home and Community Care Program for Younger People; and
- Sports Infrastructure Fund.

STYLE CONVENTIONS

Figures in the tables and in the text have been rounded. Discrepancies in tables between totals and sums of components reflect rounding. Percentage changes in all tables are based on the underlying unrounded amounts.

The notation used in the tables and charts is as follows:

n.a. or na	not available or not applicable
1 billion	1 000 million
1 basis point	0.01 per cent
nm	new measure
	zero, or rounded to zero
tba	to be advised
tbd	to be determined
ongoing	continuing output, program, project etc.
(xxx.x)	negative numbers

Please refer to the **Treasury and Finance glossary for budget and financial reports** at <u>dtf.vic.gov.au</u> for additional terms and references.

INDEX

Α

Aboriginal Affairs, 3–4, 11, 12 Output initiatives, 3 Aged services, 82, 237–39 Alcohol Ice Action Plan, 24–25 Apprentices Support Officers, 59

В

Ballarat, 47 GovHub, 33, 43 Rail Corridor Upgrade, 51 Regional Presence project, 86 Bendigo Jobs and infrastructure, 33 Law courts, 109 Rail upgrade, 51 Biodiversity, 66–67 Bus services. *See* Public transport

С

Children, families and children Child protection and family services, 252-54 Child protection services, 82 Early childhood development, 54 Climate Change, 67, 203 Water management and supply, 72-74, 77 Correctional orders, 97, 100 Councils. See Local Government Courts. See also Budget Paper No. 5 Asset initiatives, 110 Court services, 351-55 Income from transactions, 349 Output initiatives, 109 Output summary, 349 Parliamentary authority for resources, 350 Creative industries, 30-31, 43, 134-35

Cultural diversity, 103 English as an additional language, 56 Multicultural affairs policy and programs, 309

D

Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources. See also Budget Paper No. 5 Agriculture, 29-30, 124-27 Asset initiatives, 41–42 Bus services, 148-49 Creative industries, 30–31 Creative Industries, 43 Creative industries access, development and innovation, 132-33 Creative industries portfolio agencies, 134 - 35Cultural infrastructure and facilities, 136 Income from transactions, 122 Industrial Relations, 31, 140 Industry and employment, 31–32 Industry and enterprise innovation, 141–42 Integrated transport, 150 International education, 33 Jobs and investment, 143–44 Major projects, 33, 43, 145 Metropolitan public transport, 39-41, 48-49 Metropolitan roads, 37-38, 45-46 Output initiatives, 27-29 Output summary, 121-22 Parliamentary authority for resources, 123 Port and freight network access, 151 Regional development, 33-34, 146 Regional public transport, 41, 49-51 Regional roads, 39, 46–48 Resources, 35, 128-29 Road asset management, 152–54 Road operations and network improvements, 155-56 Rural women's network, 29 Small business innovation and trade, 35

Sustainably manage fish, game and forest resources, 130-31 Taxi and hire vehicle services, 157-58 Tourism and major events, 36 Tourism, major events and international education, 137-38 Trade, 147 Train services, 159–60 Tram services, 161 Transport network safety, operation and development, 36-37, 43-45 Transport safety, security and emergency management, 162-65 Department of Education and Training. See also Budget Paper No. 5 Asset initiatives, 59 Disability support for students, 194 Disability support for students, 58 Early childhood development, 54, 60, 172-73 Income from transactions, 168 Output initiatives, 53 Output summary, 167 Parliamentary authority for resources, 168 School education, 55-57, 60-64 School education - primary, 175-79 School education - secondary, 181-85 Strategy review and regulation, 169–70 Support services delivery, 192-93 Training, higher education and workforce development, 59, 187-91 Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning. See also Budget Paper No. 5 Asset initiatives, 76 Climate Change, 67, 203 Energy, 75, 208-9 Environment and biodiversity, 66-67, 204-5.204-5 Environment protection, 72, 77 Fire and Emergency Management, 68, 76, 224-25 Income from transactions, 199 Land Use Victoria, 68, 210–11 Local government, 68, 222-23 Management of forests, parks and public lands, 69, 76 Management of public land and forests, 212-13 Output initiatives, 66 Output summary, 121–22 Parks Victoria, 70, 76, 214 Parliamentary authority for resources, 200

Planning, building and heritage, 70-71, 77, 218-20 Statutory activities and environment protection, 206-7 Suburban development, 69 Suburban Development, 221 Water management and supply, 72-74, 77, 215-17 Department of Health and Human Services. See also Budget Paper No. 5 Actute health services, 231-36 Acute health services, 79–81, 91–92 Ageing, aged and home care, 82, 237-39 Ambulance services, 82, 240-41 Child protection and family services, 82, 252-54 Concessions to pensioners and beneficiaries, 83.258-59 Disability services, 83, 260–62 Drug services, 242-43 Emergency management, 96, 99 Empowering individuals and communities, 84-86, 93, 263-65 Enforcing and managing correctional orders, 97, 100 Family violence service delivery, 257 Gender equality and the prevention of family violence policy and programs, 266 Housing assistance, 255-56 Income from transactions, 229 Industry regulation and support, 97, 101 Mental health services, 86-88, 93, 244-45 Output initiatives, 78–79 Output summary, 228 Parliamentary authority for resources, 230 Policing and crime prevention, 98, 101 Primary, community and dental health, 246 Public health, 89, 247–49 Small rural services, 250–51 Youth justice, 98, 101 Department of Justice and Regulation. See also Budget Paper No. 5 Asset initiatives, 99 Community based offender supervision, 277 Criminal Justice Services, 95 Criminal law support and reform, 284 Dispute resolution and civil justice support services, 290 Emergency management capability, 291–92 Gambling, liquor and racing, 293–94 Income from transactions, 270 Infringements and warrants, 283 Output initiatives, 94

Output summary, 269-70 Parliamentary authority for resources, 271 Policing and crime prevention, 272-74 Prisoner supervision and support, 275-76 Protection of personal Identity and individual/community rights, 287–89 Public prosecutions and legal assistance, 281-82 Regulation of the Victorian consumer marketplace, 295-96 Victims and community support services, 285-86 Youth justice community-based services, 278 Youth justice custodial services, 279 Department of Premier and Cabinet. See also Budget Paper No. 5 Aboriginal policy, strengthening Aboriginal cultural heritage and communities, 307-8 Advice and support to the Governor, 312 Asset initiatives, 105 Chief Parliamentary Counsel services, 313 Digital government and communications, 305 Freedom of Information (FoI), 104 Government-wide leadership, reform and implementation, 302 Income from transactions, 300 Infrastructure Victoria, 304 LGBTI equality policy and programs, 311 Management of Victoria's public records, 314 Migrant workers program, 103 Multicultural affairs policy and programs, 309 NDIS, 104 Office of the Victorian Government Architect. 306 Output initiatives, 102 Output summary, 269-70 Parliamentary authority for resources, 301 Public administration advice and support, 315 Public sector integrity, 316–18 State electoral roll and electoral events, 319 Strategic advice and government support, 303 Support to veterans in Victoria, 310 Veterans Affairs, 103 Department of Treasury and Finance. See also Budget Paper No. 5 Asset initiatives, 107 Budget and financial advice, 326-27

Commercial and infrastructure advice, 334-35 Economic and policy advice, 329–31 Economic regulatory services, 332 First Home Owner Grant, 107 Income from transactions, 323 Output initiatives, 106 Output summary, 269–70 Parliamentary authority for resources, 324 Payroll tax, 106 Revenue management and administrative services to Government, 328 Services to Government, 337 Disability services, 83, 260-62 Disability parking scheme, 36, 44 Disability support for students, 58, 194 NDIS, 83 NDIS workforce reform package, 104 State Disability Plan 2017-2020, 85 Support for participation in kindergarten, 54 Domestic violence. See Family violence prevention Drugs Drug services, 242–43 Ice Action Plan, 24-25

Ε

Education Disability support for participation in kindergarten, 54 Disability support for students, 194 Disability support for students, 58 Early childhood development, 54, 60, 172-73 School education, 55-57, 60-64 School education - primary, 175-79 School education – secondary, 181–85 Training, higher education and workforce development, 59, 187-91 Emergency services Ambulance services, 82, 240–41 Emergency management capability, 291–92 Fire and Emergency Management, 68, 76, 224 - 25State Emergency Services (SES), 96, 100 Telecommunications Authority (ETSA), 96, 99 Employment, 31-32, 143-44 Environment, 66-67, 204-5 Environment protection, 72, 77, 206-7 Land Use Victoria, 68, 210–11

Management of forests, parks and public lands, 69, 76 Management of public land and forests, 212–13

F

Family violence prevention, 5–18 Aboriginal Affairs, 5, 10, 11 Asset initiatives, 17 Children, 16 Cultural diversity, 6 Gender equality and the prevention of family violence policy and programs, 266 Housing, 17 LGBTI, 13 Output initiatives, 5–6 Service delivery, 257 Freedom of Information (Fol), 104

G

Gambling, gaming and liquor, 293–94 Industry regulation and support, 97, 101 Geelong Employment transition, 32 Regional enhancement, 34 Revitalising Central Geelong, 71, 77

Н

Health, health services Acute health services, 79-81, 91-92 Ageing, aged and home care, 82, 237-39 Ambulance services, 82 Child protection and family services, 82, 252-54 Concessions to pensioners and beneficiaries, 83, 258-59 Disability services, 83, 260-62 Empowering individuals and communities, 84-86, 263-65 Mental health services, 86-88, 93, 244-45 NDIS, 83 Primary, community and dental health, 246 Public health, 89, 247-49 Small rural services, 250-51 Sport and recreation, 93 Homes for Victorians, 19-23 First Asset initiatives, 23 First Home Owner Grant, 19, 21 Output initiatives, 19

Housing Family violence support, 17 First Home Owner Grant, 19, 21, 107 Homes for Victorians, 19–23, 113 Housing assistance, 255–56 Property tax, 113

I

Ice Action Plan, 24–25 Asset initiatives, 25 Mental health, 25 Output initiatives, 24 Indigenous. *See* Aboriginal Affairs Industrial Relations, 31, 140 Innovation, 35 International education, 33

К

Koori. See Aboriginal Affairs

L

Land management Management of forests, parks and public lands, 69, 76 LGBTI Equality policy and programs, 311 Family violence prevention, 13 Life Saving Victoria, 96 Local government, 68, 222–23

Μ

Mental health services, 86–88, 93, 97, 100, 244–45

Ν

NDIS, 83, 104

Ρ

Parliament. See also Budget Paper No. 5 Income from transactions, 340 LegislativeAssembly, 342 LegislativeCouncil, 341 Output initiatives, 108 Output summary, 339 Parliamentary authority for resources, 340 Parliamentary Budget Office, 345

Parliamentary investigatory committees, 344 Parliamentary reports and services, 347 Parliamentary services, 343 Victorian Auditor-General's Office, 338, 346 Payroll tax, 106, 112 Pensioners Concessions to pensioners and beneficiaries, 83 Police, Victoria Police Policing and crime prevention, 98, 101, 272-74 Training, 87 Prisons, prison services, 97, 100 Property tax, 113 Public transport. See also Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources Bus services, 37, 40, 49, 148-49 Disability parking scheme, 36, 44 E-Class trams, 40, 49 Integrated transport, 150 Metro trains, 36 Metropolitan public transport, 39-41, 48-49 Regional public transport, 41, 49-51 Regional trains, 41, 49 Solar trams, 75 Train services, 159-60 Tram services, 161 Transport network safety, operation and development, 36-37, 43-45

R

Rail. See Public transport
Regional development, 33–34, 146
Resources, 35
Roads. See also Department of Economic Development, Jobs, Transport and Resources
Metropolitan roads, 37–38, 45–46
Regional roads, 39, 46–48
Road asset management, 152–54
Road operations and network improvements, 155–56

S

Shepparton Bypass, 39, 48 Line ugrade, 41 Regional enhancement, 34 Shepparton Lighthouse project, 57 Small business, 35 Sport, 84–86, 93 Stamp duty, 111–13

Т

Timber industry assistance, 26 Asset initiatives, 26 Output initiatives, 26 Transition worker support, 59 Tourism and major events, 36, 137–38 Trade, 35, 147 Train services. *See* Public transport

V

Veterans, veterans affairs, 103 Support to veterans Victoria, 310 Victoria Legal Aid, 95 Victoria Police. *See* Police, Victoria Police

W

Water Water management and supply, 72–74, 77, 215–17 Women Female participation in sport, 84 Rural women's network, 29

Υ

Youth, 82, 86 Custodial services, 279 Disability support, 83 Mental health services, 87 Youth justice, 98, 101 Youth justice community-based services, 278

Victorian Budget 17/18 Service Delivery Budget Paper No. 3 budget.vic.gov.au



Treasury and Finance